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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

GROUP REVENUE

£10.3bn '

CROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX

UNDERLYINC PROFIT BEFORE TAX

£661.2m** £600.0m**+*

INTERIM AND FINAL DIVIDEND

6.4p+11.6p =18.0p *>%*

UNDERLYING GROWP EARNINGS PER SHARE

CROUP EARNINGS PER SHARE

33 .1p +2.8%

STRATEG!C PRIORITIES FOR THE YEAR

29.7p -8.6%

AL the starL of this Ninancial year we set out four strategic priorites La enable Ls to deliver our plan to
beocome a leaaing international mult channel retailer Food sales growth GM gross margin improvement,
improving CM performance and strong cash generation

o o <] 5]
s ISRy
£5.2bn 52.6% £4.0bn £524.2m
+3.4% +100bps -2.5% +22.5%

© See Chief Executive § strategic overview p08-09

ABOUT OUR REPORYING

NAVIGATING THE REPORT Inthis
document youwitl scea senes of cons
Lhot demonstrate how we ve inlegrated
information aboul our business model
with detals of our strategy ang risk

The easy Lo denuly scons also lellyou
where tolook for furtherinformation

© 0 06

STRATECIC PLAN A RISK LOOKING
PRICRMES AHEAD
LINKED TO READ

REMUNERATION  MORE

INTECRATED REPORTING As members of the
international Integrated Reporting Council pitol
wo have commitied Lo reportingthe long term
value crealed by sustainable business Qur
ambitior s to have a report that fullymeets

the principles of the IRC framework by 2016
Progress Lhis year ncliudes arevised depcLon
of our busincss modol, wiveh better
demonsirales howwe create long-termyelue
dwough the effectve use of our resourcesand
relationships, ariclear links betweenow KPis
andremuneralon

PLAN A Plan A integrated throughout
this reporl Lo demonstrate how il s
ermbeddedinevery part of our business
This makes it easier for shareholders o
see how our sustainabilly programme:s
creating value in our different dvisions
Moare detalled nfor mation 1s available
nouronbing 2015 PlanARepori at
marksandspencer com/plana2015

ONLINE INFORMATION To keep
sharehotders fully up-lo-date, we have
camprenensive financial and company
nformauonon our website [t means Lthat
shareholders canaccess the mformation
they require 24 hours a day Toregister,
go lo marksandspencer com/investors
and lollow the ‘Electroruc Shareholder
Commumcation’ lnk

INVESTOR RELATIONS APP Qur Marks 8
Spencer Investor Relalions app provides
nlarmatontorvestorsandLhe financial
medianan Pad™ optimised (ormat

The app displays Lhe latest share price
informationand cor porate news 1t also
contains Ninancial reports, presentalions
and videos For more information visil
marksandspencer com/investors
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AMNNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015
STRATECIC REPORT

INTRODUCTION

M&S IS ONE OF THE UK'S
LEADING RETAILERS, WITH OVER
1,330 STORES WORLDWIDE

WE ARE COMMITTED TO
DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE VALUE
FOR OUR SHAREHOLDERS AND
ENHANCING LIVES EVERY DAY
THROUCH THE HICH QUALITY, OWN
BRAND FOOD, CLOTHING AND HOME
PRODUCTS WE OFFER IN OUR STORES
AND ONLINE BOTH IN THE UK
AND INTERNATIONALLY

\WHATS IN THIS REPORT?

[ OUR BUSINESS [~ GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
02 Ataglarce 32 Charmans Governance overview 90 Consclidaled financial statements
04 Chaurmans statement 34 Leadership & effectiveness 94 Noteslothelinancalstatements
06 Creaung sustainable value 34 OQurBoard 123 Company flinancial staternents
b 08 Chief Executive s strategic . 42 Nomination Comrrittee Report 124 Noles Lo the Company hinancmal
overview & statements
E 44 Accountability
g 19 Ourplaninaction g 4a Riskinachon 126 Group lnangal record
] 4§ Audt Commitlec Report
P g e ' P 127 SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION*
g OUR PERFORMANCE E 51 Engagement
“1 14 Keyperformance ndicators g| 51 Stakeholderengagement
16 Fnancalreviow 52 Remuneration
20 Markatplace 52 Remuneration overview
22 People behindthe plan 54 Remuneration Policy
L 23 Riskmanagernent 62 Remuncration Report
26 Qperating performance® L 77 Pensionsgovernance
78 Other disclosures “DIRECTORS' REPORT
Cperaling performance and Sharehotder
831 Independent auditor’s repart inforenation Formpart of the Directors Report

QOUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNAMCE

FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS



MARKS AND SPENCER CROUP PLC
STRATECIC REPORT

OUR BUSINESS

AT A GLANCE

We sell high quality, great value
products to 33 million customers
through our 852 UK stores and our
e-commerce platform Qur business
has two divisions Food, which accounts
for 57% of our turnover, and General
Merchandise, which accounts for the
remalning 43% We have market leading
positions In Womenswear, Lingene
and Menswear

© Read more on p26-28

FOOD REVENUE

£5.2bn™

GENERAL MERCHANDISE REVENUE

£4.0bn™"

STORES

5 +34
slores

Our M&S com flagship positions us as a
leading multi-channel retalter Launched
in February 2014, the website gives us
flexability to cater to customers’ changing
shopping habtts, whether they are
shopping onbne via therr mobile, ona
tablet, or at Shop Your Way points in our
stores The site now has over 7 million
registered users

© Read more on p28

M35 COM SALES*

£636.5m

WEEKLY SITE VISITS

6 .1 m+'l().9%

SHOP YOUR WAY STORES

520”

MAS comisatestor the year encing 201415 are 0N & DOSL SISMA FAUTNS DISS MES com wales

Nave DREN restaied on a congisient Daws for 2011/14
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INTERNATIONAL

M&S has 480 wholly-owned, jointly-
owned or franchised stores in 59
territories across Europe, Asia and the
Middle East Our international business
now includes a fast-growing standalone
Food operation, meaning that more
people around the world can enjoy cur
delicious, innovative food products Our
significant physical presence overseas
1s complemented by country-specific
Ceneral Merchandise websites

€ Read more on p29

INTERNATIONAL REVENUE

£1.1bn™

INTERNATIONAL STORES

+25
netnew
StoLesy

TERRITORIES

59"

PLAN A 2020 -

Pian A, our ethical and environmental
programme, underpins everything we do,
from sourcing responsibly and reducing
waste to helping the communities in
which we operate It 1s 2 business plan
that maps out cur route to providing
leadershup in a world that s increasingly
resource-constrained and expertencing
soial change

@ morksandspencercom/plana2tis

TOTAL PLAN A 2020 COMMITMENTS

102

NOT ACHIEVED

COMMITMENTS ACHIEVED

47 9

COMMITMENTS ON PLAN COMMITMENTS BEHIND PLAN

39 2

COMMITMENTS NOT STARTED

5

QUR PERFOQRMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FAINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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OUR BUSINESS

CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT

From our values to our infrastructure, M&S 1s a
more capable and better equipped business than it
was a year ago - helping us become the modern,

agile company we need to be

ROBDERT SWANNELL CHAIRMAN

INTERIM

FINAL TOTAL DIVIDEND FOR 2014/201%

6.4p 11.6p 18.0p

PAID ON 9 JANUARY 2015 TO BE PAID ON 10 JULY 2015

OVERVIEW

This year we have seen outstanding
performance in some areas of the business
but performance below our expectations
in others The overall result 15 that
underlying profits before tax moved ahead
£1%to £66! 2m We have achieved a
number of the strategic priontes we set
out at the beginning of the year, becoming
a more capable company with significantly
stronger nfrastructure but we experienced
some implementation ssues along the way
We embedded new values aligned with aur
strateqic goals These values which put
ntegrity at thew core, respect our heritage
whilst helping us to become the modern,
agile company we need to be Above alt, we
rernain focusced et one Lhing offenng owr
customaoers products of exceplional quality
and value that thoy can irust, however they
€Noose to shop with us

PERFORMANCE

Cur Foad busingss had an oulstanding year
N a seclor thal continues Lo go through
profound change InLhe mosl compebilive
food markel of recent years we delivered
Uke-for-ike growihin every quarter and
martained our margin We have a clear and
distinct offenng and our growth plans lock
clear ang achievable

Qur General Merchandhise (GM) business
delvered sigruflicant margin gains - the
first step in reagng the benefits of the
Investrment we have made - and our
products were well received by our
customers and the fashion press Whilst
our overall performance was affected by

the implementation issues outlined below,
1t was pleasing to exit the year in Lthe final
Quarter wath all elements of our GM
business showing growtlh

Performance in our International
business was disappointing Strong sales
performance in key owned markets, for
example india and Hong Kong, was more
tnan offset by macroeconomic ISsues and
perfarmance in key franchise markets
particularty Russia, Ukraine and Turkey

We implermented two crucial pieces of
infrastructure our new M&S corn websie
and cur automated distnbution centre at
Castie Doninglen, Lwo of the largest
projects of ther kindin Europe Whnilst
projects of Lhis scale are Lkely Lo
expenence some izl performanceissucs,
these were greater than we anuicipated Our
skilled teams acted decisvely Lo address
Lhe issues The strategic ralionale for both
projects remains clear

BOARD PRIORITIES

The Board s three priorities have remaned
the same since L became Chairman in 2011
we are focused on stralegy and execulion,
people and succession and values Having
completed the bulk of our major three-year
nvestment programme to lransform M&S
nte aninternational mulu-channet retailer
the Boards focus agair this year was on
ensuring that our substantal investment
debivers the required returns We also
devoted time te ensunng we have Lhe nght
talent and skals required in our business
and to debating 2nd articulating our values,
discussed below

BOARD CHANGES

There have been a number of changes to
the Board this year

Jan du Plessis, our Senor Independent
Director, stepped downin March 2015
having served eon the Board since 2008
1'woutd Uke to thank Jan for hus
commutment and contribution to M35 over
the years His insights and experience have
been invaluable Vindi Banga who has
served on our Board since 2012 took onthe
position of Sermor Independent Director, he
atso charrs the Remuneraton Cormmettee

In Agril 2015 Richard Solomons joined the
Board as a non-executive director Richard
1s Chief Executive of InterContinental
Hotels Croup and brings sirong
commergial consumer, branding and
global expenience to the M&S Board

On the execulive team | would ke to
extend a warm welcome Lo Helen Weir
our new Chef Finance Officer Helen has
exceptional crodentials in both retail and
linance having previously held the same
posilion al John Lews Partnership, Lioyds
Banking Croup and Kingfisher

This year we reviewed our senior
remuneratien framework ta align v more
clearty with our slrategic objectives
Further detals are Laid out in our
Rermuneration Report on page 52

OUR VALUES AND PLAN A [~

The culture at M&S 1S important 1o the
Board QOur values are a fundamental part of
how we do business - they are what rakes
MLS different Last June we introduced four
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GOVERNANCE PROFILE

Independence Half of our Board s made up
of ndependent non-executive dirgclors, in
line wnth the UK Corporate Covernance Code

Senior Independent Cirector Our Servor
Independent Director s Vindi Banga

Accountabibity and election We have clear
separation of duties between Charmanand
CEQ roles and require alithe directors Lo
stand for re-electionannually

Evaluation An externally facibtated
performance evaluationof the Board andits
commitiees was undertaken during the year
asttisevery three years

Attendance The Drectors have allattended
an acceptable level of Board and Committee
meetings

Compliance The composition of all Board
committees complies with the application
recommendations of the Code

Expenence Throughout 2014/15 two members
of the Audit Committee had recent and
relevant financial experience

Tenure The tenure of our previcus externat
auditor was over tenyears In 2014/15 we
a2ppointed a new stalutory auchtor Celoitte
fellowing a thorough tender process
Non-audit pabicy We have a polcy for Lhe
award of non-audit work performed by our
auditor, whichis disclosed on our website and
we have disclosed the hmited non-audit work
undertaken

Auditor appointment We disclose our
external auditor appeintment policy
tntermal Audit Details on the nternal audn
function are provided wathin this report
Performancoe-ratated pay A signficant part
of our performance-retated pay s delvered
through shares

Reward Qur reward frameworkis sirmple and
\ransparent and s designed to support and
dnve our business strategy

OUR COVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

LEADERSHIP © So0 pla

The Board ngorously challenge eachather
onstrateqy performance responsibibity arvd
accountatbty (o #nsure [Nat the decisons we
makeareof -heh gnes quality

EFFECTWENESS Q See pat

The Boards perfor mance s sautinsedinanannuat
eftecuvenessreview This examinegs the progress
we are makung aganst our plan our collective and
“innctual effectveness and the ndependence of our
non-execuiive deectors

ACCOUNTABILITY O See paa

All of our decisong are discussed withinthe contest
ol the nsks nvelved E*fec.ve rkmanagement s
cantral to us achieving our siraweQic objechives

ENCAGEMENT © Sce ps)

Maintamng strorng relationshps with our
thareholders boh private and nstitutonal 1§
Crucsal 1o achieving our airs. We hold numerous.
@vants throughout the year tomaintam an open
dalogue with nvestors

new core vatues built on the principles that
have guided M35 since it was foundedin
1854 The values - Inspirabion Innovation,
Integnty and In Touch - aim to equip us all
to deliver our strategic plans

But while the words are new we have not
changed what matters tous Acting with
integnty 15 at the heart of the way we do
business So our customers can be sure
that the GM margin gains we achieve will
not come at the expense of the standards
we expect in our factones, they can be
sate n the knowledge that we will not
compromise on the provenance of our
food, and they can rely onus lobe a force
for good in the communities 1 which we
operate

Qur commitment lo Plan A the
programme we launched cight years ago Lo
become the world s most sustainable major
retaler, remains as deeply held today as il
ever was As people become increasingly
aware of how their behaviour impacts the
world around them, we bebeve businesses
need o connect with the communities In
which they operate Frorm healthy lnaing

to ethical souraing, we are committed o
leading the way and strving to offer cur
custormners the most susiainable options
passible As M&S becomes more
nternational, our abibity (o tead with others
on a global scale grows, whelher by using
our scale to dnve improvements 1N Qur gwn
supply chain or by lending our expertisc Lo
globalindustry ritiatrves

£ See Covernance Secbon pl2-82

STAKEMOLDER ENCAGEMENT

Engaging with stakeholders and employees
1s particularty important. during tmes of
change We commurnicate regutarly with our
shareholders to ensure they understand
our progress and plans Outside our results
thus year, we held investor briefings on

MRS com and our International business
and Marc Bolland anci his executive team
had many meetings with mvestors All
information shared at these events

15 avalable to shareholders at
marksandspencer com/investors We

again held a governance event for our
largest shareholders winch | led with our
Sentor Independent Director

We have recently implemented a now
loyally scherme for our private nvaestors
The schome allows over 190,000 of our
UK-registered private investors 1o use
money from ther dadend payment to buy
an M85 Shareholder Card at a discount It
operates much Lke a gift card The intitive
reflects the factk our private investars are
also some of our most loyal customers and
we value them greatly

Qur Fi for the Future programine was ane
of our biggest ever engagement exercises,
where employees discussed the shape of
the new values We also launched a scheme
for the 3 500 section managers who
between them manage 92% of our sales
flocr colleagues The programme inspwred
and motivated these managers who are
the beatwg heart of M&S

LOOKING AHEAD AND DIVIDEND (4]

M&S 15 a more tapable and better
eguipped busingss than it was a yoar ago
Inthe coming yoar we will conlinue to
focus ongrowthinFood improving

GM performance further improving
margins and cash generation

Our dividend policy remans a prograssive
one, with draiclends broadly covered twice
by earmngs We intend to pay a finat
dwidend of 11 6p thes year, taking the total
tvidend 1o 18 Op, up 5 9% on last year In the
context of our increased free cash flow we
are alsc pleased to announce an angoing
prograrame of returns of capilal to
shareholders, starung this year, with a

share buyback programme of £150m

Minally | would Uke Lo thank all our
emplayees or thew hard work and
commitment at a tme of sigrficant
change MA&S employees are dedhcated and
upbeat - | arm always struck by Lher positive
atbitude and encrgy Therr pride in M&S and
commitrnent Lo the business are what
makes us special [ want Lo thank every

one of them in stores and in our offices

for therr contrpulion this year

ROBERT SWANNELL CHAIRMAN

QUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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OUR BUSINESS

CREATING
SUSTAINABLE VALUE

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

COUR RESOURCES 8 RELATIONSHIPS

We create tong-term value through the
effective use of our resources and relationships
We manage these in line with our core values of

Inspiration, innovation, Integrity and In Touch

0 FINANCIAL
Generating returns for our
stakeholders through effecluve
managerment of our Mnancial
resources

These values nfluence how we behave and they
run through everything we do -they make the
M&S difference enhancing lives every day

through the products and services we offer

) MANUFACTURED
Maintaining our channels and
supply chain nfrastructure to meet
customer demand

our customers in the UK and internationally

© INTELLECTUAL
Strengthening our brand through
craation and protection of our
intellectual properties

LISTEN & UNDERSTAND

>

STRATEGY & FINANCIAL
PLANNING

PRESERVING QUR
TRUSTED BRAND

>

Undeorstanding our customersinforms
everyltung we do Our Customer Insight
Uit {CIU) bsiens and talks to around 60,000
customeoers a month, analysing the results
Lo build a comprehensive undersianding
of what our customers want and how this

1s Changing We also engage wilh over

26 million customers every day wia our
social medha channels gmng aconslant
flow of mformation about how they are
feeling about M&S and our products By
keoping closely in lovch with our Customors
we can ensure that we stay relevant and
contnue Lo offer the products and services
\hey want 1o see 3t MAS

~
[

Awell run business rcles onrobust
financal management and planning

We are comutted to creating value for
sharcholders by making M&S a more
profitable business through improved
qross margin and strong cash generation
driven by ngorous controlof costs and
capex Inbre with our strateQy Lobuld an
infrastruclure (iL Lo supporl the fulure
growth of the business we continuelo
invesk m our supply chamnand technology
We fund future growth through exsiing
cash lows apolicy which supporls our
commilment to Maintaning an vestment
grade rating

>
Qur own brand model sits at the very heart
of the M&S difference Qurunique products
set us apart and our nnovative Culture
means we are always improving them {or the
belter By prowiding ligh-quality products
alongside anwndustry leading approach

to provenance, elhies and cnvironmentat
standards we have built a brand that our
customers Lrust = Lhis15 our compelilive
advantage M&S occupies a very special
placen Britain and we work hard to protect
that posthion by always acung with the
integrily our customers have come Lo

know and expect
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FIND QUT MORE

1
i
‘
|
f
|
v
]
1
'
.
i

© Read about Our Plan on p03-13

0 Read more on Risk oft p23-25

© Read more on KPis on pla 15

CUR BUSINESS MODEL

[ ouReusNessMooeL

QURRESOURLCES 8 RELATIONSHIPS

) NATURAL
Sourcmgresponsibly and
using naturalresources efficiently

© 50CIAL & RELATIONSHIP

Bulding and nurtunng relationships with

our customers and suppliers and in Lhe
communities inwhich we operate

© HumaN
Developing people and ther knowledge

THE M&S DIFFERENCE

BUILDING STRONG
RELATIONSHIPS >

REACHING QUR CUSTOMERS 3

U ewsorezmenee

MARKETING & SERVING
OUR CUSTOMERS S

Wa are commitied tobulding and mamtaning
collaborative, suslainable relationships
throughoul our supply chainandin the
commundies where we operate We encourage
and support our suppliers 1o apply the same
ngorous standards agamnst which we measure
ourselvas M35 has over 3000 product raw
matenal and service suppliers with current
social compliance assessments covenng
many aspects of humannghis bsted on

the Suppler Ethical Data Exchange Weare
longstanding members of the Ethical
Trading Invbatrve and Clotal Socl Complance
Programme Qur Clobal Sourcing Principles
cover whal we expect and require of our
suppliers - we updated them thus year 10
incorporate the UNs CGuiding Principles

on Business and Human Rights

Our range of seling channels enables our
customers Lo shop withus nihe way which
1s most conversent lor them M85 com
offers our full rangein a stylish, editonal-led
format thal aims to inspire and excite our
customers We have a strong presence on
the UK high skreet and i retail parks with
acombination of larger full ine stores and
smaller stares, all supported by our Shop
Your Way service that delivers our products
whergver and whenever our customers want
them Our expanding Simply Food format
means we are well posittoned torespond 1o
changing consumer shopping hatts We
have a strong presence in key convenience
locations including ity centres hospitals
and travel hubs, such as petrol stations train
stations and arrpoerts

For the first ume we have brought food and
fashion logether under one branddentiny
=Only M&S Thus unified brand provides the
weal platform lromwhich io sharethe rany
stones Lhat make our products unigque It also
cloarly communicates what M&S stands lor
Lhrougha unifiedcampaign The refresheg
brand delivers a smpler more contemporary
look and,importantly Est 1884 celebrales
our 131-year history reflecting the value

our custormersplace an our hentage

We have slways prdedourselvesonour
cormmument Lo customer service -t S akey
partof our hentage Every product s butt
around our customer Our employees traved
tothe hghest standard are unitedintherr
dedication Lo giving our customers Lho

bes1 shopping expenendce

v
J

QUR BUSINESS

QUR PERFORMANCE

COVERMANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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OUR BUSINESS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
STRATECIC OVERVIEW

We are transforming M&S into a
stronger, more agite business - putting the
nght infrastructure, capabilities and talent In
place to drive our strategic priorities

MARC BOLLAND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(5] L] o (]

UK FOOD CENERAL MERCHAMDISE UK CENERAL MERCHANDISE FREE CASH FLOW
REVENUE CROSS MARGIN REVENUE PRE DIVIDENDS
£5.2bn 52.6% £4.0bn £524.2m
. » (4] P .
+3 4% +190bps -1 5% +22 5%

OVERVIEW

In 2014/15 we made further progress
against our strategy o become aleading
nternational, multi-channei retafer - a2s we
enhanced our M&5 com infrastructure

With our new infrastructure Largety in

place we have been focused on execution
A number of key projects for example
mprovements to aur product allocation
and replenshment systems, have been
successfully implemented this year We
also built up our design capabilities and
capitalsed on our market leading food
product develeprment Whilst we faced
some difliculties during the bedding In
period of the wehsite ang distribution
centre, we have learnod more aboul how to
improve our onling cuslomer expenence
and how best to stabiise the complex
operations al Castle Donington Thanks Lo
our strenglhened in-house capabilities
these learnings have been effecuively put
"o praclice, enablng us to return M&5com
Lo growihin Lhe hinal guarler of the year

In 2014/15 we invested in our organisalion
and our people Lo gel the very best from cur
new infrastructure and errsure we are truly fit
for the future We have brought in key skills
and compotencias Lhat have histencally
been outsourced - helping us work more
profitably and with greater pace This has
included sirengthering our in-house
clothing and home design capability and

our sofiware gnginecnng team

Our vatues underpin everything we do

We developed four new core values of
Inspiralion Innovation, Integrity and

in Touch By putting these values at

the heart of everything we do we are
encouraging employees to do things
differantly and take a fresh look al how we
caninspire our customers = with exquisite
qualty and styling 0 our clothing, and
innovative first to market, exceptional
quality food This consistency will help
customars recogrise the vatues of out
brand and what makes MAS different

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW (s]

We had an outstanding year n a difficult
market Sales Increased despite deflation
across the sector and our profitabiity rose
as we strearmlined our processes Our Food
division has now seen 22 consecutive
quarters of Uxe{or-Lke sales growth
Customers continued 1o turn to M&S

for both everyday quality and special
moments They love our constant
nnovation over Lhe year we launched

1 700 new products It 15 ihis newness and
nnovation that makes M&S faod special

CENERAL MERCHANDISE

We made good progress inthree of our
four key strategic prionties for the year

In driving Food growth we detivered an
excellent performance with sales up

3 4% and growlh ahead of the market

we sigruficantly increased our GM grass
margin by 190bps GM sales, however

were challenging, particularly in the thud
quarter due to the impact of the disruplion
at Castle Doninglon and the unseasonal
weather Finally, we continued to control
cosls ughtly and reduced capilal expendiure
Thus, combined with @ (ocus on working
capital, has delivered free cash flow pre
dradends of £524 2mup 22 5%

FOQD

The strategy we set out in 2010 to be more
of a specialist in Food is working very well
and differentiates us from the competition

Cuslomers recognised the improvements
inthe style and quality of our clothing Qur
collections over the year were a stylish
wearable interpretation of the key Lrenas,
meeling with approval from the fashion press
and custorners alke By the fourth quarter
all CM departments were seeing growth
The rise in gross margin came about Lhrough
betler buying and sourcing We also focused
on full pnce sales and saw customers trade
up 10 our betler and best ranges

CHANNELS

Despite a difficult start to Lthe year, the
performance of M3S com sieadily
improved as we listened ta customers
feedback and worked hard to improve

the ontine shopping expenence The site
rnade gains on three key metnes as the
year progressed traffic, conversion and
customer satisfaction levels We now offer

INSPIRATION INNOVATION

We aim to excite and inspire our customers

We are restless in our aun to mprove things for the better
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LOOKING AHEAD -

As we continue the waork to transform
our Infrastructure, we will now focus on
consolidating our position as a leading
nternational, multi-channel retailer

Using our strengthened capabiities our
priorthies, both inthe UK and International,
wil be to accelerate our Food growth delver
2n end-to-end CM aperating model and to
drive the expenence on M&5 com We will
continge 1o develop a world class talent
pool, further growing our skills nkey
strategic areas

The UK food market will reman
challenging but we are well positioned
with 2 store format that caters for how
shoppang habits are chang ng We opened
62 Senply Food stores this year and we
hawve a strong pipeline with the fastest
Food store opening programme planned
nNMESshatory

Whitst we expect the Clothing and Home
market 10 remain highly competitive, we wil
delrver growth through a focus on stysh
design quality and newness, with better
avalabilty and more chowce

We anucipate that our Internat:onat
business will continue to be impacted
by this year s weakening euro and
macroeconomic factors will remain a
challenge, particularly 1n our Middle
East region However, we will focus on
delivering relevant ranges [o our local
customers impraving aur Like-for-like
sales performance across our owned
and franchised market and building
our International supply chamn

Qur strategic prionities for 2015/16 remain unchanged

FOOD SALES GROWTH CM GROSS MARCIN IMPROVEMENT IMPROVE CM PERFCRMANCE STRONG CASH CENERATION

our customers a much more engagng
onlNG expenence M&Scom is a superior
shep window for our products and our
customers appreciate its strong editonial
point of view B2Zm people visited its Style
& Living editonal section over the year
Together, this has resulted 1 a sieady
improvement in sales and we linshed the
year with growth of 13 8% 1n Q4 Over 7m
people have registered to use the site,
sUrpassing registrabons on our old site

We conlinue O rmprove our storesto
rmake them more inspinng places to shap
We invested in the qualty of the stare
environment with refreshed Wormenswear
departments and new look Menswear
departmonts We atso improved

Shop Your Way with extended delvery
cut-off times offenng a more convenent
and joined-ug customer expenance

INTERNATIONAL

Our International business faced multiple
macroecanomic challenges this year
These issues affected franchise partners,
particularly i Russia Ukraing and Turkey -
our Middle East region - and resulted in
reduced wholosale shipments which led to
lower profits However, we were ploased by
our performance i other pnonty markets,
parbicularly Inda, and by the good growth
in our Food busmess in Europe and

Hong Kong

BRAND

PLAN A [~ ]

The new core values are aligned with our
business and will grive the behaviours
needed to achveve our customer prormise
of enhancing ives every day Our brand
was enhanced by imaginative marketing
We launched Only M&S a unified campaign
for Food and clothing - we are one

brand with many stories to tell In Food,
Adventures in  celebrated the creativity
craftsmanship and passion behing our
food and was very well received by our
customers The clothing campaign marked
a step change in approach and with
renewed confidence we showcased our
edit of the latest trend The Two Famies
Chrisirnas campaign combined bold rdeas
withimaginatwve use of social meda to
position M&S as a relevant, lvely brand

PEOPLE

For M&S ta thrive in the future we have

to be amodern, forward-tocking and agile
company today Qver the year, we continued
to rolt out the necessary systems and
processes to ensure that = fromtop to
botlom -~ we are inthe right shape to meet
future challenges Our Fit [or the Future
programme saw Us refine the way we do
things We streamlined our processes,
clanfied bnes of command and introduced
inikatrves to encourage entrepreneuralism
We also realigned our executive teams
responsioiites The changes ensure greater
accountabiity and our new simplfed team
structures allow us 1o move with more
speed and aglity

Over the last 131 years MBS has built a
uruque posiion and a significant part of
that 15 downto customer Lrust Maintamming
this position of integrity s centrat Lo the
Company s future Qur custorners trust us
to always da the nght thing, which 1s why
Plan A 202015 absolutely crucal Plan A
has taught us that we can achieve more
when we collaborate nside and cutside of
the business We celebrated a decade of
Marks & Start cur scheme which provides
trarming and wark expenence within M3S
and our supply chan for the long term
unemployed Make Your Mark, our
programme that focuses on supporting
young people facang barners (o
employment 5 part of Movernent to Work
alarger programme we helped to found

1N 2013 Almost 200 of the UK s biggest
companies are now signed up Engaging
with our commiunties urderpins Plan A
and this year our employees and qustomers
rarsed a totat of £75m for our local and
national charnty partners We have a clear
plan to further engage our customers and
communities inPlan A In 2010, we set out
our goalto be the world s most sustanable
retailer and thus continues to drive our
ambition to Improve things for the better

MARC DOWAND CHIEF EXCCUTIVE

We always strive to do the right thing

We lsten actively and act thoughtfully

OUR PERFORMANCE

GCOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MAPKS ALD SPENCER CROUR PLC
OUR BUSINESS

QOUR PLAN IN ACTION: s

We have wnproved levels of

Fo o D S A L E S avalability and choice 112 stores
nowcarry our full range of 6 300 Food

G Row TH products ncreasing convenience for
our customers By oftarng our futl
range m alarger number of sLores weare
helping people cater for thar busy bves
over a0% of our custormers buylfood for

today or toright
In a crowded marketplace, our pesition as a foed
specialist sets us apart from our nivals Cusiomerslove Our Simply Food format eontinues
our Innovation It s a strategy that makes us truly different to grow strongly Weapened 62 new
Last autumn our Belgwn Chocolate Jalfa Sphere became stores ms:)h: gK t'tus rx‘.—;ir, talung our
our fastest-selling dessert ever we sold 170 000N just 5ix :1’:;1;2” plvacbiid gr;“fl‘r’f[:_“';fa’:ch
weeks Such was the demand that our supplier wentinto we ppened our 200th Simply Moo
24-hour production store through our partnerstip with 8P

@ See more about Food on p2s
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OUR BUSINESS

QUR PLAN IN ACTION: s

GM GROSS MARGIN
IMPROVEMENT

As part of our strategy to improve cur margins, we

are bringing much of our design in-house 35X of our
clothing 15 nowcreated, designed and sourced by our own
weams up from 20% al Lhe end of last year and our target
15 60% by 2016/17 Qur Direct Design strategy has led to
greater collaberation between our buying teams, our
design tearns and our regional Sourcing Offices

© 5S¢ more in Financral roview on p16-19 and
Cenaral Merchandue an p27?

A better buying process has helped
Increase our margns, for example
through the way tnat we procure our
1abric We used Lo source our Linen
frorm 28 fabricmulls Now weuse eight
Consobdating the number of mils has
attowed us to create efficiencees save
ume and be smarter iInhow we buy

Botter avarlability it kay to boasting
our margins, but scme of the behind-
«he sceries systerns and processas
whichregulate this are over 25 years old
Our CMd Programme 1s changing ths —
we are overhauling everything from our
merchandise planning svsteris toour
aliccatronandreplenishment systems
CMa willmake us rnore ef icient and
more profitasle

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MARKS AND SPENCER CROUP PLC
OUR BUSINESS

OUR PLAN IN ACTION: H

IMPROVE GM ey oo
PERFORMANCE : every 2 Jwmti Our tadEson

ranga s now in all stores and our Ros @ for
M E N w A R Autographbngeneand sleepweanisn
the mayonty of stores gngmore choice

to more of owr customers nomatter

where thay inve
When we see a trend coming, we work quickly to
interpret it For our customers Asihe UKmarket Over 70% of our female customers deem
leader in Womenswear derim, we knew that therecent the fit of 8 ganment té b the number
denim catwalk trend would resonate with our shoppers one determining factor of quabty Our
With strong editonial backing on M35 comn, a feature in smtzzf;’W&;m: .
Vogue boid in-stare visualmerchandising andjomed- consstent good m“m"“""’;lwbﬁm’ %
up Marketing our range was 3 hit We scld 4 3mpairs of hasrasultedn 3 20% reducponinoustomer
wormnens jeans up 7% on Lhe year complantsabout fit We want our customers

tofeel confident about find ng stylish
€3 Sce more about General Merchandise on p27 dothes that {4 and flatter whatever they buy
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OUR BUSINESS

OUR PLAN IN ACTION: s

QUR BUSINESS

GUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE

We hove become a more agite and
flexible ergamisation resulimgin
mproved worung capital Tacwcal
supply Chan mnatives suchas our
move 1o pushaltocaton - whereby
stock s replemshed autormatically
based oncustorner demand - have
resuited inbetter, moi e eHicient
stocking saving us ime and money

STRONG CASH
GENERATION

Prudent cost management has led to strong cash
generation across the business We runour sLores mare
efficiently than in the past This year wetaunched a new
Resource Planvung System toincrease the effectiveness
of our colleagues work patterns We atso saw the benefits
of a new payroll systern which centralised administration
Our free cash flowbefore dvidends was £52d 2mthis year
comparedto £4279m last year

Capital expenditure this yest fell
to £527m, from £ 710m, following a
perod of major nvestment to bring
ourinfrastruciure up o date We are
now 11 3 Qood posSIHoN 1o Mmaintain
oureustingassets white also having
the headraomtonvest innew ones
aswe fulflour ambitlontobe an
international multi-channelratailer
© See more in Financial review on p16-19

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MARKS AND SFENCER CROUP PLC
STRATECIC REPORT

QUR PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS

KRi DEFNMON 2014715 DATA
Grow Group RoRTE Total Group sdtet meludng et Ao £10 3bn
revenue tranchisg pastnars hd
o level
Group revenue wis broacdly Hat yes-on-
v w1 B crowthined oou s offsat
by the cecloe M and Internabional
UNDERLYING Under: pof a5 addivonal
tncrease CROUP PROFIT Vael ot mston an e underlyg £6 6 l . 2 m 13/14 £622.9m
earnings BEFORE TAX Purlonmance o1 ihe Duiness atstng for
and returns o ncomeana sgadicans onecit charges  +85.1% 12/13 Lo48.1m
Undetyng PBT grew a3 aretwtof a =
sigrhicantly mpraved pertormance in 1 1/]2 £705.9m'
the UK posmess
RETURN Retuinon can Ll émployed s arelative [
ON CAPITAL peofit measyromen that damonstrated 1 4 .7% 1!5/]4 14. 8%
‘;“OPC'-OYEO the retur nthe business 1s generaling from
{9 8 R et OEErATNGISSELS 1Y 14.58% 12/13 15 8%
Theracutton nROCE fromtast year
PleELE 3N NCIRISA N Dverage net 11/12 16.4%'
QRerating ussett partidlly o0& 5ot by
BNINCraase Inuhderly g e ring+
UNDERLYING Earmings par Snoca (EPS)is theunderynng [ (51
EARNINGS profit derdedbythe dverage number of 3 3 . 1 p ].5/] 4 '_}IZ.QP
PER SHARE ordinary sharesnssue -3 8%
q
@ The weighled averaQe nurnber of shares ~ 12/13 81 ”P
N issue duting ihe pernodwas | §356m -
{lesiyear | 015001 11/12 3+.9p'
DIVIDEND O v peshae dedlareg i respect D v
PER SHARE m‘:::,ea.ﬂ 1 8 . 0 p 1 3/14 ]7.0[)
Tre Boardis recommnending a “nal . R4
e of +) 60 par share resulting +1 0p 12/1317.0p
natotalamcena ot 13 0o 10pabove 1 ]/10 17.0
{ust year ¥ A [)
Streng FREE CASH Froe cash 'lowns the et casn generated 3 1 .‘} 14 £42— O
FLOW (PRE etow 7.9m
cash DIVIDEND) ?v‘:::;m:newmu ® £D 2 4: . 2 m 3/ ot
generation o Inprovement vas Snvenby oetter +22.5% 12/13 £204.1m

working capitsl managemant and
imgrovernents nunderlymng EBITDA.

11/12£383.2m

NON-FINANCIAL MEASURES

PRODUCTS Aqualty or latura regarded ata ]
Improve WITH & charactanstc ornnerent part of & 64%
product PLAN A QUALITY Droduet whkhhas a domonstratle
sustainability (] Out /8 O sgrdcantly lower +7%
o ameormentd ad/or socsilamoace
dunng 1 10roNg ProduChion LDty
wia ancjor disosal
CROSS Tl geoss GOy 0 C missonsresding - O Locking shvead Cur arm s for 2t
Reduce CREENMOUSE from MBS operited actwiies worldwde 092 000 C(') o« MBS producis Lo have at teast one
impact CAS EMISSIONS We con itk (0011 341 PIUSSIONS 1O A 3 2 Plan & aualil ; by 2020 We ravie
o net Figureof 2o (Carban neutratbity) +4.4% 12IQ#(5 OWARIOVE BRendy ¢ICBncy
oy S04 and reduca ref ngeration gay
GROSSCREENHOUSE  Total 9rossCO.vemysiom emussaons by BOK by 2020 W also

GCAS EMISSIONS
PER1000SOFT

per 1000sq frresutringfrom MAS
cperatedactvities wiridude

30 100,e/1.000511

Level

glar tocontinueta o set ourgross
reenhoute gis OMASONS LG ZBFD
carbonneutral)
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FIND OUT MORE

© Read about Gur Plan on pds-13

° Read more on Remuneraton on p5s2-76

STRATECIC OBJECTIVES

OBJECTIVE kPl FOOD CENERAL MAS COM INTERNATIONAL
MERCHANDISE
Driving SALES ULREVENUE UK REVENUE TOTAL ONUNESALES REVENUE
REVENUE - 1
routh £5.2b £4.0b £636 £1.1b
9 o . n . 11 +IMN LA
o + A% -2.5% -2 0% -5.7%
i (-4 . N
13/14 £5.1bn 13/14 £4.1bn
Defwution UK Food sales Detintaon UK CM sales
inctucing ratail salesfor inclughng retail sotes for
ownedbusness and OwniBd Duvnest
wholessle salesto
franchise partners Custamers recogrnsed the
wmprovernet i the style
Curstra 1stobemare and quality of our clothi
,p.c.,h:ffn’i, Tocuson Dot oo oo s Definibon Toralmut chsnel  Defwrtion Sales fram
QUL ANChNNovaten withposiive GM sales growth  Mevenud ntlud ngu biohome  thel aernabionadbusinessy
ThiougRIMprovaments inthe st quarter 2001 Shop Your Waylransac vons — mcluding retad salws for
wnavalabiliuy and chore MAS com it retu wdtn LRedbuSneYS and
wo mada MAS *0od ort growtrintne lourthquarterand  wnolesa'e salesto
elavant to oW CUBLOrners wh s3w gratudlimprovement francruse partners
rroreqlten o088 Mlhoy i
Reaching SALES CROWTHY  UNULSALES CROWTH UKLRLSALES CROWTH WEERLY SITE VISNS INTERHATIONAL
customers SRACE CROWTHS 0 6() 3 l(_y + SPACE CROWTH
QNLINE VISITS O -3.1% 6'1m 7 1%
-
o +10 9%
Oefintion Sales growth Defintion Salesgrowth Deftniion Weehly visits Owfinibion Year-on-year
fromihose storeswhich have Fram thosa stores siwch o our UK desk oo tabtet INC1ea%e 1N wegh, ed
beAnopsn for 12 manths. have beengpenfor mobdeand 30 utes average selling <pare
Tra Food drvsion has seen ¥ L
22 QUAL.ErY 0° POLDIVG mon Oreer 2 MLl ONELIONEES P We opener 25net new
vhe for [ke wles growth Demonstrated Prow registeres on MAS com inter rotonal stares
INpvemEnts with Fus year
UK SPALE GROWTH pasitne CM talos growth
Q ntne 1ast gquarker
+2.9%
Defimbion Year-on-year
TR S0 INWRDhted avarage
seling space We conkinued
10 OFow our surcesstul
Simply FOOU Store 'armat
Improve CROSS MARCINS  UKCROSS MARCIN UKCROSS MARGIN UNDERLYING
proftabilty o 32.8% 52.6% °Q0 a
o 7 g £92.3m
o +30hps +190bps ‘
-R4. 4%
Dafrxbon Cross margurgflects Defintion Crots rmam nieflocts Dafwition Year-on yoar
the percontage of saled renue the percdntage of Lales cevenue “iereig or decrease
retaned af ternourmnngtne direct retannesafler nounng the drect operaling profe uenerated
caostsassocatedwn h produehg €05t3 235008 ed with producng bytheln arnatonal business
andlransportng goodstoa NG UINSEOr NG GOOSIoD
saleale locaton salpste locaton Profit wasimpacied by
macroeconomecchallenges
FoodQross marginwas up as CM gToas Mangn mprove ment o Mdale East region
wealmmated nef oenoes by was largely na aresult of belter andthe wogken ng ewo
SURIMBNNQOUr DIGC23LeS Buying and Sourtng resling n
anaverallincreass nprottabdity
Our plans for For 201916 the Vg see » matend| sales. Weseeamatenal gross marpn  Oul whbsd e and istroution Weses along termgrowth
he arecors OpDOtturrty 2O More IMpvENan, opporturty teAtra ard povetful engmies OPOOrtinty 3CIOSS 3
the tuture remuneration Mocest grass margn with amorg modest sales ‘or growth Our ivestment numocr ot nternauonal
o tergets wllinclude  opportunity We willconunue Growthopporturity inthe sear v thermwil hedp anve online M3rkets We anheBate thit
cashflowr CMUKLFL  to0xplo the opportuncy aheadwe will corkaua to 13 esgrowthindrnarease MM short ermwe will
sales CM Qrost n ot Food busness - debver grossmargnbanefts  onlne profitabdity coNLINUE tD ba s NDIC e
margin MAS com mMainta g our spaciatst thaough a combeanonof a By Urwe Y27 S wedkermy
sales growth and SLAATEQY 3N [ Ounrig) Out mMoredrect apprdach ta furo and chyllengang
Internatoralsates  Foodspace Sourang and mproved MaCoed oML, Dackarop
andgperpling grofit Erading cipadbties
Linked to 1 Fortne year ending 2011112 i restatement for the revised 1AS 19 Employes Benebts has been madle
remuneration 2 Forthe year ended 2002714 we have made sdustanents 1o exlude § warehouse Lhat 1s no longer undar our coerational Comtro pndinclude five sinaller

NLRrNANON! warehous e locatons
3 MAS comsales fior the year entdng 200 115 310 013 pOSE . &0 feTurns basts MAS £6m s3les have beenrestatedon acon s At Baws for yedrs 201117 1o 201314
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STRATECIC REPORT

CUR PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Strong financial disciplines are
at the heart of how we run the business

KELEN WEIR CHIET FINANCE OFFICER

OVERVIEW

In 2014/15 we made progress n the delivery
of our strategy, with sales of £10 3bn tevel
on last year and underlying proft of

E£661 2m, up 61% Underlying earnings

per share were 33 1p up 2 8% on last year

Strong financalmanagement s at the
heart of our siralegic prionities Focusing
on margin and cash gencralion, we have
Oirished the year in a stronger financial
position and delivered improved relurns
for shareholders, with a total dvidend of
18 0p and significant share price growth
over the pernod

FINANCIAL HIGHLICHTS ©

UK Food revenue was up 3 4% and we
outperformed the market by 3 5% Food
gross margin was up 30bps at 32 8% as we
eliminated ineffitiencies by streambning
our processes

UK CM revenue was down 2 5% year-on-
year However this declne was offsel by the
stranger gross marg:n We delivered gross
margin improvemnent of 190bps at 52 6%
180bps of the ncrease was a result of
Improvement In the buying margin driven
by the shift to direct dessgn and sourcing
which allow us to buy more effectively

Whilst M85 com delivered sales of £636 5m
down 2% on last year we saw 3 steady
improvemnent In performance exiting the
year wath growth of 138%in Q4

UK operaling cosls were up 1 5% aganst
last year Lo £3 2bn However 2 4% of this
growih was accounted for by deprecialion
and asset imparrments meaning Lhat the
remalning costs were down, demonsirating
our tight control of costs and Lhe benelit of
wutatives such as betler resource allocation
n stores and new conlractual terms with
our main Food logisuics supplier

Whilst some key owned international
markets cantinued to perform well
despite challenging trading conditions,
macroeconormic issues signihcantly
impacted International second half profit
particutarly in our franchise business
Wholesale shipments to aur franchise
partners in our Middle East region slowed
as aresult of some destocking A review
of our Internattonal store estate, coupled
wth the adverse eurc exchange rates and
tough consumer environment resultedin
weitedowns of £37 2mirelating to certain
underperforrming stores in Western Europe,
Ireland and China

M&S Bank performed well with underlying
proft contribution of £60 2m up 5 3% and
there was good take up of the fee-free
current account launchedin May 2014

STRONG CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Improved performance and effective
balance sheet management have resulied
n strong cash generation As aresult our
net debt pesition has reduced by £240 4m
to £2 Zbn Fixed charge cover was 16 Limes
broadty tevel with Lasl year

We performed well against the eritera we
set out For caprtalallocation at the start of
the year

- Strong free cash flow pre dividends of
£524 2m, up 22 5% on last year

- Reduced capilal expendiure of E5266m
down by £1830m,

3 Full year divdend at 180p, up 59% on lasL
year Inline with our progressive polcy,

- BBB rmitnus rating inune with our
commitment to maintaning an
investment grade rating

3 Net debt/EBITDA ratio of 1 7x,
cornfortably within our ratio range
of 20x -1 5x

After a penod of significant investment, Gur
ROCE has now stabibsed By ensuring we
achieve the appropriate balance between
nvesiment for growth and investment to
maintan the business we expect our
returns to improve going forward

DELIVERING RETURNS TO
SHAREHOQLDERS

Following the recent programme of
investrment, we new have a stronger, mere
capable business While there 1s stilt more
todo, the reductionin caprial investment
and the improving business perforrmance
will lead Lo strong cash generalion

The Board 13 now setting out a clear capital
allocation polcy

= Comuilment 1o a strong balance sheet
including maintaining an investment
grade credil rating,

- Continuing to mvest in the business
for growth underpnned by strong
investment disaplnes

= Progressive dmdend policy broadly
twice covered by earnings, and

-3 Returning any surplus cash generated
to shareholders ona regutar basis

Consistent with Lhus approach, we have
announced an ongong programme of
returns of capital to shareholders in
2015/16, we expect to return £150m of
cash Lo shareholders in the form of a share
buyback programme Thisis the first of
what s expected Lo be an ongoing
prograrmme of returns with the quantum
and method determined by the Board
each year based on the performance and
needs of the business
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FIND OUT MORE

€ See our Key performanca indicators on pt4-15

© See Our plan and Strategic prionties on pO8 13

© Read about Our operating perfarmance on p26-31

° Sec how performance bnks to Remuyneration on p&2

INVESTING IN QUR INFRASTRUCTURE

MANAGING QUR PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

Investrnent to make our supply chan fit

for the Future continued with a focus en our
CM IT systems and logrstics network Upon
completion, these two interdependent
projects will deliver greater supply chain
flexibility and better avalability for our
custorners In [T, we completed the
Allocation & Replenishment element of

our GM4 programme implementing a new
stock distribution system that allocates
stock to stores based on dermand ensurning
our custormers can get the products they
want n the location in which they want
thern In logistics we conbinue to reshape
our GM warehouse netwark, and the

next rmitestone will be the launch of our
redeveloped Bradford National Distnbution
Centrein 2016

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

We added 15% of UK setlng space, driven
by our Smply Food growth programme We
opened 67 new stores this year including
62 Simply Food stores We closed 13 stores,
of which five were relocations as we
continue te reshape our portfolo to ensure
that our stores are 1in the most convenent
locatians We expect Food space to
increase by 4 5%n 201516 again driven

by growth in Simply Food store numbers
Our strategy 1s for CM space to remain flat
although we will continue to manage our
estate 1o mprove the gquality of stores for
our customers

SUSTAINABLE REPORTING []
Cur commutment to Plan A drves us torun
our business efficiontly An effective
sustamable business plan ultimately

delwvers value for shareholders Irvestors
recognise Lthe long-term value of sourcing
responsibly cutling wasie and using
resources efficiently

As members of the International Integrated
Reporting Counciland the Princes
Accounting for Sustanatiity project (A45)
we are committea o reporling tne long-
term value created by sustainable business
We have participated in projects supporting
natural capial accounung and we are
taking parl mn the development of natural
capital protacols ted by the Natural Capnal
coalion with the results due in 2016

We are committedio managing and
reporting our glabal tax affaws n keeping
with curlongstand ng values and paymg
our fair share of tax There is further detail
on our Lax conlnbution on page 18

$2 weeks anded

28 Mar 18§ 29Mor 4
m Im X var
Croup revenue' 10,3114 103097 Level
UK 59,2231 91557 +07
Intgrnatgnal’ 1,088 3 11540 -57
Underlying operating profit 762 5 7419 +28
UK 670 2 6192 +872
International 9213 1227 -248
Underlying profit before tax 66) 2 6229 61
Nen-underlying items 612 (42 5) -440
Profit before tax 6000 5804 34
Underlying basic earrings per share 331p 32p ~28
Basic eamings per share 297p 325p -86

Dividend per share {declared) 18 Op 170p

1 Ontepores curténcy Data

QUR BUSINESS

COVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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STRATECIC REPORT

OUR PERFORMANCE
FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

CROUP REVENUE

UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Croup revenues were level {up 04% on a constant currency basis)
UK reverucs wore up 0 7% in total with a Uke-for-like decrease of
10% International revenues were down 5 7% (down 21% ona
constant currency basis)

GCROSS MARGIN
UK gross marginwas up 75bps at 41 4% as a result of strong

Underlying profi before tax grew by 6 1% to £661 2m (last year
£6229rm) as a result of Lhe significantly improved performance
inthe UK business and lower interest costs

NON-UNDERLYING PROFIT ITEMS

52 waeks ended

20 Mar 15 29Mar ja
improvernent it GM margin o fm
UK CM gross margin was up 190bps at 52 6% driven mainty by an Net M&S Bank charges incursed in relation
impravement in buying margin as a result of sourcing riBauves e the nsurance mis-seling provrsion (138 (508)
Despite a ughly promotional marketplace we rermmaned focused Restructuring costs (4 6} (773)
on full pnce sales and we reduced the rumber of price promotons 1AS 39 Farr value movernent of
However, clearance markdown was higher due to addtional stock embedded denvalve 13 (35)
f
INto sale as a result of unseasonal Autumn/\vnter conditions (LossYprolil on Giepasal and Imparrment
Food gross margin was up J0bps ak 32 8% due to ongoing once cormnmilrment Lo closure (69) 822
opciatianal efficiencies The benefits realised through streambning International store review (372) (219)
our operalions have been rernvested in price and qualty, and also UK arvd Ireland one-off pension credits 275
snared with our suppliers to help them create further efficiencies anco P < nt
Strategic programmae Costs - (20)
QOPERATING COSTS Fees in¢urred on tax repayment - {1 6)
52 wooks ended Adjustment to operating profit (612) (47 4)
20 Mar 18 29 Mar 14 Interest sncome on tax repayment - 49
fm m B Adjustment to profit before tax (51 2) {425)
Retai staffing 954 5 9788 -25
Rewal accupancy 64 10544 139 jon-underlying adjustments to profit were £61 2m net charge (ast
- on-underty u Wi net charge (las
Distribution 408y 4455 82 yeas £42 5 net charge) The man elernent of these charges1s a
Marketing and related 1676 1477 +135 provision for impairment in underperforming stores in Westiern
Support 560 2 5332 *5) Evrope Ireland and China
Total 3,2074 11596 +15 € Full details of non-underlying items are disclosed in note 5 on p100

UK operaling costs were up £478m (1 5%), with lugher deprecation
andasset imparrments cantnibuting £76 0m {2 4%) of the
totalincrease

Retat staffing costs were downin part as a resull of lower
volumes but also helped by better resource aliocation lollowing
the implementation of a new labour planning system Qur store
customaer satisfaction scores were up on the year

The ncrease in occupancy costs manly refllects increased depreciation
and assol imparments ansing from nvestment made m our UK store
ervironment as wetl as the addition of new space in Food

Distnbution costs wera down, refllecting new contractual terms with
a key Food logistics supplier the benefits of the first stage of our
single tier network and lower volumes in GM

Marketing and related costs increased due Lo the re-launch of Lhe
M&S brand including new TV advertising campagns across both
Food and GM

Support costs were up largely due to higher depreciabon on the
new MAS com web platform and additional staff incentive costs this
year partially offset by the release of employee benefit provisions

NET FINANCE COSTS

Net underlying inleresl payabte was down 159% (o 94 8mducica
decrease in lhe average cost of funding Lo § D% (last year 5 4%) and
a £240 4m reducuion 1n net debt This has resulted ina decrease n
net finance costs of £128m

TAXATION

The full year underlying effective tax rate was 1§ 9% (last year 18 8%)
ang statutloryeffective tax rate was 19 7% (last year 12 8%)

TOTAL TAX CONTRIBUTION

In 2015 our total cash tax contribulion to the UK Exchegquer was
£767m (2014 £803rm"), split between taxes ultimately borne by the
Company of £388m (2014 £372m) (1e corporation tax, customs
duties employer s NIC, business rates and sundry taxes) and
taxes attributable to the Company s eConomic activity which are
coltected onbehalf of the government of £379m {2014 £431m")
(1e PAYE, employees NIC, value added tax, excise duties and
sundry Laxcs)

1 The 2014 nu—Dbars hive DERN ‘esldLed to exclude PAYE n «elation Lo pens £nars paid
Dy the MBS fenuon Trust
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UNDERLYING EARNINGCS PER SHARE

Underlying basic earnings per share increased by 2 8% to 33 1p
per share The waighted average number of shares in issue dunng
the period was 1,535 6m (last year 16150m)

DIVIDEND

We are pleased by the mprovement in cash generabon over the
year Following the increase in the intenm dimdend the Board has
proposed a 7 4% increase in the Hinal dnadend to 11 6p This wilt
result n a total dwidend of 180p up 59% on last year

I:A BITA l_ EVDEHIDI"’I_lDE

32 weeks endad

28 Mar 15 29 Mar 14

£m im

UK store environment 927 1632
New UK stores 6315 894
Internatlional 375 690
Supply chain and technology 2718 3462
Mainienance 945 672
Proceeds frocm property disposals (354) (25 0}
Total capital expenditure 526 6 7100

Croup capital expenditure was down £183 4m versus last year
as many of our largo infrastructure projects have now been
completed

The largest proportion of spend continued Lo be on supply chain
and Lechnology as we developed our single Lier distnibution
network and contrnued Lo roll out our CM4 commercial systerns

We also continucd to irvest inour UK store estale to create a more
nspinng crvironment including the launch of our new look and
feel Menswear departments

The proceeds from property disposats manly relate to the
deferred consideration from the sale of the White City warehouse,
which s being recened over three years

CASH FLOW AND NET DEBT
51 weehs ended
28 Mar 15 29Mar 14
m %3
Underlying EBITDA 1,3126 12197
Worlung capial 1795 479
Pension funding {143 0) (920)
Capex and disposals (664 4) {6166}
Interest and taxaton 177y (1752}
Share transactions 16 6 441
Free cash How pre dwidends 524 2 4279
Owvidends pard (280 7) {273 6}
Free cash Flow 2435 1543
Opening net debt {2,4636) (26143}
Exchange and other non-cash
movermnents (31) (36)
Closing net debt (2,2232) (24636)

The business delivered strong free cash flow ore dvictends of

£524 2m which after the payment of chvidends, led to a reductionin
net debt of £240 4 Thewnproved free cash flow reflects stronger
business perforrnance resulting in £1,312 6m of underlying EBITDA,
anmncrease of £929m(76%) on last year In addition there was 3
£179 5m reducton i working capial, due to lower inventory levels
and also higher creditor levels, n part due Lo the earlier iming of
Easter \hus yaar In addition it includes an ex gratia payment of
E400m (last year nil) frorm HSBC following agrecment reached over
a number of 155ues In conneclion wilh the Relationship Agreemaent
These movements are partizlly offsel by capial expenditure cash
payments of £664 4m These are higher than our actual capial
QAPENAILLre 35 3 resLiL O NKGN PAOT yoar oNa Capex aceruals wnicn
wore paid in Lhe Nirst hall of this year Pension funding includes
£560m of addilional delici reduction Tunding centributions paid
into the UK defined benefit scheme dunng Lhe year

SUPPLIER INCOME

The Financial Reporting Council {FRC) has asked relaillers to
prowvide investors with sufficient informatron on therr accounting
policies judgements and csumates arsing from ther complex
supplier arrangements Due to our locus on own brand products
supplier Incoma s a relatively small proportron of our value of
stock expensed As at the year end acerued ncome in relation
10 supplier income was £13 5m {last year £93m)

Q@ Further details are disclosed in note 1, an p®4 note 17, 0n p112 and mn
the Audit Committee Report on p49

PENSION

AL 28 March 2015 the 145 19 net retirerment benelit surplus was
£449 0 (last yoar £189 0m) The increase 1s due Lo mevermnoent in
the UK defined benefil surplus, specifically an increase nthe
markel value of schome assels attnhulable 10 Fugher than
expected returns This 15 partly offseot by an increase in Lhe presont
value of scheme Labiibies due to a decrease in the discount rale
{rom 4.45% to 3 10% [rom Lhe mavernent 1n corparate bond yields

The Strategrc Report including the market context on pages 20-21
and risk management on pages 23 (o 25 was approved by a duly
authonsed Committee of the Board of the Directers on 19 May
2015 and signed on its behalf by

Ao/

Helen Weir Chief Finance Officer
19 May 2015

QUR BUSINESS
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OUR PERFORMANCE

MARKETPLACE

In a fast-changing retail world, it 1s crucial that we listen to our
customers and understand their needs. Our Customer Insight Unit (CiU)
analyses responses from 60,000 customers a month. |t combines this
feedback with market research to monitor the consumer cimate and
understand how it 1s Influencing shopping behaviour

OVERVIEW

The UK economy continues to improve
Unemployment is faling and house

prices are rising Last summer consumer
confidence movedinto positive territory for
the first time since March 2005 As aresult of
the more opbmustic outlook, there has been
8 gradual opening up of purses and wallols
Ralher Lhan ncreasing Lher everyday
spendng people are locking Lo spend
onthe tig purchases they put offinthe
downturn This spending however is
accomparied by a healthy dose of caution
Consumers still fecl bruised by the credit
cnsis Lthey are logking Lo save and spending
remains careful and considered

Feelngs of stakilily among UK consumers
have also becn dented by a year of upheaval
abroad From the Midddle East to Russia and
Ukraing Lhe last 12 months have been
turmuttuous Trhis bas termnpered people s
posiuvily Domestically, the Scottish
independence reflerendum and therecent
general election had simitar effects Pecople
lke certainty, and theress always uncernanty
around Lhe outcome of suchevents

UK

We saw more confidence among our
customers this year They told us that they
are feeling secure stable and cautiously
oplirmstic

Although clothing sales were down year-on-
year customers were Investing more in our
better and best products People toldus
they were excited to shop wikh us They
parucularly loved the colours and vibrancy
of our Spring/Summer 2015 cotlections This
renewed confidence was reflected n fewer
promotions thanlast year The shift towards
convenience store shapping withinthe food
markel means there 1s ntense competition
for aumited number of sites Inorder to
help us address this challenge we have put
n place a Simply Food surveying ieamto
identfy and secure the best located sites
and we also benefit from our longstanding
franchise partnarstups with the Uikes of BP
and SSP Customers in our smalles stores
told us they wanted greater choice when
they shopped Weresponded by increasing
the ranges availabie n those stores When

It Came to Qur IN-5tore environment,
customers tolkd us that our stores arc now
more exciting and enjoyable places toshop

Bul we also benefited lromthe continuing
undercurrent of caution among shoppers
With consumers focuson clever spending
they want to buy once and buy well and
turniobrands they cantryst and whose
gualiy canbe relied on, Lke M&S

Consurmners ermphasis on celebratinglife
and indulging therr loved ones playedlo
our Food divisions strengths Qur mission
in Foodis to exaite customers with the
newness qGuality and difference of our
praducts, and we continued 10 distinguish
ourselves withunnvalled innovation Bntain
15 fast becorming a natwon of foodes and
inanintensely price focused market we
tocusea on offering high-quabity, good
value food to our customers As a result,
we outperformed the market once agan
Thereis a sense of discovery inbuyng food
at M&S, and our customers trust us whenit
comes to scounng the world for the best
theres We excetled during events such
as Christrnas and Valentines Day Andwe
extended our events beyond dates in

the calendar our summer-long food
campaign saw us promate our barbecue
gnilland world food ranges throughout
the season

INTERNATIONAL

Converience continues (o drive growth s
Lhe European food market, with demand iny
France particularly strong This presents
good growthopportumues for our
international Food offer and we opened six
standatone Food stores in Pans this year
Inconvenient ity centre and Lransport
locations Following the poputanty of our
onbine siores onChinas leading websiles
andinresponse to Lhe expanding Chinese
childrens clothing market we launcheda
dedicated Kidswear store on Trnallcom,
which resuited in excaptional year-on-year

growth We continue totarget Lhe growth of

the middle class and the expanding lingene
rmarket in india with our Lingene & Beauty
stares QOur overseas shoppers see M&5asa
respected brand and they ke the fact Lhat
weare firmly grounded in our Brilishness

TECHNOLOGY

Technology continues to shape how
custamers shop The prolferation of
different channels - stores, online, tablet,
rmobie - 1s turning shopping nto a seamiless
expenence Mobilesincreasingly the first
port of call for cansumers researchandthe
number of shoppers using smartphones (o
scarch [or ¢iothing increased by mere Lthan
half over the last year Visits to M&8Scom

via mobile were alsoup 51% We have
adopted a mobile-first approach Lo digital
developmant ensunng the pnmary dovices
our customners use are at the heart of the
desgn The pace of change in Lechnology
conuinued - with the launch of some of

the {irst wearable tech devices Our Digital
Labs team - made up of product design
specalists and data scientists - ensure

we stay al the forefront of technological
developments The teamuses Lhe agile
techrmiques of the start-up world to hetpus
test and validate newcdeas and concepts
and apply Lthe learrmngs as quickly and
efficently as possdble For example, the
team was able to develop our popular
Cookwith M&S app for the Apple Watch
ahead of its UK launch
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CONSUMER CONFIDENCE INDEX

Last summer, consumar conhdence moved
into posiive tarritory fov the fust trnewn atmost
adecade as people felk more secure about the
Macroeconamic ervironment Although it has
fiuetuated since confidence hasremained
cansistantly ligher than i pravious years There
remanregronal differances thraughout the Uk
But wherever they are, consurners are looking
for both vatue and quality

INSPIRATION

Customer Insight Our customers
tellus they wart annspinng shoppng
expenence every ume they enter
anMAS store or vist our wobste
Theyalso want Lo seeranges thal
arecreative andd exaiting We seck

to nspire our customers with every
product they buy fromus,beita
prepared meal or arancoal

Products & Channcls Our ranges were
posiively recewed by the fashion press Lhes yoar
Customers feedbackabout the qualty and
style of our dlothung ranges hasimproved and
they have noticed the better [t of our clothing
With our Food ranges wo wani, Lo debgh our
customners and we ndependently test all our
products for taste and quality ensunng our
praductsare always a cut above the rest

@ Read more ¢n p26-27

Brand & People Our newMES logo
emphasises the hontage and quality for whuch
we are known it 1s Just one of the ways that we
have inspred customer s Lhis year AL Christmas
we carned out randorm acts of kindness all
across Lhe UK The strategy forged awarm
connecton betwoen our people and our
customersat a special time of year

O Read mare on pl0

Custemer Insight We know our customers
lock to M&S for Innovatveideas Ina
crowded retail markel Lhey want Lo know
that when they shop with us Lhey will
gethugh quality products

Lhat are only available at

MBS and are betler than

ever before

Products & Channels Overagquarter of our
Food products wore new this year And our
clothuing ranges were constantly refreshed
with wearable interpretations of thelatest
trends As the UK market leader inlngerie,
our bra fit service s popular with our
customers, however onein four willnot go
Into store for a bra fit So cur team ol
software engineers developeda digital
sotution Our dgital Bra Fit toolgives
customers an accurate and convenient way
of measunng themselves mihe privacy of
thew own home @ Reed more on p26-27

Brand & Peopla SL0re presentationis crucal,
we have greal produsts and we want to
showcase themal therr best Sclhisyear
around 5000 colleagues trainedin

The M&5Way, supported by arminnovatie
onbine learning 100l Lo promot e consistent
wisual merchandising standards across
our GMranges Qur marketing campagns
consiantly break new ground Cur
Adventuresin  Foodads used new
photography techrigues Lo showcase our
food innovaven wilhdaneng frut and
bursting bernes @ Read more on p28 and 30

Customer Insight Our customerstell us that
theytrust us todothenght thung At M&S we
prle ourselves onthe high levels of ntegnty
N our productsand mour
supply chain Ina cormpettne
andchallenging food
market, customers know
that we wall not cut corners
when it comestothe
qualtyand provenance
of the food that we sell

Products & Channels Traceability s key Due
to our close relationship with our suppliers we
canpinpomnt the very herd that produces any
particutar batch of our milk This year a thwdof
our food products came from Cold and Sitver
sustanabilty standard producers inlng with
our Plan A target Today 64%of our foed and
clothing products have aPlan Aquality,up
from 57%last year The quality ether relatesto
thematenals that the products are made from
crtothe manufac tunng process

Brand & People Sncewe startedour
Shwoppnginitidtive n 2012 customers have
shwopped 10 6 milbon clothng garments for
Oxfam,worth £73milbonto the chanity Our
Behind the Barcode initatve ensuredthat
colleagues inour International stores were up
to speedwhen it came to brand awareness
andthe service standards that make M&S a
world-class retater

Custormner Insight To stayrelevant, our
customersiell us we need Lo stayintouch
withthem so we constantly tatk te themand
monitor thar spending hai s Aswellas
analysing responses from 60000 cuslormers
amonth, our ClUooks at 600 mition urigue
customer transacbons ayear Weuse the
dataiohelpus give our customersagreat

expenence every ime they
Q00

shopwithus

Products 8 Channelsitscrucialthat weare
n Louchwith our cuslomers through every
channelavatlable MAS comuses bespoke
cantent Lo commuricate with our customers
24 hours a day ands regularly updated (o take
nioaccount customer feedhack Socilmediats
anncreasngly mportant way of communcating
andwe have a socal media audence of

aver 26 milonva platformsand websites
suchas Twitter Instagram andFacebook

¢ Repd more on p28

Brand & People We pnde oursolves onthe
connectons we have withthe communiies
nwhich we work = staywigin Llouchwath the
communitics whene we operalers central
taPlan A Whether & s through the volunteer
work of our store celicagues, through our
partnerships withlocalchanlies orvia
communty-basedntatvesbke the BigBeach
Clean-Up we am o beaforce for goodin
thetownsand Qiies where we have stores
and operations

OUR BUSINESS
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PEOPLE BERHIND
THE PLAN

QVERVIEW QUR LEADERSHIP TEAM A NEW APPROACH
Qur people are at the very heart of MBS The changes we madelast Junesaw UK Retall  Inorder (o support the orgarisational
bringing our values 1o lfe and putting our and International represented 31 Boardlevel changes we launched a newlcadership
strategy INLo acuen To ¢reate value for our forthelirst Lime Toreflect theincroasingty programme - Fit Lo Lead The Future
shareholgders we must cngage employees channetnautral oullcok of our CUStOMers Designed to equip our peopte with Lhe
across the business In our strategic plans LauraWade-Geryassumedresponsibityfor  insights and practical techrugues to build
and ensure we have the nght people UK Retall as well as Multi-channel and lead high perforrmmg teams, it will
with the nght mix of skits to drive our PatrickBousquet-Chavanne took on ensure our leaders understandwhat §
growth ambitions responsibility for International aswell as required of an organisation toreman
Mar?ketlng tghelp bolster M&Ss global sustainable In a quickly changing world
ENHANCING LIVES, EVERY DAY brand pos;tuon We are also running engagement events
We have done a lol of work this year for our 1,300 head office employees who
toensure Lthat we have Lhe corroet We were delighted to welconmne Helen Weair have responsitility for directly managing
management siruciures nplaceto debver  ONtoour Boardas Chief Finance Officeron indwiduals or teams Lo ensure they
©on our promise of enhancang bives every 1 Apnl 2015 Helen,who replaced Alan understand the important role that they
day In the face of changing shopping Stewart brings with her awealth of retat playm drving high perforrnance Qur new
habits we have to make sure Lhat our consumer and financral expenence Shewas values are reflected in our employee
framewark s bt for the future formerly Chref Finance Officer at the John policies including the behaviours we
Lewns Partrershup Prior to that she held look for when we recrunt the nduction
Lasi summer we realigned our executive sertr positions at Lloyds Banking Sroup of new employees inperformance
Leams resl?lcmsubluucs toonsurc greater " and Kinghisher management and as part of our
accountability across Lho business Wae also L Erogrami
streamuned gur procosses and ntroduced  Quf Menagement Committee helps shape developmant orogrammes
rnore collaborative ways of working our annual business prionties and dnves the
throughout the Company to speedup delvery of our plan Toensure that all areas
decision-making of ourbusinessworkasoneteam itwas
extended to ensure s fully representative
Our four new core values underpin of the entire business The Managerment
everything we do Inspration, Innovaton Cornrmittee s ably supported by the Seror
Integnty and In Touch Leadership Croup whose key abjectivers

to drive a high performance culture and
promete a wide understanding of our plans
andpnonties sothat every employee feels
clearand confident about the drrectionol

our busINCss.
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY A5 AT 31 MARCH 2074

Marc Bolland Hugo Adams Belinda Earl

Chue! Executive Owector of Property Styte Drector

Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne E;Vng"’gf: ::: B Faclues Paul Erston

Executive Drector 9 Executve Assistant & Business

Markeung &lnternabonal Andy Adcock Development Director

John Dixon Brrecior of foed Trading Dormime Fry

Executive Director Costas Antimissans Chrecier of Communicanons

Ceaneral Merchardise Ovector of Internationat birnvestor Relanons

Steve Rowe Mike Barry Onric Lambregts

Execulive Director Food Dwector of Plan A Ourector of Supply Chain

Laura Wade-Cery Sacha Berend) Amanda Mallor

Executwe Direc.or Dwector of Retail Group Secre'ary & Headof

Multi-channel Carl Dawson Corporate Covernance

Helen Werr Daector of IT Chrs Taylor

Ciuer Finance Officer Ftorence De Boosers Bus ness Improverment Orrector
CAobal Direcior of Store Dawnd Walmsley
Environment & Product Owrector of MAS COM
Presentavon Rob Weston
Tanith Dodge Ciobal Brand & Markaung
Drectorof HR Dveczor

Ictucies Helern Weu dnd Richard Solomons
who Both 1o hed tha Boara nazn 2005
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QOUR PERFORMANCE

RISK MANACEMENT?®

We believe that effective risk management is critical
to the achieverment of our strategic cbjectives and the
long-term sustainable growth of our business

APPROACH TO RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall accountatality for
ensuring that risk is effectively managed
across the Groupand, on behalf of the
Coaed tng Audt Coifemii e e Fevigw 5.0
effectiveness of the Group Risk Process
Each business area s responsible for
identifying assessing and managing

the risks in Ltheir respective arca

Risks are wlentilied and assessed by alt
business areas half-yearly and are measured
against adefined set of criteria, considering
Ikebhood of occurrence and potenual
impact tothe Group The Group Risk
funclion facilitates a nsk identfication and
assessment exercise with the Executive
Board mernbers This informationis
combinad 16 forrm a consolidated view of
risk The topnsks (based on Ukelihoodand
impact)form our Group Risk Profile whichis
reported to the Executive Board for review
and challenge ahead of final review and
approval by Lhe Croup Board

Toensure that our risk process drives
CONUNUOUS IM@rovement across the
business the Executive Board monitors
the ongoing status and progress of key
action plans aganst each nsk quarierly

KEY AREAS OF FOCUS

We continue to driveimprovements to our
nsk management process and the quality of
nskinformatongenerated, whilst at the

same time maintainng 3 simple and
practicalapproach This year we have
placed s:ignificant focus on developing
our approach to nsk appetite

1he obyective of our risk management
approachis toidenufy and assess all
sigruficant risks to the achievernent of

our strategic objectives Risk appetite s
animportant consideration n strategic
decisions made by the Board Ihisan
expression of the types and amount of risk
we are willing to take or accept to achieve
aur plan and should support the defimition
of mitigating actmties required to
manage nsk tkebhood and mpactto
within acceptablelevels By defining our
nsk appeute we aim to support consistent,
rsk-informed decision-making across

the Group

This year we have taken steps to strengthen
our approachto rnskappelite startng with
the defivtion of drafl, Croup-levelnisk
appelte statements The purpose of these
1s to articulate the Board s desired risk-
taking approach iothe achiovernent of our
strategic objectives, in Lha context of
managing our prncipal risks Durning the
2015716 financat year we will further develop
our approach to nsk appetite refining these
staterments and integrating them with our
wider risk managerment processes For
maore information on this, please see¢ pas

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Aswithany busingss we (ace risksand
uncerlaintics onadaity basis lListhe
effectve management of these thal places
S 11 3 LELES POSIION LO De 3018 to achieve
our strategic oyectives and Lo embrace
opportunities as Lhey arise

Overleal are delails of our principal nisks and
ungerianties and the mitigating activitiosn
place toaddress them [Uis recognised that
the Croups exposed Lo risks wder than
those lsted However we have disclosed
those we betieve are Likely tohave Lhe
greatest mpact on ourbusiness at this
momaent mume and Lhose Lthat have boen
the subject of debate at recent Board or
Audit Cormmitiee meetings

To achieve ahelstic view of the risks lacing
our business, both nowand in the future
we consider those that are

- External to our business

-» Core toour day-to-day operation

= Relatedto business change activity, anc
- Those that could ernerge In the future

The nskradar telow maps cur pnincipat
nsks against thesecategories This toolis
also used tofaciitate wider Executive and
Board level discussions on nsk

RISK LIKELIHOOD AND IMPACT RISK RADAR

OUR BLISINESS
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

RISK

BRAND AND REPUTATION

DESCRIPTION

MITICATING ACTIVITIES

Our updated values of Inspiration, Innevation, Integrity and In Touch influence how we do business and our reputation for being
one of the UK s most trusted brands

ENGCACEMENT

Continued loss of
engagement with
our customer

1 M CUSTOMER

As we strengthen our brand
recogrution and reasser, our

CM qualdy and style credentials

it 15 important that we understand
and address Gur customers needs in
anincreasingly competitive market

= Regular engagement with
cusiomers through data
gatherad by our Customer
Ingsght Unit and focus groups

=¥ Updated brand posibonng and
marketng approach with greater
emphasis on product

< Continued focus on product
quality and style ncluding
adherence (o ow Clothing
Cruahity Charter

= Continual updates ta the
MLS com webske to enhance
the online customer shopping
expenence

= ONgOING IMOrcvements (O $1ore
enviroryment addressing spechc
customer feadback

=» Targeted marketing and
promeuenal 2wty using
customer loyalty data

FOOD SAFETY
AND INTECRITY
A food safety or
integrity related

incident occurs or is not
effectvely managed

As aleading retailerof fine qualiy
freshfood itis of paramount
importand e that we manage the
safety and integniy of our praducts
and supply chain especially as we
grow our global food busness

and gven the heighiened risk

of fraudulent behaviour in the
supply chan

-» Dedxcated team responsible for
ensuring that all products are
safe for contumplion through
ngorous controls and processes

=¥ Continuous [ocus on product
quality

< Proactve hotzon $Canming
nclud ing focus on Fraud and
adulteracon

-3 f'ood Stancards Agency
endorsed approach to reducing
campylobacter

= Updated supptier and depot
audiling prograimme

FQOD
CCOMPETITION

Loss of market share,
due to changes in the
competitwve landscape
or customer behaviours

With the current upheaval amangs.
the supermarkeis and the
polansauion between value and
prermium st (s Important that we
contnue Lo provide 3 po nt of
difference thrgugh produc’ quatity
value and nnovaion as well as
convenience

=3 Sgruficant focus on product
nnovation Lo retain poing
of differerwie and driva
custaemer loyalty

= Connnued focus on product
avallabdicy to customers

- Regular review of price
posKoning

2 Simply Food expansion to provide
convenience Lo CustoMmers

DAY-TO-DAY OPERATION

We are a customer-centric business and strive to deliver an efficient and effective operation

4 CM MARGIN
Falure to improve
margin whilst

mamtaining our quality
and Plan A standards

As we drive ingreased GM margin
through improved design and
saurcing capabiliry  1s essental that
we maintain our ethical sourcng
standards and conunue todnve
mprovenents to product cuality

“» Margin targets defined and
regularly montored

- Robust and establshed suppler
ethical audit progromme in plage

=¥ Strong sourcing capabiity
led by axpenenced overseas
Sourcing Dvectars

-} End to-end rev.ew of CM design
trading and sourcing underway

INFORMATION
SECURITY

We experience a major
breach in cyber, system
ar information security

The business s subject (o externsl
threats lrom hackers or viruses of
sensitive data 1s accessed without
authonsanon

= Extensive secunty controls
n place ncivang polces
procaduras and security
technolog es

2 Tight control of sensstive data
through lmited and monitored
access and the roll-out of
fystems possessing enhanced
secynty

=» Eslablished team dedhcated «©
Manapging secunty requyaments
for MAScom

6 IT CHANGE
Unfareseen impact
of IT changes to new
and existing systems

disrupts business
eperations

As we ungertpke a number of
sigrificant change programmes
the rate and scale of T changats
substantial wath potental (o
signhcantly Impact eur complex
and nterdependent systems

¥ Clear decison-malung process
far system changes including
established Change Approval
Board process and change
freezes dunng crtical
trading penacs

-3 Proactive management of €ross-
programme dependencies
includ ng retease management
aperoach Lo Group sysiem
changes togetrher

- Robust disaster recovery
plans i place tor crtcal
business applicavons
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FIND OUT MORE

© Read our Audit Committee Report on p4s-50

© Read Risk i action on p44

RISK

DESCRIPTION

MITICATING ACTWITIES

We have ambitious plans for our UK, International and multi-channel businesses as part of our evolution to be a truly
tnternational, multi-¢hannel retatler

M&S COM BUSINESS
RESILIENCE

A major failure of our
M&S com platform or
at our Castle Donington
digtribaitinn cantra
impacts our ability

to trade online

As our online traffic grows and our
network infrastructure ard aperating
model evolve &5 increasngly
mportant to ensure that the

MBS com business and key
tependencies are resdient

= Dual site MBS com cornmand
centre operates 24/7 (o
monitor website availablity
and performance

- Socuat media montored to
observe and respond o Jrends
I Cus.OMer expenence

- Business continuity plans
ncident reporting and
monagement procedures are
well estaplished and tes .ed watn
regular momicning including
quar.erly Business Continuity
Cormmittee mastings

INTERNATIONAL
EXPANSION

Our plan to grow our
International business
1s Umited by global
volatibity, the start up
profitabibity of new
markats or substandard
infrastructure

oo

PEOPLE AND CHANGE

As we conhinue .0 INCrease our
internanonal presence and build
atleaderstg PONIoN N Bronty
markers « ¢ crucial that we maximse
performance mboth legacy and

new markets supported by robust
systems ant supply chan capabilicy

It 15 also CrinGal that we nave sysiems
n place to ensuré that we Can respond
proactively 1o any gec-pobticalissuns
and to localragulatory matters
ncluding taxaton

- Geograophie spread mitigates
aganst loc2lisad geo-politcal
or economx risks

=» Local market knowledge
provided by franchise and
Jont vanture partnerships

= Performance monkonng by
region country and siore
ncluding focus onlike “or-lke

performance and acton planaing

ror goor performing stores

Our people are lundamental to the long-term success and growth of this business

<> Property 8oard approval of new
STOre openngs and monkorng
of returns on investment

2 International zeoresentation n
key Croup initatives

9 CUR PEOPLE
Our organisational
culture and structure
himt our ability to

adapt to market
changes with pace

As our evolution to 3 truty
mnternatonat multi-channel retader
continues It 15 essental that our
orgamisanional set-up allows us to
respond (0 Tarkat changes and
cormoeshonwith pace

- Robust employee engagemen.
process

» Augnment of employee
development programmaes
with pusSINgss stra.egy

< Fast decsion-ma-ang enabled
through the removal of
structurdl complexity

2 Employee reward based on
oer formance in line with our
values of inspiration lnngvation
Inzegriiy and in Touch

STAFF RETENTION

Failure to retain key
people due to offers
from competitors or
loss of confidence in
the business

10

Fromn cur expert food .echnclogists
and product developers 1 our
recently steengthened CM design
teams our people are In demand
from our competitors

- Succession olanning m place
for kay roles and senos leaders

= Performance rmanagement
process and bonus scheme
struc.ure focused on rewarding
tugh performers

PROGRAMME AND
WORKSTREAM
MANAGEMENT

Benefits from our major
busingss programmes
and workstreams are
not reabsed

11

We continue to undartake a Aumber
of major programmes tounderpn the
achevement of our plan rhe delvery
of *orecasied benefits s cnicat to this

= Cur Straleqgie Proagrarmma Oflice
provides centrat governance
for majar Croup imtatves
INCludhng Cross-programme
nrer-dependencias suppoarted
by raoust Project managemaen,
dscipline

3 Stotus and benefits realisation
updates provided to the
Executive Board

- Proac.ve managemen, of
orogramme por.fobo and
assevated benefits inthe context
of current market conditans and
tne Groups threeg-year plan

GM SUPPLY CHAIN
AND LOGISTICS
NETWORK

We fail to evolve our
supply ¢hain and
logistics network to
maxirnise availabibty

to customers and
speed up delivery times

As we stabdise anc leverage the
capabiity of our Cas le Donngton
CSLIDUTION Centre wa must contmue
to focus on the implemeatation of
our SINGLE tier netwrk, 1o provide a
modern and flexiple nfrastructure
for our busingss

2 Ongoing simplihcation and
stabdisanion of Casite Deningion
distribution cenire ahead of
peak 2015

- Phased approach to distnbution
centre translormaton

- Rabust orogramme
governance in olace including
nierdependencres with other
Croup imta.ves

- Managernant team sirengthered
through external hues into
keyroles

=3 Ongong review of progress
agenst agreed ooerahanal
and financial objecinves

Nates The Croup Rish Profile will evolve a3 miigating ctnalios rediud @ net nsk Over teme Of a5 new Asks amarge Two ne » 7isks Nave been 3ddeata tne Croup Risk Protile gvice the prior
ye 1 (Food cormpetinonand Stafl retonton) the remaming nshs nove essentally remango the same No nshs have been removaed from the Croup Risk Proldp since the prior year

Tha nsks bs ed o AGE £6Mpris Sl ENBLE 41003140 wath Marks & Speacar and he numencal referencng does nat denote on srder of priorty Aggitonal risks and unceriagnury nat
Bresent y kngren tomanagetnent Gt currenlly deemed (o be sz matensl may also have anacverse effect on the business Furthes iformation onithe hnancal ik wa face and how
they are monaged s provioea onpages 11310 116

QUR BUSINESS
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OPERATING PERFORMANCE

-O0OD

Our mission in Food 1s simple iInspire
our customers with high quality, great value
products in stores full of newideas

STEVE ROWE EXECUTIVE QIRECTOR FOOD

UK FOOD REVENUE

MARKET SHARE'

HUMBER OF NEW LINES

£5.2bn

4.1%

1,700

3 an

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW L=

«0 1%

INSPIRATION

Following another very strong year in Food,
we have Now $eon 27 CoNseCulive quarters
of Lke-Tor-like sales growth Our mantra has
been to become more relevant, more of ten
for our custlomers We have achieved this
through our constantly evolving ranges, our
quality and cur nnovation We continue Lo
excite people with our products whether
they are doing the weekly shop buying for
lorght or picking up a treat for a loved one
Ay MBS we have a Food busnessthalis
ambitious i nature, adventurous in scope
and growing in size,highlighted by us
outperforming the markot by 3 5%

QUALITY AND PRICE

Qurindustry-beating growth springs from
our focus on the pravenance, Laste and
excitement of the food on our shelves Weo
have mamntained acompetilive slance on
price For exampla, ths yoar we refused to
matchthe ingdustry n cutung the price of
midk The reason s simple our milkis betler
than our competilors AL MBS wo will not
compromise oneither our gualily or

our relationships with our farmers We
ndependently Laste test all our lcod and
upgrade or ciminate any product that does
nol exceed our nvals equivalent We know
Lhat customers tike this stance Asa resutt
we are growing our markel share

This year we mtroduced 1,700 new products,
equwvalent Lo over a quarler of our entrre
range Our teams of technologisLs, chefs
and nutriilonists searched the world fer
interesting new food ideas Thanks Lo the
longstanding bond of trust betweenus

and our customers, we canbe countedon
Lo source Lhe most exolic and authentic
flavours Popular new tnes ncluded our
Tasterange of cusine from Thailand Mexico,
Vietnam and Japan Whether cusiomers
wanteda pho or alace a gyoza or apad thar
we had it covered We also launched our
39-strong Frozen Meals range, which firmly
destroyedthe nolion that ready meals are
umited 1o lasagne and cottage pie with
newdishes including Slow Cooked Chicken
and Chonzo Stew and Pulled Pork with
Potato and Kale Hash The converventdishes
showed customers that abusy Ufestyle
shoulgn t be animpediment to a delicious
mgal We continued to perform particularty
well on special occasions from Valennes
Day o Chnstmnas Qur Collection range of
gifung and chocolate treats saw salesnse by
27% over the festive penod

STORES o

Qur store opening programme continued at
pace Thes year we opened 62 Simply Food
stores inthe UK and Lon overseas Wealso
upped the opening target sot in 2013/14of
200 new sLores by 201617 to 250 The Smply
Food format plays into evolving shopping
habits Peopte are shopping more regularly

and more locally, mearing that our
converuence format is one of ourkey
differenuating factors Interms of our
n-$Lore environments we updated thelook
and leelof our stores introduced chefsand
increased the roll-out of Del counters
adding theatre to the shopping trp

SUPPLY CHAIN AND INTECRITY Q

We continued our prograrmme torehase our
supply chain By streamUning our processes,
optimising volumes and consoldating
factories we have generated efficiencies
and savings We have reinvested this money
in price and quality, andalse shared it with
suppliers to help them create Further
efficencies thus establishing a virtuous
crcle Nothingis more important tous

than food safety and we have led the way
nregucing carmpylobacter i our pouliry,
astance which has been endorsed by the
Food Standards Agency

SUPPORTING OUR COMMUNITIES o

Food waste 1s a key concernlorour
cuslomers Qur pricrtyis o reduce food
waste whitst ensuring that, where thereis
focd surplus, we pul it tothe bost possible
usc by working with redistnbulion partrers
Uke FareShare and Community Shop

The {wst social supermarket nthe UK
Community Shop, grves shoppers onthe
cusp of food poverty access Lo surplus
products that would otherwise have been
wasted We beleve supporling communities
nthis way s the nght thing to do

] 2

Note 1h £ 4 Sey BOIS KW tor WoIHOp M (P W Qad dFine thooology tor FeeorSingMAS vV Nbieweegt [ 3a 51 31 wlrhagioncal mitket 1h e oblawi
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1 Our relaunched Adventures n
brond markeling campa:gn
poneered new camera techniques
and won us araflt of awards

2 Our Dineindeals continued to grow
npoputanty Over the Valennnes
weekend 830000 couples enjoyed
our meny

3 Asthe marke.-leader in healthy
meals our share of the market s
d4¥and we sold 40milbonmeals
frorm ow healthy ranges




ANNUAL REPORT AND FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015

OPERATING PERFORMANCE

CENERAL MERCHANDISE

We have improved the quality and style
of our ranges and delivered strong gross

margin growth

JOHN DIXON EAECUTIVE DIRECTOR CENERAL MERCHANDISE

UK CM WOMENSWEAR LINCERIE MENSWEAR KIDSWEAR
REVENVE MARKET SHARE' MARKET SHARE' MARKET SHARE MARKET SHARE®
240l 9.0% 26.3% 10.8% 5.9%
£4.0bn 0% 3% 8% 9%
-2 5% -0 1% pts -0 4% pts -0 8% pts -0 4% pts
PERFQRMANCE OVERVIEW © sourcefabric and raw matenals more INSPIRING OUR CUSTOMERS

Two af M&S 3 key prionties for 2014/15 were
toncrease our GM gross marge and Lo
improve CM performance We achieved the
former,wilh a 190bpsncrease - oneof the
largest marginimprovemnents ever seenin
one year at M&S The nise wastargely due

to better buying and sourcing resutling in
anoverallincrease in profitabiliLy for our
CMbusiness We also focused onfurther
improving our clothing ranges, which

were wellreceived by customers andthe
fashion press, most notably Wormenswear
This was undertned by our fourth quarter
performance - we ended Lthe year ingrowth
onatotaland like-for-like sales basis, giving
us positive momertumto take into the new
financial year

MARGIN AND SALES o

Despite a highly prometional marketplace,
we remamned focused on full price sales and
wereduced the number of price promouons
thus yoar This approach also contribuledto
our subsiantial gross marginimprovernent
However, whilsl we remain the UKs ¢lothing
leader, our focus onmargingrowth and full
price salos has irmnpacted our discounted
markel share, contnbuting tea sight
reductioninour overall market share

We also changed the way we buy our
merchandise We now design 35% of our
products in-house compared to 20% Last
year and we are making good progress
aganst our long-term target of 50% by
2016/17 We continue to use our scale to

effectively whitst ensunng we uphold our
gualily credentials - percoptions of qually
ware up 6%

Sales for the year as a whole were
disappoinuing The UK retail sector was
wmpacled by the third warmest autumn
onracord and we were disproporLionately
affected due to our high rnarket sharesm
wintar categories suchas kritwear and
coals We alse faced disruption to deliveries
due to the unsatisfactory performance of
our cnbne distnbution centre over the peak
Chnstrnas penod At the start of the year, we
sard that our OM sales would be negatively
impacted by the seltung in panad of aur
new website Since then good progross has
been rmade - M&S com sates were backin
growthinthe fourthquarter

OUR PRODUCTS

Overwhelmingly positive press coverage
gave customers confidence toturn to us
for our interpretation of the key trends
Custormers feedback was equally
encouraging, they were excitedto see
more confident, bolder collections

We continue tomprove the style of our
ranges - customer perceptions of style were
up 4% We histened to customer feedback
and brought greater consistency tothe

fit of our garments across all product
categornies and brands Overall customer
complaints fell by 34% over the year as
customers noticed the mprovements to
our Wormenswear

We have made a number of improvements
L0 our s1ores 10 make Lthom easior and more
nspiIrng placesto shop We presented outlit
ideas tocustomers in smarter ways through
better use of mannequins and prcturesin
Qur stores We nlroduced anow Menswear
layout with simpbfied displays and strong
Images emphasising our style and quality
We extended owr Womenswear Limited
Edition brand toalistores and our popular
Rosie for Autagraph bngene and skiecpwear
ranges to mare stores giving our customers
more chasce No matter where Lhey shop

WORKING EFFICIENTLY AND
WITH INTEGRITY [+ ]

Much has been going on behind the scones
to imprave our supply chan We have
successiully rolled out Lhe first new system
toimprove Lthe replenishment of our
products and availability Along withthe
ongoingmprovements we arc making Lo
how we design source and buy further
planning systemchanges witl be mace In
the comng year

Q Responsible supply chain managerment
1s akey part of ensurng we offer custormaers
the high-qualily productsthey expect
fromus We believe Lthat greatl quality starls
with goodfaclory and supply chainelhics
and we contnue Lo work closely with

our suppliers Loensurc Lhese ngorous
standards continue to be upheld

1 ]
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Inresponse {o customer der~and we openada
re@isirauoniist for our Autograph Suede Shar
heroedbvithe fashion press as a key e for this
turmmes s 19705 trend « thousands of custormers
1o nedthelist

We launched Dawd Candy for Aulograph a
luxurious range of sleepwear ana under wear -
we soldover 430 000 tems

D we were pleased to be ncluded on
Ethsphere s World s Most Ethical Comparves List

-
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CHANNELS

We aim to deliver a consistent, convenient
and inspirational experience for our customers
whichever way they choose to shop with us

LAURA WABE GERY EAECUTIVE D!IRECTOR MULTI CHANNEL

TOTAL UK
STORES

FULL LINE
STORES

OUTLET STQRES

M3 SIMPLY FOOD
OWNED

MaS SIMPLY FOOD
FRANCHISE

852

302

46

198

306

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

To ensure that we have one view of the M&S
custormer we brought our UK Retail and
M&S com channcls together under single
management this year The change reflects
our need to delver aconsistent and
convenient experience for our customers
however they shopwithus whetherils ona
compuler atablet amobile phone orinone
of our 852 UK stores Ithasbeena pwvotal
yearintarms of our infrastruciure WhilsLwe
faced saome cifficullies durng the bedding in
penad ourvestrment i MBS com and our
distripution centre at Castte Donnglon are
the nght Lthing for our businessin the long
term We are now it for the future andin
control of our multi-channel ambitions

STORES

We focused our space growth onthe Simply
Food format, opemng 62 new stores, which
increased custormer access - an additional

1 2 muelbon people are now within tenmenutes
drive of aSimply Food Although our strategy
15 1o add no net new CM space Lo our store
cslate alter 201516, we continue Lo roview our
portichioto ensure that our stores are inthe
masl convenent locations We oponed two
fulllne stores at Monks Cross in York and
Waolstanton near Sioke-on-Trent

WiLhin our sLeres we concentrated on
creating an crvironment that projects our
products style and innovauon credentials
Cudance wasacentral therme UsingLhe
M&Sway principles we merchandised our
collecuions inmore cohesive and colour

coordinaled ways 1o show customer s how
they might wear the Latest stylas We
upgraded the emaronment nmany of our
stores,iIncluding new Mengwear departnents
in our Lop 70 slores, with elements of the
new scheme rolled out to afurther 48 and
refreshed Womenswear departrmentsn
44 stores Stronger viswel merchandising in
Foodhelped customerstodiscover new
flavours We have started theroll out of our
new Food Hallgongept which adds Ltheate
and adventure tathe shopping np

knowledgeable ernptoyees are our bedrock
andhis year our Lraning intiatives conunued
Lo ensure thal customers had an easy and
enjoyable shopping experience Qur
colleagues knowthat our unyelding focus on
Prosentation, Availabilily, Cross-selung and
service and Knowledge - our PACK prontics -
15 what separates us from the competibion

M&SCOM

Followang our mave from the Amazonweb
platform thiswas the first full year inwhichwe
had control of our website Whilst it proved to
be techrucally resibent, the new site presented
2 igger change for our customers than we
anticpated and saleswere affected We
worked hard 1o address thisand madea
number of updates toimprove the shopping
expenence Qurcustomers lked the
enhanced functionality and cleaner look of
the ste, which we continually fine-tune to
make a3 Intuilive as possible M&S com sales
returmed to growth in the fourth quarter and
we saw gradualimprovement acrossallkey
metres over the year trafficgrew Dy 109%,

customer satrsfaclionrose by 18% and
conversion rates improved as customers got
more famiiar with the new sitelayout Some
7 milion shoppers have now registered on
the site, surpassing the number on our former
Amazon-runsite Customers enjoy the sites
strong editorial ponit of view - we know they
are more bkely to buy if they see supportive
edionalalongside a garment Lhey Lke On
Bverage conversion was 20% figher on
products that were featured as Editor s Picks

@ Our performance was impacted by
operational challenges at our Castle
Doningten distabution centre over the peak
Chnstmas penod Highly automated sites bike
this oftersneed refinement duning thew first
period of sustained demand and we have
rmade progress in addressing tho ssuos We
have learmed fromthis madewrnprovements
toour systems and strengthened our
rmanagement team who continue (o closely
monitor ks performance We are confident n
our long-term ability to serve our customers
better CUStOMers saw Umprovernentsn our
delivery praposition as the year progressed,
withthe introcuction of a 10pm cut-off for
paxi next day home delivery anda 5pm
cut-offlor frec next day store collection
Since iLopencd Caslic Donngtonhas
handled over 85 milionproducts

O 0ur website and distnbution centre are
powerful engines for growth Fotlowing
our iInvestment in them, we now have a big
opporiunity (o dnve online sales growth,
ncrease our online profilability and set
MaS up foryearstocome

1 The number of viIsLsto our equwvalentiothe energy
uebste vamobile phones neededto power 1190
rose from ¥ mibonin 2012 houses

to 80 miltbonin 200

7 O wenstalleg thaUKs
largest sngla coof-mounted
solar panelarray anour
chstribubion centre - it wil
generate aver 5 000 MWh

w

Q) Our Newcastle store wds
our firsthullline siore tobe
grvan a full Plan Aecoretit
and features a 167sq matre
green wallungated with
ranwater

3 of electnicity par year
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INTERNATIONAL

This year, we accelerated the roll-out of our
Food stores overseas and continued to focus

on our priority markets

PATRICK BOUSQUET-CHAVANNE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARLETING & INTERNATIONAL

INTERNATIONAL
REVENUE

INTERNATIONAL
STORES

TERRITORIES

£1.1bn

480

59

5TN

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

From Pars to Prague and from Caroc Lo
Kolkata MRS seenasa trustedand
progressive brand with a strong sense of
Briushdenuty We now Urade from 480 stares
and oningn 59 Lerntonas across the wonrd
We accelerated the roll-out of our Food stores
overseas and continued Lo Togus on our
priorily market s delivering some sirong
perlormance inkey owned markel s suchas
ingha and Hong Kong Followingtheaction
we took terestrutture our business inthe
Republc of Ireland and the Czech Republe,
wewere pleased Lo see mprovernentsn
profitabilty nboth markets

However sales in our international business
fellby 2 1% ona constant currency bass The
profitabilty of our franchise business was
impacted by a geopobitically turbulent year
N number of our franchuse temtones This
particularly affected performance nRussia
Ukrane and Turkey, where our franchrse
partnerwas impacted by poltcalinstabiity
andlocal currency fluctuations which resutted
inlower stupmients Elsewhere inthe Middle
East regicn, the macroeconomic situation
has mpacted consumer dermand and ouwr
franchise partners have adapted tothe
chaliergmng environrment by rmanaging thev
businesses prudentty and ordenngless stock

Areview of our nternational store estate,
coupled wath the adverse euro exchange rates
and tough consumer environment resulted
inwritedowns of £37 2mrelating to certam
underperformung stores in Weslern Eurape
lrelandand China

+25 NET NEW STORES

However,with 3 strong tnternational
management Leamand proven overscas
partners weremaincommitted to the longer-
termopportunity which we frmly bebeve
exists withn our inlernaticnal markels

OUR PRIORITY MARKETS

Weare grovangin scale and relevance inour
two key markels of India and China In India
we opened 12 stores and our store opening
plars on track Sustanable economic
development a burgeoning riddle class,
and aninstinclive understandng of the
M&S brand make India a fertile market for
cantinued expanson InCreater Crura we
opened a store in Macau and announced
ourintention toopen flagships In Baying
and Guangzhou from next year, and we wall
continue {o nvest nour exsting flagship
store portfolio However fallowng the
completion of areview we are closing five of
our smaller stores nthe Shanghai regionas
we refocus our emphasis on storesinthe
more affluent areas We are also seeing
sigruficant online growthin Chma onowr
site onthe Tmallcom marketplace - sales
increased by 200% on last year We launched
anew dedicated Kidswear store onTmallcom
and a newclothing store on JO com The
success of our online expanson further
strengthens our continued commitrment
toChina

INTERNATIONAL FOCD GROWTH

We have scen tremendous success fromthe
roll-out of cur Food stores overseas Around
the world, grocers are monving closer to Lhe

consumerand we arc {apping IMtoLhat trend
We opened s stores inPans andfour inHong
Kong over the year Laking the total number
of nternational Food stores 10 31 Overall
sales peor square{ool are n bne with our best
performing Simply Food stores inthe UK Our
recipe for success 15 Ihe same as N our home
market we sellgood value, delicious food
frorncomenientlocations

NEW QPENINGS

In May 2015, we re-entered Brussels with a
now 54,000 squarc oot store al Toisornd Or
and in Novernber we witl open a second store
nMacauat The vienetan Mall We have an
exciting pipeline of openings in the Middle
East InFebruary we opened our largest
international store n Kuwait The View s a

72 000 square foot flagship Lthat is operated
by our lengstanding franchise partner
Al-Futtaim Croup The store contans our
largest Clothing Food Home and Beauty
offer mtheregronand houses a 60-5eat cafe

CLOBAL LANDSCAPE Q

The last year hasbeen volatile economically
and polucally in dnurmber of ouriernilones
However,there are two ways Lhat our
International strategy mtigates any nisk
sternming frorn cvents beyond our control
Firstly our geographical dversification means
that we are not Loo exposed Lo any one
country Secorxdly the growing rale of Food
inter natonally 11wans that we effectively
have lwohusinesses overseas giving usa
broader - and more stable —international
footpnint

b The in-store bakery nour branchin La Defense
Paris takes more money than any other bakery v
our entse eslate

2 wa nowhave hve standalone Lingene & Beauty
siores ethe Middle Eas. and Incla

3 ) we are rollng out the Marks & Spencer
Clothes Exchange kngwn a3 Shwopping in the
UK teouninternabonal mar«ets folicung a
successhA tralin our Czech Republic and Hong
Korg s«ores which saw 35 000 temns donated

QUR BUSINESS
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OUR BRAND

We reinforced our strengths as a trusted and unique
British lifestyle brand with a new approach that told the
many stories that make our products different

PATRICK BOUSQUET CHAVANNE EXECUTIVE CIRECTOR MARAKETING 8 INTERRATIONAL

PERFORMANCE QVERVIEW

One brand, multipte stones That was our
missicn this year (o speak numsenacross
the CM and Food sides of our business,
across communication channetls and across
geographies By uniting all narratives under
the Only M&S umbrella we reinfor¢ed our
strengths as atrustedanct unique British
ufestyle brand

We raised the bar with our advertising
gaiming strong brand recogmtion for our
rentwed focus on product InFood, we
showed that we are at the forefront of
chscevery and creakvity We remaned
focused on cur core strenglh as a speciality
retailer —innavation InClothing we
demonstraied that our ranges are fresh
stylish and in sync with the current trends

A FRESH APPROACH

Qur noewiogo -MASEst 1884 - was
designad o show our brand herlage ina
contemporary and relevam way Through
Lthe logo we are exprossing our roots but
also showing Lhal we are a modern brand
that has inspired the British high street

for generalions With 131 yoars of trading
under our bells our heritage s agreal
differentiator and we are nghtly proud of it
We revamped all our publications to reflect
this new look frorm our Home catalogue

1o our Foodto Order catalogue and we
launched Womenswear and Menswear Style
Cudes for the firsL time The newbrand

handwnting extended to M&S com and
its daly publications hub, Style & Living
As a modern retater we musl providean
inspinng digital or prnted expression of
whowe are onevery platform

THE CONNECTED CONSUMER

Our Christras marketing campaign - The
Two Faries - was a great example of howalt
our channcls ¢an come together totella
holistic and believabile story The campaign
followed Lwofairnes as Lhey spread
Christmas magic and sparkle across the
Land It started secretly and quickly went
viral as we covertly carned out randomacts
of kindness in schools, hospitals and stores
Our @TheTwoFaines Twitter tag amassed
30000 followers before we revesled that
M&Swas behindit The TV ad that followed -
anescapist fantasy that continued the
random acts of kindness therme - achieved
recogrition of 68% Customers likedthe
warmihand wit of MES s first truly sociat
carnpaign

Today, all our communigations start with
a corerdea that gets expressed across all
the consumer touchpoints stores online,
mobile socalmeda prnt meda, billboards
and TV Quir award-wanning Adventuresin
Food TV ads harnessed online videosto
get ther message across Today, a fifth of
our medha budget goes on social media
four times more than three years ago Thus
approach reflects how people live today
andhow they expect to engage withMaSs

SEASONAL AND FOCUSED

After Last year s Leading Ladies campaign
re-established MaSs style credentials, our
approachtamarketing this year has been
raore product focusedandricher in cigilal
video content We sought to emphasise our
leadership in authortative categones such
as knit wear, occasionwear and cashmere
In Food, our January marketing focused
onour health ranges while our Adventures
nlmaginat:on campaign highightedthe
expertse, creatrty and passion bemind
our food ranges from around Lhe world
Custorners wilt see even more of Lhis
storyteling next year as our marketing
bacomoes more persenalised

STAYING RELEVANT Q

We may have a broag chuich of customers
around the world, but by harnessing
techrology and leveraging the power of
our Customer Insight Urnit, we cantalk

to all 33 mulion of our customers ina more
personalised way Thereis always a risk
that brands will lose therr relevancy, but
by engaging with our customers and
adaptingto ther needs, wewitlreman
perungnl to thor everyday lives

1 The combined $ize of our socal meda audience
through platforms such as Facebook Twitler
Instagram and Pusterest « 2606 000 up 2% an
the previous year

2 MBSwos oneof the offiial sponsors.of Lonion
Fashwon Weekend The partrership demonstrated
our fashion credentials

3 The Cook with MBS app we launched this year
saw 250000 people sign up i just four months
and was featured asthe #) Foaod & Dnnk appan
the Apple App Store
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OPERATING PERFORMANCE

PEOPLE

Our people continue to be the most important part
of our company - they drive the high performance culture
that 1s vital for our future success and embrace the values

that make M&S different

AVERACE NUMBER
OF EMPLOYEES

EMPLOYEE ENCACEMENT
SCORE

TRAINING AND

DEVELOPMENT DAYS

83,069

T7%

1.5

OVERVIEW

This year we made a nurmber of changesto
the way we dothings 1o ensure that M&S15a
collaborative and innovalive place to work

FIT FOR THE FUTURE Q

Fromtne coardroom to the satesfioor

every one of our 83,000 ernployeeshasa
direct stake in our future Sothis year we
undertock a Company-wide employee
engagernent programme Fit for the Future
was designed Lo ensure that we are inthe
best shapo to face Lthe challenges and
opportunities of a fast-changing retal
landscape with an environment and

culture that encourages nnovation

Asaresult of the programma we imgroved
orgarusational efficiency and simiplifted
our decision-making processes We also
introduced aralt of measures to encourage
entreprencunalism anca more digital
mundsel Takentogether these mtiatves
spread a sense of ownership throughout
M&S Qur people are now eguipped to
challenge behaviour that slows us down
and charmponideas that willinspire

our customery

THE POWER OF 92

annformedworkforce s arnctivated
warkforce Last summer we directly
engaged with the greatest nfluencerson
our store staff our 3,500 Section Managers
These people manage 92% of our salesfloor
colleagues and our The Power of 92
engagernent programrme sawus hold

PER CUSTOMER ASSISTANT

one-day evenlsinlocaltions across the UK
including Wembley Stadium The evertts were
designedtoinsgire these front ine managers
and better inform them about why MBS Lakes
Lhe deasions L does Aflter all, Lhar lcadership
directly impacts our customers expertiences
of M8S

ENCACEMENT AND EFFICIENCY

Considerable internal change meant that
our Your Say survey showed a sight Fallin
employec engagemont levels Lhs year
However we were pleased it remained high
at 77% Qur Your Manager scorerose by 4%
to 83% demonstrating the commitrment

of our managers mdrving a high
performance culture

Weimplemented numerous new operationat
systerns over the year Qur Resource
Planamng Systern mcreased our effectiveness
when it came to establshing colleagues
work patterns Andour centrabised payroll,
time and attendance systern which has now
beeninplace over a year won Personnel
Todays Managing Change Award one of the
numerous accolades we receved ths year

TALENT AND TRAINING

MAS1sa very different business tathe one
It was {ive years ago Inthal bme we have
upskilled our teams N areas such as drgitall
internationak logisuics and design Lo ersure
we have the nght capabilities to compete
Trawrung rermains key Our new Customer
Assisiant iInduction programmereplaced a
workshop-heavyinduction processwitha

largely saleslloor-drwven one In Lhe Uhird
quarter alone, 15000 colleagues Look partin
the new programme This resulledin our new
startersbecoming operationally effective
40% Tasier than proviously Technology s

a great enapler wheni comes Lo training
Around 6000 ernployees comploted our
app-based The M&S Way iraning module
aboulin-sloreprosentalion

PLAN A 0

In 2014 we celebrated a decade ol our
Marks 8 Start employabnlily schorme Along
with our Make YourMark youth scheme we
have helped over 13,600 people who face
sigruficant barners ta employment take
therr first stepsintothe job market We plan
to provide oprortunities Lo another 4 400
people by 2016

We have aduty of care for people alithrough
our supply cha n We surveyed over 100000
wOrkers via text message In countnes
including Ching India and Bangladesh

Therr fFeedback on issues such as workplace
health and safetyhelpedus toalgnour
strategues withther needs

b ]

-

~

wemtroduced anewumiform
design for our stare colteagues thus
year,which reflects themaodern
{ook and feel of the new M&S
branding [tis already in our top /0
stores and s bengrolledout toall
stores by January 2016

2000 of ourinternational staff took
part inBeyond the Barcode an
app-based traning module about
our (n-store service standards

1 @) Since 2010 we ve provided
trurng Lo over 652 000warkers
inour GM supply chain improving
knowledge and skilis mareas Lke
healthand nutntion, fnanciat
ranagerment sanitatron childcare
edutaton and communty
leacershup

OUR BUSINESS
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GOVERNANCE

CHAIRMAN'S
COVERNANCE OVERVIEW

We have built a team with the skills and experience to support
our strategy. In this section we look at therr roles and their
performance, and outline therr independence, their effectiveness,
ongoing professional development and succession

ROBERT SWANNELL CHAIRMAN

OVERVIEW

As | mentioned garier in this report this
has been another year of mixed progress
for the Company Our Food business
delvered another very strong year na
difficult market In Food we canunuc Lo
pursue a clear strategy with a distinct and
cdifferentiated pos:tlion remaining true to
our values and wilh a well articulated plan
for future growlh

We are encouraged by ihe improved
performance across the business in the
final quarter 2014/15, particularly in GM
and M&S com However, our full year
performance was constrained by a number
of Issucs associated with the necessary
and sigruhcant transformation of our
mfrastructure, implementedin the last
few years and macroecanarmc and
performance issues impacting delvery in
a number of key internauonal markets

The launch of our new website and our
distribution centre at Castle Donington
represented the completion of two
significant investments essential for the
long-term growth of cur business This has
been 3 key area of focus for the Beard cver
the last two years Yet, and despile ngorous
ptanming and mitigation of potential nsks
both experienced intial execution 1Issues
beyond those that we expected We believe
these issues are now resolved or that plans
are in place to resolve them, and both
projects continue to be greas of focus

for the Board

This year we have sought to provide insight
Into the scope of the Board s activities

discussions and resulting actions These are
provided on pages 38 and 39 of this report

As a Board we have taken away & number
of learnings, particularly about our
management of and approach to risk

The Board, supporied by the Audit
Committee, spent time discussing risk
appetite across the business as well as

our investment criteria Whilst defiring our
approach to risk appelite remains a work
in progress we believe thig willimprove
the quality of ourinvesiment process,

the miigation of associated nsks and will
delver mproved project implermnentabon
going forward A greater understanding
of nskappette and ts management will
also suppert our ambition to become a
more aglle innovative and entrepreneunal
organisalien as embodied by Fit for

the Fulure and our updated values, which
were discussed earter in this report

CULTURE AND VALUES

The scale of nvestment and transformation
of the business over the Last few years has
necessitated this shuft in our culture and
behaviours It witl enable us to respond

to the changing consumer landscape, the
constant evolution in technologies, and
our am to be a leading mternational, multi-
channel business But while we adapt and
move forward we are clear that staywng
true 1o the MBS tenet of integrity s
non-negotiable

ntegrity underpins all of our Board
discusstons, from debate onthe
managermen; of cur teams, to the safety
and imtegnity of our food supply chan It
affects the way we implement the changes
required in our GM supply base 10 debiver
our armnbitious gross margn targets

while staying true to our high sourcing
standards It shapes how we operate

10 our international markets and the
management of our property assets
Integnty has protected the M&5 brand and
supported iLs reputation for over 130 years
and the Board s focused on ensurng it
conunues 10 do so for Lhe long lerm

Hawving Integrity as a value also means
beng honesl in how we judge our own
performance as a Board and where we can
do things betier We are disappointed not
to have made more progress against our
Board Action Plan this year We discuss this
performance and our Board evaluation
and Action Plan on page 4) of this report
We are clear about how we can be more
effective and what information we need to
monitor and ¢hallenge our progress and
ensure proper debale

1 have righlighted before the mportance of
the Board as being critical friends We have
a strong leam and we have had a number of
robust discussions throughoutl Lhe year on
our execution 1Issues & Castle Donington,
the performance of the website and our
International business the results of
unsalisfactory audits, our linancal
performance and progress aganst our
targels We have reflected and walt conunue
to debate opanty the results of aur Board
evaluation and how we ansure we have

the highest quality of depate, coupled

wath the nght planning, information and
envirenment to support this We rmust do
this to drive our effectiveness as a Board
and to be {it for the future

FIT FOR THE FUTURE

The introduction of Fit for the Future
brings greater forus an hugh performance
our teams, development and sUccessIon
planming allof which remain a key part

of pur Board and Committee agendas
Assocated detail on the actnities of

the Normunation and Remuneration
Commuttees are provided on pages 42-43
and 52-76 respectively Qur Action Plan
for the 2015/16 year s stretching and sets
oul specific objeclives Lo Improve our
performance The plan aims Lo support
and enabte greater debate and reflecuon,
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THIS YEAR'S REPORT - KEY FEATURES

The structure of the Annual Report has bean
updated this year, providing greater focus to
the key strategic messages within the Strategic
Repart, whilst still including the broader
mformation on lates pages for thoss that find
it imeresung

These changes have been made to promaote
clear and congise reporting focusing the report
on those factors that are mottimportant to
the long term praspects of the business and
ensunng key massages are cleas, concise and
easy to locate

We have agan focused on ensunng this report
» far, balanced and understandable Itis a
reflecucn of how we have done busmness and
how the Beard has served its stakeholders

We beliave this practical approach will support
our performance tor the Long term and should

protect the trust and mtegrity of our valugs
snr tha M2S beand

and enhance the quabily of our decisions
Through the Action Plan we aim to ensure
Lhat our valucs underpin the manner in
which we operate as a Board at allumes

UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The key themes of the Code lorm the
framework for articulating our narrative,
amodel that we have consistently
adopted for a number of years As such,
our approaches to Leadershep and
Effectiveness are outined on pages 340
43, Accountabiity on page 44 and pages
23 to 25 within the Strategic Report and
pages 44 to 50 in the Diectors Report
Engagement and relations wth
shareholters on page 51 Remuneration
on pages 52 to 76 and the Governance

of our Pensions Scheme on page 77

The required governance and regulatory
assurances are provided throughout this
Directors Report Where nformationthat
would previousty have been located within
the Directors Report has mstead been
incorporated nto the Strategic Report,
abst of page references is available within
the Other disclosures section on page 78
Asin previous years, we have sought (o
provide a genuine understanding of how
governance supports and protects the
M&S pusiness and stakeholdersina
practical way

Qur governance framework s reviewed
and benchmarked against best practice
every year It sets out the roles
accountabilities and expectations for
our directors and our structures This
format has been adopted widely across
the business and can be viewed at
marksandspencer com/thecompany

The Covernance report pravides
= A clazr and honast review of the year,

- The outcome of our externally
faciitated Board Evaluation,

- Creater disclosure around Board ducussions
and associated actions, and

=3 Information on our progress towards
understanding our nsk appetite

As a Board we regularly chscuss and debate

- Strategy and ->The M35 brand
s::::"r:zn“ =¥ International

- Culture and - Supply cham
behaviour = Risk

- Successnion planming > Property

-» Ecommerce = Bian 4 3030

Covernance at M&S s seen as an important
element of our Board environment which
feeds into how we do business and s
reflected in our Board effectiveness review
We hope thrs reparl demonstrates how our
governance helps us test whethar we are
doing Lthe nght things in the rnight way, with
the nght safeguards, checks and balances,
and whether the nght considerations
underpin every decision we take

We continue Lo drive the agenda of
diversity in &S broadest sensc across
gender, expenence ethnioity and age
Further insight on this 1s prowided on
page 43 and in our Plan A Report

MONITORING RISK O

The Audit Committee has played a key
rote in ensunng that the appropriate
governance and challenge around risk
and assurance 1s embedded throughout
the business It s closely momitonng the
rmanagement of the problems generated
by M&S corn and Castle Donington

& Read mora on the work of the Audit
Committee on pd5-50

APPOINTMENTS AND SUCCESSION

2014415 saw sigruficant changes Lo the
Board Following the resignatson of

Alan SLewart in July 2014 we underiook a
thorough search process resulting in the
appointment of Helen Wair, who joined the
business as Chuef Finance Officer on | Apnl
2015 Helen brings considerable retail and
finance experience and we are delighted to
welcormnge her to the Board

UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The UK Corporate Governance Code 2012 (the
‘Code} s the standard against which wo ware
required R0 measure ourselves i 2014/15

We are pleased to confum that we compled
with all of the prowisions set cut in the Code
far the penod under review

A summary of our governance puohie outlinng
aur complance with key areas of the Code has
been set out on page 5 of the Strategic Report
Ta keep this reportinteresting and engaging
woe tontinue to focus on the key insghts from
the buninvess however further detal on how
we comply with the Code can be found n aur
Carparate Governance Statement available at
marksandspencer com/thecompany

inMarch 2015 Jan du Plossis reured after
six years on the Board Jan has been
suceeededin hus role of Seror Independent
Director by Vindi Banga who maintains

hus existing role as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committec Subsequently
Ihave jained the Rermungration Comrnitlee
and Miranda Curtis has joned the Audit
Committre

As aresult of Jan sretrernent and in
order Lo provido the necessary balance
Richard Solomons was apposnted Lo the
Board on 13 Aprl 2015 Wo had @ clear
speafication for this appointment and are
delighted that ke has joned our Board
bringing his experience as a serving CEQ
with greal knowledge of operaing an
international mulli-channel consumer
business Information on the inductions
that both Richard and Helen are
undertakung is prowded on page 40

These appointments bring new challenge
and oversight tothe Board Tharr skills
and oxperience buld on our existing
talent standing us in good stead for the
year ahead

We are a maore capable business following
a sustamed penod of mvestment i our
infrastructure and people As outlined on
page 16 our focus wil continue 10 be on
delvery of our stralegy and mprovement
in shareholder returns

ROBERT SWANNELL CHAIRM AN

OUR QUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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LEADERSHIP & EFFECTIVENESS

UR BOARD

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Q

Robert Swannell Chairman

Mare Bolland Chigl ExeguLive

Holen Wewr Cheef Finance Officar

Appointed Charmanin January
2014 Non-Executive Directorin
Ocrober 2010

Skillg, competence and expanence
Robert1sd Chartered Accountant
andd o Barnster He has extansive
government and regulatory
exparienca and posseses a wealth
of knowledge of many cirtarent
businessareas bankingand the
Cily acquied over a 33-year career
ninvestment bankang He has
significant experience as a girecior
and Chairman aCross vanous sectors
and hus leadershipin the area of
QOVernance promores robus., debare
and drives a cullure of opennessin
he boardroom

Other rolas Charmanef the
advisory board of the Shareholder
Expcutive Teustee of Kew Foundation
Adwsory Board Member of Sutton
Trust

Appointed May 2010

Appointed Aprl2015

Skilis, compatance and experence
Marc has extensventdrnabional
exparence in growingglobal
consyrnerbrands aswetlas
significant retal expertise from over
25 yearswnthe industry He yoined
MBS from Morrnsons where as CEQ
he succassfully ted the development
angwmplamenranon of s long term
strategy turn ng around the business
Sincejorning M&S Marc hasledthe
store modernisaton programme
improved the pasitonng and
oplrrsatonel the sub brangsand
driveninternational expansion Marc
continues towerk with the Boadin
daveloping and implementing the
Dusiness strategy tabecomean
niernational mult channelretpder

Other roles Non-Executive Dvector
The Coca Cola Campany Honorary
Ve President of UNKCEF UK and
Director of the Consumer Coods
Forum

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Skills, competence and expenence
Helenisan Accourtant withover 20
years sxpenencenthefimance and
retal sectors Shebrngs substantal
sirategic financat expenence and
awealth of sigrubicant retad ang!
cansumer expenence to the Board
Helen has stranglisied comparry
expengnce havingbeengroup
finange dsector executve direciorn
and nan=gxecutive drector on the
Board of 3 nymber of major Lsted
comparves Helen s a Fellow of the
Chartered Instit e af Managamant
Accountants and was swardedaCBE
{or services 1o Fwnanca in 2008

Other rotes Non-Exetutive Duector
SAB Miller Trustee of Marie Cure
Cancer Care

Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne
Executive Drector Marketing &
Internabionat

Appointed July 2013

Skills, competence and experience
Patrack brings over 25 years of strong
expenence in the consumer goads
ndusty His vatuable strategc nsghi
18 supported by hus experience n
developng and marketng brands
glabally and a broad knowtedge of
enhanang business performanca
and customer exgandndena

mutt) channel emwronment Patrick
played a key role increatingthe

new markeungstrategy for
Womensweas and continues tolead
the transformaton of M&S s in-stare
envirgnment and the publishing
strategy far MBS com inadditon

O hus responsibitity for Corporate
Strategy and Marketwg Patrck
assurmed responsibility for the
International busness from July 2014

Qther roles Non-Executtve Drector
Brown-Tormaninc Noa-Execulive
Dwecior Collectivetyorg

o0
d

@0

AZHER)

ale)

Vindi Banga S¢nior independent
Durector

Alison Brittain Non Executive
Drector

Miranda Curts Non-Executive
Dweclor

Martha Lane Fox Non Executie
Drector

Appomted Seruor incependent
Ourector inMarch 2015 Non-
Evecutive Drecler inSeplember 2011

Skills, competence and gxpernence
Vindi has extensve ¢onsumer brand
knowledge and global business
axpenence acquired avar 33 years
n §eruor solas withinthe consumer
goodsindustry Hisin-depth
knowledge of both UK and
mernational trade and ingus.ay
provides an invaluable ingght Into
business and antargense across the
globe He has strong expanence

as abcard member of other Listed
companies andis therecipient of
the Padema Bhushan oneof Indias
highest cvilian hanours

Other roles Partnerat Clayton
Dutitier & Rice Non-E@cutvg
Director of Thomson Reulers
Charenan of the Mauser Croup
Chairman of the Confedera-onof
Briush indusiry s {CBI)Econaruc
Crowth Board Non-Executive
Director of akeSmithKlne ple
(‘rom 1 Septembaer 2015) and sas
on tha Coverning Board of the
indan School of Business

Appointad January 2064

Appainted February 2012

Appointed June 2007

Skills, competence and expenence
Alison brngs comprehensve
fuancatand commercial experence
tothe Board comtmed unth
considerable knowadge of running
customer facing retal branch
relworks Shehasheld anurrber of
saneor pasinonssnine financitseciar
particutarty nread and has valuable
r@gulatory insight Atrson has an
MBA frorm Carmbrega University s
Judge Instilute

Skills, compotence and expenence
Miranda s suhs anhial expenence

of Lthe ntermatonal consumer and
technalogy sectors and vaned
knowledge of glohalndustry provide
avaluable conurbutiontothe Board
Duringher 20-year career with
Liberty Miranda lad the company s
wwestments indgital distnbuton
anc conlent operations acrass
Continental Evrope and Asia-Pacific
most notably in Japan

Other roles GroupDirectorof
Lloyds Banking Cioup s (LBG} Retad
Division ang Char of the FCAs
Pracuiioner Panel Alscnwillpe
leaving LBGn 2015 and wiil bécome
CEC of Whithreadple inthe eady part
of 2016

Other roles Charmanof
Waterstones,Non-Exacutve Director
of Licerty Clobal plc Board Member
of boththe lnstitute for Covernment
2nd the Royal Shakespeare Company
Peputy Charman of Carsnglon
Qperaand Char of African guis
educatian charity, Camfed

Skills, competence and sxpenence
Martha brings significant expersence
Iromthe sucsessfuloperation of
onling and customer facing
pusineises Martha co-founded
Europe s largest travaland le.sure
website lasimuinute comin 1998
takong it public i 2000 and sellingt In
2005 She has extenswve knowledge
of the online sector and her valuable
INput continugs to challenge and
influence the development of our
multchannel strategy in 2013
Martha was awarded aCBE and
apponteda crossbenchpeerinthe
House of Lords She was alsothe
UK s Dwguital Charmmon until 2813
Other roles Changellorofthe

Open Utnversity Charr of Co OnlX
MakieLab Co-founder and Chay of
Lucky Vowce Non-Executive Director
of the Women s Prize for Fchion
Founder of charitable foundation
Antigone ant Palron of AbilityNet
Reprieve Camfed and Just for

Kids Law
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FIND QUT MORE

© Sce pl6 for Covernance and Board structures

O See p38-29 for Board activities in 201415

© See pl6 for Board roles and responsibilities

John Dixon Executive Director
CeneralMerchandise

Appainted September 2009

Skills, c petence and exp nce
Johnjoned M3S 1N 1986asa
management trainee and has worked
Inmany areas across the business
His Serior posiions have covered
Drrector af M&S com D rector of
Home and Executive Assisiant ta

the CEO unti his appontrnent tothe
Board in 2009 a3 Executive Director
ot Food John returned Food to
growth by focusing onwhat MAS
does best - meeting our customers
deure for quality andinnovanion

In October 2012 John became
Executve Director of GM where he
has applied the same focus to the
products we sell strengthened

the management team delivering
sigrificant marginimprovement and
returning the division te grawthin 04
forthe Arst time n four years

Steve Rowe Executive Dregtor Food

Apponted October 2002

Skilit camnatancs and aynansnss
S evejoned MES i 1989 and
progressed througnavanety of roles
within stare management befare
moving toheaa officen 1992 He
hasworked in saveral senier roles
across varous areas of the business
including Director of Home Drector
of Retail and Drector of Retadand

E ¢comrmerce before hus appaniment
as Executive Director of Food in
Cctoker 2012 Under hus leadersh p
the Faod div sson has continued to
achevesuong growth broadened

its range of quality and nnovative
products andmamtanedhigh
customer satisfacuonfalings

Laura Wade-Gery Executive Director
Mutti-channal

Appotnted Julv 2011

Skills, competence and expenence
Laura bnngs considerable retal

@ cormunerce and customer
expearence garnediromover 1Sy ears
ngenior roles nthe rerad secror
Laura has beeninstrumentalin the
wAprovernent and modermsaton of
our ecornmerce and multi-channel
¢apabidies which she conuinues o
iead InJuly 2014 Laurasrale was
expanded addingresponsibiliny

for UK staresta provide greater
oversight and a lUlly integrated
approach to MAS s mutty channel
strotegy

Other roles Non-Executive Cector
of Briush Land Trustee of Royal
Opera House Coven. Garden Limited
Member of the Covernment s Dgital
Adwisory Board and Trus.ee ol
Aldeburgh Music

CROUP SECRETARY

B0OARD DIVERSITY

TheBoard Diveruty Pol ity wis Lavnched
i1 2012 with the ntention of ensunng that
OVeTRLY LS broacest senss reznansa
cenitalledture of the Soard

TheBoard continues to*abe pos tee
LIPS 1Owa s DAOICeNdg Le Oner sty
of paththe Board and aur wnar
ranagement Our Board Diversity
Polcy on page 47 set s0ut our aroitons.
WthreQard 1O Gver sty 3nd whar thus.
AR FOr Ouir tSineee FutkAmars s
stakeholders as wall asthadrogress

WP CONLINLE 10 Make againit those
amotens

Thetatles i Qrapmes bolow provige 3
vl cuthne of cur Board s Cversty v
tarms of gender range of expenentrand
lengihof terure

CENDER DIVERSITY

BOARD EXPERIENCE

INTERNATIONAL EXPERIENCE

Andy Halford Non-Executive
Directar

Richard Solemons Non-Executive
Crrgctor

Ampnda Mallor Croun Secratary
and Head of Corporace Covernance

Appointed January 2011

Appotnted Aprd 2015

Appaintad July 2009

Skilis, competence and expenence
AChartered Accountant Andy

has astrong fiinance bachground

and sigruficant recent and relevant
financial expenence ganed fromCFO
positions inglobalLs.ed companies
His dataled knowledge of the UK
andinternational consurmer market
provides the Board with valuable
sirategicnsight Andy s a member
ot the Business Forum on Tax and
Competitivenass and a Fellow of the
Instiluce of Chartared Accountants in
England and Wales

Othar roles Croup Finance Drecter
of Standard Chartered plc

Skills, compaet and exp ¢
Richard brings strong commeraial
Hfinancial consumer branding and
global experience tothe Board

His broadinternationat reta | and
consumer expenence andhis

role as a CEO of annternanonal
business provides valuzble nsight
tothe Board Duting hus career Jt
InterCononentLal Hatels Group (IHC)
Richartd was integral in shaping and
imptementng tHG s asset-ight
sirategy, which has halpedthe
business grow Signficantty since
itwas formedn 2003 aswellas
supparting Lhe returnof $104 billon
1o shareholders

Other roles CEQ of IHC Governorof
the Aviatron Travelindust ry Group of
the World Econorw Forum, Member
otboth the Executive Committes of
the World Travel and TourismCouncd
and of the Industry Real Estate
Financing Adwisory Councd

Othor roles Non Execuirve Cirector
of Kier Crowp plc

NON-EXECUTIVE TENURE

KEY TO COMMITTEES

@ Normination

0 Audi,

@ Rernuneralion
@ Commuttee Chair

Full detads oF gach direcior am
avadable on
marksandspender com/thacompany
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COVERNANCE
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MARKS AND SPENCERGROUPPLL
DIRECTORS REPCRT COVERNANCE

LEADERSHIP & EFFECTIVENESS
QUR BOARD CONTINUED

This section looks al our Board members
the role of the Board, ts performance ang
s aversighl We provide an overview of

the induction programme undertaken by
our Lwo newly appointed direclors
Fighlighting the differences between
nouclions for non-executive and exccutive
direciors respectively We also outhne how
our Board contingency plan was tesicd
during the year

We provide [urther transparency on actmties
and dscussions under taken dunng the year by
shanng sorme of tne actions anising from the
discussions and the progress against them

Wwe also provide insight relating ta drector
= Independence Maintainung the nght
balance of ndependence on the Board,

- Effectiveness The review Lhus ycar
was externally faciitated We update
onthe cutput and Lthe action plan
for the year ahead on page 41 and

- Ongoing development Business
trainng engagement and mentoring

C

]

MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVE PRINCIPAL COMMITTEES
COMMITTEE BOARD Audht Remuneration Nominatien
4
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES
Property Fire, Health Business Customer How We Do
Board 8 Safety Continuity Insight Uit Busmess

ROLE OF THE BOARD AND COMMITTEES

The Board 15 responsible for ensuring
leadersia through effective oversight
and review Supported by iLs Principat
Comrmltecs - Audrt, Remuneration, and
Nemination - lhe Board sets the strategic
direclion and aims Lo deliver sustainable
shareholder value over the longer term

Clear terms of reference outline the full
schedule of matiers reservad for the
Board s docision and that of tskey
commuttees These, along with the
indmidual rotes of the Board members.
can be found in the Croups formal
Covernance Framework at
marksandspencer comfthecompany

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board held oight scheduled meetings
duning the year and individual attendance
15 sel out on the next page Sufficiet Lime
1s provided at the start and end of cach
meeuing for the Charman tomeet privately
with Lhe Semior Independent Director and
non-exegutive droclors Lo discuss any
matters arising Dunng the year the Board
neld two meatings away fram the office, one
of which was s annual two-day stralegy
meceting Abrief overview of the key arcas of
discussion theactions and lhe oulcomes1s
prowvided on the following pages

€ Seo Board activities on pl3-19

BOARD RESPONSIBIUITY

Responsipility for implementing operational
decisions and the day-to-day management

of the business s delegated to the Chief
Executive and the Executive Board The
Management Committee supports the
Execulive Board by monitoning the

develppment of the Group s workstreams

against the Groups three-year plan and
inputting annually into the Groups
strategic plan The execulive directors
update Lthe Board at, each Group

Board meetng

There s clear delegation and oversight

from the Execulive Board to the Exegulive

Comrmittees {outlined in our Covernance
Framework at marksandspencer com/

thecompany) which strengthens decision-

making across key areas of the busingss
In addilion, the Audil Committen receves
abusiness update at eachmeeling

BOARD COLLABCORATION

The work of the Board complements,
enhances and supporls the work of the
Executwe Board We believe that effective
governance s realised through leadership
andtearn work Collaborationacrossall
levels withun the Board structure drives

a cutture of continuous IMmprovement

n standards and performance across

our business Warking together, all parts

of the Board struclure conduct robust
interrogatienof plans and acLions ensuring
rugh-gquality decision-making in all areas

of strategy, performance, responsibiity
andaccountabilily
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© Seo Boord sctvitins overview on p38-39

© See our Board brographias on pl4.35

© See our Remunaration Report on ps2.76

BOARD COMPOSITION, ROLES AND ATTENDANCE

EXECUTIVE MAX LINKED TO MAX
DIRECTORS ATTENDED POSSIBLE  RESPONSIBNLITY REMUNERATION CHAIRMAN ATTENDED  POSSIBLE _RESPONSIBILITY
Chief Exatutie Strategy & Croup o Robert Swannell L] ¢ Board governance
Marc Bolland 1 1 performance and performance
and sharehotdar
Chief Finance Officer Group Frnancal o engagerent
Helen Wew" performance NON-EXECUTIVE MAX
{2ppointed | Ao 2015) - - DIRECTIORS ATTENDED  POSSIBLE RESPONSIBILITY
Alan Stewart vindiBanga [ s Independent non
{resigned 10 Juty 201 3] 1 1 executive direclors
Ahson Brittain ] B ssess challengeand
Exetutive Diractor Marketing & International (] Miranda Curtis . §  FOALOS tha executve
Patnick Bousguet-Chavanne e & nartormance directors delivery of
Martha Lane Fex ] B thestrategy withinthe
Exccutive Director CenerplMercnandse Board s nskand
Joha Dixan ] *  performance o AndyHalford ' ?  governance structure
Steven Holligay? Inaddiion they review
Executive Director Foad ) {retred & Juty 2074) 1 3 thentegnty of fimancial
Steve Rowe ) *  perfermance Jandu Plesss’ nforma,on devise
approprae succession
{retired 4 March 901Y) ] ?
Exocutive Orrectar UK Retai & Futti-channel o TR I—— gl::srd:”:f’m”"“
Laura Wade-Cery . 8 performance (P n 00 11 Apyd 2015) _ - b4

This Lanie provwges datads with (eQard Tomeetngs held inthe 201 4/15 financat yesr
1 Both Heten ana Rthard ivved the Buiiness in the new indncal penad ond thew attencance wil be ncluded nnext year s Annunl Report
2 StevenHolldly was unable 10 sttend the meetang on 19 May due to butiness Comnmatments w.th Natonal Crd
1 Jandu Plesss was unablg (o altend the meeung on 9 Seprember due L6 Overseds DusARSS COMMAMENS

MONITORING AND QVERSICHT

RISK MONITORING AND OVERSIGHT

Protecting the business from operational,
financial and reputational risk s an
essential part of the Boards role As key
transformational projects came onbine
this year, the Board supported by the
Audit Committee, looked 1o ensure that
key financial and cperational controls
were robust throughout this change
Progress was assessed and challenges
were managed wathin the context of the
Board's appeotie for nsk

The Croup Risk Profile, owned by Lhe
Board,1s compiled by CGroup Risk using
busiress area nsk registers and one-on-
one interviews with Board members and
busingss unit directors Oversight and
independence s provided in the process
through the Audd Committee which
ensures that the risks ncluded in the
Group Risk Profile continue to reflect the
businesss strategic cbjectives Aninternat
Audit planis then mapped Lo the Group
Risk Profile dernonstrating where assurance
1s provided over the mitigating activities

STRATEGIC PROGRESS

Progress against the strategy 15 closely
monitored by the Executive Board and
discussed at each Group Board meeting
The annual two-day strategy rmeeting held
away from the office conbinues to provide
for more relaxed and free-flowing

© See our Risk managemaent and Principal risks on

discussion This year the agenda focused on
the Castle Donngton distnbution centre
and M&S com GM, customer engagement,
our property portfol:o and International
performance Progress was roviewed
against the three-year plan and the longer-
term vision for the future

The Board debated the prionties and

Lhe longer-term challenges, identified
opportunities for improverment and agreed
an aclion plan The non-oxacutive direclors
shared therr experlise and provided
independent oversight 10 the discussion

There has also been increased focus on
the people implementing the plans with
key skills and competencies irmproved
throughout the business

© See People Behind the Plan on p22

COVERNANCE IN ACTION

The role of the non-executives s not bmited
Lo Board attendance £xamples of other
actmities undertaken in the year

Andy Halford met with the Groceries
Code Adjudhcator visited Castle Donington
the Mumban store and the Hong Kong
Souraing Office and store and

Alison Bnttain visited Castle Donington
and undertook a slore visit wath a mult-
channel ashion relatt expert from Bosion
Consutting Croup

p21-25, and Rusk In action on pd4-45

INDEPENDENCE OF DIRECTORS

The Boardreviews the independence of its
non-cxeculive directors as part of its annuat
Board EHectiveness Review

The Charmanis committed o ensuring the
Board comprises amajority of ndependent
non-execulive directors who objeclively
challenge management balanced agamst
the need {0 ensure continuaty onthe Board

The Board appraved the appointment of
Martha Lane Fox for a thuird termin May 2013
Al the date of publicalion, Mariha will have
servedonihe Board foreight years Martha
canlinues torecove sirong support from
shareholders as can be seenfromthe
voting results ofthe 2014 AGM As Martha
has served more than s years with the
Company and,as required by the Code

her appointment was again the subject of
particular revigw and scrutiny andit was
agreedthat she continuesto make a sirong
inclependent contribution to the Board With
the excepton of Martha all contnuing non-
executive drectors have served less than six
years on the Board

@ See dotails and expanience of cech director
on p34-35

Tne Board consxters that ali of the non-
executive drectors bring strong indegendent
oversight and conhnmue 1o demanstrate
ndependence However,the Board recognises
the recornmended termwithinthe UK
Corporate Covernance Code andis mindful
of the need for suitable succession

CUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFOAMANCE

COVERNANCE
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LEADERSHIP & EFFECTIVENESS
OUR BOARD CONTINUED

BOARD ACTIVITIES

TORIC ACTIVITIES/OISCUSSION ACTIONS ARISING PROGCRESS
Strategy Discussod the Group's capital = Conlinue tanvest for growih + Higher growth margins and lower
structure and financial strategy, - Consider most apprapriate usefor than expectedcost growth, delwvenng
including caprtal investmants increased cash fiow now capal stronger cash gengranon
and the drvidend policy expenditure has decreased < Intenim dradend increased by 3 2% with
further 74X ncrease nthe final dvdend
Roviewed the proparty strategy - Accelerate growth throughout - Preferred (arget storelocations
including the property plan and UK Simply Food portfolia dentified
key priorines - Oelver international preserce -+ Accelerated growth.n nda and
aganst planned objectives Hong Kong
- Acquire develop and managetheglobal - iImproved property asset management
property portfolio at optimalvalue across portfolio
- Detver new businass urut = Highlevelofin stareactwity delvered
schemes and imuatives 2 OngoIng INveshgation ta ensure
3 Investigate oppar tuneies for opumal batance of nand cut of town
development inexst ng stores retat space achieved
Two-day off-site meeting provided time to ¥ ReviewLogislics agreemernts toensure =¥ LOogists agreement s raviewed
-3 Discuss and review GM and Food strategy algnment with fulure sLrategy resultnginincreased Lransparency
and undersiand
= Consder customer engagenent # Review of Internauional operanons 3 . ™ N
and footfall - Debate and aporove the Company s Development opportunities dentifed
- Rewiewthe property portfolicto capitat structure and funding plan = Full evaluanonof nternational presence
wmprove the quality of and drive value - 102 Plan A commutments Lobe undertaken C:(c;a:er 'OCnléSOHSKOfE
from our property assets achieved by 2020 :,‘;‘T_epg’::\”c‘ ering and avalability
- Debate and evaluate International -* Improve in-store erviranment and _
pertormance and growth CustOMer experience - wrtedownof assets and closure of poor
perfarmeng steres n Ching Investrment
- Testand revéefw the c?rpirorate n flagship storesingrowthregions
siralegy andiinancal plan - Plan A 2020- over half of the
< Reviow Plan A2020 commutmentsachirved or onplan
= Debate, scrulimse and review perfarmance 2 Upgraded the store environment i many
aganst thathree-year planand the of our stores ncluding newMenswear
opersting plan departments nour top T0stores and
- Revwew the performance of M&S comand refreshed Womenswear departments
Castle Donington (see Customers on p35} nAadsiones
GCovernance Reviewed the Group Risk Profile hatt -+ Evalisatethe completeness and -3 Rabust sat of Crouplevel nsks and
& risk yearly, including core internal and approprateness ¢f the Group Risk Profie mitigating actmtiesagreed and
axtarnal nsks, those driven by business anchdentfy any addibonalmitigating morutored
changa and areas of emerging risk aclivibies tobe underraken - Progress made mn developing aur
Ouscussed the UK Corporate Governance = Engage with external riskexperts (o approach .o nskappe.te
Code requirements regarding risk appatite prepare araft risk appetite stotements
- Continue to foster debateonrisk appetite
Reviewed progress agamnst the - Review of Board decison making - Progress has been made nagdressing
20t4/15 Board Action Plan process and debate some of the underlyng infrastructure
fihebusness Boardmembers
Discussed the cutcome of the Board - Review of all managemenz nfarmation ssueso
avaluztian process conductad by an andKPis o improve qualty ransparency  WErE cnr;nbtng?_‘welland theres s
external Facilitator, Ffion Hague of andconsislency of gata andenable positiva Board ethos
Independent Board Evaluation Clearar sirategic context - Agreed 2015/16 &¢tion Planwath clear
Discussed the 2015716 Board - Continue to refine our appredch Lo nsk fonItoring processes over the year
Action Plan appetie across tha busingss = Plans 1 place LoWnprove tha revigw
= mprove racking reviewand debate and manitoring of past Boafrd
anaualty of past nvestments mcluding  98CiS0ns andthe quality o
therole of the Board supporung infarmacion
-3 Contimue Lo eNcourage Greater nteraction
with Board members across the Dusnass
Trust & Discussed the evolution of Plan Ate = 102 commutrments “0 beacheved by 2020 = 39onplan 2 behind plan
values Plan A 2020 ncorparating the values -3 47 achaved 9ot achievad

of Inspiration, Innovaton, tntegrity,
and In Touch, and the increased locus
an our customars

- Snorstarted

Launched Fit for the Future,
incorporating the new M&S brand and
new values of tnspiratian, Innovaton,
Integrity, and In Touch

= Engage with empioyees across the
BusINess Lo INcrease awareness of the new
values and prowvwde an opportunity for
employees to gve ther feedback

- Over | 300head office employees took
paruin the Fit for the Future facus groups
cluding all our exacutive directors
The feedbackreceved helpedshape
thelnalvalues
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© Sos our Board EMectiveness Reviaw on pdl

BOARD ACTIVITIES CONTINUED

ToPIC

ACTIVITIES/DISCUSSION

ACTIONS ARISING

PROCRESS

Leadership
& employees

Discussed employes #ngagement
across the business from thae results
of the annual Your Say’ survey and
quarterty Pulse survays

= ldentdy wnproverrent opportuninies
fromthe results

-lingreased engagerent with peaple
managers and employees

Discussed tatent and succession,
nctuding gender diversity across
management and performance
managament

- Review the gender diversity pelicy and
performance management processes

= Continue to support executive director
and semor management development

= 1anof Board members are female

S implertented improved performance
management structures toalgn with
our values of Inspiration Innovatan
integrity and In Touch

= CONmMUEo wnin successhul muatves
nciuding The Leadershup Development
Servee angmentonng and caaching
schemes

Reviswed the compontion
and suceession of the Board
and its Committees

- Committed to maniawury) the rnght
balance of skills and expernenca on
1he Board and Commutteds

- Approved the appowntment of 3 new
Cheef Finance Officer Servor Incependent
Owector and nort-@recutive drecicor

Discussed orgamisationat <ulture,
structure and process

- Reviewed ways of working Lo ensure
greater accountabiiry across the husiness

= Introduced more collaborative ways of
warking throughout the Comparyy to
speeti up decition-making withthe
laungh of Fit for the Future

Customers Raoviewed the GM strategy 3 Continue focus onfurther product -» Betler buying and suopler Moxels
and performance and agreed improvement ncreased choice and - Creatar design exper ence n-hause
2015/16 targets impeoved n STOre environment delveringbetter product stronger

- Strangthenthe management team for marg nwnpravemnentsand faster delivery
buyng and supplerlogtics andincrease thiough the network
designexpenence within the business

Creataer custamner engagement = Invasiigate oppor tunites for INnovatve - Introduct on o’ a new customer
CUSTOMer COMMUNICatIon and engagement StrateQy tobnnga
reward programme centralisedrelationshipbatween
the busness and the Customer
< Introduction of the Sharerolder Card
nparnership with Equinit (Company
registrary
Discussed the International business, 2 improve Live-for-Lke performance across = Creawon of one distinct brand acrass our
including histarie and current owned and franchised exusting estate variaou s of farngs
parformance, negative factors = Grow the business proftably theough hew = trpravang global brandrelavance
impactng u:o btn:‘nnmtl. cral::u:;":"; stores new countries and new formats implementedexpenenced management
engagement with customers, Hurc tearn and re-enfarced franchise
rolationships with key franchise -> Redefine ways of working with parlrershios " "
partners, and the vision going forwerd franchuse partners

= Implement orgarusational structure
withclear accounabilitytodrive the
growthininternauonal

Reviowod the marketing strategy » Create one distinct brand acrass our -3 MAS rebrand incluging same branding

wncluding the oparating model, and varous offerings for CM and Food TV adverts

improved customer engagemaont

Rovigwed and scrutinued the = MAS com site optimisation and review = Custorer satsfacbommproved

performance of MAS com and the otdelivery proposition over 7 mithon registered customers on

challenges faced a1 Castle Donington MEScom strang platfemmstability
andregular cross-funclional meelmgs
with representatives from M35 com
CM and Casile Donington

Shareholder Strang engagement with stakeholders =) Actwely Support engagement =¥ lrwestior canferences held on MAS com

engagement and investors opporibnities and Intemanonal

= Fourthannualgovernance event

Roviewed shareholder feedback 1n
advance of tho ACM

- Focus areas of Cha rman s sta.erment
tospecid.cally dddress ssuesrased
by shareholders

-3 Commuricate the key topcCs rarsed
by shareholders

Contnued discussions regarding
the offaring of a wider shareholder
reward scheme

- Conbrue dscussions with Equint to find
a solution to provide rewards reflecuve of
thelevel of iInvestrnent

+3 Dhscuss with norunegs a solutionto extend
muiabives to ther benehcal shareholders

= Shareholdes Card launched nMarch 2045

= Discussions toextond che MAS
sharahodder card offer tobeneheral
shareholders

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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LEADERSHIP & EFFECTIVENESS
QUR BOARD CONTINUED

DIRECTOR INDUCTION

Shortly hefore the publication of ths report,
two new directors jotned the business
Helen Weir, Chief Finance Cfficer.and
Richard Solormons Non-Executve Drector
Both are recening a tailored nduction
prograrmme led by the Chairman wiuch
includes time with each of the executive
directors, the group secretary members of
the Management Commuittee a widerange
of sermior management from across the
business and the opportunity to meet
with major shareholders

Helen and Richard s induction
prograrnmes are comprehensive
and both cover

Campany structure and strategy,
including Qur history strategy (ncluding
details of all key investment decisions),

key people and succession plans, Board
procedures ncluding the Governance
Framewark Code of Ethics and Behaviours,
Board catendar, minutes from previous
meetings effectiveness reviews and action
plans finances performance operating
plans, current KPis and targets operational
overview of all business areas, key relabonships
mcluding suppliers and major contracts
GCroup Risk Profile and our approach to nsk,
insight into key audits and areas of focus

Industry and competrtive environment,
including Customer trends consumer and
regulatory environment mcluding governance
and ail relevant consumer and industry
bodies, Corporate Sccial Responsibility
environment and sustainability

Sentiment and reputation, including
Brand positicring and media profile
marketing campaigns brand values analyst

and investor opiron review of investor
surveys, share register and voling history
key stakeholder relations including
employees, customers, supplers and service
prowders, opinion leaders an overview of
our rermuneration policy and pensions

Richard s induction as a non-executive was
supported by one-on-one meetings, and
amed to provide abroadlearning about
the business It operations, its key markets
angits nsks

Helensinduction was supportedby a
greater number of ene-on-one meetings
with the Chairman the executive and

the non-execulive directars, but also
management from Strategic Programmes
Finance HR (including visiting our
empleyee support team), GM (Including our
overseas sourcing teams), Food Customer
Insight, Commurucations and liwestor
Relations {including some of our larger
shareholders and our corporale brokors),
Store operations (including visiting the
Caslle Donington facility} Plan A, Health

B Safoty, Pensions MAS Bank Internal
Audit 8 Risk, the Company Archive and
the Governanceteam

Crventhal the two directors joned the
busingss within a short space of Lime

we willtake this opportunity to oblam
feedback ontherr experience of the
induclion process and review Lhe director
induction programme Going forward

we will also seck feedback from Alison
Brittam, on herinducton and her first year
withihe business Further information

on gur induction canbe found nthe
Corporate Governance secuon of
marksandspencercom/thecompany

SUCCESSION

Succession planrung and the succession
pipeline remain a key agenda item for
the Board

During the year, our Board contingency plan
waslested when, shortly after the AGM

Alan Stewart resigned [romthe Board Given
Alan had accepted a rote with another food
retaier the Board fell it necessary for him

Lo leave the busingss immediately Unuila
suitable roplacoment was found for the
positton Paul Frision, our then Director of
Croup Financial Control, wasapponted
Interim Chief Finance Qfficer Paul heldthe
posiion untl Helen Wer joined the business
on | April 2015, at whieh peint Paul took up

a new roie within the business

In Augusl 2014 we also announcedihat

Jan du Plesss would be leaving the business
nthe early part of 2015 Janhad served Mas
for six ycars as a non-cxecutive director
Hawvng Janremanwith the businessuntil
March 2015 and Paul cover ithe Financerole
for nine months, allowed the Boardto focus
sutficient attenlion on ensuring the new
appontments came with the required
qualfications experence and skilistomeet
the challenges and opportuniues ahead

@ More detail on succession planning
canbe found on pages 42-43

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS REVIEW

The assessment of the Marks &
Spencer Board was conducted
according te the guidance in

the UK Corporate Covernance
Code and was facilitated by
Ffion Hague of Independent
Board Evaluation Neither
Ffion Hague nor Independent
Board Evaluation have any cther
connection with the Company

The external evaluation
of our Board s an
important factor n
ensuring we are creating
an open, effective
Board and realising

our potential

ROBERT SWANNELL CHAIRMAN




BOARD REVIEW PROCESS

Stage 1 Acomprehensive bref was gven
tothe assessment team by the Chairman,
Robert Swannell, and Group Secretary,
Armanda Mellor in Decernber 2014 The
evaluationtcam also observed Board and
committee meeungs nDecember 2014 and
January and March 2015 Copes of all Board
papers were provided Lo the team for bnefing
purposes pnor to the meelng

InJanuary and February, detatedimerviews
wore conducled with every Board mermber
Allpartkipants wereinlerviewed according
toaclearagenda tadcredforthe Board In
addition, the teamn spake tothe Director of HR
the Interm Chuef Finance Officer, Head of
Internal Audit &Risk, the Croup Secretary,

the Compeny’s external remunarabion
consultants, PwC, andthe Companystead
Audit Partner from Delotte

Stage 2 Thereport was compiledhbythe
evaluation tearn based on nformabonand
views suppled by the Board and those
nierviewed Allrecommendations were
based onbest practice 05 descnbedinthe
UK Corporate Governance Code and othar
current corporate governance guidelines

Stage 3 Draft conclusions were discussed
with the Chairrman and subsequently
discussed with the whole Board at its
meetingin Aprib.with Flion Hague present
The conclusions of that discussion were
recordedinthe rinutes of the meebng
Robert Swannell alsoreceived a separate
report with feedback onindradual directors
Following the Board reeting, FlionHague
gave feedback ontha Charrmanto the Senior
Independent Dwector and to the Committee
Chairmen on the performance of each
comimitiee The Seruor Independent Director
also met with the non-executive directorsto
review the Chairmans performance This
review was then shared with the Charman
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Stage i Stage 2 Suped
Sieins S
OBSERVATION C%tmg&ﬁ
RESULTS o
COLLATED,
REPORTED & ACTION
EVALUATED —\ PLAM
ACGREED
ONE-TO-ONE BOARD
INTERVIEWS
WITH BOARD DISCUSSION

Nate The sbove aciraties witre under tanen by Fhon Hague of incepengen Bodrd Evaluation

Fhion Hague olso attended the Beard discussion

BOARD REVIEW INSICHTS 2014/15

The ethos and eulture of the Boardis
positrve ang remains in bne with the last
ndependent review in 2012

Cwerall the Board rated its performance as
acceptable inthe areas of governance and
cempliance, sharcholder accountability
and relationships, induction,and
successon planning However, in other
areas performance was nol considered o
be as strong,and progress had been slow
inrelabionlolast years ActionPlan Asa
result, thus year members were clear that
thero wore several key areas that would
enable the Board tobe more effective,
chatlange business performance, and orive
strategic debate

The Board review was conducied i
Decormnber 2004 and January 2015 when
MBS s performance was under particular
scrutiny with operationalissues affoctng
the Castle Donington distnbuton centre
and M35 com Civenthis context, members
werg particularly open objectrve and
critical with respect (o Board performance

and the potential changes that should

be implementedto mprove overall
Board effectveness Awmbper of lnese
mprovements have featurad in provious
years and primarily relate to nformation
context content and congistency and
debate around business and stralegic nsk
These now ferm the core of the 2015716
Boardactonplan

Board Comrmuttees Board Committees
were alsoreviowed and were all considered
wetlrun, challenging structured, trusied
and effective Members noled that
commitiees wereimproved interms of
quality of information and supporl from
rmanagement Feedback fromeach
Comrmitlee meelng Lo the main Board was
folt to be full and transparent, paruicularly
in relabion to Audil and Remuneralion

BOARD ACTION PLAN

THE BOARD ACTION PLAN 2015/16 INCLUDES

As inprevious years theBoard s locuson
culture, values and people development
was fell Lo be strong However this yearit
was (elt that more could be done to
facilitate greater nforrmal engagement
between the Board and the broader
manragement team

After a thorough debate of the review wath
Ffiron Hagua present the Board has agreed
anAction Plan for the year ahead Thus plan
focuses on the quality of nformation to
support Board discussions,and broadening
Board debate and scope around risk

- Review of Board decision-making
process and debate

- Review of all management infarmation
and KPls toimprove qualityand
consistency of data and enable clearer
strategic context

= Continue torefine our nsk appetite
statements across the business,
builchng on the progress delivered
onriskin 2014415

= Improvetracking review and debate
on quality of past investments

- Continue to encourage greater
interactionwith Board members
across the business

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE
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LEADERSHIP & EFFECTIVENESS

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

REPORT

We have an established mapping of the experience
and skills requirements for our Board This allowed us
to move with clanty on the replacement and succession

of Jan du Plessis as Senior Independent Director

ROBERY $WANNELL CHAIRMAN OF THE NOMINATIONCOMMITTEE

INTRODUCTION

We have seen further change to our Board
composition thus year | am pleased to
welcome our new Chief Finance Officer
Helen \Werr We announced Helens
appontment inNovember 2014 and she
formally took up her positionon 1 April 2015
In August 2014 we announced that

Jan du Plessis would be stepping downin
the early part of 2015 He left the business on
4AaMarchafter nearly sixyears onthe Board
As part of our Board succession planning
process we have established mapping of pur
expenence and skills requirernents, future
Board and Cornmuttee requirernents and
drrector terure As aresult following Jans
retuerment wewerewell placedtoappoint
Vindi Banga as Senior Independent Drirector,
n addition Lo histesponsiilities as
Rermuneration Commiilee Charman

and alsc appoint Mranda Curts to the Audi
Commitee, inaddition o her membershipol
the Remurneraton Committee Followg the
retirement of Steven Hollday fromthe Board
1 July 2014, we recognised Lhe benefits that
a serving CEQ brings to our Board mx, along
withinternational, brandand consurmner
expenence This ¢lear bref underpinned

the appointment of Richard Solomons to

Lhe Board in Aprd 2015

Vingi Banga succeeded Steven Helliday as
Remuneration Committee Charrman Vindi
and Steve ranaged an exemptary handover,
ncluding consullation and moetings with
nvestors ahead of the approvat of our
Remuneration Polcy at the ACMin July 2014

Inaddilion tothese Board changes
throughout the yoar the Communtee locused
onexecutve director development and

EFFECTIVENESS OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

sericrmanagerment Lalent developrment
and pipelne We have continued Lo support
sxecutive coaching and mentonng and are
pleasedwith the benefits andinsights these
initiatives have brought

Bulding on mitiatves n previcus years, our
non-executive directors continue to engage
withboth senicr management and the
broader business, hoshngtunches and
breakfast presentations As highughtedn
our Agtion Plan, this 1s sormething weintend
to buldonnthe year ahead

AsaBoard we contirue to drve dversiy
2Crossthe business We are pleased Lhat
wornen naw regresent almost 40% of our
Board membershup Ourcurrent diversily
percentage is also reflectve of broader
senor management where female
representation also accounts for almoest 40%

Independent review
The Commitiee s performance was

reviewed oxternally this year by Flion Hague

of Independent Beard Evaluation
Performance was felt to haveimpraved,
wilh better support and more professional
processes caming into effect Weintendto

buld on this Inthe cormng year with our
201516 Actron Plan

Nomination Commuittee actrvity

We continued to refreshand review non-
executive direclor tenure arnd skillset to
ENSUre 3N apPropv aLe rrux and dversity
of experience As part of thus, we agreed

e TBNGE TR WM ekl

MEETINGS ATTENDED ATTENDED
Vindi Banga 3Sep 2011 4 q 100%
Marc Bolland 1 May 2010 4 L} 100%
Alison Brittain 1 Jan 2014 4 a 100%
Miranda Curtus 3Feb 2042 4 4 100%
Martha Lane Fox 1 Jun 2007 4 4 100%
Andy Hallord 1 Jan 2013 4 4 100%
Jan du Ptessis’ 1 Nov 2008 4 3 5%
Richard Solomons’ 13 Apr 201§ - - .
Robert Swannell (Charrman) 40ct 2010 4 4 100%

Jancu Plesss was a rmomber of the Comm (tee untd 4 March 2015 whan na fesigned from the Board Ha was unable to

aitend tha mecbingheld on8 Septernber du to over 1885 buhness commitment s

~

year s report

RIChar0 S010Mons Kaned Lhe Dusiness dunng the new Fnancet perad and Pes attendance wil be inclhuded nnext

the process timetable, shortbst and Mnal
recormmencdation for the appointment of
Richard Sotomoens and succession planmng
following the departure of Jandu Plessis

We continued L0 SUPPOrt successionand
development of the execulve directors,
implemented development inititives for
senior executives, further international
business school training, execuetive coaching
and non-executive director mentonng
Commsiee members also parbGipated i
severalemployee-focused and diversily-
basedntiatwes givingincreased access to
the organisation, direct employee feadback
and greater wisibiity of mgh potential talent

Action Plan 2015/16

= Continue Lo review succession
plans for the Board andkey roles
acrass the business

= Continue to dentify future tatent
pipeling,

- Review development iniatives
fordirectors and

- Conunue toidentily opportunities
for broader business engagement




Qur assessment of dversity interms of
experience and backgroundss coveredin
further detal below We also reviewed our
diversity policy this year to ensure it rernams
fit for purpose

BOARD DIVERSITY POUCY

Since the launch of the Board Diversity Polcy
n 2012, the Board has made progress in
broaderung the dwversity of the Board and
senior management In 2014 the Board
reviewed the policy 1o ensurethatit
continues todrive the benefits of a dverse
Board and workforce across the business
The Board agreed that theambiions and
objectaves set outinthe policy reman
relevant targets against whichto measure
our progress

T Tor Tw v mivnimauon an emplayee
diversity, including gender, ethnscity
and aga, sea pl3 of our Plan A Report
marksandipancer com/plana201s

BOARD DIVERSITY PROCRESS UPDATE

Matntain a lovel of at teast 30% female
directors an tha Board over the short to
medium term

Ashighlighted earbier inthe report,the Board
made two appointments durng the year
following one retrement and one resignation
The appointments of Helen Werr and Rcnarg
Sotomons Increased the female/rmale
balance onthe Board from 31% female
membershipat Uhe slart of Juty Last year

Lo 3B% in ApriLLihs year

The Board remains commulted Lo mamtamnng
atleast a 30% female representationonthe
Board whilst ensunng that dversity inits
broadest sense remains a centrat feature
However the Nomination Commutiee wll
continue to recommendappointments
tolhe Board based onment measured
against objective cntera and the skils and
experience the indmdual offers

The Board rermains commutted Lo
strengthening the pipeline of serior femate
exacutives within the business and has taken
steps Lo ensure that there arg no barmiers Lo
women succeeding al the heghest levels
within M&S

In 2015 M&S was againbsted in The Times
Top SOEmMployers lor Women for the fifth
year running

Assist the development of a pipeline of
high-calibre candidates by encouraging
broad range of semior individuals within the
business to take on addtional roles to gain
valuable Board cxperience

Bunng the year, the Beard contnuedto
focus on strengthening the pipelne of
executne talent nthe Comparny It
committed tolearning and bulding on
existing prograrmmes whieintroducing new
iniliatives to broaden and develop the strong
tatent which exists across the business

Key intiatives include

2 Acomprehensive talent review presented
Lo the Board annually mapping
successional candidates and opportunies
across allsenior roles wilhin the business
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- The Leadership Development Service has
been inptace for two yearsand continues
todentify and partner key senor talent
across the busmess broadening ther
skillsets and expenence to prepare them
for future opportunities This has been
supported through greater boardroomn
exposure non-executive and Trustee
roles cutside of M&S, and particigation
inmentonng schemes

3 Access to International Busmess
Schood Trasing

= Senor management mentonng and
coaching schemes, ncluding indradual
leadership assessments,and non-
executive director sponsorediunches
and breakfasts

Cunsidul Lanaiaaces ror appointment as
non-executrve directars from a wider pool,
including those with Irttle or no bsted
company board expenence

During the year, the Normination Cornmuttee
discussed the Board s successional needs
and continues to work closely with execulive
sgarch agency JCA N compuing long and
short lists of cancidates Dunnglhe search
forthe mosl recent appointments, Lhe
Boardidentfied and mterviewed a range of
candidates lrom vanous backgrounds and
indusines,and all candidates wore measured
against crieria agreedat the start of the
process The Chairrman alse meetsinformally
wilh a range of people introduced by third
parties or through direct approaches
Although we do ol currently openly
adveruse our non-executive director
postions we apprecate the benefl of this
approach and willkeep this under review

Ensure tong Lsts of potential
nen-executive directors include S0%
fermale candidates

The Board remains cormmulted 1o ensunng
Lhat lugh performing women from wathun the
business and from a vanety of backgrounds
who havethe requiste skills, are grsen greater
exposureto the nomination comrmiltees of
FTSE100 companies Once agan, ine Board
met 1s comrnitment, and all non-exccutive
diractor longlists in 2004/15 inctuded 50%
female canddates

Only engage executve search firms who
have signed up to the voluntary Code

of Conduct on gender diversity and

best practice

The Board conbinues Lo support the nine
principles of the Executve Scarch Frms
Voluntary Code of Conduct on gender
diversity, demonstrated by remamring
comrritted Lo only engagmng executve
search lirms wheare signatones to this code
Dunng the year, we continued to work closely
with JCA and maintained our focus on

the targets and amibitions around fermale
represcntation on the Board The Board
confirms that JCA has no other connection
wilhthe Company

Report annually against these objectives
and other mibiatives taking place within the
Company which promote gender and other
forms of diversity

The Board has made strong progress against
the key polcy objectives during the year as
reportedabove

In addition, the business has continued to
promote diversity wath the introduction or
continuation of key intiatives

-3 The annual Board evaluation process
includes anassessment of the Board's
diverstyincluding gender helping to
objectvely comsiderits compostion
and effectiveness

- The M&SINspinng Wornens Network,
launchedin 2014 contiNues tn sLNNAct tha
progress of women in our business gving
accesstoa range of role models, proviting
informal mentorng and networkng
opportunities and creating a forum for
discussion toexplore and address the
career challenges wornen face

- Taking partina number of pilot schemes
ncluding cross-business mentonng far
senior women run by Lthe governiment-
backed 30X Club, s Temale only
developrment programme

- The MBA Leadershia Prograrmmeis inits
fourth year, recruiling and developing
talerved MBA graduates fromimternational
business schools Lo date ntakento the
programme has been over 50% women

= Partnenng with alocal school Lo provide
one-to-one mentonng suppartfor around
S0femalestudents betweenthe ages of
15and 17

-3 Anumber of programmes to help pecple
1n our communities, INcluding Marks & Start
Marks 8 Start Logistics arnd Make Your
Mark are successfully helping young
pcopie the homeless lone parents and
thosewithdisabitties tofind work inour
slores and chstnbution contra

Report annually on the outcome of the
Board evaluation, the composition and
structure of the Board as well as any issues
and challenges the Board 1s facing when
considenng the diverse make-up of the
Company

We continue Lo regard Lhe Board evaluation
process as anmporiant means of monitonng
our progress Full details of the 2014715 Board
evaluation and the Acuon Plan are on page 8}
We remain commitled Lo getling Lthe nght
balance of internal versus oxternal hires and
work Lowards understanding and managing
some of the challenges we face, suchas

- Internatwonal management expenence
reflective of the customers and
COMrnUNIes we serve and

= Ay manchallenges womenfacen
reaching regional management postions
and above within the business
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ACCOUNTABILITY

RISK IN ACTION

RISK AND THE ROLE OF INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit & Risk comprises bolththe
Croup Risk function and Inlernal Audit
Croup Risk faciitates and manages the nsk
process that s ullmately owned by Lhe
Croup Board Internal Audil accountable
Lo the Audit Committee, uses a nsk-based
approach to provide independaent
assurance over the adeguacy and
effecuveness of Lhe contral environment
ineluding controls related tokey risks

on the Group Risk Prolile Management
actions from all of our audiLs are tracked

to completion and the status of these
actions s reporied Lo the Audit Committee
Lo ensure Lthat therisks :«dentified are
appropnately addressed This will inturn
{uriher mitigate the nsks included inour
Croup Risk Profile

The following examples illustrate how
Internal Audit supports the business
Lhrough driving improvernents to our
control envronment and adding value
" Core BUSINGSS areas

RISK INTERNATIONAL EXPANSION

In support of the Croup s International
growth plans, Internal Audit reviewed the
process to dentify and approve new store
locations, with a focus on Asia The audit
confirmed that we have 2 well defined
governance structure in place throughthe
Property Board, from the revsew of inibial

RISK INTERDEPENDENCY

new slores propesals totheformal post-
investment reviews Lthat measure actual
performance aganst initial estimales

The audit ighlighticd anopporturity o
nprove the quality and consistency of data
supperting these inilial gstirmates preparced
by thein-country teams, including greater
abgnment with the process for UK slores
This would support belter decision-making
and enable more effective comparisonofl
proposals across countries The audi also
recommended more rebust tracking of
aclions agreed at the post-iInvestment
reviews through to thar completion 1o
drwve profitability

RISK CM CUSTOMER ENGACEMENT

The continuous improvement of our
customers online experience 1san
important part of drving customer
engagement Following last year s M&Scom
webste launch Internal Audit reviewedthe
process to maintain product content online
ncluding narrative product descriptions,
photographic images and the navigation
paths supparting customer searches

Qur review confirrned that robust review
mecharusms are In place to minimisethe
riskof errors or omissions in product
nformation onthe website Howevar
ininsiances where data s missing or
mncorrect delays inresolubon canimpact

the imebiness with which products are
launched online The audit recomrended
clearer defwilion of roles and
responsibibtios between the GM teams
developtng and buying the products and
the M85 comtcam managng the website
content andamore structured critical
path™for product launches online

RISK IT CHANGE

In 2014/15 new agreements were
implemented with a number of third-party
IT service providers coverng areas suchas
Infrastructure and Application Support
and End User Computing Effective
management of our IT service providers s
akey element of managing IT change nsk,
ensuring, for example that [T changes

are executed i ine with M35 1T poucies
Internal Audit conducted a review 1O assess
the effectiveness of IT service provider
management processes The audit provided
assurance that significant focus had been
placed on the successfulimplementation
of the new agreements At the time of the
audit there was Further work required to
clearly define vendor management roles
and responsibilities and to implament
monitering aganst all contractual service
levels, both of whith have subsequentty
been addressed

We recognise that there is significant
interdependency between our key nsks
This diagram bascd on our current Group
Risk Profile, ughlight s how changes io one
nisk could impact onihose connected Lot
and herefare onthe Croup Risk Profile asa
whale By understanding Lhe relationship
between our key risks f they were (@
materalise we are beller placedto ensure
that we are rmanaging Lthern appropriately
andto understand the entrely of our

Nsk exXposure

The highlighted nisks illustrate potential
interdependent risk scenarios

The success of our business s highly
influenced by our ability toretain quality
indvichuals {® The loss of key product
developers would mpact our abilily to
provide a point of difference against cur
competiors in terms of quality, value and
nnovation € whilst maintamng expertise
n our Food technology team enables us to
mamntan migh standards of food safety and
integrity across our preducts and supply
chain inan increasingly challanging
envronment B Our custorners tellus

that they Lrust us to dothenght thing

By maintaimng these high standards of |
food salelyandintegnty we continue Lo

stand out from our competitors € l

Strong GM customer engagement Qs |
nfluenced by our ability Lo maximise

product availlability and provide customers

with an efficient and reliable delvery

proposiion & The robustness of the

onure business @ willalsompact this

supply chanand logistics network as well

as having a drecl influence oncustomer

engagerment through the provisionof a

rebiable online experience




This year, we have placed significant focus
ondeveloping our approachio nskappetite
in Lbng with the UK Corporate Governance
Code By expressing the types and amount
of nisk we are walung to Lake Qr accept Lo
achiove our plan, we aim to support

LU ISLENL, MISK-INTOrmMea aecision-making
acrossthe Group

Our starting point has beento define

draf\ nskappeute stalements for our
prncipal nsks, and for key decisions made
by the Board These statements provide
parameters within which we typically
expect the business to operale, faciitaung
structured consideration of the risk and
reward trade-off in the decisions we make
and inhow the Group conducts business

VIABILITY STATEMENT

Changestothe UK Corporate

Covernance Code, which ¢ame into effect
in October 2014, will requare companies to
state whether Lhey believe they will be able
to continue i operate and meet, therr
Labilibies taking nto accaunt thoir curren,
posilion and principal risks Companies
willneed Lo state over what perod Lhey
have made their assessment and why they
consider Lhal periodlo beapproprnate

The assessed period must be longer than
12 months and relative Lo business planning
processes and how business performance
5 reasured
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We have covered a wade range of nsks from
CM ethical sourcing and (cod safety and
mtegrity through Lo investrment decisions
and business resiience Civenthevaried
nature and dwersity of suchnisks, thereis no
one size fits all approach to establishunansk
parameters We believe that tlaking the

ume to get this nght wilt yield the greatest
benefits Lo our business and as such we are
currenlly working with management to
define a draft set of nsk statements which
we will refing over Ume Lo ensure Lhal they
best reflect what the Group stands for

Providing clear parameters isimportiant
however, it 15 essential that we also foster
an erwvironment where innovation and
entrepreneuralaclivities thrive At times

Onthe surface thus might appeartobea
swnple statemoent 1o make However the
Code changes emphasise the needloran
interconnectad 2pproach to assessing
viabiity The Board must take nto account
the Company s business modal and the
nputs which support ityand the strategy
ensuring that theseare abgnedwithits nisk
appetite supportng risk lramework and the
controls and activities in place to mitigate
risk The Code requires statements tobe
made as a reasonable expectalion rather
thanacertairty

there may be mentin operating outside
of these nisk parameters but proposed
exceptions will need 1o be escalated Lo
semor management for debate and
approval beforeactviies commence
PASLIAING That Annrnnnala ra e ateng
controtsarenplace

Once linatsed ouwr sk appetile staloments
will beincorporated ntoan operating
frampwork integrated with our exisling
Croup Risk process and used tomonitor
busness actevitics and decision-rmaking

We beleve we have made good progress
this year and risk appetite remans akey
priority for the Board in 2015/16

whilst the Code changes are not applicable
(o MAS untilnext year s Annual Reporl,
elements of the Code change are atigned
wilth the principles of inlegrated reporting
Bothrequrre some changes to s number
of our ways of working and as part of our
commitment to producing an integrated
report nexl year, we have already made
progress We arc commitled to ensunng
Lhat our response Lo the Cade change s
meaningful and adds value both within the
businessand 1o our stakeheolders The work
we have in progress meansinal weare na
strong position Lo meet the requirement s
innext year s Annual Report

© See more inour
Risk management
section p23-25
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

REPORT

The Committee has covered much ground this year
with the auditor transition, a wider and enhanced
assurance scope and greater risk oversight
We plan to build on thus in the year ahead

ANDY HALFORD CHAIRMAN OF THE AUIPDIT COMMITTER

INTRODUCTION

The following pages am to openup the
doors to the boardroom and provide
insight nto the Audit Committees activities
In the year, as well as provide an update

on the Company s new statutory auditor
{Deloitte), thewr effectiveness and the non-
audit fees they recewved It provides the
Committees opinion on the Annual Report
when viewed as a whole, ncluding how it
has assessed the narrative reporting in the
front of the report to accurately reflect the
financel statements in the back

Thus report also sharas sorne of the insight
we receved from the executive updates
presented to us from across the business
These continue to provide the Commuttee
with real nsight nto our challenges and
aspirations These also tell us how the nisks
are being managed and mitigated, as well
as helping the Committee members
understand the progress being made
towards the strategic plan The updates
provide us with an opporturity to

EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUBDIT COMMITTEE

The Board is satisfied that one member
of the Committee, Andy Halford, has
recent and relevant financial experience

Independent review

The Audit Committees performance

was revicwed externally this year by

Ffion Hague of Independent Board
Evaluation,as part of the Board
Effactveness Review The Commuittee
recened very postive feedback from Board
members and external particpants It s
seen as open transparent and effective and
Board members value the feedback te the
wider Board inparticuiar, the Committee s
seen tohave driven some improvement in

the business response to intermal audits
and the overall auality of information
provided to members The Commuttee
made good progress against the 201415
Action Plan, establishing good ways of
working with Deloitte and mproving the
nisk oversight in key business areas that
were cntcal to performance

Audit Commuttee activity

- Rermained focused on the audit,
assurance and risk processes within
the business and mamntained oversight
of financial and other regulatory
requrements

MEMBER ATTENDANCE MEMBER
SINCE

MAXIMUM  NUMBER OF %
MEETINGS  OF MEETINGS

SEETwes ATTENDED ATTENDED
Alison Brittamn 11 Mar 2014 s 5 100%
Miranda Curts 4Mar 2015 1 1 100%
Martha Lane Fax 1Jun2007 S 5 00%
Andy Halford {Charman) 1Jan 2013 H 5 00%
Steven Holliday' 15 Jul 2004 1 5} 0%
(ressgned 8 July 20149)
Jan du Plessis? 1 Nov 2008 4 3 75%

{resigned 4 March 2015)

1 Staven Holuday was unable [0 attend the meeung hele an 1S May du 00 DuSNEsS COMMUMEnts with Matcnal Gnd
1 JanduPlesss was unable Lo attend the mesting hitld on B September due to overseas busingss commutmants

challenge, discuss and debate wath the
prasenters whilst sharnng our experience
and providing an independent perspective

InOctober 2014 the UK Corporate
Covernance Code was updated The
Committee is looking closely at the
additional requirements introduced by
the new teration of the Code to assess
which of our processes need updating
and to ensure that we are well positioned
to report aganst thermn in future

- Reviewed therr ways of working and
assurance following appontment of
Delottte as the new Statutory Auditor

= Updated the process for assessing the
effectiveness of the external auditor

- Reviewed the design and scope
of the assurance plan, with partcular
focus on key strategic priorities

= Recewed and discussed specific
business presentations relating to
nisks within the Group Risk Profile

Action plan 2015/16

Locking ahead the Committee will
reman fotused on the audit, assurance
and risk processes within the business,
and maintain its oversight of financial
and other regulatory requirements

The actwon plan for 2015/16 will focus on

-3 Providing oversight of key business
nsks with particular focus on
International retait and ethical sourcing

= Supporting risk work achieved in
2014415 and dehritions of risk
appetite across the business and

- Continuing to support the
development, design and scope of
the assurance plan, with particular
focus onkey strategic priorities




EXTERNAL AUIDITORS

TENURE OF THE AUDITORS

At the ACM last year shareholders
approved the appotntment of Delostte
as the Company’s new Statutory Audhtor

The proposed change in auditor was
communicated to shareholders in
December 2013 This extended lead time
provided a smooth handover process from
PwC, the previous Statutory Auditor, and
allowed Deloitte to shadow PwC through
areas of the 2014 year end process

gving them a good understanding of

the businegss

In the early part of the year Deloitte
underwent 3 thorough induction process
to enhance ther understanding of the
business This included

- Meetings with management and
executives across the business including
alarge number of Indmiduals outside of
the finance function {(trading managers,
buyers, property team HR and others)

- A number of site visits across the UK
and Intermational operations including
16 UK distnbution centres 27 UK stores

EFFECTIVENESS OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Commettee bebeves the mdependence
and obyectivity of the external auditor

and the effectiveness of the audt process
are safeguarded and reman strong, and
recommends the reapporntment of
Delote LLP for the 2015/16 financial year

The assessment of the effectivensass of our
external auditor s based on a framework
draded inte ten structured components
setbing out the key areas of the audit process
for the Audt Committee to consider, as well
as the role that management has contributed
toan effectve process

The framework provides the Audit
Committee with a mechanisrn to encourage
management to improve standardsin a
number of key areas These include ensuring
that mformation 1s presented wath a culture
of right first tirme, that the quality of
management papers is hugh, that robust
nternal systems and contrels are maintained,
that the audit process s respected and
valued by the rmanagement team, and that
proposed audt adjustments are examined
seriousty The Commmttee believes that this
frarmework provides a robust process for
monitoring auditor effectiveness now, and
¢an be measured against the findings of
future exterral auditor effectiveness surveys

For 2014/15 we talored the appraach to
the assessment process enatbing seniar
management to answer tha detaded
questions on the Company-wide audit
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{including audit partrer attendance
at a stock count), operations In nine
overseas countries (Cruna, Hong Kong
Inghia, Turkey, Greece, Czech France,
Netherlands and Ireland)

In addition, Deloitte have participated in
warkshops cn material and judgemental
areas prior to thew first half year review
The Company and Deloitte adopted a
collaborative approach throughout

the year, encouraging ongomng, open
communication on current matters as
and when they arose

NON-AUDIT FEES

A robust auditor engagement policy
1510 place and adhered to Itis
reviewed annually and disclosed on
marksandspencer com/thecompany

In the nterest of transparency, last year
wa highlighted that business forecasting
and planning incicated that fees for non-
audit work with Detoitte were likely tobe
impacted by additional tems, much of
which wera a drrect result of the transition
between audit firms

process, and provide the Audit Committee
with sufficient detal to estabish annformed
wvigw on the overall efficiency, integrity and
effectrveness of the external audit

Guestionnaires were tadored to the
followang target groups.

1 Chief Fnance Officer and Director of
Group Financial Control A full questionmarre,
covering all areas of the audit process was
completed based on the ndndual s close
knowtedge of the audit process, thew
interaction with the audit partnerand

taking consideration of the questicnnaire
completed by the Heads of Finance for Food
CMand International

2 Heads of Finance Food, CM and
Intemnational Shorter questionnaire, foausing
on the audit team, planming challenge and
nterachon with the business

3 Audit Commirttee Ahigh level set of
questions with speaific focus on the audit
partner, planrung, exacution, vatue,

Last year's fesdback idantificd

Detoitte had providted several non-audit
services to the business prior to their
appontrment and although many of these
were complete by March 2014, some were
expected to run over into the 201415
financal year whilst they were tendered
toancther firm Where non-audit work 5
performed by Deloitte, both the Company
and Deloitte ensure robust processes to
prevent auditor ndependence from beng
compromised

-3 The non-audit fees to audit fees ratio
for the year was 0421 Of this £05m
related to services now transtioned
to other companies (overseas payrolt,
accountancy and tax carnpliance
services and two other srmall one-off
projects)

-3 All non-audt work performed by Delointe
was put to the Audit Committee for
consideration and approval, regardless
of size

communication and challenge The
Commuttee had access 1o copes of the
completed Finance questionnarres (sections 1
and 2 above} toassist their consclerations

WHAT WAS THE OUTCOME?

As this s Deloittes first year with M&S, the
Committee was only able to assess ther
work up until the end of the finangial perod
and nat the year end audit itself However,
tha penod assessed included the mtenm
reporong cycle providing Committee
rmembers with early Insight into the level of
challenge and scrutiry Deloitte provide
Feedback highlighted

- A good ungerstanding of the business and
its values,

=3 A tearn that were robustly challenging
whilst supportve on technucal matters, and

- Ajoined up approach towargs the
significant ssues fior dscussion

How has they been addressed?

The Commuttee Charman was felt to have
greater visibility of the overall audit process
as a result of his pne-to-one meetings with
the audit partner

Time has beenmade avatable prior to
each Committee meeting for the Chairman
to update Committee members, where
necessary, on his discussions

The survey itself contatned a level of detail
regarding processes that the Commuttee
may not have or need visibility of

The content of the survey has been
reviewed and updated An overview of
the new process 1s provided above

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE
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ACCOUNTABILITY

AUDIT COMMITTEE REFORT CONTINUED

AUDIT COMMITTEE UPDATES

The Comminttee receives a detaled update
fromthe business at each Committee meeting
with one or more areas represented Business
updates are planned on a rolling 1 2-month
basis andreviewed at every meeting Some of
the 2014715 updates are listed below

ETHICAL SQURCING

- Updated our CM ethical trading approach
including M&S standards andauditing

S Tiadunadu v me 11501 01 NG PrOCess
stte rankings and escalation procedures
and mprovements made inthis area

-» Recernved examples of igh mediurn
andlow sk suppliers noting those
that M&S works with

- Updated on traning and nnovation and
roted the introduction of new technologies
andmethodologiesinthis area

FOOD SUPPLIER TERMS AND
CONDITIONS REPORT

= Discussed the cutcome and
recormmendations of the mtermal auditinto
Foad Supplier Rebates incluting thetypes
and mechanics of Food Suppler ncome
and proposed improvements inthe control
emvironment

<> Updated onthe areas of greater potential
nskand cpporturiies for an assocated
higher level of nsk-based monitonng

= Discussed themmportance of accounting
standards, controls and appropriate trairung

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

= Updated onthe nsks and mitigating actions
to deliver theinternational strategy
including effective supply of goods

- Discussedthe challenges facng the
Intermational business including the
impact of the sociat-economicand
geopoblxalcimates

- Updated onthe internauonal growth
strategy including the franchise model the
internationat control ervronment andthe
performance of the India business modet

- Discussed tha international food strategy,
fire health & safety and improvements
In business contirmaty

GM SOURCING

- Updatedontheimprovements in
GM margin and sourcing strategy, key
drrvers to delvering the target growth
inthe plan, and key areas of nisk

- Updated onthe key changes to the M&S
ways of working to deliver the margin
nutiatives including changesin supplier
models and a better buying magel

-> Notedthe risks and impact of external
factors and miigating actions including
currency volatiity nsk

- Discussed ways of working with our GM
supply base and how this has changed
over time andkey arpas nfrhanna qong
forward including change in culture

HEDGING POLICY

- Updated on the key areas relating tc
transaction and transtation exposure, the
associated level of exposure and specific
approaches totransactionalhedging

- Discussed the impact of currency
onoverseas franchise income

-» Updated onnet asset hedgng and
approach including sk appetite and
associated lmuts

M&5 COM AND CASTLE DONINGTON
DISTRIBUTION CENTRE RESILIENCE

= Updated on Castle Donington business
continuity including contingency Options
and dewising a planfor e-commerce
fulflment

- Discussed the Castle Donington
operating model including planning
and forecasting models and resourcing
and pperating proceduras

- Updated onthe M&S com platform
resibence and noted that the resilence
solution for the M&S com ptatformhad
been embeadded, but would beregularly
re-tested

- Discussed the recovery testing and
theprocess for evaluating andtesting
management judgement for unplanned
recovery

BUSINESS CONTINUITY

- Discussed the 2014/15 performance by
keyincident areas and the benefits from
tracking incident data

= Updated onprogress madeinthe
International business including legacy
Joint venture countnes and franchuse

= Discussed the current natonal threat
level level of preparedness and key areas
for mprovement including working with
ourfranchise partners

-5 Drscussed the strategyand focus for
2015/16 with the key areas of focus being
Castle Donington and International

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES

The Audt Commuttee has assessed whether
suitable accounting polictes have been
adoprted and whether management has made
appropnate judgements and esttmates

Throughout the year the finance team has
worked closety wath Delotte to ensure that
the business s iransparent and provides
the required level of disclosure regarding
significant issues considered by the
Committee in relation tothe financial
statements as wellas howtheseissues
were addressed whilst being mindful of
matters that may be business sensitve

The main areas of Judgement that have been
considered by the Committee to ensure that
approprate ngour nas been appled are outtned
inthis sechion Allaccounnng polcies canbe
foundinnote 1 onpages 94 to 97 Where
further informationus prowdedn the notes to
the financial staterments, we have Included the
note reference '

£ach of the areas of judgement betow has
beerudenuftedas an area of focus and
thereforethe Cormmittee has alsoreceved
detailed reporting from Deloitte

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL,
BRANDS AND TANGIBLE ASSETS

The Commuttee has consideredthe
assessmentsmade nrelationto theimparment
of goothni| brands and tangible fixed assets
neludingtand and buildings and storeassets
The Commiiteereceived detalled reparts
frommanagement outlning the treatment of
mparments whereweare committedio close
astore valuation methodology, the basis for
keyassumptions (discount rate and long-term
growth rare) ardd the key dnvers of the cash
flowforecasts The Cormnmittee has chalienged
management and is satisfied that these
areapproprate The Committee hasalso
understood the sensitivity analysis used by
rmanagerment in their review of goodwilland
brand imparment Inaddimon the business
plans detaling management s expectations
of future performance of the businesses are
Boardapproved The Committeeis satisfied
that nowmparment of goodwill or brandis
requred and appropnate imparrment of
tangible assets has been recogrised

0 5S¢4 NOLas 14 and 15 on page 110-1)

INVENTORY VALUATION
AND PROVISIONING

inventory provisions Include stock intransit,
ohsolete stock, net realsable value below cost
and stockloss provisions The Commutiee

has exarmined in detal managerment papers
outbming the udgements made regarding
provissioning forinventory balances andts
satisfied that a suFficiently robust process was
followed ta confirm quantities of inventory
andthat net realisable value of inventory
exceeds its cost at year end




PRESENTATION OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee gave consideratontothe
presentation of the financial statementsand in
particular the presentation of the Non-CAAR
measures naccordance with the Croup
accounting policy This policy states that
adustments are only made to reported profit
beforetax whereincome and charges are
one-off in nature, sigmficant and distort the
Groups underlying performance Inthe
current year management has included
profit on property disposal, one-off pension
crecits intérest ncome antax repayments,
restruchunng costs Internatianal store

review farr value movement of embedded
denvabves strategic prograrmme costs and
the reduction in M3S Bank income forthe
impact of the fimancial product mis-selling
provision withinthis category The Cormrmittee
has concludiad that this presertations
2pproprate © See note 5 on p100

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Committee has reviewed the actuarnial
assumptions such as discount rate inflabon
rate expectedreturn of schemneassets and
mortality which deterrrang the penston cost
andthe UK defined benefit scherme valuation
andhas concluded that they areappropriate
The assumptions have been disclosedin the
financial staterments € Saa note 11 on piag

REVENUE RECOGNITION IN
RELATION TO REFUNDS, CIFT CARDS
AND LOYALTY SCHEMES

Revenue accruals for sales returns and
deferred income Inrelation to oyalty scheme
redemptions and gift card and credit voucher
redemphions are esumated based on histoncal
returns and redempbions The Committee

has considered the basis of these accruals,
along with aralysts of hustoncal returns and
redemption rates andhas agreed with the
Judgements reached by management

SUPPLIER INCOME {NEW DISCLOSURE)

The Committee has consideradthe
assessment made by management over the
accounting for supplier rebate arrangements
andhas been actively irvolved in reviewing
theCGroup s controlsinplacein thus area
TheCommittee has reviewed in detat
management s paper which set out the
nature and value of these arrangements
andthe imng of recognivoninthe financiat
statements, alongwith the related Internal
Audit findings reported The Committeels
satsfiedwith management s conclusion that
theres ne nsk of matenal misstatement inthe
current and previous penod Inaddmon,

the Committee decded to enhancethe
disclosures in relation to suppleroome by
publishing the acoounting pobcy and disclosing
the effects of supplier ncome on certain
balance sheet accounts € Sa8e note 17 cn 2

49
ANMUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015

FAIR, BALANCED AND UNDERSTANDARLE

Al the request of the Board the Comimittee
has considered whether in its opirvon, the
2014415 Annual Report and Funancal
Staternents is far, balanced and
understandable and whether it prowdes the
information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Groups performance business
model and strategy

As the Charrman advised in his opening
statement, the structure of the report has
been updated this year to provide greater
focws on the key strategic messages inthe
Strategic Report Therefore, £ was umportant
for the Commmttee to ensure these changes
<hd not ditute the level of transparency

in disclosure that we know s useful for
stakeholders and that the busness
coniinued to prowide a clear message that
was reflectre of the Company as a whole

Abroad outine of the proposed changes

to the Annual Report was given tothe
Committee earty in the planning process
along with a simudarly broad indication of
content The Committee received a full draft
of the report some two weaks pnorto the
meeting at which i would ba requested

o provde its fnal opinion Feedbadk was
provided by the Committee inadvance of
that meeting hwghlighting any areas where
the Commuttee bebeved Rurther clanty was
required The draft report was then amended
toncorporate this Feedback prior to beng
tabled at the Audit Committee meeting for
final comment and approval

The Commuttee was provided withialist of the
key messages included in the Annual Report
highbghting which wera positive and wivch
wera reflectrve of the challenges from the
year A supparting document was also
promded specifically addressing the followang
listed ponts highlightirg where these could
be ewdenced n the report

When forming s opruon, the Committee
reflected on the information it had recerved
and its discussions throughout the year
Inparticutar the Committee considered

1S THE REPORT FAIR?

s the whole story presented and has
any sensitive matenal been omitted that
should have been ncluded?

-3 Is the reporting onthe business segments
inthe narrative reporting consistent wath
those used for the financal reporting in
the financial statements?

- Are the key messages in the narratve
reflected mthe financial reporting?

- Are the KPts disdlosed at an approprate
level based on the financal reporting?

E

1S THE REPORT BALANCED?

- Is there a good lavel of consistency
bebweenthe narratve reporbngin the
front and the financial reportingin
the back of the report and does the
messagng reflected im each ramam
consistent when readindependentty
of each other?

- Is the Annual Report properly a docurmem
for shareholders?

- Are the staiuiory and adiusted measures
explaned ¢learly with appropriate
prominence?

= Arethe key judgements referred ton
the narraove reporting and the significant
1ssues reportedinthis Audit Committee
Report conuistent withthe disclosures
of kay estimatan uncertanties and
critical judgements set out in the
financial statemnents?

= How do these compare wath the nsks that
Delotte ptan tonclude in their report?

1S THE REPORT UNDERSTANDAELE?

-» Istherea clear and understandable
framework tothe report?

-3 Are theimportant messages lighughted
appropnately throughout the document?

- Is the laycut dear with good lnkage
throughout na manner that reflects
the whole story?

CONCLUSION

Following rts rewew, the Committee was of
the opunton that the 2015 Annual Report
and Accounts i1s representabve of the

year and presents a fawr, balanced and
understandable overview, providing the
necessary information for shareholders to
assess the Croup’s performance, busmass
model and strategy

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE
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ACCOQUNTABILITY

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

ASSURANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

The Board assumes ultimate responsibility
for the effective management of nsk across
the Groun determmiruno ite nick anmanra and
tolerance as well as ensunng that each
business area mplements approprate ntemal
controls The Croup s risk management
systems are designed to manage rather
than elirminate the nsk of falure to achieve
business objectvas, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance
against materal misstatement or loss

© Sea p23-25 of the Strategic Report for more
information on our matenal nsks

© See pd4-45 for turther informatbion on our
risk management processes

The key features of the Groups internat
control and risk management systems
that ensure the accuracy and relability of
financial reporting include clearly defined
tines of accountabiity and delegation of
authority, policies and procedures that
cover fmancial planming and reporting,
prepanng consolidated accounts, capital
expenditure, project governance and
inforrmation secunty, and the Croups
Code of Ethics and Behaviours

INTERNAL ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK

Fre Health Plan A
& Safety

The Board has delegated responsibility

for reviewing the effectiveness of the
Croupeoyctars of migenSl SO WSLIS TR
Audit Committee This covers all materal
controls ncluding financal, operational and
compliznce controls and nsk management
systems The Commitiee s supportedbya
number of sources of internal assurance
from within the Group w arder to complete
these reviews, 1in particular

1 Internal Audit & Risk The Croups
primary source of internal assurance
remains detivery of the Internat Audit
Plan, whichas structured to aign with the
Croups strategic prionties and key risks
andis developed by Internal Audit &

Risk with input from management
Recommendations from Internal Audit 8
Risk are communicated to the relevant
business area for mplementation of
appropriate corrective measures, with
results reported to the Committee

2 Business Presentations Focusng primanty
on the key risks identified in the Group Risk
Profile, management continues to prevde
updates to the Commuittee on how these
are managed nindvidual business areas
Thesearecomplemenied by ndependent
reviews conducted by Internal Audit & Risk

Business
Continurty

ANNUAL UPOATE BY RELEVANT EXECUTIVE

Information Wwhistie Blowang CSCOP Bribery Code
Secunty & Fraud (Grotery Suppler of Eths
Code of Practice)
ANNUAL PAPER

OTHER CONTROL AGENCIES

Food Safety & integrity

Ethical Audts

Tradirg Safely & Legally

AUDIT TESTING BY INTERNAL AUDIT & RISK (AS APPROPRIATE)

* Reparts directly to the CGroup Board

3 Other control agencies Responsible for
mantaiming controt over critical areas of

1 ian, e P ULt s d W LUNLIOLS OF LNese
agencies are tested by Internal Audit & Risk
dunng relevant audits An overview of these
agencies and the manner nwhich they
provideassurance to the Committeess
indicated in the table below

The Group was complant throughout

the year with the provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code relating to
internal controls and the FRT s revised
Turnbull Cundance on Internal Control

No significant Falings or weaknesses were
identified during the Committees review
inrespect of the year ended 28 March 2015
and up to the date of this Annual Report

Where the Committee dentified areas
reQUIING IMprovement, processes are in
place to ensure that the necessary action
is taken and that prograss s monitored

Further detads of these processes
can be found within our detailled
Corporate Covernance Statement
which s avaidable to view in the
Corporate Covernance section of
marksandspencer com/thecompany

Andy Halford
Audit Committee Chawrman

Exrsting direct
Lne of reporting

Formal updates

AUDIT

COMMITTEE

Updates as
requested/
appropnate
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ENCACEMENT

STAKEHOLDER
ENGAGCEMENT

ROBERT SWANNELL CHAIRMAN

Asindicated earber inihs report,in 2014 we
refreshed our core business values as part
of our driva to ensure that our business s
fil for the fulure Theer waling Ingrraton,
Innovation, Integrty and In Touch, are not

i themselves entirety new Lo MAS, rathor
we have placed Lhern at the heart of our
business as the essential behaviours
through which we asm Lo make overyday
ufe better for cusiomers employees and
nvestors alke The latter of these four
values In Touch complements aur attitude
towards engaging with cur INVestors as we
beleve Lthat the foundation af our strong
relationship with them Les inregular open
dialogue Ensuning that we are i touch
means we are always avalable to discuss
particular areas of the business and to
address any concerns they might have

This year Lhe business had aver 566 contacls
with over 316 separately dentifiable nstitutons
via one-to-one of group meclings hosted
by an executive direclor of our investor
Relauons Leam Addilionally, | hosled the
annual M&S Governance Event Details for
this year s event are prowded in the box on
the nght

AMANDA MELLOR CROUP SECRETARY

We held an inveslor event in Pans, providing
anupdate on our internalional stralcgy,
and a seminar on the development of our
o pemmenl cosonlNES Misie natun

at these avents are made by directors or
senior managers and offer nveslors moere
n-depthinformation enthe progress being
rmade towards our stralegic goals Nonow,
matenal hnancial information (s disclosed at
these events and no additional statements
are made regarding current trading
performance The sldes from ihe
presentations are avalable to view at
marksandspencer com/thecompany

To understand the views and opimons of
our private investors outside of the AGM
we engage with a number of leading client
brokers who typically represent our private
sharcholder base For an independent
view, Makunson Cowell, the capital markets
advisery firm continues to provide
guidance to our Investor Relations team
and undertake an annual audit of our
major INveslors views on the Company s
management and performance The
results are presented (o the Board

Inlast year sreport Ispoke of the
imperiance of maintasming our trusted
retauonship with our shareholders and
outlined my role as Company Socretary,
nengaging with stakehoiders ona vanety
of governance matters These rémain as
intrinsicaily iImportant as ever and over
the course of the year | have agan had
discussions with a number of investors and
representalive bodies 1am also tasked with
safeguarding the important relationshup
with our prevate invesiLors, who are some of
our most loyal customers and for whom
we have introduced a new loyally scheme
this year in partnership with our reqistrar
Equinitl © See more on page p128

We must alsorecognise that our unigue
hentage positions us to engage mare widely
beyond the traditional stakeholder group
Trus 15 well dlustrated by our acclaimed
Company Archive, which was relocated in
2012 toa purpose built facildy within the
campus of the Unversity of Leeds and
houses a collection of over 70,000 iterms
from the Company s past The faciity s
award-winning Marks In Time exhibitian
opens up our heritage to customers schools
and the wider community It has regeved
thousands of wsitors, including over 8,000

school purdls aged belween 5 and 18 who
Look part N a range of cducational $e350Ns
Demand [rom schools 1 overwhelming and
15 met by our Education Cfficer who works
with Hertage Ambassadors across our stores
to share Lhe hustory of M&S Plan A and the
envirarment_ wath ther local communily
The archives educalion programme has
recesved Lhe prestigious Sandford Avard for
excellence in heritage education and Visit
England s VAQAS award for the qualty of Ls
wisitor offer

The rolocation of the archeve land the
foundalson for 3 broader parinership uath
the Unversiy of Lecds encouraging close
coltaboration i areas ranging from design
food Lechnology and product innovation

to business management and law The
partnershyp s also a fantashic medum
through which to articulate our values, for
example, we have worked with the University
to produce a lree onune educational course
on nnovation, which was a huge success
and reached almost 15000 people For my
part,13m proud to help strengthen ths
partnorship as a member of Lhe University
Councd and to promote the importance of
ethical leadership as a wisiting professor of
the Uraversity s Ethics Centre

MAS COVERNANCE EVENT 2015

The MES Covernance Event is aregular
fixture on the catendar andis hosted by
thoChymans, Pokert Soamncl Soso
atterdees for 2015 will be Vindi Banga
(Senicr independent Dwrector and Charrrman
of our Rermuncralion Commuttec) Andy
Halford {Chairrman of our Audt Cormrikled),
Martha Lanc Fox (Non-Executive Director
and member of cur Sustainable Retailer
Adwvisory Board) and Mike Barry (our
Director of Plan A)

InviLations are sent to our 30 largest
sharehotders, representatives from the
influgenual invastor adwisaory firms and
industry governance specalisis The event
15 an opportunty Lo meet and discuss the
wigde range ol matlers considered by the
Board bolh dunng the year and gomg
forward Presentations at the rmeeung
will focus on Lhe following six areas

The Board Audit Risk
Remuneration Plan A GAAs

The presentation will be available at
marksandspencer comfthecompany

The 2015 ACM will be held at Wembley
Stadium tin London on Tuesday 7 July
at 1lam

The Nouce of Meeting sets out the
rosalubions to be proposed and the
schedule for the day A copy of the
Nolice can be downloaded at
marksandspencer com/thecompany
The meeting will be webcast ive and
arecorchng rmade avadable onour
websie after the event

The Board and M&S s senior management
tearn will be avalable Tor shareholders
Lo speak Lo before Lhe meeling

Robert Swannetland the Chars of our
Commuilees will be avalable to answer
shareholders questions dunng the
formal proceedings of the meeting

The AGM i 2014 was well attended

and ail of the proposed resglutions
were passed with the percentage of the
Comparty s share capital voted in favour
of each ranging from BB 25% [0 99 99%

© Seaq Shareholder information on p127
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REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION

OVERVIEW

Qur remuneration framework s designed
to ensure M&S 1s run with the skills and
expertise necessary to deliver our

long-term priorities

VIND] BANCA CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Onbehall of the Board, lam pleased to
present our Remuneration Repord for
201415, my first as the Charman of the
Rermunerauon Committee Following the
now reporling regulations adoptedtast year
thes report 1s split inlo two distinct seclions
Although we are not reguired Lo mnclude the
policy reporl approved by shareholders
last year, Lhe Commutiee has decided (o
continue 1o do son order Lo mantain full,
transparent reporting For easy reference
we have included a summary of the
rermnuneralion pobicy on pages 54 Lo 60
information on Lhe policy since s approval
tasl year 1s shown on pages 60 and 61

Qur remuncration irameworkis designedto
support and drive our strategy and ensure
our business s run by hugh-quality leaders
wilh the skills and expertise nocessary to
delver our long-Lerm business pricrities

The Commutlee made good progress
against the actionplanit set itsellflast year
Asplanned the Commulteereviewed and
retendered the ndependent external
adwisers 1o the Commutiee following the
appointment of Deloitte as the Company s
auditor Alter an extensive process PwC
was appomted Lo advise the Committee

REMUNERATION REVIEW AND
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

The uming of this review was also inked to
our requiremaent Lo renew our existing share
plans, as outlined last year The Committee
nas reviewed the Plan rules and framework,
along with changes n market pracuce and
fecdback from stakehetders Overall, the
Comnittee concluded that while the
struciure of the framework rermans
approprale, itis ume lorefresh some
elements withinthe Performance Share
Plann crder 1o provide an even clearer fit
withthe business s current strategic
priorities, following four years ol Inlensive
investrment and transformation The Plan
will conunue to retain the metrics of EPS
and ROCE and Ltherr assocated weightings
of 50% and 20% respectively

Thefinancal strategic scorecard element
willrelain targets for international and
MAS corn sales as before as we conlinuclo
grow Lhese areas of the business, but will
nowinclude targets for two key busingss
priorties of GM gross margin growthand
the delivery of [ree cash flow, as set oulin
Lhe Company s key performance ndicators
While these amendmenils are wathinthe
parameters of the remuneration polcy
approved by shareholders at last years
AGM, we value the views of and input lrom,
our shareholders and therefare consulted
wilhthem on the proposed amendments

This year and with PwC s support we
underlook a thorough review of the current
executive rermuneration frarmework and
Largels Lo ensure they remained aigned
with the strategic business pricrities and
wore balanced against the Company-wide
rernuneration offering The Cornmittee
was particularly keentoensure Lhat the
Incentive arrangements remamned
sufficiently motivating for management to
deliver while encouraging the behaviours
values and ethics which underpin Fit for the
Future and the way we do business at M&S

and associated targots for the 20015/16
awards Asaresull, we believe the proposed
changes andtargets arc umely and
appropriate and will ensure the awards
remain stretching but metivaung For the
semior management team

CLAWBACK

Inupdating the associated planrules the
Committee has also taken the opporturity
tontroduce clawback in lne with updated
UK corporate governance guidance
Clawback provisions will apply to any

bonus awards i 2016 and beyond and
underany of the Company s exccutive share
schemes from 2015 onwards Detatsof this
are provided onpage 60

KEY POINTS FOR THE YEAR

Salary review |
Execulive chrector salares were reviewed

and discussed by the Commitiee during |
the year The Commiltee took Into account |
1he satary review applicable for the rest of

Lhe orgarusation and directors individuat

performance when assessing the

appropriatenass of any increase The

Committee was also mindfullhal the

exgcutive directors had requested not to

recenve anincrease last year despitea 2%

average pay review for the business Further,

the annual salary review date has been

moved from January te July to fit better

with the annual performance cycle Inine

with previous years Marc Bolland has agan,

at his own request, notrecerved an increase

He has not received a salary Increéase since

hs appotntment in 2010 The highest

increase has been awarded 1o Steve Rowe

mrecogrition of his strong performance

over Lhe penod However,while thera s

sormne variationin salaryincrease across the

executive directors the resulung average

salary increase awarded to the exccutive

directors as a group s n bne with the rest

of \he orgarisation and the markel median

for the same penod snce the last review

Further details of the directors salary

increasesare shown onpage 63

Our new Chief Finance Officer, Helen Wetr
joned the Board on 1 ApriLalter our ygar
end on 28 March andwas not ebigible for
this salary review \We provide fulldetails

of her recrutment arrangement and future
pay onpage 73
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Performance-related payments

The Commiltec alsoreviewed the
performance of bolh the business and cach
director agamnst targets sel at Lhe beginmng
of the year for the Annual Bonus Scheme
Thus year, the busingss mel ks corporate
Profi Before Tax (PBT)target and a bonus
was paid across the organisation

The bonus payments outlined on page 64
reflect both the delvery against corporaie
orbusinaess area targets and the progress
made by each direclor aganst Lher specific
indwidual objectives Underlying Group
PBT 3t £661 2m was abave the minimum
Lhreshold of £650m at whichlevel payments
against inancial targets were Ltnggered

for drectors Performance against the
Company s overall Plan A targets was also
takeninto consteraton by the Committee
n determining the resulting outlurn for
eachdirector The Commutioe underiooka
ngorous review of the achievernent aganst
financial and ndmdual obyectives Lo ensure
Lhe levelof bonus payment was approprate
and fair giventhe overall business
petformance The hughest bonus payment
was mado 1o Sleve Rowe Executive
Drector Food at ¢ 60% of maximum bonus
ppportumity reflecting strong performance
nthe Food business The other bonus
payments range from 18% Lo around 30%

of maxirmum

The Performance Share Plan awards
grantedin 2012 were measured for Lhe
three-year penodup to 28 March 2015
against challenging Earring s per Share
{EPSY Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)
and Revenuetargets Asaresult of
performance agamst these targets,
execulive direciors willreceive only 4 7%
of the onginal award when it vesisi 2015

This level of vesting reflecis delivery against
ROCE targets, all other targels were not mel
Further delails are shown onpage 66

SHAREHOLDER CONSULTATION

We rermain comrmitted to reportmg openly
the details of our éxecutive dneclor pay
arrangements Following constructive
sharchaolder foedback, we are providing
further disclosure around our bonus
targets this year We will continue to
mantain a dialogue with inveslors
regarding our Jisclosures Lo ensure we
clearly commuricate our arrangements
as far as possible without il impacting
our commerciality

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Together with the rest of the Board, ltook
forward io hearng your views on our
remuneration arrangements and willbe
avaiable to answer any QUCsSLIONS you
may have at the ACM

Vindi Banga
Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee

The following independent non-executive directors were mermbers of the Committee

dunng 2014/15

MEMOER MAXIMLUM NUMBER OF X GF
st TUT I Lot S
MEMBER MEETINGS
Vind) Banga | September 011 S 5 100
(Charman since
8 July 2014)
Robert Swannell' | March 2015 1 | 100
Mriranda Curtis | February 2012 5 5 100
Jan du Plessis 8 Septamber 2009 s 2 s

S even Hollday was the Charman ol the Remunaragson Commuatee untd missetramant from the Boardon 8 Juty 2011
Although them were NG CoM maien meetings Jurng s tune Steven ersuredd $TOoth RINCOVEr BHOCESS aNd PaFLICDater

W APeeSIOr CONLU'EALIONS

Andly Hal*ord was § imembaet of ine RemuneratonCorvnities ftom 1 Ma, 201410 19 June 2004 aUenhng e Mai=wtn

passble one methng dunng hus uma

1 Robert Swann@ilattendeu ComMmstt Be Mectungs by vt aLoN prnice tohd IRporkment tathe Commuter on | March 201%

‘OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE

FINAHCIAL STATEMENTS




REMUNERATION POLICY

Thus report sels out the Company s policy
onremuneration for executive and non-
execulive direclors and was approved by
shareholders at the AGM or 8 July 2014
The polrcy remains unchanged fromthat
disclosedinrecent financial years 1 took
effect frorm 8 July 2014 and may operate
for upto three years

The Cemmitiee has thercfore builtina
degree of flexibiuty 1o ensure the practical
application of the policy over this period
Where such discrotion is reserved, the
extent 1o which it may be appliedis
described

The Company spalicy rermamnstoatiract
retain and molivate its leaders and ensure
Lhey are focused on delivenng business
prionues withina framework designed o
promote the long-lerm success of M&S,
atigned with shareholder interests

The crectors remuneration policy has
beenrepublished on pages 54 to 60with
no alterations with the exception of the
remuneration illustrations which have been
updated toaccurately reflect the directors
remuneration for 2015/16 (see page 61) In
addition further nformatonregarding the
impiementation of this policy which does
not require shareholder approval is set Qut
onpage 50
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REMUNERATION

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY (AS APPROVED ON 8 JULY 2014)
FIGURE ¥ EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY TABLE

Element Base salary
PURPOSE Toattract retam and motivate
AND UNK

righ calibre executives needad
to deliver our strategy ahd drva
business performance

TO STRATECY

Bencfits l

To prowicie market cempetiive benefas '
which drive employee engagernent and
COMMILMEnt N our bus ness

OPERATION = Payalden cash =» Directors are eligible tareceve
-> Rewawed annually by the benefits n lina with our policies
Committee consideringanumber which may include |
offactors nclud ng - Acar or cashallowance
~Salary increases awarded to - Adriver and
cther employees i the sader « Lieassurance
workforce and =» Where appropriate our Global/ t
-Comparable salaries in Domestic Mabdity Policy may
BRRTORTalE COMpPArator groups apply This may include but not be
(e g majorreralars ourper Lrnited totravel retocatnand tax
groupof FTSE 25-75 corrpanies equalisaton allowances
etc) = allemployees including directors
> Salanesreflect the experence are alse offered a number of other
responsiblity and contribution benefits such 2s employee discownt
of the ndnadual and role within and salary sacrfice schemes suchas
Lhe Croup CyclezWork
-» Salares for all errployees are -» Drectarsareable to partcipate na
typically reviewedannually on Save As You Earn Scheme andfor s
a simular basis Share Incentive Plan and any other
all-employee share schemes on the
same terms as other employees
MAXIMUM = Whist here s no set maxymnum =3 Whilsl there 15 o el maximum any
OPPORTUNITY

any incréases are normally n line
with those n the wider warkforce
= Indraclual ag)ustments n excess

atthismay be made outide of

this cycle at the discreton of the

Committee wherg appropnate

$uch circumstances cananclude

- Wherethergle scope has
changed

~ Where comparable salares
inthe external market have
changed or

- Toapply salary progression for
newly apponted directors

benetits will be provided at arate
commensurate with the marke.
=2 Maumum participationnall-
employes shar@ schernes s inline
wathlocalstatutory bymits

PERFORMANCE NIA
CONDITIONS

NYA
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Pension benefits

Toattract andretan
hghcalibre executives
through a commitment
toresponsible secure
retvement funding n tine
with our Company values

Annual Bonus Scheme including Deferred
Share Bonus Plan (DSBP)

To drive annuat profitabhity sirateQ change and inthiwdual
performance inline with our butiness plan

Torecogruse and reward indrvidual conthbutions to the way
wa o business

The deferralinto shares prowvides aignment with shareholders
long-rerm imarests following the successful delivery of
sharl-term targets

Performance Share Plan
(PSP)

Measured aganst the key financal drivers
of our business plan .o deliver susta nable
value crearion

Toencourage long term shareholding to
retandveclors andprovde graa' er slignment
withsharehalders interests

-» Drectors may participate
inthe Your M&S
Pansion Savang Plan(a
definec contibution
arrangement) orrecenve
acash supplementinlieu
of pensioncontrbubions
Lo Lhis scheme

- Drectors whoare
members of Lthe Marks
& Spencer UK Pension
Scheme (adefined
benehtarrangement
closed to new entrams}
will accruebenefits
under thatscheme

= Directors are eligible to participate in this non-contr actual
arscretionary Scherne

- Paymentsare made subject to the satisfacbion of predetermined
targels set at the stari of the year as approved by the Committee

= Natless than 50% of any bonus earnedis pard in deferred shares
under the DSBP with the remainder pavable ncash

-¥ Deferred shares vest after apenod of three years subject to
continued service bul no further performance condnions

=3 Malus provisions good leaver and change of control provisions
apply to the deferred shares (see page 58}

=> Thevalueof any dividends during the deferred perod wilbe
payable (see the explanatory notes onpage 56}

=» The Committee retains thenght to exeroise discretion both
upwards and downwards Lo ensure Lthat the leve! of award payable
s appropnate anc faw in the context of the drector s ndnachual
performance and tha Company s overallperformance Where
exatesed the rationale for s discrenon willbe fully disclosedto
shareholders inthe subsequent Annual Report

=3 Allernployeesare ebgible to partipate na bonus scheme
measured aganst Croup financial Accal target s and/or indwiduat
performance For the mest senior managers part of the borus
earned s paid n deferred sharas under the DSBP

= The Company s principalleng-lermintentive
scherme frst approved by shareholders
" 2005

= Dwectorsare eligible to parlcizate nthis
non contracival discretionary Plan

= Drecoors mayrecene anannual award
which vestsalierihree yaars sunject to
pregetermmed performance conditions

=¥ Malus provisians goed leaver and thange of
control provisions apply (see page 58)

> Thevalue o any gradends during Lhe vesting
pernod witl be payable (see the explanatery
notes onpagesSe6)

= Asigrufitant proportion of tha most senior
rranagers may be mvited 1o partcpate n
the PSP on similar lerms as the executive
arectons

= Amaxmumof 25%of
salary for executive
dwectors or 30% of salary
torthe CEQ

= Armaxrumannualpotentialof up 10 200%.0f salary

= The maxmmumvalue of shares (2. grant) which
can be made under an award to an indwidual
niraspect of 3 hnancal year s 300% of salary

MN/A

= Quanbhiable one year perfarmance measures and targets are
set by the Commuttee around financ aland individual cbyectives
Lnkedwiththe sustainable delivery of our business plan

= Financol performance mezsures cCOmMpnse ak least 50% of awards
and mayinclude but notbe imited 1o Underlying Croup Profit
Belore Tax(PAT)

- Typreally no payment for indvdual cbjectives can be earned
unlessa threshold level of PBT has beenachieved This threshold
levelis set by the Commuttee takng nto account the previows
year s performance and the busness operaang plan for the
current year

=) For thweshold performance up to 40X of maximum bonus
potenual may be payable for the achievement of individual
objectves

=» Perfarmanceis measured overa threg-year
penod agamst a balanced scorecard of
financal measures which currently nclude
Revenue Earmings Par Share (EPS)and Return
on Capital Employad (ROCE}chosanas these
measureswhich supportand drive top line
and bottom-kne performance ntme with
business strategy

= The measures are currsntly we ghted
towards EPS

-3 The hreshold level of vesting s 20% of the
MaxImurm

- For performance between thresholdand
maxmurn awards vest ona straghtdine
basis

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

FIGURE 2 POLICY TABLE

Exccutive directors may beinreceipt of
awards under share ptans ocutside of the
current remuneration framework delailed
on pages 54 Lo 5%, these may have been

awarded uponrecrukment or prior totherr
appontment as an execulive drector
while awards under these plans do not
forrmpart of anexecJutive direciar s annual

remuncration, for transparency detas of
the plans are sel oul in Lhe lable below

PURPOSE AND OPERATICN MAXIMUM PERFQORMANCE
Element UINK TO STRATECY OPPGRTUNITY CONDITIONS
Restricted To erable the =¥ Resticted awards may be granted for the = Whist thereis no -» The Committee may
Share Plan racrukment of key recruitment of dwectoes maxrum satinthe choose toapply no
(RSP) directors whoare =» Awardsvesl afteraresincled penod whuch rules the Cammittee formal performance

necassary 1o the delivery canvary by award but s typcally between considersihe scale condiuons save for
of business strategy one and three years angd sTructure contnued service
-3 Malusprowvisions good leaver and change of of awargsonan
control provisions apply (see page S8) wneliviciuat bas:s
=» The value of any dvidends duning the
resincied penod wil be payable (see
eaplana ory notes below)
Executive Measured aganst - Approved by sharehaldar s and HMRC i Awards are capped = Awards vest subyect
Share the key drivers of our 2005 the Committea may choose to award at 250% of salary 1o atleast three-
Option business planiodeliver shareoptions «odrectors fapproprae respeact of anyfinangial year predetermined
Pty sustainable value =3 Matusprovisions goodieaver and change of year of the Company performance
Scheme craation controlprovisions apply {see page 58) but i recrntment condinions
(ESOS) => Options are narmally exercised betwaen creumstances awards

To encourage long-term
snareholdung 1o retan
directors and provide
greater shgnment with
sharehclaers nterasts

the thrd and tenth anrversanas of
grant subject tathe achevemnent of
any performance conditians set by the
Committee

maypegranteduptoa
higher limut of 300% of
salary

EXPLANATORY NOTES

For these purposes, payments include the

Laura Wade-GCery has unexercised RSP
awards which were made in connection
with her appontment to compensate her
for incentive awards that were forfeited on
cessauon fromher previous employer

Steve Rowe has unexercised ESOS awards
which were made prior to his appointment
as executive director

The Committee reserves the right to

rmake any remunerapon payments
notwithstanding that they are not nline
with the policy set out above where

the terms of the payment were agreed

{1y before this policy was in force or (uyat a
ume when the relevant ndividual wasnota
director of the Company and, n the opinion
of the Committee the payment was notin
consideration of the individual becoming a
director of the Company

Committee satishying awards of variabte
rermuneration and, i relat:on toan award
over shares the terms of the payment are
agreed at the bme the awards granted

Awards granted under the PSP DSBPand
RSP can be made inthe formof condtional
share awards, forfeitable shares, options

or nghts with the same econcmic effect
Inaddition awards may be settled incash
Awards mayincor porate the nght tereceve
(i cash or shares) the value of dvidends
in¢cluding any dmdand tax credit, between
grantand vesting on the shares that vest
This amount may be calculated on
acumulative basis assuming the
renvestment of dradends into shares

Inthe event of a vanation of the Compary s
share capital or a dernerger, specisl dvidend

or other event which in the Committee s
opinton may affect the price of shares the
Committee may alter the terms of awards
and the number of shares subject tothem
The rerms of awards may be amended in
accordance with the relevant planrules
{whichinthe case of the PSPand the

ESOS were approved by shareholders

on 13 July 2005)

Any perfarmance conditions applicable to
PSP and ESOS awards may be amended by
the Committee if an event occurs which
causes it to consider that the performance
condition would not achieve its original
purpose and the amended performance
corndition s, in the opinion of the
Committee no less difficult to satisfy

but for the event in question
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RECRUITMENT POLICY

The table below sets out the Company s
policy onthe recrutment of new executive
directors Simiar considerations may also
apply where a directoris promoted within
the Board

FICURE 1 RECRUITMENT POLICY

Inaddiion, the Committee in exceptianal
crcurnstances has discretion Lo include any
other remuneration component or award
whichit feels s appropnate taking mnto
accounl the specfic circumsilances of Lhe
ingdnadual, subject to the lmit on vanable
remuneration set out below Therationate

foramy gucheampanont wonddne

appropnately disclosed For example for
internal promotional appontment s to the
Board, the Committee would honour any
pre-existing contractualremuneration
arrangements Lhose arrangerments

may be outside of the policy detarled
onpages 545055

RECRITMENT
Elemnent POLICY
Salary -% The Committee will take nto consideration a number of factors ncluding the current pay For other evecutve direclLors
extermal market forces skalls and current level of pay at the pravious erployenin catgrmining the pay onrecrutment
= For newappointments Lo the Board the Cornmittee may set the rate of pav at the lower end of Jhe rate ‘or oLher directors
with .he wtenuonof apeiying stagedncreases
Benefits 3 The Cornrruttee will of fer a package whichis set inline wathour policy toappropriately reflect the cvcurmstances of the ndividual,
Penson =3 Maxmum contnbution in ing with our policy far executve directors
bencfits
Annual 3 Elghle totab & partinthe Annual Borwus Scherme wath s maxmumbonus 6 200% of salary nhine withour pol ey for
Bonus expculiva direciors
Scheme
PSP = Anoaward of up to 300% of satoryinline with our poley for executive directors
Buy-aut - where an indwdual for Faits outstardhng vanable say opportunities or contractual nghts at aprevious erployer as aresult
awards of appamtment the Camemi, tae may olfer cormpensatory payrments or buy-out awards dependent on the indwidual
arcumstances of recruitrient deterruned on a case-by-casebass
= TheCormmittes o s pdgemeant normatly Inkends that any such awards are made on alie for-lke basis and cansiders
1ssu@s such as the plan type timehorizons and valuat on of the forfeited aw ards The CornritLee s intentonweuldbe o
ensure that 1he value awardedwill be no greater than the vatue forfeited by the indivaual
- Where appropriate the Committee may choose toapply performance conditians to any of theseawards
SERVICE CONTRACTS TERMINATION POLICY Service agreements may be terminated

1t 1s the Company s policy Lhat all executive
directors have rolung service contracts
that can be terminated by the Company
gwing 12 months notice and the employee
gving sixmonths notice The directors
serwice contracts are available for
shareholder nspectionat the Company s
regisiered of fice

The Company may terminate the contract
of any executive director summarnty in
accordance with theterms of therr service
agreement, on payment inlicu of nolice of
asum equal to salary, bencfits and pens:ion
as por thorr contractual notice entitlement
(see page 73)

The Company can make a scries of phased
payments which are paid in monthly
instalments and subjecl to rmiligation

Trrs mecharusm allows for the amount of
any phased payments Lo be reduced by
the income fromany allernative position
secured by the former director dunng the
phasedpayment s penogd

without notice and without any payments
ncertam arcumstances such asgross
misconduct The Company may requre the
indvidual Lo work dunng therr notice penod
or may choose to place the indwidual on
garden leave Sutha decasion would be
made toensure the protection of the
Company s and shareholders interests
where the individual has had access to
commerciatly sensitive information

The table overleaf sets out key provisions
for directors leaving the Company under
ther service contracts and the ncentive
planrules

COVERNANCE QUR PERFORMANCE QUR BUSINESS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




58
MARKS AND SPENCER CRQUPPLC
DIRECTORS REPORT COVERNANCE

REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

FICURE 4 KEY PROVISIONS UPON CONTRACT TERMINATION

TERMINATION

Element POLICY

Salary, benehits
and pension
benefits

Payiment wil be made up to the tesmination da e inline withrelavant coniraciudlnotice penods

Annual Bonus

Thereis nocontractual enutlement to annualbonus Should adirector beunder notice or NOLINICTve 3ervice at either the

Schemaeo relevant year end or on the date of payrment awards (iIncluding any outslanding unvesteddeferred bonus sharesymaylapse
The Cormmttee may use 1ts ciscretion as descnbed below to make a banus award which s normally prorated for time snd hased
onperformance assessedat Lhe end of the borus pencd

Long-term where adirector ceases Lo baanofficer ar erployee of the Croup before he end of the relavan. penod the treatmeant of outstanding
ncentive awards s deterrmined in accordance wth theplansules
awards Insome circumstances whara o director ieaves due toretirement inury di-heatth death or the sale of the director s ermploying
company or business out of the Croup or any other reason al Lhe discretion of the Commttee and maccorcance withthe plan rules
DSBP awards normally vest infull oncassation PSP and ESOS awards which have been held for at least 12 months normally vest
when the level of performance hasbeen assessed and agreed at the end of the three-year perfarmance pesod The Committee
may determine these awards vestupon cessation as permisted inthe plansules tn either crcumstance any relevant perfgrmance
eenchtions would stit apply Lo the PSP and ESOS awards and unless the Comrmittee getermines olherwise would be ume prorated
Repatnation Where 8 director has been recruted:o the Company from overseas the Company may pay for repatriation
Legal The Cormpany may resmburse for reasonable legal fees inthe event a drecior leaves by mutual consent It may also pay for

expenses and
outplacement

professianal out placement services n these grcumstances

The Company $ policy Lloward oxil payments
altows for a vanety of circumstances
whereby a director may leave the business
Insorne cases where deemed suitable the
Committee reserves the nght to determine
exit payments, where the director leaves

by mutual agreement Inall crcumstances
the Committee does not intend (o reward
falure and will make decisions basedonthe
ingnadual crcumstances The Committees
objective s that any such agreements are
determned onanindividual basis and are
Inthe best nterests of the Companry and
shareholders at that iime, and reflect the
chrector s contractual and other legalnights

CORPCRATE EVENTS

Inthe event of achange of control or
winding-up of the Company unvested share
awards will normaily vest onthe date that
the Board notfies participant s of such an
cvert, The number of shares which may

vest under awards in these circumstiances
will be subject 1o any relevant performance
condiions and, inthe casc of PSP awards
unless the Commnittoc delermings
oltherwise, Lime prorating

Inthe event of 3 demerger specal dividend
or olher event which inthe opiion of the
Committee affects the price of shares, the
Commuttee may allow some or allofl an
award 1o vest

MALUS PROVISIONS

executive drectors pay review inline

All share awards granted in 2013 onwards
are subject to malus provisions These
provisgns allow the Commitlee, inits
absolute discration, Lo deterrmaineg at any
timeprior Lo the vesting of an award Lo
reduce Lthe number of shares, cancelan
award or imposa furlther condilions on
anawardd in crcurnstances which the
Commitlee considers suchaction tabe
appropriate Such carcumstances may
include but not belmiled 1o,a matenal
misstalemenit of the Company s
audited results

CONSIDERATION OF WIDER
WORKFORCE PAY

with these arrangements

The Cirector of Human Resourges consults
onall executive director bonus cbjectives
and adwises the Cormrmittee onhow,andthe
extent towhich these may be cascaded
throughout the Company Inapproving

the budget for the annualbonus the
Commutiee reviews all bonus costs for

the Company against the operating plan
The Commuttee also reviews and approves
any PSP awards made to executive directors
and directors below the Board prior to

ther grant

The Committee also receives updateson a
vanety of employee engagement initiatives

The Committee rorutors and reviews the
effectiveness of Lhe seror remuneration
polcy and hasregard o ts impact and
compalibilly with remuneration pobicies
n ihe wider workforce

The Commuttee s provided throughout
the year withinformaton detailing pay n
thewder werkforce which gives add tional
context for the Commiitee to make
informed deaisions The Director of
Human Resources advises the Commitiee
of the approach which will be adopted
with the forihcomung UK pay revicw and
Lhe Commiliee thenconsiders the

which formpart of our normal employee
engagement pracuces The annual Your
Say amployee survey asks employees
about the farness and reasonableness of
employee pay and benefits Any comrments
made through this survey or through

aur network of elected employee
representatives via our Business
Involvernent Groups are takeninto account
The Head of Reward & Global Mobility
annually provides these employee
representatives with an exptanation of the
Company s reward principles and director
pay arrangements dunng the year,and s
avakable to answer questions at this ime
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

CONSIDERATION OF
SHAREHOLDER VIEWS

The Commuttee s committed toan
open and transparent dialogue with ks
shareholders onthe issue of executive
remuneration Where appropriate, the
Commuttee willacuvely engage with
shareholdoers and shareholder
rar\rasnnt‘:\ wa hnrioe cnglnng g
which may be Llaken inke account when

making any decisions aboul changes to

the directors remuneration policy

The Comrnittee seeks the views of the
largest shareholders when considering
making any signtficant changes to the
remuneration policy this may be done
annuatly or onan ad hoc basis dependent
uponthe ssue The Commiltee anmually
engagesina process of Investor
consultation whichis typicatly i watten
format bul may bethrough face-to-face
mecungs etc (t considered uselul The

Comrmiltee Charman s available to answer
queslions at Lhe Annual General Meeting
{ACM)and Lhe answers Lo spedfic questions

are posled onour website

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY (AS APPROVED ON 8

As part of our socially responsible reporting
strategy an annual meetingis held and

the consideration of views on avariety of
topics Including exetukive pay I1s taken

Into account

Ouring Lhe year, the Committoe consulied
with sharcholders regarding the minor
amoendments made to the implementation
POUCy 88 J i S o Page 7O

Poticy table The table below sets oul our policy for the operation of non-executive drrector fees and benelits al the Company

FIGURE 5§ NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY TABLE

Element

PURPOSE
AND UNKTO
STRATECY

Chairman's
fees

Toprovide afarfeeata
levelthat atiractsand
retaing arwgh-calibre
Chairman

Non-gxecutive
director basic fee

Toprovide afarr basicfeaata
rate that attracts and retans
high-catdbre non executve
drectors

Additional
fees

To provide cormpensation
e ncn-executive direczors
1aking onaddiuonal Board
responsinility

Benefits

Jofaclita.e the execution of
responanunes arnd duties
required by Lhe rale

OPERATION

= Pardinequatmonthly
instalments may be
macie incashand/or
shares

-? Feesare deterrmined
by the Ramuneration
Committee

-» Feesreflect the
ume commitment
demands and
responsibility of the
role

- Rewviewed anaually
taking ntoaccount
market practice
napRopnate
comparalar groups
&g maor retaders our
peer groupof FTSE
25-75 companues etc

> Feesare pad inequal
monthly nstalments
and may be made in
cashand/or shares

- Feesare determined
by the Charmanand
exeCutive directors

-» Thafeelevel recognises

he scope of the role
and ime commitment
required

=2 Rewewed annuaily
talung Inta account
market practice
10 apprognate
Compara.or groups
{e g maor retaders our
peergroup of FTSE 25
7% companies etc)

-3 The maximum
aggregate fees for non-
executive directors
including Lhe Charman
15 £750000pa asset
autnthe Company s
arucles of Association

=¥ Additronallees are paid
for extraresponsipblies
undertakenby non-
executive drectorsforthe
role of Board Charman a
Comrmuttee Lhadman or
the Senor Independent
Owrecior role

=¥ In addition Lo the annust
fee (ha Chawrman 5
entitledtotheuseof
B Corand driver

=} inLne withother
employeeas the
Chairrmanand non-
executrive dirgclors
recewve employee
praduct discournt
Nootherbenehts are
provided

=3 The Charman and
NON-gxBtulive
directors donot
par LiCale N persion
or performance-related
schemes
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

FICURE 6 RECRUITMENT POLICY

The table opposite sets oul Lthe recruitment
poucy lor non-oxcoutve directors

AGREEMENTS FOR SERVICE

Allnon-executive drectors, including the
Chairman have an agreement for service
foraninlial three-year term these are
avaitable for sharcholderinspection at the
Company s registored oflice The Chairrman
has anagreemeant lor service which requires
sixmonths nouce by ailher parly Non-
execulive directors service agreements
rmay be Lerminated by either party giving
three months notice tnline with the UK
Corporate Covernance Code all non-
cxecutive directors are subject ko annual
re-eleclion by sharcholdoers at our ACM

Element

RECRUITMENT
POLICY

Fees

The Comrnittee takes inta accaunt 2 number of Factors when determining
an appropriate fee level lor the Chairman The CEQ and executive directors
deterrmine approprate [ee levels for the non-exacutive directors This
consideration inchudes the ime commitment and respanstbility of the
indrvictuat rote and markel pragice nappronsate COMParstor groups

Benefits
asdetalled onpage 53

The Company may offerbenefits to the Chairman setintine wilh our policy

INFORMATION ON REMUNERATION POLICY SINCE APPROVAL i

Since the approval of the remuncration
policy at the AGM held on 8 July 2014,
anumber of changes concerning Lhe
mplementation of the approved policy
have been made These amendments do
not requre prior shareholder approval
and donot change the current spproved
remuneralion polcy

PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN/
EXECUTIVE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company s Performance Share Plan
(PSP) and Executive Share Option Scheme
(ESOS)were (st approved by sharcholders
in 2005 As such theyare due loexpirein
2015 and will be updated with replacernent
plans f approved by sharcholders al the
2015 ACM The terms of Lhe proposed new
plans are principally in lne with those of
the 2005 Plans and are fully ntine waiththe
potcy appraved by shareholders at the
2014 ACM Further detals of the proposed
replacement plans are setoutnthe
Notice of Meeting and on page 67

CLAWBACK PROVISIONS

M&Siscornmiutted to ensuringits
rermuneranion arrangements motivate
partcipants to strive for exceptional
performance whilst also protecting
shareholder value from the Company
taking unnecessary risks Inline with
updated guidance nthe UK Corporate
Covernance Code, clawback provisions will
be introduced as part of the replacerment
sharescheme rules at the 2015 ACM Upon
introduction these clawback provisions will
apply to payments made under the 2015/16
Annual Bonus Scheme and any future
bonus schemes operated by M&S Awards
rmade under any of the Company s other
executive share schemes (iIncluding the
Performance Share Plan) i 2005 and
onwards wiil similarly be subject to clawback
provisions These prowvisions enable the
Committee,nits absolute discration,to
reclam awards paid toindwiduals forupto
three years after the respeclive vesting or
paymenl date {or up lolwo yearsinthecase
of PSP awards) where specilied everits occur

The specified events include gross
musconduct orwhere a malenal
musstalement of the Company s hnancial
statements has occurred Clawback maybe
effected,among other means by requinng
the transfer of shares payment of cash, or
reduction of awards

All outsianding share awards made since
2013 wallcontinue 1o be subject to the
matus provisions which were introduced
at that ime and as reported on page 58
of thus reporl These malus provisions will
berenewed as part of the replacement
share planrules

UNVESTED AWARDS UNDER
RESTRICTED SHARE PLAN AND
EXECUTIVE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As shown on page 56, Laura Wade-Ceryand

Steve Rowe had unexercised Restricted

Share Plan and Exe cutive Share Option

Scheme awards respectrvely whenthe

remuneration policy was first mplemented
Inbothinstances these outstanding awards

have now been exercised during the year .
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INFORMATION ON REMUNERATION POLICY SINCE APPROVAL CONTINUED

APPLICATION OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY

The charts below provide an dtustration Thesa charis are itlustrative as the acluat
of what could be recened by each of the value which wilt ultimately be receved will
axgcutive directors in 2015/16 depend onbusiness performance in the

year 2015/16 {for the cash element of the
honus scheme) and in the three-year penod

FIGURE 7 REMUNERATION ILLUSTRATIONS

to 2001218 (for the P5P), as wellas share price
performance 1o the date of the vesung of
the share element of the bonus scheme
and PSP awardsin 2018

DIRECTOR

KEY

ASSUMPTIONS

Fixed remuneration

Inciudes all elements of fixed
rRMUNeranon

Basesalay (efrecuve | July 2015
asshownin thetable onpage 63)

Pensiontrenefts {using the satorv
supplement policy onpages 54
1055) and

Benehts {using the value for 2014/15
ncluded nthe sngle higure table
onpage62 ForHelen Wer the
average value of benefits of the other
exgcutive airectors has beenused
for Lhe purposa of this calculauon

Annual Bonus Seheme (ABS)
Represents the pocential value of the
annualbonus for 2015/16 Hali of any
banus would be deferred into shares
forthres yearsand the s included n
the value shown No share price growih
s assamed

PSP

PSP represents the potental value of
the PSProbe owarded n 2015 which
would ves!in 2018 subyect .o the
performance aganst the cargets
disclosed onpage 67 Mo share prce
growthis assutned

BASIS OF CALCULATIONS

Fxad

Targat

Maumum

Fixedrernunerauon only No vesting
under the Annual Boous Scheme
and PSP
Indudes the tollowyg assumptions
for the vesting of ihe incentve
components of the package
-Anrwal Bonws Scherne 50% of
maxemum and
~-PSP 20% of maximurn
includes the foliowmng assumpuons
tar che vesting of the incentive
cormporents of the package
- AnnualBonus Schame 100X
of maxmum and
~-PSP 100% of masimum
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Commutlee annually
reviews the senior remuneration framework
and considers whether the oxisting incentve
arrangemaonts roimain strongly challenging
inlhe context of the business strategy
current external guidelines and arange of
internal factors including the remuneration
policy and pay arrangements throughout
therest of the orgarusation The table below

the 201415 ncentive schemes and how
these algnwiththe key performance
indicalors detaled on pages 14-15 As
shown there s a slrong lnkage betweoen
the key performance indicators which
areintegrated n the directors incentive
schemes Thus ensures that direclors are
cleartyaligned and motvated to delwer
the stirategy

Looking ahead for 2015/16 the executive
directors incentive arrangements will
include objectives against free cash flow,
CM UK LFL sales CM gross margin, MBS com
salos growth and International sales and
operating profit Furiher details are sel oul
onpages 65 and 67

shows the performance measures usedin

FICURE 8 STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT OF PAY ) See KP1s o p14-15

FINANCIAL OBJECTIVES K INCENTIVE SCHEME
Crow group revenue Croup revenue PSP
Increase earrungs & returns underlying Croup PET Annual Bonus Scheme
ROCE PSP
EPS PSP
NON-FINANGIAL GBUECTIVES KPI INCENTIVE SCHEME
Improving product sustainability Proeducts withPlan A qualies Annual Bonus Scheme
STRATECIC OBJECTIVES P INCENTIVE SCHEME
Driving growth Infernational and MAS comrevenue PSP
Improve profitability Internabonaloperating profit and CM/Food gross margin Annual Borws Scheme
FICURE 9 TOTAL SINGLE FICURE REMUNERATION (audited)
o Salary Benelas' o Total Tum“P.s; bl:-nm Total
- onus’ e net(
See Policy table on p54-55 vear 000 000 too0 £000 €000 Lovo
M Bolland 201415 a75 19 596 193 293 2076
rc Bollan
@ 201314 975 41 4] 259 293 1,568
Patrick B t-Ch ne' 2014115 525 36 222 59 133 973
atrick Bousquet-Lhavan 201314 380 29 ) - g5 504
Sohn D 2014115 600 25 217 1 IS0 1,103
ehn Dixon 01314 600 a5 o 143 150 939
s ” 201415 525 42 653 60 131 1,411
teve Rowe 201314 525 53 o 77 K 786
Alan S e 201415 162 & 4] 0 40 208
an Stewar 201314 579 3a 0 146 145 904
Lo d 2014/15 552 21 219 107 138 1,037
ura Wade-Gery 701314 552 % 0 67 138 883

3 The amounts shown for 2003714 refleet that Patrck Bousquet Chavinre oned the Board on | G uly 2013

7 Theamounts showntor 2014415 reflect that Alan Stewast resigned from the Board 61 10 July 7014

1 Benefusinclude the value of car allowance anaintrind i value of SAYE  add bontotne ta«abie value of car oriver and Lfe 3ssurance as apolcable to gach dued (0rana a3 descnbed
on oaga 63

A4 Holt of ary award willbe deferrod nto Company sharas(or 3 penod ol three vears Further detans of the 2014/15 Annudl Bonus SCheme are thown onRages 64 and 45

& The value of awards vestingin 201 Via has beenresiatedio reflect ine actudl value of drvidand equivalents and sharg price at Lhe ume of vesung Thavalue of awacch vesung n 2014715
Iy €l AU TRE G 1 ¢ & TR 100 AP EE M 2 MRuary JOUs = 2/ Mai 0 315 2g thin e 28 00108 ¥1 > untd after he end of the fimanculvear Ths valua also
InCiudes the antiipated vatue of dangend egurvalents whegh wifl Be payable n ity 2015 (and Jarary 2016 fos Patnck Bousquel Cravanne) These estmated figures will be resiatedn
neil yearsreport

6 Punsion benafit s COMPRSE [Ma ¥alLe of Cash DIewUetin beu G° RAIINRALN 1 the Your M35 Pensan Saving Pa
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION CONTINUED

The lollowing sections set out addiional disclosure regarding each of the components set out in the previous single figure table

SALARY {audited)

Whenreviewing salary levels the Committee
takes Into account a number of internat

and external factors, incluging Company
performance dunng the year, external
market data and the salary review principles
applied to the rest of the crganisation

to ensure a consistent approach

Nomncreases were awarded dunng the year
Tne Committee also moved Lhe annuat pay
reviewdate from January Lo July Lo better
augn pay to year end performance and
hencethese changes are being madeafter
18 moanths

with effoct from 1 July 2015, the foltowing
salary ncreases will be made to the executive
directors, excent for Mare Bolland

Marg Bolland has at his own reguest

not receiveda salary Increase since hus
appontmentin 2010 He has again proposed
not Lo reccive any increase in Juty 2015

The agreedincreases lake account of the
significant performance of Steve Rowe In
ensunng the continued success of the Food

BENEFITS {(audited)

busmess and Patrick Bousguet Chavannes
excellent progresswith markeung and
embedding the new global M&S brand
Neither director has receved a salaiy
increase since theirr respective
appointments to the Boaid these mcreases
refllect bolh this fact inadditionto ther
sigrificant contributions Lo the ncreased
performance of M&S

The average increase made to the executive
directors s 3 0% (excluding Helen Wetr)
which s rbing with the average increase
awarded to the wader UK workforce over

the same 18-month period

The table belowdetails the executive
directors salanes as at 28 March 2015 and
thase whichwil take effect frarm 1 July 2015

FIGURE 10 EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' SALARIES

Currant Anrwal salary
anmal asof Change
slary 15t huly 2015 ws3lry
£000 E N edse
Mare Bolland g75 975 0
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne 525 546 4
John Dixon 600 612 2
Steve Rowe 525 557 &
Laura Wade-Gery 552 569 3
Helen Weir' 5390 550 -

1 HalenWew 3c urrent anaualsal ry s from her date of 2ppentment on | Apcl 015

PENSION BENEFITS (audited)

Each executive director receves acaror
cash allowance and s offered the benefit
of a dnver The Company also provides
each director withlfe assurance Executwe
directors receve employee product
discount and are eligible to participate

" salary sacnfice schemes suchas
Cycle2workinline with all other emgployees

with the exception of the Chef Executive
Officer (CEO) executive directors receive

a 25% salary supplementin ey of
membership of the Your M&S Pension
Saving Plan The CEC receives a supplement
of 0% of salary

FIGURE 11 PENSION BENEFITS

John Dixonand Steve Rowe are deferred
members of the Marks & Spencer UK
Pension Scheme Details of the pension
accruedby themduring the year ended
28 March 2015 are shown below

Aceruss Increase Transler

pension Add tanat 1 ACCTaRe? value of

entitlernent value Increase valug ol

Noemal osat onegrly i aCe rued (ot of accrued

retirement year erd’ retirament value «"ation} DRIHON

age 1000 £000 £000 000 [{ee]

John Bixon 60 138 o 1 o] 3204
Steve Rowe 60 147 0 2 0 Ja42

1 Theatcr wed penpcn gntitiernant 1s the deferred penwonamoun that the director sould recen e at age o0if toey Loft
the Camparv on /8 March 2015 The Listing RutPs require this 1o be chsclo, eo exdlugng mftation
All ransfer values hing bedn £alt kst ed O TNE B33 Of ALLLANALMACE i ACCOgance wnth tho current Transter Value
Regulations The transter values of theactruedten itlermen, represen. thevalue of he dssets tnat *he pensionschame
woldd transter t0 ano. her pension orowder on tranisfernng the scheme sLab bty inrespect of the drector s permon
senetrs Thay donotrepresent Sums payable ta tne director and therefore s annot beacded meanmGhulty to annuel

remuNRraLion
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS REMUNERATION CONTINUED

ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME

ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME FOR 2014/15 (audited)

For 2014715 drectors hadthe opportunity
to earn an award of up te 200% of salary with
half of any award being payable ndeferred
shares Performance measures used 1o
determine the entitiement Lo any payment
were sel against challenging profilability
Largets and indmvidual objectives
ProfiLabiliLy targets formed 60% of any
bonus award with Lhe remaiming 40%
payable for the achievernent of streiching
measures relevant Lo each direcior s
indiwidual business accountabiiiies For
Lhosa execulive dircctors with busingss

uniL responsibibty proflitabibly measures
werg equally splt between Croup PBT

and profit measures for thew business

urul As aresull of hus addilional
international responsiblities from July
2014, Patnck Bousquet-Chavannes
corparale elermment was calibrated to nctude
Internauional operating prof ik from Lhis time
For Marc Bolland, profitability was wholly
rmeasured aganst Group achiovernent Each
cdirector also had three ndwidual abjecuives
Logether accounung for 40% of the total
bonus These objectives were sel aganst
Lhoir key areas of focus and accountability
which reflect the primary drivers of short
andmedium-termstrategic successof the
Company © See Figure 12

Plan A {our environmental and ethucal plan)
15 anintegral drniver of the way we de
business, success against Plan A targets
underpinned the entire 2014/15 bonus

scheme The Committee assessed
performance for @ach exegutive cirector
agarnst all corporate and indmdual
measures The Commutice was alse satished
Lhat each grrector continuedto ensure that
Plan Aremained a major locus of Lhe ways
of working at M&S and Lhat the subsequent
performance supporiedihis

° SesPlan A Repart for more detail

MB8.Sis commitied Lo Lransparent
remuneration reporling wthin the contest
of operating ina lughly competiuve
market As disctosed inihe 2013/i4 Report
and followning leedhack from shareholders
afterthe publicauen of last year s report
the Commitiee has reviewed 1s disclosure
regarding annual bonus Ltargels The
Comrutlee will continue to assess the
extent to which specific Largels are
commercally sensitive, deterrmirng to
disclose wherever possible

Figure 13 belowitlustrates each director s
achievermnent against corporate profitabiity
and individual Largets {or the 201415
Scheme As describedinlast yearsreport
inorder to ensure the affordability of the
Scheme no bonus payment may be made
without fwrst acheving a threshold level of
PBT Underlying PBT outturn for the linancial
year was £661 2m which was above the
target set LoLrigger payments undcler both
elements of the Schermne As aresull of
performance, direclors payments were
between 18% and 62% of maximumbonus
opportunity Business unit profilabiidy
Largels not bong disclesed elsewhere
inthe Annual Report, are decmed too
commercially sensitive to disclose An
ndication of achwevement against the
respective targetsis showninsteadin
Figure 13 below

FIGURE 12 EXAMPLES OF INDIVIDUAL OBJECTIVES 2014/15

Marc Bolland Organisational M&S com
developrnent performance
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne Mew platform Internalional Lingong
publshing house & Beauly siores
John Dixon GM sales CM gross margin
Steve Rowe Food sales Food proposition
development
Laura Wade-Cery MBScom rmarkel share New distribution
centre service delivery

FICURE 13 ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME 2014/15

PROFITABILITY TARCETS INDIVIDUAL OBJECTIVES TOTAL PAYMENT
GROUF PET BUSINESS UNIT PROFIT
Target & performance Aghrvement Performance Achurvement Partormance  Achisvement
% x x % k] b »
DIRECTOR Min Max Actual bonus  salary borus  salery bonus  salery wlary  E000
Marc Bolland E650rm £732m £661m 124% 248% - - - e 18 2% 363% 61 1%
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne  £650m £132m E66lm  77% 154% ° 0o0% 00% e 134% 269X 4131% 222
John Dixon £650m E£732m £66Im 62K 124X e 19% 38% a 100% 200% 361X 217
Steve Rowe £650m E732rn £66Im 62X 124% ° 300% 600% o 260% 520% 1244% 653
Laura Wade-Gery £650rm £732m E66lm 62X 124% o 00% 0O0% e 136% 273% 9TH 219
L J
Plan A underpin dmmd cbjertinves
Portormance ssessment key (G Below Threshold ) Threshald > Target o*rargeh.‘itretch @) surerchor above
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION CONTINUED

ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME FOR 2015/16

The Annual Bonus Scheme has been
structured to dnve profitatality and
ndividual performance with performance
being measured aganst Underlying Croup
Profit Before Tax (PET), business area profit
and indvidual objectives Dunng the year
the Remuneration Lommutted unaertook
athorough review of the bonus scheme

It concluded that a similar approach would
continue Lo remain appropriate with anly
minor changes Lo the 201516 Scheme
being required to ensure that Lthe Scheme
conlmugs todrive behaviours and
performance neededinline with the
priorties for the future success of

the busingss

Maximum bonus opportunily will remain
unchanged at 200% of salary Up Lo 60% of
an awardis payable for achiowing stretching
onc-year corporate financial Largets and
upto 40% of an award s measured aganst
ndividual performance

The achrevernent of profitability Largets
remains essental to M8S s success and so
30% of any bonus award will be dependent
uponachievernant of Croup PBT targets
The rermaining 30% of the corporate
clement of the Scheme will be sel against
free cashflow targets for the CEQ and CFO
and aganst business unit profiability
Largets for the remaining executive
direclors Changes made Lothe Scheme

for 2015/16 prowvide for even greater
algnement between the remuneratien
framework and Lthe wider strategic pnonties
of M&S The inctusion of free cash flow for
\he CEC and CFQ recogrises the increased
imporiance of cash generationn the
DUSINGSS POSL LNC PONQU O Negvy
transformative capitalinvestment

Individual performance will continue tobe
measured ndependently of any linancial
targets Incdnvidual obiectives will be based
on three stralegic prioriuies specific to each
director s business area These measwesare
set against guantdable targets which Lhe
Commutiee deems to besmportantinthe
delvery of shart and medium-lerm goals
which wall also provide a robust foundaton
for Lhe long-Lerm sustainable success of
the business 'nsetting the ngdnadual
chyectives lor the forthcoming year, the
Commutice has been mmdful of ensunng
anoverarching balance with financial
Largets as wellas custormer and employge-
focused metrics

Noindwidual objecive element of the
bonus can be garned unless a threshold
levelof PBT has been achieved subject to
the Committee s overallassessment of the
Company s performance during the penod
This mamlains Lheimportant prinaiple

that below a defined level of financial
performance, no bonus will be earned

FICURE 14 ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME TARGETS 2015/16

The table below shows further details of
the struc ture of this Scheme and prowdes
examples of the sndividual objectives which
each director willbe measured against

Aswithtast year s Scheme the Committee
will sudaeoverall performance aaanst

our ecological, cthveal and benavioural
achieverments 1o ensure consisiency with
MBS s values Suctess Lowards Plan A
targetls andLheME&S valves which all
employees, ncluding execulve directors,
are required to uphold willunderpin Lhe
entre Scheme Achievernent aganst these
will be assessedby the Committee at the
end of the linancial year The Committee
In its absolute discretion may use s
Judgement to adjust overall payments
accordingly € See Figure 14

DEFERRED SHARE BONUS PLAN
{audited)

Currently 50% of any bonus awards
compulsorily deferred into nit-cost options/
conditional shares These deferred awards
vest after three years subject to continued
employment aswell as malus and for
awards made from 201 5/16 onwards
clawback provisions As no bonus was
payablelast year nodeferred shares were
swarded during 2014/15

PROFITABILITY TARCETS

INDIVIDUAL OBJECTIVES

FREE BUSINESS

CROUP CASH UNIT
PET  FLOW  PROFIT
[ % ) %

DIRECTOR bonus Dot bonuy bonus  Examples &f measures
Marc Bolland 0% 0% - 40%  CMgross margn People
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne 0% - 30% 40% Customer engagement international |.FL sales

strategy
John Dixon 30% - 0% 40% CMUKLFLsales CM4programme
Steve Rowe 0% - 30% 40% FoodUKsales Quality andinnovaton

of Food proposition

Laura Wade-Cery 30% - 30% 40%  New distribution centre Customer journey

stabilty
Helen Weir 30% 30% - 40%  Operating costs Ervd-to-end supply chan
| Predvidend and post recurng Plan A and cuttursl valves underpin
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QUR PERFORMANCE
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION CONTINUED

PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN

Tne Performance Share Plan {(PSP) is the
primary long-term incentive for excoutive
directors and senior managers

The Committee belicves that tong-Llerm
sharc awards help retain and reward
exccutives for Lhe delivery of long-term
business goals

Followingtheremunerationrevicw
undertakenduringtheyear theCommittee
determinedinal Lhe current Plansupports
thedelveryofthelong-lermbusiness
strategy Minoramendmentsio
theperformance measurcsandiargets
howeverwerefeli necessarylobetleralign
withthedeliveryofl the operating ptan

FIGURE 15 PSP AWARDS MADE IN 2014/15

These amendments will apply for awards
madein 2015/16

As lhecurrent Plan was approved by
sharcholders tenyearsago,approval fora
replacerment Plan is being sought at Lthe 2015
AGM The key rules of Lthe Planare set outin
{he scparate Notice of MeeLing with further
detals provided onpage 67 of Lthisreporl
Proposed changes under Lthe replacermenit
PSP areinune withthe remuneralion poticy
approved by shareholders on 8 July 2014
withthe addition of clawback prowvistons as
outlined onpage 60, the ntroduction of
whichdoes not require achange Lo Lhe
remuneration policy

PSP AWARDS MADE IN 2014/15 (audrted)

I June 2014, execulive directors werg
awarded nil-cost options/conditional shares
of 250% of salary These awards vest subjecl
to performance measured aganst EPS,
ROCE and Revenue, cach measured
independently Performance s measured
over the three-year peniod to the end of the
201617 financiat year To the extent to which
performance is met, awards will vest on

23 June 2017 Furtherdetails of PSP awards
made in 2014/15 are detailed below

© see Figure1s

Basis of awarp

Face valug of sward'
FOOC Ena of perfarmance pencd?

Mare Boltand 250% of salary 2437 004N ?
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne 250% of salary 1312 01/04/2017
Jahn Dixon 250% of salary 1500 010472017
Steve Rowe 2%50% of salary 1,312 01/04/2017
Laura Wade-Cery 250% of salary 1,380 01/04/2C17

| Thetlace value of awards s ralculiiec as the number &f ril tost ootonscondianal shares awarded muitiphied by the average mid market share pnce ontha fve dealng days pnortothe
dato of grant Sor {hs year the hare pice was edlt ulated ps DRNG 4 37 beng theavrrage share price between 16.June 2014 and 20 June 2014 Further o etaks of these dwirds arg shawn

WitRe able onpages 70and 7)

2 For tusshold pertormance 20% of Lhe shares awarded will vest

FIGURE 16 PSP AWARDS VESTING IN 2014/15 {audited)

For directors inrecepl of PSP awards
grantedin 2012 the awards will vest on
1 June 2015 (5 Decernber 2015 for
Patrick Bousquetl-Chavanne) based on

three-year performance ever the penod
to 28 March 2015 Performance has been
assessed and it has been determineg
that 4 7% of the award will vest

Details of performance against the specilic
largets set are sotoutin Lhe table below

Per‘ormance target
Cumutative Revenwe (£ 2014/15)

EPS ROCE (%) UK!  Multechanmalt  International®
0% of award 20% or owargd 10% ot award 10% of puard HO% ot Jwdrd Total vestung®

Threshald performance targets' Nop 150% £89500m £800m £1300m

Maximum performance targets' 130p 18 5% £9600m £1,000m £1700m

Actual performance achioved 85 7p 15 2% £8470m £776m £1065m
Percentage of maximum achieved 00% 47% COo% 00% 00% 47%

Exrtuging Mult crpgnnel
Net of VAT/gross of returns.
Ereluaing Multi-channelhncluding Republic of Irelana

L. RN

Co~ads ol the number of shares Jwardedto cachdirectonn 2012 aeshawninthe 1 ble on page

Tha estimatedvalue of thase awards INCluding the gividend equvalents are set Outinthe 5ngle igure table onpage 62

20% of b bward vas's for threshola porformance with Tull vesing [ar sehnang of #xCe 20NQ MaKNUM pe! formancd Vestng s a straght Iing between Lhese twe ponts
Actual performanee acheved Nas bedn re stated 1O Pre-tas 19 values 1o allow dlike for-like médiurdmient 80anst targers

320303 71 Az destnbed aoove 4 J% of Lheso awar ds wll vist
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION CONTINUED

PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN CONTINUED

PSP AWARDS TO BE MADE IN 2015/16

Subject ta shareholder approval ol the
reptacement Plan at the forthcorming ACM,
awards of nil-cast aptions/conditianal
shares willbe made »n July 2015

As described earlier following 2 therough
review of the directors remunerauon
arrangements during the year the
Cammuttee concluded that no significant
changes 10 the current Plan were required
Awards will continue tebe assessed agamst
anumber of measures and the maximum
value of awards at the ime of grant will
reman at 300% of salary

The Committee witl continue to reference
awards al 250% of salary and 15 intended
that exccutive directors witlrecerve awards
tn 2016/16 of 250% ol salary

Performance rmeasures have historically
been set as those whichappropriately
reflect the key drvers of the strategic plan
whuch takes nto account shareholder value
as wellas bottom-bne and top Line growth

During its review, the Commuttee
determined that EPSand ROCE
perforrmance measures contnue to
appropriatety reflect the key drivers of
shareholder value for M&S and as suchno
changes to the measwres and weightings
have been proposed 70% of awards made
in 2015/16 willcontinue to be measured
aganst stretching EPS and ROCE targets

The rermaing 30% of awards will be sel
against a financal strategic scorecardof
measures designed 1o drive growth inkey
areas For the businass Measurement of
performance agamst International and
MES comsales will be retained as before

35 MaS conlinues Lo grow thesc areas of the
business This [ogus will continue Lo support
the delivery ol the strategy tobe alecaching
international muiu-channel retaler Sales
growthtargets for awards to be made in
2015/16 have beencalbratedtobe as
challengting as the equrvalent revenue
targots for 2014/15

Duning thereview process the Committee
deterrmined that theinclusionof two
additional, equally weighted performance
measures would further enhance the
algnmenrt belween the PSPand the
business s curront sLrategic prionties As
such Lhree-year cumulative free cashflow
and UK GM gross margintargels are being
introducedinthe 2015/16 Plan Thesa
measures reflect the ncreased mportance
of cash generation and the desire loreturn
cash Lo shareholders maddition tothe
absoluie importance of long-term
improvemnents in GM for the sustainable
success of tha Company The four Largets
of Inlernationaland M&Scom sales UK GM
gross marginand Lhree-year cumulative
free cash flow are congistent with Lthe top
four strategic prionties communicated Lo
shareholders for the coming year

FICURE 17 PERFORMANCE TARGETS 2015/16

Aswith allothor PSP measures targets for
cash flow and gross margin have been set
such that they are strelching yet achievable
for the delveryof consistent ambitious
long-termperformance

Measures and Largels for the 201516 PSP
swardg arediscloeod intha tahla halowe At
this time Largets relauing Lo UK GM gross
margin are deemed by Lhe Board lobe
{oo commercially sensitive Lo disclose
Alltargets including GM gross rmargin wiil
be fully retrospocuvely disclosedinthe
repor! retaung le theend of the relevant
three-year performance period

Avthe endof the performance perod,
Committee judgement will be apphedin
determirng overall vesting onthefour
measures COMpPrisng the strategic
finaneial scorecard clement, of Lhe PSP
The Commutlee Nnusing s udgement,
will takeintg account the extert of
outperformance or underperformance
of the Largets, ther relative iImportancen
the crcumstances, and any cther matters
I sees fit

Financal ALNRQLC SLOrRCm

Anralised Internabonal MAS com
EP5 growth ROCE saley growth sales growtn' Uk GM Cumutaive
X vesing' [1}] (%) ) w3 /088 Marg A frea cash fow!
X of pward SO% of pwara 20% of award 75% of award 7 5% of swdrd 15% at awwrd T5% of award
Threshold performance 20% 50% 150% 50% 1 0% - £1,350m
Maximum performance §00% 120% 16 5% 150% 180% - £1,650m

1 Vestsagsad straght bnebetween threshold and masimum perfarmance

1 Esthucing MAS comyincliding Regubbe of keland
3 Netof VAT andpost store returns
4 Pregndends angseturns
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FIGURE 18 PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS FOR OQUTSTANDING PSP AWARDS {audited)

The details of cutstanding PSP awards are
sCi oul inthetable onpages 70and 71

These awards vost subject tothe extent that

Lha following three-year perfor mance

condilions are met
Performance target
Annualised EPS Reverwa ()

* vestng' prowth (%) ROCE %) Un? Multi-channs{? Internationgi*

% ol aw drd SO% of award 20% of awdrd 10% of dward 10% of pwara 10% of award
2013/14 Award
Thresheold performance 20% 50% 150% £8,900m E900m E1400m
Maximum performance 100% 120% 18 5% £3,600m £1,100m E1800m
201415 Award
Threshold performance 20% 50% 150% £8,900m £1100m £1400m
Maximurn performance 100% 120% 16 5% £9600mM £1,300m £1800m

Encluding Mulls channel
Netaf VAT/r0s5 of returns
Exrluding Multi cranncfincluoing Republic of rala xd

wa o —

SHARESAVE (Save As You Earn) (audited)

Vestng 5 a siraight Lne betwran threihold pnd maximyTs pertarmance

Moasured at the end of tne 2015/16for 2013/143warorand at tng endot 2016/17 for 2014715 award

As outlined inthe remuneration policy on
pages 5410 55 exccutive directors may
parucipate in ShareSave the Company's
Sawve As You Earn scheme, onthe same

basis as all other elgible employces

Marc Bolland Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne
John Dixon and Steve Rowe el participate
noxisling schemes saving the maximum

FIGURE 19 PIRECTORS SHAREHOLDINGS (audited)

of £250 per rmonth Further details of
tha Scheme are set oul innote 13 tothe
financial statements on pages 1081c 109

The table betow sets out the totalnumber of
shares held at 28 March 2015 or date of

There have been no changes inthe current
directors interestsin shares or options

19May 2015 Nodirector had an interestin
any of the Companys subsidiaries at the

retrement by each executive director granted by the Company andits subsidianes statutory end of the year
serving on the Board during the year between the end of the financial yearand
Unvosted
With porforenance Without
congibons perfermanta condiuons
Shares owned Performance Celered Share Res*ricted Vestedbuat
O NGt SharyPlan Bonus Plan Shore Plan unexerassd’
Marc Bolland 611436 1,885 329 196,790 Q )
Patrnick Bousquet-Chavanne 2000 747 459 26,195 174 258 Q
Johr Dixon 328,196 1118672 124,704 o4 0
Steve Rowe 165,447 833598 83,210 0 4
Alan Slowart! 51,632 79461 o] 0 39789
Laura Wade-Cery 172955 1047603 91126 4] o

I Shaicholangat 10uly 2014 the datq Alan Stewart resigoed from the Board Ploase reter tofoounate 3 an page 71 for tuether information on Alan Stewdrt 3 sharencldings

2 Inclucies shares held by connected persans
1 Compiisesalunexarcised awards unoer these Plans
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION CONTINUED

FIGURE 20 SHAREHOLDING REQUIREMENTS (audited)

Allexccutive directors are required tehotd The charl below shows the extent to
shares equivalent in value toa minimum which each director has met their target
percentageof tharr salary within afive-year shareholding as at 28 March 2015
penod from ther date of appomtment

level of shareholding requirements s
sulficiently robust providing an appropriate
lovel of mvestment nM&5 for each direclor
The Commultee wil Conlinue Lo keep

f
For the purposes of the requirements, the this vesuE under fewiow and willamend

Shareholding targets were increased last
year 1o 250% of salary for the CEQ and 150%
of satary for other executive drectors

o brie s Al mam Al 1N wfsalne sl
s g WS TOT DT LU ST IO, 250

apply Lo dre¢tors below Board level

SHARE CAPITAL & DILUTION

net number of unvested shares awards

not subject Lo performance condilions s
inciuded and s reflected in Lhe chart below
The Committee is satisfied Lhat the current

accordingly if necessary

FIGURE 21 ALL SHARE PLANS

Dilution of share capital by employce
share plans Awards granted under the
Company s Save As You Earn scheme and
the Exccutive Share Option scherne are met
by Lhe1ssue of new shares when the options
are excrcised

Allether share plans are met by market
purchase shares The Company rmonilors
the number of shares issued under Lthese
schemas and Lher impact on diution bmits
The Company s usage of shares cornpared
1o the dilution bmits set by The lnvestrnent
Assocation nrespect of all share plans (10%
inany rollng ten-year period) and execulive
share plans (5% tn any rolling ten-year
period)as al 28 March 2015 was as follows

FICURE 22 EXECUTIVE SHARE PLANS
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FIGURE 23 EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY'S SHARE SCHEMES (audited)

Maurnum M Snare Share
recevsable at reenanie at pnce  prcaon
10 March 2014 Awdrden  Exercrsea Lapsed ZBMXEN0I5  Cpton  ondate  ddurof
BT T - R L A Bk T v
Marc Bolland
Performance Share Plan' 2507 687200 - 52,227 634973 - Q0 3547 4599 -
18/06/12 749789 - - - 749769 Q0 3251 - 18/06/15 - 17/0622
24/06/13 557780 - - - 557780 00 4370 - 24{08/16 - 23/06/22
23/06/14 - §57780 - - 557780 00 4370 - 23/06/17 = 22/06/24
Delerred Share Bonus Plan 09/06/11 162,263 - 162263 - - 00 3784 4699 -
18/06/12 101968 - - - 101968 00 3251 - 18/06/15 - 17/06/22
24/06/13 94822 - - - 94,822 00D 4370 - 24/06/16 - 23/06/23
SAYE 25/1110 2821 - 282 - - 3190 3976 4395 -
203 2222 - - - 2,222 4050 5056 - OOM17 -30/06/77
Total 2,358,845 557,780 217,311 634,973 2,064,341
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne?
Performance Share Plan' 051212 230735 - - - 230735 3894 - 05/12/15
24/06/13 216,421 - - - 216421 4370 - 24/06/16
23/06/14 - 300343 - - 300343 - 4370 - 24/06/17
Deferred Share Bonus Plan 24/06/13 26195 - - - 26185 4370 - 24/06/16
Restricted Share Plan 13/09012 174 258 - - - 174258 3680 - 13/0915
SAYE 211113 2222 - - - 2222 4050 5056 - QVOIN7 - 30406117
Total 649,831 300,343 - - 95074
John Dixon
Perlormance Share Plan' 25/07/11 380603 - 28925 351678 -~ 00 3547 4385 -
18/06/12 432174 - - - 432174 00 3251 - 1B8/CB/15 - 17/06/22
24/06/13 343249 - - - 343249 00 4370 - 24/06/16 - 23/06/23
23/06/14 - 343249 - - 343249 00 4370 - 23/06/17 - 22/06/24
Delerred Share Bonus Plan 09/06/11 98039 - 98,039 - - 00 3784 4385 -
18/06/12 62,233 - - - 62233 00 3351 - 18/08/15 - 17108422
24/06/13 62471 - - - 62 471 00 4370 - 24/06/16 - 23/06/23
SAYE 21/113 2222 - - - 2,222 4050 5056 - OOINT - 30/06/17
Total 1,380,991 343,249 126,964 J51,678 1,245,598
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Manirmuen Maumuam Share Sharo
ur}emh;.ﬂ:: Awgroed  £xercned Lapsed 2;?4::1:) 'u; Opwon eﬂ%’;: p;:.!uon?
Date {or date of duning aunng gunng for dote of prce of rant vRride £rorcme perody
ol grant  appontment] e yeat the yaar The yrar regrement) 2) (3] [f12) vesting Gate
Steve Rowe
Performance Share Plan 25/07/1i 205,243 - 15588 189645 - 00 23547 4244 -
18/06/12 232912 - - - 23292 00 3251 - 1B/06/15 - 17/Q6/22
2af0GH3 300,343 - - - 300,343 ISR ¥ i - 24fUbf16 - Z3/06/23
23/0&/14 - 300,343 - ~ 300343 00 4370 ~ 23/06117 - 22/06/24
Deferred Share Bonus Plan 09/06/11 4] ga4 - 41844 - - 00 3784 4532 -
18/06/12 32753 - - - 32753 00 3251 - 1B/06/15 - 17/06/22
24/06/13 50 457 - - - 50,457 00 4370 = 24/06/16 - 23/06/23
Expcutive Share Option Scheme 20/07/04 31,699 - 31699 - - 3470 347D 4532 -
SAYE 2iynna 2222 - - - 2,222 4050 5056 = OOINT - 30/06/17
Tatal 897,473} 300,343 89,141 189,645 919,030
Alan Stewart?
Performance Share Plan' 25f071) 387651 - - 358,90 29 461 oG 3547 - 25/0714 - 22/09/14
18/06/12 436019 - - 436019 - 00 3251 - -
240613 331235 - - 331,235 - oG 4370 - -
23K06/14 - 13312315 - 3235 - - 4370 - -
Deferred Share Bonus Plan 09/06/11 319739 - - - 39789 o0 3784 - 09/06/14 - 22/09/14
18/06/12 53,194 - - 53194 - 00 3251 - -
24/06/12 56310 - - 56,310 - 0o 4370 - -
SAYE 24/1Mm 3488 - - 31488 - 2580 3224 - -
Total 1,307,686 331,235 - 1,569,671 69,250
Laura Wade-Gery*
Petformance Share Plan' 25/07M 444 037 - 32746 410291 - 00 3547 4no -
18/06/12 416025 - - - 416025 00 2251 - 1B/OB/15 -~ 17/06/22
24/06/13 315789 - - - 315,789 00 4370 - 24j06/16 - 23/06/23
23/06/14 - 315789 - - 35789 Q0 4370 - 23/0&/i7 - 22/08/24
Deferred Share Bonus Plan 18/06/12 37,442 - - - 37442 o0 3251 - 18/06/15 - 17/06/27
24/06/13 53,684 - - - 53684 00 4370 - 24/06/16 - 23/06/23
Restricted Share Plan’ 2507M 126,225 - 126,225 - - Q0 3547 ange -
25707 71677 - 77677 - - Q0 3547 aNQ -
Tatal 1,470,879 3157689 237,648 410,29 1,038,729

1 Ihenumber o’ cotbons/tondironal Lhires show N under 1ha Performanca Share Pns he manmum(100%) nurmbder thdl Lould be rerevible by the executve dsector f the per‘grma e
conditonts are fully mat “he 20 1 awaro vesteduidu y 201~ at 76% £ 7% of the 2012 award wil vest in Juna 2015 {December 2018 for Patrck Bowsquel-Chavanna) as set out onpage 66
Patnch Bousquel Chavane s awdeds &¢ strotiued 33 condld onal shares Hia RSP dward was made Dhor Lo RS AN pOtment 10 ex8Cul v restor

Hlan Strwart resgned romine Board on 10 July 1214 and Laft "ha Comparty 8n 22 Septer-bar 2014 Datade of 3 leanng sriangements ok tet sul arpage /3 Awards maden 2012 2013
& 7014 and hus SAYE award all lapsed on leaving the Company FOr transparency Lhese are showninthe oseddunng uhe yed cotumn PSP and DSBP awards made n 2011 veiteoans
wre ex TSI Ut Retel L the COMPaTTy These were erercisen after hereugned irom the Board (Dut before he tefi Jne Compay and 50 00 NOLIRDESr N the exetried dunngLhe

year calymn

Lawrawace-Cery 1 RSP award was made inconneetion Lo her Jpparniment 1O ErdCutive OreClor IDCOMpeniata her [of g oAt e awards that were forfaited oncossaton from har
BYewOUs employer

e 3ggregate gans of directors aning mithe year romihe exerose of 0n1ons granted under the PSP DSBP RSP ESOS and SA/E totslled {2976 739

[*XN

s

Tha market ohce of the shares at tha end of the bnancial year was 5300p “ha highe 51 and lowest thare price dunng the hinancul yesr were 812 00an0 38) Sorespectvely
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FIGURE 24 PERFORMANCE AND CEQ REMUNERATION COMPARISON

This graph diustrates the Company s
performance aganst the FTSE 100 over
the pasl sixyears The FTSE 100bhas been
chosenas the appropriate comparator
as M&S 15 a constituent of this Index

The calculabion of TSR s iInaccordance
with the relevant remunération
regulalions Asrequired by the new
regulations, the Lable below the TSR
charl sets oul Lherermuneration data for
directors undertaking Lthe role of CEO
during each of the last sixfinancial years

= Marki and Spencer Group pic
— FTSE 100 Index
Source ThomsonReuters

CEO" 100910 2010714 206112 2012113 20534 2014115
CEQ single Nigure of remuneration Marc Bolland - 5998 3,324 2142 1,568 2076
{£00Q0) Stuart Rose 4294 269 - - - -
Annual bonus paymen) Marc Bolland - 45 80% 34 00% 42 50% 000% 3055%
(% of maximum} Stuart Rose 9700% 5740% - - - -
PSP vesung Mare Bolland - - 31 96% 000% 760% 470%
(% of maxmum) Stuart Rose 000% 000% - - - -

b Marc Bolland was appontad CEO o | May 2010 His single frgure far 2010711 ncludes recruatrient Rwvards mads Lo a1 Lhal bme to compensate him for ncentve pwards fordeitedon
cessanon from his previous nployer Sir Stuart Rose undurtaok tneroleof CEQtrom 31 May 7004 to 30 Apnl 2010

FICURE 25 PERCENTACE CHANGE IN CEC S REMUNERATION

The 1able opposite sels out the change in
the CEO sremuncration (e salary taxable
benells and annual borus) compared with
the change in our UK-based employees

This group has beenchosen as Lhe majonly
of our workforce 15 UK-based Ascanbe
seen average FTE salanes for UK employces
incraasod by 2%, i excess of Lthat provided
tothe CEQ

% change XO13/14 ~ 2014£15

Base sulary Benelny Annual bonus'
CEOQ oo% -46 3% -
UK employees (average per FTE) 70% 01% -

1 A3nobiorus was paid 10 edher sne CEO or UKemployees in 2013714 a yras on-yeat COMPansanisnot possible Tha CEO
recened a bonus of £596-000 for 201415 whieh s detsdedinfuilinthe ungla higure tabie onpage 62 Abonuiwas payabla
1038 ebgible UL emplayess for 200415

FICURE 26 RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY

Inline with Lhe new regulations, Lhe table
opposile liustrates the Company s
expenditure on pay 1 compansan Lo profits
before Lax and distributions 1o sharcholders
by way of daidend payments

The figures are a8 set oyl onpages 90 103
and 104 nthe inancial statements to the
accounts Total employee pay s the total
pay for all Group employees Underlying
Group Profit Belore Tax has beenusedasa
comparison as Lhisis the key financial metnc
which the Board consider when assessing
Company performance

20014 201415
im £m N change
Tetal ernployee pay 14109 1406 2 -03
Oividends 2736 2807 26
Underlysing Croup Profil Before Tax 6229 6612 B1
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FICURE 27 SERVICE AGREEMENTS

As detaled onpage 57 of the rermuneration
policy, all executve directors haverolling
contracts which may be terminated by the
Cormpany giving 12 rmonths notice or the
director grving S months notice

Doleof appointmen  Plouce perodiuneapred torm
Marc Bolland 01/05/2010 12 months/6 months
Patnck Bousquet-Chavanne 10/07/2013 12 rnonths/é months
John Dixon 09/09/2000 12 months/6 months
Steve Rowe MAG2012 12 months/6 ronths
Laura Wade-Cery Qa0 2 EEANE G s

EXECUTIVE CHANCES TO THE BOARD DURING 2014/15

Directors appointed to the Board
There were nc directors joining the Board
duning the year

Directors retiring from the Board

Alan Stewart Chief Finance Cfficer,
resigned from the Board on 10 July 2014 and
left the Company after a penod of garden
leave on 22 Septermnber 2014 In ine with hus
contractual arrangements, Alan received
no further payments Any awards which

had not vested prior to the date he left the
business lapsed at this tme

Payments to past directors (audited)
Asreported last year, Steven Sharp retired
from the Board on ¢ Juty 2013 and had two
outstanding awards under the Performance

FIGURE 28 EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS

Share Plan Inaccordance with the rules of
the Performance Share Plan 7 6% of hus 2011
award {35 085 shares)vestedin May 2014
Steven has one outstanding award After
the completion of the performance penod
it has beendetermined that 47% of the
onginat 2012 award (24,396 shares) will vest
nMay 2015

Payments for the loss of office (audited)
There ware na payments for loss of office
made todirectors during the year

Changes to the Board in 2015/16

Helen Weir joned the Boardon ) Apnt 2015
as Chief Finance Officer Mer remuneration
151 Lne with the approved recruitment
policy detated on page 57 and approved

N July 2014 Onappointment Hetens base
annualsalarys £590,000 Helen wilt receive
benefitsin ine with those proveded to the
other executivedirectors Inthe first year
she willreceive a payrnent totalling £188 500
o compensate for the annual differentiat
In contractual pension that she will forfert
to1orMES This payment will be made

in 12 equal nstalrments payable monthly
Noshare awards have been granted to
Heleninrelationtoher appointment
although she s elgible for a PSP grant in
July 2015 tn accordance with the annuat
remuneration policy

The Company recognises that executive
directors may be invited to become non-
executive directors of other companias and
that these appointments can broadenther
knowledge and expenignce to the benefit of
the Company The palicy 1s for the ndividual
director 1o retainany fee

The table opposite sets out the details

for these fees earned up to 28 March 2015
For Marc Bolland, fees for Mangower inc
relatetc the penod to 11 February 2015, the
date at which he reteed from Manpowering
Board Marc Bolland joined the Board of The
Coca-ColaCompany on 18 February 2015
Fees are pard quarterly incash and shares
and sothe fees shown inthe table represent
those earned inrespect of the penad

18 February 2015 to 28 March 2015 These
were padon | April 2015

Foe!

Ovector Company L000
Marc Bolland Manpower Inc' 109
The Coca-Cola Company? 42

Patnck Bousquet-Chavanne Brown-Formant 171

| Feesupuntil 11 Fobeuary 2015 when Mare Balland retved Lrom tae Manpoeer 196 Board Fees worg pa-0 ncashand s,ock

unitsnUSaolles

2 Marc Bollana onedthe Board of Thae Coca-Cola Company on 18 Feoruary 2015 Frasare pad ncasn and siocch unitsn
USdoltars and ara for the penpd rom his apposiment 0 28 March 2015

-

Patnek Bousquet Chavanneslaes are pad ncash 200 stock und 3.0 U35 goller §

4 For hepurposes o this 1able Cash paymonts Nova Deen converted (o U< sterbngusng the rollng avarsge £ § eschange
raies 10r the (E3PECLVE DENDOS SLocA urity ave een conver leg Lo UK Sterkng snglhe approprate £ § spot rate ac the

end of the relevans penod
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FIGURE 29 NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS TOTAL SINGLE FIGURE REMUNERATION (audited)

As detailed n the remuneranon policy on
page $9 non-executive directors recenve
fees reflective of the me commitment,
demands and responsibiities of the role

The table oppeosite details the fees paid (o
the mon-axecutive direclors for 2014/1%
and 2013/14

There was no increase to the fees durng
the year

Basc fees Additional Bernefas Tatal

Year €000 :'c:;; £000 1000
Robert Swannell 201415 7 380 18
201314 0 380 2
Vind) Banga' 2014115 70 12 0
201314 70 [*] 0
Alison Brictain? 2014/15 70 o] o]
203714 1] o 0
Miranda Curtis 201a/15 70 4] 0
2013/14 70 Q Q
Martha Lane Fox 201415 70 0 Q
201314 70 0 ¢]
Andy Halford® 2014115 70 15 0
2013114 70 1 [}
Steven Holliday* 2014/i5 19 4 o
2013/14 70 15 0
Jan du Plessis* 2014115 64 28 0
201314 70 30 0

1 Theamounis shoen raflect hat Vind Banga »at scpoinied 23 Remunerabon Comm t oe Chau on B uty 2014

andServor Independent Duector [tom 4 March 2005

VawN

FIGURE 30 NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS SHAREHQLDINGS (audited)

Theamounts thowafar 2013/14ratlect that Ahson Britta:in jowined the Board on | Jarwary 2014

Treamaunts thas nfar 201 1arelect that Andy Halford ws apposnted as Aud | Comumetren Chau on ) July 2012
Thearnounts shown{gr 2014715 rellecr tnat Stevon Hollday renred fromthe Boerd on 8 July 2014

Theamounts shown for 2014715 rellect that JanduPess reuned lrom e Board on 4 March 2015

The non-executive directors are not

Figure 30 opposite details the sharehotding

permitted to participatemn any of the of the non-executive directors who
Company s ncentive arrangements The served on the Board dunngthe yearasat
non-executive directors are required to 28 March 2015 (or upontherr date of retinng
buldand mamtaina shareholding of atleast  fromthe Board)

2,000 shares in the Company within two

Th n the current
months of therr appointment to the Board ere have beenno changes in the

non-executive directors interests in shares
n the Company and its subsidiaries
betweenthe end of the financial year

and 19 May 2015

FICURE 31 NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' ACREEMENTS FOR SERVICE

Nymber of shares helg!
Rohert Swannell 120000
vingd) Banga 2000
Abson Brittan 2,596
Miranda Curlis 5500
Martha Lanc Fox 20100
Andy Halford 21,000
Steven Holliday' 2500
Jan du Plessis' 20000

1 Snarenolcng as 3t the date of reuroment fromthe Board
2 Includes sharas held by connected persons

Non-executive drectors have anagreement

Dare of appointment

Notc & panog/une cired term

far service for anmnitual three-year term Robert Swannell

23/08/2000

& months/6 months

which can be terminated by either party

Qiving three months notice (s months
for the Chavrman)

The table opposite sets out these terms

Vindi Banga

01/087201 3 months/3 months

Alson Brittain

ovoz0a 3 monlhs/2 months

Miranda Curtis

010272012 3 months/3 months

for all current memnbers of the Board Martha Lane Fox

01/06/2007

3 manths/3 months

Andy Halford

Q102013

3 months/3 months
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS REMUNERATION CONTINUED

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' CHANGES TO THE BOARD DURING 201415

Directors appointed to the Board
Nodirectors were appointed to the Board
during the year

Directors retiring from the Board
Steven Hollday Charrman of the
Rermuneration Commitiee,retired from
the Board on 8 July 2014 There were

no payments for loss of office navahle
to Steven

Jan du Plessa Senior Independent Director
retiredt from the Board on 4 March 2035
There were no payrments for loss of office
payableto Jan

Drrectors changing roles within the Board
Vindi Banga became Chairman of the
Rernuneration Committee on 8 Juty 2014
upon Steven Hollrday's retirernent from the
Board Frorm thus date, vincdh received
additional fees inaccordance with the
responstbibity of thrs role Inaddition, Vind
undertook the role of Senior Independent
Lirector upon Jan du Plessis relirement
frorm the Board Vindireceved additional
feesin accordance wth the responsibility of
this role, as described inthe remuneration
policy onpage 59

From his appointment as Sernor
Indepandent Drreclor he ne longer receved
adchuional fees for the Remuneralion
Commuttee charmanship rote

Changes to the Board i 2015116
Richard Solormans joined the Board on
13 April 2015 as a non-expcutive director
Andd iaruis 30 HOUES GF TNE NomMnation
Commutlee Inaccordance with the non-
executive drector fees pobey, Richard
recarves an annuallee of £70000

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REMIT

The role of the Remuneration Cornmittee

1s to make recommendations regarding

tha semior remuneration strategy and
framework to the Board ta ensure the
executive directors and seror management
arg approprately rewarded for ther
contrbuton 1o the Company s
performance, taking into account the
financial and commercial position of

the Company

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

=¥ Setuing 2 senior stratlegy that ensures the
maost tatented leadersare recruited
retained and motival od to detiver results

= Reviewing the effectivencss of Lhe senior
remuneration policy with regardions
mpact

% Considenng the appropriateness of
the serior remuneration policy when
reviewed aganst the policy and
arrangements throughout the rest
of the ocrganisaton

- Deterrmining the Lerms of employrent
and remuneration [or execulive directors
and senkor managersincluding
recrument and terrmination
arrangements

- Approving the design targets and
payments for all annual incentive
schernes Lhat include executive directors
and senior managers

-3 Agreeng the design targets and annual
awards made For all share ncentive ptans
requiring shareholder approval

- Assessing the appropnateness and
subsegquent achievement of
performancetargets relatingto
any shareincentive plan

In bne with iLts rermit, the Commuliee
considered a number of key matters
durnng the year

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
AGENDA FOR 2014/15

Regular tems

-» Approval of the Directors Rernuneration
Report for 2013/14 andreview of the ACM
voung outcome for the report

- Annual review of all executve direclors
and senior managers base salaries and
benefits inUne with Company policy and
approval of any sataryincrease

= Review of achievement of Annual Bonus
Scherme profit against target

- Review of achievement of executive
directors indmdual objectives for 2014/15

- Reviewof the design and targets for the
2015/16 Annual Bonus Scherne including
the approval of indwiduat abjectives
for dwectors

- Review and approval of all awards made
under the PSP taking into account the
total vatue of allawards madaunder
thisplan

= Half year and year end review of all share
plan performance agamst targets

- Approval of the vesung level of the
2012/13 PSP awards

- Consideration of the performance
measures and targets to be applied to
the 2015/15 PSP awards

-3 Clear articulation of the Committees
reasoning and consideration for
vesting and payment levels to
executive directors

-» Revtew of direcLor shareholding
guidabnes and achevernent of these
for cach executive direclor

- Significant consideration of nstitutional
mwvestors currenl guidelnes om execulive
compensation

3 Consideration ol remuneration
arrangements (or the wider workforce

-» Assessment of tho external cnvironment
surrounding the Company s current
rémuneralion arrangements

= Consideration of external market
developmenits and best practice n
remuneration

= Rewtew of Committee performance
n 2014115

+» Review of Commuttec terms of reference

Other items

= Discussion of Lhe application of the
new reporting regulations 10 ensure
transparent and clear disclosure
to shareholders

= Review of and agreement Lo new share
plan rules manticipation of the expiration
of current Man rules

- Review of and agreement to,
remuneration packages for new
serior managers

< Induction of new Rermuneration
Committee Charman

Note The full terms of reference
for the Committee can be found

on the Company's websrte at
marksandspencercom/thecompany

OUR BUSINESS

QUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




REMUNERATION COMMITTEE CONTINUED

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE ACTION
PLAN 2015/16

= Ensuring the cantinued strategec
alignment of the directors incentive
arrangement withbusiness strategy

= Debating the approprateness of the
senior remuneration frameworkin the
context of the rest of the crgamsation
and the external environment

- Ensuring that the remuneration policy
continues to be appropnate to attract
and retan excepiional seror leaders as
required

-» Assessing and mitigating against
potential nskin the senior remuneration
framework

COMMITTEE ADVISERS

In carrying out its responsibilities, the
Committee 1s independently adwised by
external agwvisers The Cornmittee was
acvised by Delotte and PwC during the
year Both Deloitte and PwC are founding
rmembers of the Remuneration Consultants
Croup and voluntarly operate under the
code of conduct in relation to executive
remuneration consulting inthe UK

The cede of conduct can be found at
remunerationconsultantsgroup com
Further, the Committee reviews the advice
it recewes and determines whetherit s
appropnately independent!'

PwC were appointed by the Commuttee as
its ndependent adwvisers in 2014 following a
rgorous and competitive tender process
PuwC provides independent commentary
onmatters under consideration by the
Committee and updates on legislatve
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REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

practice PwC s feesare typically charged on
an hourty basis with costs for work agreed
nadvance Dunng the year, PwC charged
£119,800 for Remuneration Committee
matters Delointe s fees were similarly
CROrGEa Onan i iy Uasiy THEN FeSTor
Remuneration Committee matters for
the period to 28 March 2015 were £28,500
PwC has prowvided tax, consultancy and
risk consulting services tothe Groupin
the financial year

The Committee also seeks internal support
from the CEQ, Croup Secretary, Director of
Human Resources and Head of Reward &
Clobal Mobiity as necessary All may attend
the Commuttee meetings by iInvitation but
are not present for any discussions that
relate directly to ther own rermuneration

The Committee also reviews external survey
andbespoke benchmarking data mcluding
that published by New Brnidge Street (the
trading name of Agn Hewntt Lirmited), KPMC,
PwC and Towers Watson

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Committee s committed to ensunng
that executve pay remans competitive
appropnate and fair in the context of the
external market, Company performance
and the pay arrangements of the wider
workforce In collaboration wath the Head of
Reward & Globat Mobilty, the Committee
gves ernployees, through employee
representatives, the opportunity to raise
guestions or concerns regarding the
remuneraten of the executive directors
Bunng the year, the Head of Reward &
Globat Mobiuty met wath employee

pay arrangements Details ofthe directors
pay arrangements were discussed inthe
context of the reward framework for the rest
of the organisation and external factors, no
concerns were raised Uponreporting back
on the discussions and outcome of this
meeting, the Committee 1s satished that the
pay arrangerments for 2014/15 and 2015/16
remain appropnate for M&S

SHAREHOLDER CONSULTATION

The Committee s committedtoa
continuous open and transparent dizlogue
with shareholders on the issue of executve
remuneraiion The Committee helda
Covernange Event in June 20146 review
and debate remuneration with shareholders
and representative bodies Inadditon,
Vindi Banga rmet wath a number of investors
as part of the nandover process and

ahead of consulting waththe Company s
largest sharehoiders on proposals for

the 2015/16 remuneration arrangements
for executve directors

SHAREHOLDER SUPPORT
FOR THE 2013/14 DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION REPQRT

At the Annual Ceneral Meeting on 8 July
2014 9918% of shareholders voted in favour
of approving the Drectors Remuneration
Report for 2013/14 with 98 27% of
sharehoiters approving the remiuneration
poley The Commuttee belbeves thus
illustrates the strong level of shareholder
support for the sertor remuneration
framewark

The table below shows full details of
the voting outcomes for the 2014/i5
Dwrectors Remuneration Report and

reguirements, best practice and market representatives to discuss the directors Remuneration Policy
FICURE 32 VOTING OUTCOMES FOR 2013/14 REMUNERATION REPORT

viotes for % wotes for Votes aganst % VOLR aganst Votes withheld
Remuneration report 1022785815 93918 8,489 388 082 810203
Remuneration poucy 1012 469 256 88 27 17840,854 173 9,040 797

APPROVED BY THEBCARD

Vindi Banga Charrmarof the Remuneranon Committee

London, 19 May 2015

This remunerabion policy and these remuneration reports have been prepared mn accordance with the relevant orovison of the Compan.es Act 2006 and
on the basis prescribed in the lange and medrum-sizad Companies and Groups (accourts and Reports) (Amendments) Regulations 2013 (the Regulations)
Where required data has been audited by Deloitte and this 18 mxcicated approprately

1 Onthea

by Delotte was congstent with sthical aud ong guioelnes and that Lhenr Independence 33 aud tors wat ROt CoMpromised

of Deloe e as erternal audions atransilion plan was put in place while a new Comim tiee adviser was selected Tha ensuredihal the rermungraton acvice provd ed
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GOVERNANCE

PENSIONS COVERNANCE

The Croup operates a defined benefit
pension scheme (the Scheme ) for
employees with anappointment date
priorto 1 Aprit 2002

The results of the triennial actuarial
valuation of the Scheme as at 31 March 2012
revealed adeficit of £290m This represents
asubstantal reductionin deficil from £1 3bn
as at 31 March 2009 The next valuatioms
oo rn ot 3 MG 2815 Furiun g LIGUIRSY

15 closely monitered and the investment
denisking journey has conlinued since the
last valuation

The assets of the pension scheme, which are
held under trusl separately from those of
the Group are managed by the Board of Lthe
Pension Trust ( Trustee Board ) The Trustee
Board comprises four company nominated
directors including the Chairman, Graham
Oakley three member nomunated directors
and lwo independent, directors Alldireciors
are appointed for a five-year termand

may stand for a second term The Trustee
Board operates Lhree mam cormwmittees
Management and Covernance lnvestment
and Actuanal valvauon, whichhasbeen
corvened earlier this year i preparalion

for Lhe 2015 valuation

The Trustee Board has a busingss plan
against which progress s meaasured onan
ongoing basis ina similar approachto the
GCroup Board Theress also anannual Board
Effectiveness Review and both the Trusiee
Board and the Investment Commitiee
hold annual strategy days whichhelp drive
the long-term agenda arnd the business
plon pronties

£acn irusteo Board directior has an
individual traning plan whichis based on
the Pension Regulator s Trustee Knowledge
and Understanding requirement s and
tallored 10 address any skit gaps and
specific committee roles The majority of
the Trustee Board membershold Lhe
Pensions Management Institute Award
nTrusleeship

Alladwvisers imwvestment managaers and
suppliers are apponted through a ngorous
tonder process They aremoenitered via
quarierly reports and periodic meetings
and there 15 also aralling programme of
both informal and formal adviser reviews

n addhition to six rnonthly reports fromEY
as covenant adviser, the Trustee Board
also recenves presentations fromthe Chief
Finance Officer after the Year and Half
Yaar results

The Scherme s a signatory tothe UN
Principles for Responsible Investment and
the Trustee has partnered witha specialist
engagemnent service Hermes Equity
Ownership Serwces (ECS) to cxorciso s
global equily voling rights inaccordance
with a detalod Trustoe policy which
addresses arange of governance social
and environmentatissues EOS has also
enignned (ne Trustee § stewardsnip and
governance oversight of investee
companies by engaging with ¢comparies,
on a global bess, where management 15
considered not Lo beacung nthebest
long-term interests of investors The
resuils of Lhese voling and engagement
actwaligs are published quarterly on the
MES Pension Scheme s wensite The Scheme
ts also asignalory to the Financial Reporting
Council s UK Slewardship Code

GUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE

FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
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OTHER DISCLOSURES

DIRECTORS' REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Marks and Spencer Group ple {the
Company histhe holding company of the
Marks & Spencer Group of companies (the
Group) With our rich heritage MBS 15 one
of the most recogrisable brands inthe UK
retad seclor and s regularty voled as one
of iLs most trusted Our business s driven
by a desire Lonspire and innovate toacl
withintegrity and 10 5tay intouchwith our
customers, shareholders end employees
alike These are cur corporale values and
they underpin everything we do Thoyare
what make the M&S difference across the
59 territones in which we operate

Tre Direclors Report (also Lhe Management
Report} for the year ended 28 March 2015
comprises pages 2610 82 and page 127 of
this report Logether with the sections of the
Annual Report incorporated by reference
As permitied by legistation some of the
matters normally included in the Direclors
Repaort have instead beenincluded nthe
Strategic Report onpages 1 Lo 25 asthe
Board considers thern lobe of strategic
mpartance Specificatly these are

-» Future business developments
{throughout the Strategic report)

- Research and development p21
- Ristk management on p21-25

Details of branches pperated by the
Company canbe foundon pages 28 and 29
of the Dwectors Report

Bolh the Strategic Report and the Directors
Report have bean drawnup and presented
Inaccordance wath and inreliance upen
applicable Englisir company law, and the
Liabitities of the directors nconnection
with that repor{ shall be subject to the
trmitations and restrictions provided by
such law For infarmation on our approach
ta social, environmental and ethical
matters please refer to our Plan A Report
available toview online at
marksandspencer com/plana2015

Other informatwontobe disclosed inthe
Directors Report s giverunthis sect:on

INFORMATION TO BE
DISCLOSED UNDER LR 28 4R

Page

Ls g Rule Detail referencd
9BAR(1} (2}

(5-14) (AY (B} Notapplcable N/

g8 4R (4) Long-term 54-55

ncentve and

schemes 66-67

The mermbership of the Board and
biographical details of the directors

are given on pages J4and 35andare
ncarporated into Lthis report by reference
Details of directors benelical and non-
berefcialinterests inthe shares of Lhe
Company are shown onpages §8and 74
QOptions granted under the Save As YouEarn
(SAYE) Share Oplion and Executive Share
Cplion Schemes are shownanpages 70
to 71 Further nformation regarding
employee share oplion schemes s gven
nnote Bto the linancial staterments

Alan Stewart stepped down from Lhe Board
as Cheef Fimance Officer on 10 July 2014 and
left the Company on 23 September 2014
Helen War was appomnted Chief Finance
Officer on 1 Apnl 2015 Vind: Banga who
Jonedthe Board on 1 Seplember 2011, was
appointed Charrman of the Rermuneration
Commitiee following the retirerment of
Stoven Hollday at the ACM on 8 July

2014 Vindh was also appotnted Senior
Independent Director followingthe
retrement of Jan du Ptessis on 4 March
2015 Richard Solomons jomned the Board
a5 8 hon-executive director on 13 April

2015 and was appointed a member of the
Nomination Committee wthimmediate
effact Miranda Curtis, who joined the
Board on | February 2012 was appointed

a member of the Audit Commutteeon

4 March 2015 Robert Swannell, who jomed
the Boardas Charman on 4 October

2010 was appointed as amember of the
Rernuneration Commuttee ond March 2015

The appointrment and replacement of
directors s governed by the Caompany
Articles, the UK Corporate Governarce
Code (the Code ), the Companies Act 2006
andrelated legisiation The Articles may be
amended by a special resolution of the
shareholders Subject to the Articles the
Companies Act 2006 and any directions
given by special resolution the business of
the Company will be managed by the Board
who may exercise all the powers of the
Company The Company may by ordinary
resolubion declare dividends not exceeding
the amount recommended by the Board
Subject tothe Compames ACt 2006 the
Board may pay inlenm diidonds and alsa
any fmedrate dnvdend, whenever the
financial position of the Company inthe
opruon of the Board justifies its payment

APPOINTMENT AND
RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS

The directors may from time to time appont
one or more direclors The Board may
appoint any personlobe adirecler (solong
asthe totalnumber of directors does ol
exceed the imil prescribed nthe Aruclas)
Under the Articles, any such direcior shatt
hold office only until Lhe next AGM and shalt
then be eligible for election The Articles
alsarequire Lthat 8 each AGM at least one-
thurd of the current directors shouldretwe
as directors by rolation AllLhose directors
whohave beenm office al the ime of the
two previous AGMs and who did not retire

at either of them must retire as directlors

by rotation Inaddition, 3 diroctor may at
any ACMretire from otfice and stand for
re-election Howover intine with the UK
Corporate Covernance Code 2012 all
direcLors wil stand for annual election at
the 2015 ACM

DIRECTORS' CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Company has proceduresinplace for
managing conflicts of nterest Shoulda
direclor become aware that they, or therr
connected parlies, have aninlerestinan
exstng or proposed transaclion wilh
Marks & Spencer, they should notfy the
Board nwnling or at the next Board
meeling Internal controls aren place to
ensure that any related party transactions
nwvolving directors, or ther connecled
parues,are conducted onanarms length
basis Oirectors have a continuing duty to
update any changes Lo these conflicts

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company maintains directors and
officers Lability insurance which gives
appropriate cover For any legal action
brought agamnst its diractors The Company
has also granted indemnities to each of its
directors and the Group Secretary to the
extert permitted by law Qualifying third-
party mdemaity provisions (as defined by
section 234 of the Companies Act 2006)
were inforcedunng the year ended

28 March 2015 and remain in force in
relation to certamn losses and babilities
which the directors (or Group Secretary)
may incur to third parties in the course of
actingas directors or Group Secretary

or empioyees of the Company or of any
associated company




PROFIT AND DIVIDENDS
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VARIATION QF RIGHTS

The profit for the linancial year afler
taxation,amounts to £661 2m (tast year
£662 9m) The directars have declared
dividends as follows

Qrdinary shares fm

Paid interim dradend
of 6 4p per share

(last year 6 2p per share)
Proposed final dividend
of 11 6p per share

(last year 10 8p per share}

£1045m

E£1912m

Total erdinary dividend of
18 Op per share

{Last year 170p per share} £2967m

The final ordinary dividend will be paid on
10 July 2015 to shareholders whose names
are on the Register of Members gL the close

of business on 29 May 2015

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company s1ssued orchinary share
capital as at 28 March 20V5 comprnised a
single class of ordinary share Each share
carnes the nght to.one vote at generat
meetings of the Company

Dunng the period, 15566 772 ardinary
sharesin the Company were issued
as follows

2918 578 shares under the terms of the
2002 Executive Share Option Scheme
at pnices between 347p and 352p

-3 14,602,805 shares under the terms of the
United Kingdom Employees Save As You
Earn Share Option Scheme at prices
between 203p and 4050

-3 45 389 shares under the terms of the
ROIEmployeas Save As You Earn Share
Opton Scherme at prices between 258p
and 405p

Details of movements nthe Companys
1ssucd share capitzlcan be found on page
1191 note 24 to Lhe financial statements

RESTRICTIONS ON
TRANSFER OF SECURITIES

There gre no specific restnctions onthe
wransfer of securities nLhe Company which
1§ governed by its Articles of Association
ang prevaiing legislation The Company

s not aware of any agreements between
holders of securities that may resutt in
restrictions onthe transfer of secunties
orthat may result in restrncttons on

voung nghts

Subjecltoapplicable statutes, nghts
attachedtoanyclass of share may bevaned
with the writlen consent of the holders of at
least three-quarters nnominat value of the
issued shares of Lhat class, or by a special
resolution passed at a separate general
meeung of Lhe shareholders

RiGHTS aND OHLIGATIONS
ATTACHING TO SHARES

Subject ta the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006, any resolution passed by the
Company under the Companes Act 2006
and other shareholders nights, shares rnay
beissued with such nghts and restrictions
as the Company may by ordinary resolution
decide, or (f there s no such resolution or so
far as 1 does not make speaific provision)

as Lthe Board (as defined in the Articles)

may decide Subject tothe Articles

the Companias Act 2006 and olher
shareholders nghts, unissued shares

aroat tho disposal of the Board

POWERS FOR THE COMPANY ISSUING
OR BUYING BACK ITS OWN SHARES

The Company was authonsed by
shareholders at the 2014 AGM to purchase
inLhe market up Lo 10% of Lhe Company s
issued share capital, as perrmitted under the
Company s Articles No shares have been
bought back under this authority durning
the year ended 28 March 2015 This standard
authonty s renewable anmually the
directors will seek to ranew this authority

INTERESTS 1N VOTING RICHTS

at the 2015 AGM It 1s the Company' s present
ntentionto cancelany shares it buys back
rather than hold them i treasury

The dircclors were granted authority at

Lhe 2014 ACM to allot relevant securrties

up Lo anominalamount of £136 089,559
Thus authonty willapply until the conclusion
ofthe 2015 ACM At thus year s AGM
shareholrarcuill ha aslkad o gronram
authonityto allot relevant secunuies {)upto
anominalamount of £137,372 59867 and
(m)compnsing equity securiiesuptoa
nominal amount of £274,745,197 33 (al ter
deducting from such bmit any relevant
secuntigs allotted under (1)) in conneclion
withan offer ol arights ssue (the Secbion
551 amount) such Secuon 551 amount

Lo apply unii the conclusionof the
ACMtope heldin 2016 or if earlier on

27 Septemnber 2016

A specilresolution willalso be proposed
Lo renew the directors powers (@ make non
pre-cmplive issues For cashinconneclion
withaightsissues and otherwise up toa
nomenal amount of £20605 889 80 A special
resolutionwil alsobe proposed Lo renew
the directors authority Lo repurchase Lhe
Company s ordinary shares in the market
The authority willbe trmited 1o 8 maximum
of 164 mitlion ordinary shares and sets the
e and maamum prices which wall
be pad

COVERNANCE

Information provided to the Company
pursuant tothe Fingncial Conduct
Authanty s {FCA) Disclosure and
Transparency Rules (DTRs) s published
ona Regulatory Information Service
andonthe Company $ website As at

28 March 2015, the foliowing information
has been recewed, n accordance with
DTRS from holders of noufiable interests
nthe Company s1ssued share capital

The nformation provided below was
correct at the date of noufication however,
the date recened may not have been
withirithe current financial year it should
be noted that these holchings are likely to
have changed since the Company was
notified However notification of any
change isnotrequred untithe next
notihable threshold 15 crossed

Qrainary %
Motitable mtarests shares ol Cop lel Nature of holcing
Blackrock, inc 81,834,738 5  Indwect {497%) & CFD(004%)
TheCapital Croup Comparves Inc 66 681 822 4049 Indirect Interest
The Wellcome Trust 47,464,282 30t Direct Interest

Nolficatons wore dlio récersed from W llar Aodriey nd Mg ede ALt Management Lors ed gunnthe vear to

disclose that they nolonger heto s notdiatle ntorest

QUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




DEADLINES FOR EXERCISING
VOTING RICHTS

Votes are excrasable al a generalmeeung
of Lthe Company inrespect of which the
business being voted upon s being heard
Votes may be exercised (n person, by proxy,
orinrelatign o corporate members by
corporate representatives The Arlicies
provide adeadlne for submission of proxy
forms of not lessthan 48 hours before the
tme appontied for the holding of the
mecting or adjourned meeting However,
when calculating Lhe 4B8-hour period the
directors can and have,decided not to take
account of any pari of aday that s not a
working day

SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS -
CHANCE QF CONTROL

There are a number of agreements towhich
the Company 1s party that take effect alter

or Lerminake upon 3 change of controlof Lthe

Company lollowing atakeover bid Details

of Lhe sigrmificant agreements of this kind are

as [ollows

=-» The £400m Medurmn Term Notes issucd by

the Company on 30 Novernber 2009 the
£300mM Medium Term Notes issued by the
Company on 6 December 201t andthe
£400m Medium Term Notesissuedby
Lthe Company on 12 December 2012 to
vanous institutions ( MTN ) and under the
Groups £3bn curoMediurm Term Note
(EMTN) programme contain an oplion
such thal, upon a change of control
evant, combined with a credit ratings
downgrade to below sub-invesiment
{evel any holder of an MTNmay require
the Cornpany Lo prepay the principal
amount of thal MTN

- The $500m US Notes 1ssucd by the
Cormpany to vanous Institutions on
6 December 2007 under Seclion 1443 of
Lhe US SecuniLies Act contan an oplion
suchthat, upenachange of contrel
event combined with a credit ratings
downgrado Lo below sub-invesiment
level any holder of suchaUS Note may
require the Company Lo prepay the
princrpal amount of that US Note

=3 The $300rm US Notesissued by the
Company 1o vanous instilutions on
6 December 2007 under Section 144p of
the US Secunties AcL comamnan option
such that upona change of control
event, combined with a credit ralings
downgrade Lo below sub-investment
Level, any holder of such a US Note may
require the Company to prepay the
prncipalamount of that USNote
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= The £1325bn Credit Agreermnent dated
29 Septernber 2011 betweenthe
Company and varous banks contains
a pravisien such that uponachange
of control event unless new terms are
agreed wilhin 60 days Lhe faciity under
this agreement will be cancelled with
all outstanding amount s becoming
immedialely payable wihnterest,and

= The amended and restated Relationship
Agreement dated 6 Oclober 2014
(ongnally dated 9 November 2004 as
amended on \ March 2008), between
HSBC and the Cornpany and relatngto
MBS Bank Contains Certain provisions
which address a change of controt of Lthe
Company Upon a change of controllhe
exsung right s and obligations of the
partues inrespecl of M&S Bank continue
and HSBC gains certainlirmited addiional
rights in respect of existing customers
of the new controller of the Company
Where a third-party arrangement s in
place for the supply of financial services
productsto existing customers of Lhe
new controller, the Company isrequired
to pracure Lthe termination of such
arrangement as soon as reasonably
praclicable (whilst net bewng required
Lo do anything that would breachany
contraclinplace nrespect of such
arrangement)

Where a Lhird-party arrangement is 50
Lerminated or does not exist MSBC gans
certain exclusvity nghysinrespect of
the sale of financial services products
tothe exisling customers of Lhe new
controller Where the Company
undertakes are-branding excrcrse with
the new cont roller following a change of
control (which includes using any M&S
brand in respect of the new controller s
business or vice versa), HSBC gans
certan termination nghits (exercisable
atits election) in respect of the
Relationship Agreement

The Company does noi have agreements
with any drector oremployee Lhat woud
provide compensation for Loss of office or
employment resutting froma takeover
excepl that provisions of the Company s
share schernes and plans may cause
oplions and awards granted Lo employees
under such schernes and plans Lo vest on
atakeover

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

Weremain comemitted Lo employee
wwolvernent throughout Lhe business
Employees are kepl wellnformed efthe
performance andstrategy of the Group
thraugh personal baefings, regular
mectings, emad and broadcasts by the Chuef

Executive and members of the Board at

key pomnts inthe year to all head office and
distnibution centre employees and store
management Addilionally many of our
siore colleagues can join the briefings

by telephone to near directly fromthe
business These types of communication
are supplemented by our employee
publications ncluding Your M8S magazine,
Plan A updates and DVD presentations
Morethan 3,500 employges are elected
enlo Business Involvemnent Croups | BIGs )
across every store distnibution centre and
head office location to represent their
colleagues in Lwo-way cormmunication and
consultationwith the Company They have
contmnued Lo play akey role ina wide vanoly
of business changes

The 20th meeling of the Eurgpean Works
Council { EWC ) (estabushed in 1995) will
take place n September 2015 This Counal
prowdes an additionalforurn for nforming
consulting and involving employce
represeniativas from tha countnesinthe
European Communily The EWC inctudes
representatives from France The
Netherlands Czech Republic Slovakia
Greece Bulgana, Slovera, Romarua, Croatia,
Hungary, Lihuania, Latvia Estonia, Poland,
the Republic of ireland and the UK The EWC
hasthe opportunily tobe addressed by Lhe
Chuefl Executive and other serior mambers
of the Company on issues that affect the
European business This ncludes the
Directors of Internationatand Multl channet
andihe Director of Plan A whoallhavean
impact across the European Community

Drrectors and senor management regularly
attend tha national Business Involvement
Group (BICYmeetings They visit stores and
discusswith ernployees matters of current
nterest and concern to both employees
and the busmess through meetings with
local BIC representatives, specific lsterung
groups and informal discussions The
business has conuinued Lo engage with
employees and dnve involvement through a
scheme called The BIG idea Ona quarterly
baws the business poses a guestionto
gatherdeas and imiiatives on a number of
areas including how we canbeller serve

our customers Severalthousandideasare
put forward each Lime and the winning
employee receives an award and ihe
chance to see how thisisimplemented

by the Company

Share schemes are aleng-establshed and
successful part of our totalreward package,
encouraging and supporting employee
share ownership Inparticutar arocund
24,000 employees currently participate

1n Sharesave the Company satlemployee
Save As you Earn Scheme Futldetails of all
schemes are givenonpages 70to 71




Wehave a well establbshed interactive
wellbeing website designed exclusively

for M&S employees It gives any employee
the opportunity to access a wealth of
nformation helpand support We cover all
areas of wellbeing from healthy eating and
oxercise to help in overcoming issues such
as stress fmancial challenges achievinga
positive work-lfe balance and problems
with sleeping Using this service, employees
canaccess our persanal support teams,
such as counsellng aswellas takepartina
calendar of wellboing events and initidlives

Employees are able to interact with one
anolher post nformation about clubs and
groups inther areaand can gain access

Lo information about corparate projecis
whichunk to their personal health, via our
employee social media platform Yammer

We maintain contact withretired staff
through commurucations fromthe
Company and the Pension Trust Member-
nominated Lrustees have beenelected

Lo the Pension Trust board, including
employeas and pensioners We continue
Lo produce aregular Pensions Update
newstet ter for members of our finalsalary
pension scheme and have a fully meractive
website for members of Lthe defined
contribution M&S Pension Savings Plan

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The Croup 15 committed 1o an active equal
opportunities policy frorm recrutment
and selechion through traiming and
development performance reviews and
promotion to retirernent it s our policy

to promote an envivonment free from
discrrmination, harassment and
wvicurmsation, where everyone will recerve
equalireatment regardless of gender,
colour ethric or national onign, disability,
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age martal status, sexual orientation
orrelgion Alldecisions relating to
ernployment practices will be cbjective
free frombias andbased solely upon work
cntera and individualment The Company
1S responsve 1o the needs of its employees
customers and Lhe communily al large We
are an organmsation which uses everyoncs
talents and abitiies and where diversity

15 valued We were one of the lirst rmajor
companies Lo remove the delaull
retirement age n 2001 and have continued
to see AN INCroase N pmMmnlawsncwanbina b
work past the stale retrement age Our
oldest ernployee s 88 years oldangd jongd
the business at age 80 1n April 2015 the
Company once aganfeaturedin The Times
Top 50 Employers [or Women, hughighting
how cqualopportunities are available for
allat M3S

EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITIES

It 48 our policy that people with disabiuties
should have full and fair consideration for
allvacancies During the year we continued
to demonstrate our commitment to
interviewing those people with disabrlities
who RAfilthe mirumum critena, and
endeavouring toc retain employeesnthe
workforce if they become disabled during
employment We will actwely retram and
adjust therr environment where possible to
allow them to maximise ther potential We
continue to work with external organisations.
to provide workplace oppor turtties through
our nnovative Marks & Start scheme and by
warking closely with JobCentre Plus The
Marks & Start scheme was ntroduced into
our distribution centre at Castle Donington
" 2012713, where we work with Remploy to
support people with disatwities and health
conditions nto work

TOTAL GLOBAL MBS GREENHOUSE CAS EMISSIONS 201415

ESSENTIAL CONTRACTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS

The Company 15 required Lo disclose any
contractual or glher arrangerments which
1t considers are essential Lo #s business
We have a widgsange of suppliers for Lhe
production and distribution of products
1o our custorners Whilst theloss of or
disrupbon to certain of these arrangerments
coulo temporarity affect the operations
of the Group, none are considered to be
essential, with the exception of certain
wdarenouse ana logistic operaiors and
providers of services relating tothe
Company s e-commeree platform

GROCERIES SUPPLY CODE
OF PRACTICE

The Groceries (Supply Chan Practices)
Market Invesugation Qrder 2009 ( Order)
and The Crocenes Supply Code of Praclice
{CSCOP Y impose oblgations on MAS
relating o relationships with s suppliersof
grocenes Under the Order and CSCOP MRS
s required to submit an annualcompliance
report to the Audit Commuttec for approval
and thentothe Competiion and Markets
Authonty and Grocernes Code Adjudicator

MAS submittedits repor L tothe Aucl
Commultec on 14 May 2015 covenng the
period from i Apnl 2014 to 31 March 2015
Inagcordance with the Order, a summary
of that complance report is set out below

MA&S bolieves thatwt has cornplicdin full
with GSCOPand the Order dunngthe
relevant period No formal dispules have
argen dunngthe reporting penod Four
atlegations regarding polential breachas
of CSCOP were made by supphiers dunng
the relevant penod, but all complaints have
beenwithdrawnjresolved

The disctosures required by law relating to the Croup s greenhouse gas emissions are included inthe table below For full details of
calculations and adjustrnents as well as performance against 2006/07 voluntary baseline see our 2015 Plan A Report

200418 03t »

Q00 tonnes 000 tonnes change

Direct emissions (scope 1) 167 168 -1
indirect ermissions from energy (scope 2) 367* 340 +ar
Total statutory emissions (scope 1+¢2) 534 508 +5
Transpart, energy waste and business travel (scope 3) 58 59 -2
Total gross/location-based emissions 592 567 .S
Carbon intensity measure (per 1,000 sq i of salesfloor) 30 30 L
Creen tanffs and carbon offsets 592 567 -44

ﬁo(al net/market place emissions

0 0 -]

Calcutated based on operational controlin accordance with 2014 DECC/DEFRA using Guidelines WRINWBCSD CHG Repeorung Protocols

(Revised edilion}and 2014 Scope 2 Guidance

InCrease caused by hgher UL goed elecintity Carbonintensty
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MBS operates systemsand controls to
ensure compliance with the Order and
CSCOP including the following

-3 The terms and condiions which govern
the trading relattonship between M&S
and those of iILs suppliers that supply
groceries Lo M&S incorporate GSCOP,

= New supplers areissued withinformation
asrequired by the Qrder,

->MA&S has a Code Comptiance Officer as
required under the Order supporied by
our n-house legal department, and

= Employee Lraining on CSCOP 1s provided
including annualrefresher programmes
and new starter traiming

POLITICAL DONATIONS

No petiical donations were made dunng
the year encled 28 March 2015 MBS hasa
policy of not making donations to political
organisations or independent elecuion
canddates or incurnng political expenditure
anywhere in the world as definedin the
Political Parties, Elections and Referendums
Act 2000

COING CONCERN

Inadopling the going concern basis for
prepanng the financial statements the
direclors have considered Lhe business
acuvities as setout onpages 1o 22as
woellas the Group s principal risks and
uncertanlics 85 58t oul on pages 2310 25
Based onihe Croups cash flow forecasls
and projections Lhe Boardis sauishedthat
the Group willbe able tooperate withinthe
level of itsfaciiuies for the foresceable
future For Lhis reason the Board considers
it appropnate for the Group Lo adopt

the going concernbasis i prepanngiis
finangial statements

AUDITOR

Resolutions to reappoint Deloitte LLP as
audhtor of the Company and to authonse
the Audit Committee to determine thew
rermuneration will be proposed at the
2015 ACM

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of Marks and Spencer Croup plc
will be held at Wembley Stadium Landon on
7 July 2015 at 11am The Notice of Meeung s
given together with explanatory notes,ina
booklet whichaccompares Lhis repert

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board s of the wiew Lhat the Annual
Report should be truly representatve of
the year and prowigde shareholders with the
information necessary to assess the Croups
performance busness madelandstrategy
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This cannot be achieved by merely
reviewng the final document at the end
of the preparation process The Board
ensured that its requirements were clearly
cormnmunicated irom the gutset to each
of the departments mvolved inthe
production of the Annual Report

The Board has adwised that the narratrve
reports should contain the key infermation
neoeded by investors and other users of the
reporiand shoutd avoid being promotional
n nature Furthermore the narrative
reportsin the front and the accounting
wformationinthe back of the report should
be consistent and the teams involved inits
production work closely logether Lo acheeve
this For anindependent opiuon, Lhe Board
atsorequesied the Audit CommitLeereview
the Annual Report and pravide feedback
The Commiltee s opmion on whetherihe
reporis far balanced and understandable
150N page 49

The drectlors are also responsible for
prepanng the Annust Report, the
Rernuneration Report and the linancial
statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations Company law
requires the directors to prepare financal
statements for each linancial year Under
that law the dirg¢iors have preparodihe
Groupand Company financial statements
inaccordance with International Financial
Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
Lhe EUJ Under company law the directors
rrust not approve the financial statements
unless they are sauisfied that they qive a true
andfarr view of the state of affawrs of the
Group and the Company and of Lthe profit
orloss of the Croup and the Company for
thal period Inpreparing these financiat
staternents, Lhe dirgctors are requiredto

- Select sutable accounting policies and
then apply thern consistently

-» Make judgernents and accounting
estrrnalos that are reasonabte and
prudent,

- Sate whether applicable IFRSS (as
adopted by the EU)have been followed,
subject to any matenaldepariures
disclosed and explaned in the financal
staternenis, and

= Prepare the financial staternenisona
going concern basis unless s
napproprate to presume that the
Company will continue inbusingss

The chirectors are respansible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the
Companys transactions and disclose,at
any time andwith reasonable accuracy
the financial position of the Company and
the Croup and to enable them to ensure

that the financial staterments and the
Remuneration Report comply with the
Cornpanies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regutation They aré also responsible
for safcguarding the assets of the Group
and 1he Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other rregulanties
The direclors are responsible forthe
mainlenznce and integnity of the
Company s websiie Legislationinthe

UK governing the preparationand
dissermination of financial statements may
differ from legislahionn other yurisdicuions

Each of tha directors, whose namesand
funclions are Lsied on pages 34 and 35 of
the Anrual Report confirmthal to the best
of thew knowdedge

- The Croup financial statements which
have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs os adopted by the EU, gve a lrue
and faz view of Lhe asscts Labilbies,
financial positionand profit of the Group

= The Strategic Repor! and the Directors
Report contained inthis reporlinclude
a farr review of the gevelopment and
performnance of the business and the
position of the Group, together witha
descrplionof the principal risks and
uncertainties that it faces and

-3 The Annual Report, taken as a whole,
ts fair, balanced and undersiandable
and provides the necessary information
for shareholders 1o assess the Groups
performance, business model and
strategy

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
TQO AUDITORS

Each drector confirms that, sofar as
he/fshe s aware, there 1s norelevant audit
information of which the Company s
auditors are unaware and that each director
has taken all the steps that hefshe ought to
have taken as a director Lo make himselfy
herself aware of any relevant audit
infermationandtoestablsh that the
Company s auditors are awara of that
informauon

The Directors’ Report was approved by a
duly authorised committee of the Board
of Directors on 19 May 2615 and signed
on its behatf by

Amanda Mellor

Croup Secretary

London, 19 May 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MARKS AND SPENCER CROUP PLC

In our opimon

The financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group’s
and of the parent company’s affairs

as at 28 March 2015 and of the Croup’s
profit for the 52 weeks then ended

The Group financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union

The parent company financial statements
have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Unton and as appliad

m accordance unth the provisions

of the Companies Act 2006

The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Articte 4 of
the IAS Regulation

The financial statements comprise the
Conscldated Income Statement the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
income the Consolidated and Company
Staternents of Financial Position the
Consclidatedand Company Statements

of Changes in Equity the Consolidated

and Company Staternents of Cash Flows
the reconalation of nat cash flow to
movement innet debt note and the related
notes 1 to 28and C1 to C7 The hnancial
reporting framework that has been apphed
tnther preparations applicable law and
IFRS as adopted by the European Unionand
as regards the parent company financial
stalements, asapplied naccordance with
the provisions of the Comparies Act 2008

GOING CONCERN

Asrequired by the Lislng Rules we have
reviewedthe directors statement contained
withinthe Other disclosures section on
page 82 that the Group 1s a going concern
We confirm that

< We have concluded that the directors use

of the going concernbasis of atcounting
inthe preparation of the financial
statements s appiopriale

-» We have not identified any material
uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt onthe Groups abiity to continue
45 3 going concern

However because not atl future eventsor
conditionscanbe predicted this statement
15 Not aguarantee as to the Croups ability to
continue as a going concern

OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

The key rsks we idenhfied are

o Presentation of non-GAAP measures

o Impawrment of store assets

o Inventory valuation and provisions

o Revenue recogrition - gift cards,
loyalty schemes, returns and
franchise arrangements

e Supplier rebates

@ Retirement benefits

Theassessed nsks of material misstatement
are those that had the greatesl effect on
our audit strategy the allocation of
resourcesin the audit and directing the
efforts of the engagement team

The Audit Committee has requested that,
white not required under International
Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland)
we tnclude i our reportany significant
finchngsinrespect of these assessed

nisks of material misstaternent

The description of risks below should be
read in conqjuncicn with the significant
1Issues considered by the Audit Committee
discussed on pages 48 and 49

Our audit procedures relating tothese
matters were designed in the context of
ouraugit of the financial statements as a
whole and nol Lo express an opinion on
individual account s or disclosures Our
opinion on the financial statements 1s not
modified with respect to any of the risks
described below and we donot express an
opimion on theseindiwdual matters

© See tables on p84-87 for more detail
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OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT CONTINUED

PRESENTATION OF
NON-CAAP MEASURES

Risk description

The presentaton of Income and costs
within non-CAAP measures (Lo derive
underlying profit before tax}under IFRS 15
judgemental with IFRS only requisaing the
senarate oresentation of maternal items
Judgement 15 required n deterrmning the
classification of kems as non-underlying

In calculating the reported non-CAAP
measures there are two nisks whichmay
result inthe underlying profit measure
bemng misstated and therefore not being
reliable to users of the financial statements

- ltems may be included inthe non-
underlysng adjustments which are
underlying or recurring tems, distorting
the reported underlying earnings

How the scope of our audr responded to the risk

- items may be omitted from the non-
undertying adjustments which are
matenaland one-of{ in nature

Explanations of eachadjustment to derve

Al rvenb b Armtbha ranartas nesbir
el ~pprof rf omsthoeoported neoht
before taxare set outin notes 1 and 5 tothe
financial statements

We evaluated the appropriateness of the
inclusion of iterns both individually andin
aggregate withun nan-underlying profits
including assessing the consistency of
items included year-on-year and ensunng
adherence to IFRS requrements and
lalest Financial Reporting Coungil ( FRC)
guidance We alsoagreed these terms to
supporting evidence

We assessed all items, either highbghted by
management or dentified through the
eourse of our audht, which were regardedas
one-off but ncluded withinunderlying
earnings to ensure that these are not
matenal either indnidually or in aggregate
For alladjustments recorded in calculating
underlying profits, we discussed the
appropristeness of the tem with the

Audit Commutteeand any disclosure
consigderations

Findings We are satisfied that the items.
excluded fiom underlying earmings endthe
related disclosure of these tems in the
Nnanoial statements is appropriate

IMPAIRMENT OF
STORE ASSETS

Risk description

As described inthe Accounting Policies in
note | andin note 15 Lo the financial
statements, the Group held £5 031 'm

of property plant and equipment at

28 March 2015 Theress anskthat the
carrying value of stores and related fixed
assels may be wgher than the recoverable
amount When a review for impairment

1$ conducted, the recoverable amount

1s determmined based on value N use
calcutations which rely onthe directors
assumptions and estimates of future
trading performance

The key assumptions apphed by Lhe
drectors in the imparrment reviews are

- Country-specific dscount rates
=2 Future revenue growth
=2 Trading margin

- Store costs including rent staff payroll
costs and general operating costs

1ne directors consider that each retail store
constitutes its own cash generating unil
(CGU ) withthe exception of the outlet
stores which are used Lo clear old season

How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

general merchandise stock at a discount
and certain strategtc siores The outiet
stores are constdered to represent one
CCUn aggregate and strategic stores are
evaluatedas part of a country-wide
impawment review

The CGroups accounting policy sefsoul a
relevant shelter penod for new storesto
be taken into account whenassessing
ingdicators of impairment durtng intial
years of trading to enable the storeto
establishitself in the market

We considered the appropriateness of the
methodology appled by the directorsn
calculating the impairment charges, and
the judgements applied in determmuning the
CGUs of the business

We assassed tho mparrment models and
calculatons by

-» Checking the mechanical accuracy of
the imparment models

- Assessing the discourt rates appledto
the imparment reviews for each country
and comparing the rates to our internal
benchmark date

= Comparing forecast growthrales to
cconomic data

-3 Evaluating theinformationincludedin
theimparrment models through our
knowledge of the business gained
through reviewing trading plans
strategicinitialives, and rmeeting wath
senior trading managers from key
categories and our retailndustry
knowledge

Wweassessed the appropriateness of the
shelter penod for each store openedwithin
that time frame and compared the onginal
investment case for the store againsLits

current trading performance Where stores
were trading sigreficant ly below the oniginal
case we considered the evidence avalable
to support future iImprovementsin
performance, specificatly by assessing the
Lrading plans and actions beng Laken onan
ndwidual store basis

Findings We concluded that Lthe
assumptions appled in the imparment
maodels were appropriate including those
made around shaller penads and no
additionalimparments were identified
from the work performed above




85
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015

OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT CONTINUED

INVENTORY VALUATION
AND PROVISIONS

Risk descnption

Al 28 March 2015 the Group held
inventories of E7978m As descnbedin

the Accounting Policies n note | tothe
financial staternents inventones are carred
at the lower of cost and net realisable value

As aresult the drectors applyjudgement
indetermining the appropnate provisions
for obsolete stock based upon a detaded
analysis of old season inventory net
realisable value below cost based upon

How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

plans for inventory to go into sale and stock
lass basedupon the runrate from recent
inventory counts

We obtained assurance over Lhe
appropriateness of rmanagement §
assumptions appled in calculating the
value of the nventory provisions by

- Checking the effectiveness of key
inventory controls operating across the
Group including those at 15 distnbution
centres and 26 retad stores

- Attending Inventory counts at 15
distripution centres and 16 stores

- Cneciang for a sampie of Indneduat
products that tnvoiced costs have
been correctly recorded and that the
alocation of directly atinbutable costs
has been correctly calcutated

- Comparing Lhe net realisable value,
obtained through a detailed review of
sales subsequent to the year end using
audi analylics, to Lhe cost price of
rwentories to check for completeness
of the assocated provision

=¥ Performing audit anatytics on stock
holding and movement data todentify
product nes with indicalors of low stock
turn or stock ageing

- Meeting with buyers ta valdate the
assumptions applied by management
compared to the current purchasing
strategy and ranging plans

- Reviewing the historical accuracy of
Inventory provissoning and the level of
Inventory wnte-offs during the year in
relation Lo stock loss

We evaluated consumer trends entified
throughbenchmarking and external
market data to challengethe assumptions
underlying sates forecasts by category to
assess the complieteness of provisions for
obsolescence

Findings The results of our testing were
satisfactorny andwe concur that the level
of inventory provisions 1s appropriate

REVENUE RECOGNITION - GIFT CARDS, LOYALTY
SCHEMES, RETURNS AND FRANCHISE ARRANGEMENTS

Rusk descriptien

As described in the Accounting Policies
innote 1 to the financial statements the
Croups revenue recogniticn policies
require the directors to make a number of
assumptions in determining the reporied
revenue for the peniod The key
assumpLiIons are

- Gift cards vouchers and loyalty schemes
-thedirectors apply an expected
redemption rate to the tolal value of
gl cards vouchers and loyalty points
issue based onhistoric trends

-» Returns - customners are entitled to
return products up o 35 days after
purchase gving rise (o ansk that sales
recogrsed durnng the penod will be

reversed in the nexl linancal penod
Thedrrectors apply judgement in
determining the provision regquired for
returns based on the prior five weeks
sales and recent product returnrates
Returns irom online sales are commonty
at a huigher level than traditional store
relailing resulting mthis judgement
becorming more s,gnificant in
determing the levet of prowsion
required

The Croup reported revenues mthe
penod rom the sale of food and general
merchandise to International franchise
partners and the sale of food to UK
franchise partners

The complexity of prictng structures
across franchise relationships and Lhe
Groups expansion nto new franchise
agreements, create anskthat revenue
may bemisstateddue tothe speafic
terms of business agreed with each
franchise partner Inadchition as explaned
on page 29 of the Strategic Report
international franchise markets have
been parucularly challenging dueto the
economic and political environments

in Lhe Middle East Russia and Ukraine
ring rise to a further nisk that franchise
recervables may be irrecoverable

Continues on p8é
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

CONTINUED

QUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS QF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT CONTINUED

REVENUE RECOGNITION - CIFT CARDS, LOYALTY
SCHEMES, RETURNS AND FRANCHISE ARRANGEMENTS CONTINUED

How the scope of our audit respended to the risk

We considered each revenut-impacting
provesionndividually, andassessed the
appropnateness of the assumptions and
judgerments applied

For the kev Aassuimntinns iisarlintha

gift card, voucher and loyalty scheme
provisions, we assessed the hisionc rates
of redemption and compared thesetothe
directors judgements

We assessed the approprateness of the
methodology applied in calculating the
returns prowision, and compared the
calculated provision to the actual levet
of returns recorded subsequent tothe
period end

We reviewed a sample of franchise
agreements including new agreements
during the period Our review specifically
focused on

-» Assessing the pricing structure and
deterrmirnng whether revenue has been
recogmsed inbne withthe terms of the
agreement Including the consideration
of any nghts toreturn old Inventorres

=» Considering the payment terms and
companng themto the payment
patterns expenencedwiththe
{ranchise partner

We independently assessed the
recoverability of franchise receivables
more than 30 days past due under the
franchise agreement andall receivables
from franchises inthe Middle East Russia
and Ukraine due to the risks identified
above Qur assessmentincluded reviewing
hustong payment patterns tor selected
franchises checking cashreceived
subsequent to the reparting date

consideningcoriespondence received
from franchise partners by the Croup,

and challenging management on the
Judgements applied in calculating any
provision for doubtful debts Forthe most
significant Iranchises, we obtained external
confirmations of key agreement terms

and the balance due for payment as at

28 March 2015

Findings We are satisfied thal Lhe key
assumpuons appledin calculatng the
pift card voucher and loyalty scherme
prowistons are appropriale Therun-rate
appled tocalculate the provision for
refunds 1sappropriate and testing
performed in relation lo recognition of
revenues fromfranchise partners or the
recoverabiity of any amounts cutstanding
at the year end proved satisfactory

SUPPLIER
REBATES

Risk description

As described in Lhe Accounting Policies In
note 1 and 17 to the financial statements
the Group recognises a reduction n cost
of sales as aresult of amounts receivable
from supplers primanly compnsing
contnbutions in relation Lo promotions

i Lhe Food business, slrategic volume
moves and some annual volume-based

rebates The majonty of these
contributions tend to be small i unit value
but high in volume and span relatively
short periods of ime although these can
be across the financial year end There are
a small number of lasger arrangements
whichrelate 10 multi-year periods

How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

Judgerment s required in deterimining

the pericd over which the reductionin
cost of sales should be recognised
requinng both a detailed undersitanding of
the contraclualarrangements themselves
as well as complete and accursle source
data tc apply the arrangements Lo

We tested that amounts recognised were
accurate and recorded inthe correct
penod based on the contractual
performance cbbgations by agreemng 3
sample to ndividual suppler agreements
We crculansed a sample of supplers lo
test whether the arrangements recorded
were complete and nterviewed o

sample of buyers to supplement our
understanding of the contraclual
arrangements Where responses wefre
not received we performed alternative
procedures

We tested the completeness and
accuracy of the systematc inputs to
the calculations for recording supplier
rebates and discounts by agreement to
supporing evidence, including volume
data and promotion dates

We perlormed revenue and margin
analysis to understand detaited trends
by product category in ordet to identify
apparent anormalies which may indicate
potential rebale income errors Such
anomaties were investigated to assess
whether they were indicative of a mis
applcalion of contractual lerms or other
calcutatwon errors

We also lesled a sample ol invoices and
debit notes raised post year end to Lest the
completeness and accuracy of accrued
supplier income at 28 March 2015 in
addition we tested the recoverability of
the amounts due at the year end

Findimgs The results of our testing were
satisfactory We consider the disclosure
gven around supplier rebates to provide
anaccurale understanding of the Lypes

of rebate income recened and Lbe tmpact
onthe statement of financal position as at
28 March 2015
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OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT CONTINUED

RETIREMENT
BENEFITS

Risk descripteon

As described m the Accounting Policies in
note | andinnotes 11 and 12 tothe financiat
statements, Lhe Group has a definedbenefit
pension planforits UK employees, which
was closed tonew entrants with effect from
1Al 2002 and 3 fpndod dal ~zdbeiehil

pension scherme in the Republic of ireland,

where no new benefits have accrued since
31 QOclober 2013

At 28 March 2015,the Group recorded a net
retirement benefit assel of £449 0m being
the netof schemea assets of FRRAARmMand
scherme liabhities of £8,1475m The Groups

How the scope of our audit responded to the nsk

net retirement benefit asset has shown
significant volatiity as the valuation s
sensitive to changes in key assumptions
such as the discount rate and inflabion
esttmates The setting of assumptions

15 complexand anarea of significant
judgement

We evaluated the directors assessment of
the assumptions made mihe valuation of the
scheme assets and labilties, and evaluated
the nformation contained withinthe
actuanal valuationreports for each scheme

We tested the membership census data used
mthevaluation of the schemes and, with
support from our ownacluanal specialists,
we considerad the valuation process appbed
by the Croupsactuaries, the scope of the

IN THE PREVIOUS YEAR'S AUDIT REPORT, THE FOLLOWING RISKS WERE ALSO INCLUDED:

valuationperformedand the key
assumpnons appled, and evaluated their
expertise We benchmarked and performeda
sensitvity analysis onthe key variablesinthe
valuatonmadel ncluding

->Salary increases
->Inflationrates
- Mortality rates
> Discount rates

Impairment of goodwill and brands, and

Management averride of controls

Our applcation of matenality

Weobtained asset confirmations or carnad
out cther audit procedurestotest the
completencss and accuracy of the
schemeassets

Findings Fromthework performedabaove
we are satisfied that all assumplions applied
inrespect of the valuation of the scheme
assets and labilties are appropriate

These have not been nciuded as key risks in
the current year

We determined mateniality for the
Grouptobe £32 0m

We reported all audit differences
in excess of £1 0m

we define materalily as the magritude of
misstatement in the Nnancial stalements
that makes it probable that the economuc
decisions of areasonably knowledgeable
personwould be changedor influenced
We use materiality bothinplanning the
scope of our audit work andin evalualing
the results of our work

We deterrmined matenziity farthe Group
tobe £32 O0m, which s approximately

5% of pre-tax profit and 1% of equity

The materialily used by the predecessor
auditor in 2014 was £31 Om, which
represented 5% of pre-tax profu adjusted
for npn GAAP performance measures

We agreed with the Audit Cormmiltee that
we would report te the Cormmuttee all audit
differences inexcess of £1 0m (2014 the
predecessor auditor reported onall
differences identified above £1 Sm)as well
as thfferences below that threshold that

nour view warranted reporting on
qualitative grounds We also report,

to the Audit Commuttee on disclosure
malters that wederntifted when assessing
the overallpresentation of the financial
statements
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MARKS ANDSPENCER CROUP PLC
FINAHCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
CONTINUED

AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF QUR AUDIT

Scope of audit

Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining
anunderstanding of the Group and its
environment, including Croup-wide
controls, and assessing the nsks of materal
rmisstatement at the Group levet The
Group has retail operations in 59 countres
of which 17 are wholly-owned businesses
two aretomint ventures and 40 onerale
under franchise agreements (in adaditon
to two wholly-owned businesses which
also operate franchise agreements in
thoseterrtones)

Audit components

Basedontihat assessment we focused our
Croup audit scope pnmarily onthe audiL
work at eight wholly-owned locations
UnitedKingdom Republic of retand, Czech
Republc, Creece, Turkey, India, China and
Hong Kong Allof these were subjecttoa
lUlaudt These locations represent the
nOnCnal huginecs oot e ard account for
99% of the Group s revenue and 95% of

the Croups profil before taxand 76% of
the Group s net assets They were also
selected Lo provide an appropriate basis

for undertaking audit work to address

the risks of material misstatement
dentfied above Whilst we audit the
revenues recewed by the Croup from
franchise operations, which account for
3% of the Group s revenue, we do not avdit
the underlying franchise operations

We performed n full scope audit on
components representing 99% of
the Group’s revenue and 95% of the
Group's profit before tax and 76%
of the Group's net assets

At the parenl enriliLy level we also tested the
consoldation process and camned out
analytical procedures Lo confirmour
conclusion that there were no significant nsks
ol matenal misstatement of the aggregated
finanialinformation of the remaining
components nol subject to a full audit

We visited all sigrificant

components dunng the year

The most significant component of

the Croupisits retail business in the
United Kingdom which accounts for B9%
of the Group s revenue 91% of Lhe Groups
operating profit and S0% of the Groups
nel assets The Group audit team performs
the audit of the UK business without

the invotvement of a component team
Durning the course of our audit the Group
audit team conducted 16 disinbution
centre and 27 retail store wisits in the UK
to understand the current trading
performance and at cerlainlocations
perform tests ol internal controls and
validate levels of mwventory held

Since Lhis was our first year asthe Group s
audior we visited each of the esght
signiflicant iocations cutlined above Jl

Full scope audt

components
REVENUE PROFITBEFORETAX NETASSETS
# Analytical procedures 1% % %
@ Specifc audi procedures 0% IX 1%
@ Full audit 99% 95% 76%

least once Each component was visited
during our transition planmng and risk
assessmeni process In order for a senior
member of the Group auvdit Lleam Lo
obtaina thorough understanding of the
operations risks and controlenvironments
of eachcomponent For more sigruficant
or complex components we conducteda
secaondwisit dunng the audit to review the
component auditor s working papers and
attend key meetings with component
management

Coing forward we wall follow a programme
of planned visits thal has beendesigned so
that a serwor member of the Group audit
team wisits each of the locations where

the Group audit scope was locused at

least once every twoyears and the most
significant of Lhem at least once a year

Inyears whenwe donot visit a significant
component we wallinckude the componesnt
2udil leamingur teambneling discuss
thetr risk assessment and review
documentation of the hndings from

their work

Inaddition to our visits in these locations,
senior members of each component
audit teamatiended a Lwo-day traimng
programme hosted by the Group audit
team covenng topics which included
understanding the business andits core
strategy a discusston of the sigrificant
risks and workshops onour planned
audil approach

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 200&

in our opirion

- Thepart of Lhe Drectors Rermuneration
Reporitobe audited has been properly
preparedinaccordance with the
Companies Act 2006

=» Thenformation givenin the Strategic
Report and the Ovectors Report farihe
financial year for which the financiat
statements are prepared s consistent
with thelinanciat statements
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MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Adequacy of explanations receved
and accounting records

Underthe Compares Act 2006 we are
required to report to youif InOwr OpINN

- We have not recerved all the information
and explanations we require far our
audiL

=» Adequate accounting records have not
haonbant betha poranl 20530, 57
returns adequate for our audit have not
beern received from branches not visited

by us

- The parent company financial
staternents are notin agreement with
the accounting records and returns

Wwe have nothing to report mrespect of
those matlers

Durectors’ remuneration

Underthe Companies Act 2006 we are also
required to reportif n our opinion certain
disclosures of directors remuneration have
not been made or the part of the Directors
Remuneration Report to be audited s not
inagreement with the accounting records
and returns We have nothing to report
ansingfrom these matlers

Comporate Governance Statement
Under the Listing Rules we are also required
torewew the part of the Corporate
Covernance Statement relatingtothe
Company s compliance with ten provisions
of the UK Corporate Covernance Codle

We have nothing to report anising from

our review

Qur duty to read other information

In the Annual Report

Under International Standards on Auditing
{UXandtreland) we arerequired Loreport
to you If in curopinion informationinthe
Annual Report s

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

=3 Materally iInconsistent with the
informat:on in the audited financial
statements

> Apparenlly matenally ncorrect based
on or materatty mconsistent wilh our
knowledge ofthe Group acquired in the
course of performng our audst

- Otherwise musleading

In particutar we are required to consider
whether wa have identified any
inconsistencies between cur knowledge
acquired duningthe audit and the directors
statement that they consider the Annual
Reportis far, balanced and understandable
and whether the Annual Report
appropriately discloses those matters that
wa communicatedto the Audit Commutiee
which we consider should have been
disclosed We confirm that we have not
wdentified any suchinconsistcnces or
misleading statements

As explained more fully inthe Directors
Responsiliies Statement the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied
that they gve atrue and lair view Qur
responsibility 1 to audit and express an
opinion onthe financial statementsin
accordance with applicable lawand
International Standards on Auditing (LUK
andlreland) Those standardsrequire us
to cornply with the Auchting Pracuces
Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

We alse comply with International Standard
on Quality Control 1 (UK and Iretand) Qur
audit methodology and teols amteensure
that our qualty control procedures are
effeclive,understood and applied Qur
quality controls and systems include our
dedicated professional standards review
teamand independent partner reviews

This reportis made solely tothe
Company s members as abody In
accordance wath Chapter 3 of Part 16

of the Comparues Act 2006 Our audit wark
has been undertaken so that we rmight
stateto the Company s members ihose
matterswe arerequired to statetothem
inan auditors report and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permutted
by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibiily to anyone olher thanthe
Company and the Company s members
as a body Torour audit work, for thus repart
or for the opirnions we have lormed

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Anaudit rwvolves cbtlaining evidence
apout the amounts and disclosures inthe
frnancial staterments sufficient Lo give
reasonable assurance that Lhe linancial
statementsare free from material
misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or
error Thus includes an assessment of

= Whether the accountmy policies are
appropriate tothe Groups andthe
parent company s arcumstancesand
have been consisiently appled and
adequately disclosed

[aw watle~

lan Waller (Senior sLatutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Aucditor

London, United Kingdom
19 May 2015

-> The reasonableness of signthcant
accounting estimates made by the
dwectors

=> The overall presentation of Lthe
linancial staterments

Inaddition, we read all the financial and
non-linancial information in the Annual
Report toidentfy materalinconsistencies
with the audited financial statements

and todentify any information that 1s
apparently matenatly ncorrect based on

of malenally ngonsistent with Lhe
knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit If we become aware
of any apparent matenal misstatements
of Inconsistencies we consider the
implicatiwnsfor our report
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

$2 weeks ended 18 March 2015 51 seehs onded 29 Match 2014
Undertying Non-underiying Total Undarlying Non-undeldyng Total
Naotes £m [ 4] Im im im im
Revenue 13 10,311 4 - 10,311 4 103097 - 103097
Operating profit 218 762 S (612) 7013 7419 (474) 6945
Finance ncome 56 155§ - 155 200 49 50
Finance costs 6 (6 8) - (V16 8) (1391) - {1391)
Profit before tax 45 6612 (61 2) 6000 6229 (425) 5804
Income Lax expense 7 {124 B) 65 {118 3) (71 427 (74 4}
Profit for the year 5364 (547) 4817 5058 Q2 5060
Attributable to
Owners of the parent 5412 (54 7) 4865 5200 a8 524 8
Non-controling interests (4 8) - 48) (142 (46) (188)
536 4 {547) 4817 5058 a2 5060
Basic earnings per share 8 331 (3 4p) 29 7p 322p 03p 325p
Diluted earnings per share B 329p {3 4p) 29 5p 319p 0ip 322p
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREMENSIVE INCOME
%1 weeks anded 52weesks enced
28 March 2013 ¥ March 2044
Nowtd m m
Profit for the year 4817 5060
Qther comprehensive ncomefiexpense)
Items that witl not be classified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of rouirernent benchit schermes n 1937 853
Tax (charge)/credit on retirement benefit schermes {40 2) 318
153 5 {53 5)
Items that may be reclasnified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreign currency translaticn differences (75) (223)
Cashfllow and net investmenl hedges
- far value movamonts inother cormprehensive ncoms 2212 {1099)
-reclassified and reported in net profit (600) 364
—amount recognised minventones {216) 187
Tax (chargeycredit on cash flow hedges and net nvestrment hedges {212) 122
1109 {64 9)
Other comprehensive ncomefexpense) for the year, net of tax 2644 {(Viga)
Total comprehensive income for the year 7461 3876
Attributable to
Cwners of the parent 7509 4064
Non-controllng interests (4 8) (188)
7461 3876
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9n

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at Asat
28 March 015 29 March 014
Neo et m imn
Assets
Non-current assets
Inlangble assets 14 8sa 2 8084
Property, plant and equipment 15 50311 5,1399
Investment property 156 57
Investment Injoint ventures 122 t27
Other financialassets 13 30 30
Retrement benefit asset 1t 4607 2007
Trade and ather receivables 17 2833 3135
Denvative financal instruments 21 758 406
Deferred tax assets 12 -
FAGCHE £5305
Current assets
Inventonas 7978 8455
Other nancial assets 16 ne 177
Trade and otherrecewvables 17 s 3095
Denvative financial nstruments 2 nre 137
Cashand cash equivalents 18 2059 1821
1,455 0 1,3685
Total assets 8,1961 79030
Liabilities
Current babilities
Trade and other payables 19 1,642 4 1,6928
Partrershup babiliky to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Schome 12 ne 719
Borrowings and other financial iabitities 20 2794 4487
Dervairve Ninanciatinstruments 21 17 515
Provisions 22 462 448
Current tax babibbies 640 396
21116 23493
Non-current Liabilities
Retrement benefit deficit 1 nz 107
Trade and olher payables 9 397 3340
Partnershipliabiity to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 12 4410 4968
Borrowings andg other inancialliailiies 20 1,7459 16551
Derwvative financial nstruments 2 200 754
Provisions 22 321 a4
Deferredtaxliabiives 21 3153 2426
2,8857 2,8470
Total Labilities 4,997 3 5,1963
Net assets 31988 27067
Equity
Issued share capital 24 4120 4081
Share premium account 3924 3555
Capitalredemption reserve 2,2026 22026
Hedging reserve 6412 {418)
QOther reserve (6,542 2) 85422)
Retained earnings 66705 63251
Total shareholders’ equity 13,1996 2,7073
Non-controlbng interests in equity {0 B} (06)
Total equity 3,988 2,7067

The financial statements were approved by the Board a

the notes onpages 94 to 125 #

Marc Bolland Chief Executive Officer
Helen Weir Chief Finance Officer

authorsed forissue on 19 May 2015 The financial statements also comprise
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Crdinary Share Capual Non-
thare  premum redemption Haggng O ner Retaned controtdng
capital accaumt roserwe reserve resprve’ l!armnut‘ To~al i grest Tokal
Em &m £m im {m {m im im im
As at 3 March 2013 4035 351 2,2026 92 (65422} 61503 25385 (190) 2s18%
Prafitfloss) for the year - - - - - 5248 524 8 (i1@8) 5060
Ciher comprehensive expense)/income
Foreign currency translabon - - - (o7 - (216) {22 3) - (223)
Remeasurements of relirement,
benent schermes - - - - - (853 (85 3) - (853}
Tax credit onrevirement benefit schemes - - - - - 38 318 - 38
Cash flow and net imvestment hedges
~ far valug movementsinother
comprehensive ncome - - - {(1176) - 77 {1099) - {1099)
- reclassified and reparted innet profit? - - - 364 - - 364 - 64
- amount recognised nnventones - - - 187 - - 187 - -k
Taxon cashflow hedges and net
nvestrnont hedges - - - 122 - - 122 - 122
Qlher comprehensive expanse - - - {510) - (674) (118 4) - {118 4)
Total comprenensive (expense)income - - - (510) - 4574 406 4 (18 8) 876
Transactions with owners
Dwidends - - - - - (2736) (27386) - (2738)
Transaclions with non-controlling
sharcholders - - - - - 393 (339 372 210
Shares issued on exercise of employee
share options 46 404 - - - - 450 - 450
Credit Tor share-basod payments - - - - - 213 213 - 23
Deferred tax onshare schemes - - - - - 90 20 ~ 90
As at 29 March 2014 4081 3555  2,2026 (418} (65422) 63251 27073 (Q6) 27067
As at 30 March 2074 4081 3555 2,2026 {4)8) (6,542 2) 63251 11,7073 (06) 27067
Profit/toss) for the year - - - - - 486 S 486 5 (ag) 4am?
Cther comprohensive (expense}ineome
Foresgn currency translalion - - - {2 0) - {55} {75} - (75)
Remeasuremoents of retrement
berefit schemes - - - - - 1937 1917 - 1937
Tax charge onretrernent benefit schemnes - - - - - 40 2) (a0 2) - (40 2)
Cash flow and nel investment hedges
- farvalue movernonts inother
cormprenensve NCome - - - 2109 - 103 222 - 2212
- reclassified and reported i net profit? - - - (60 0) - - (600) - (60 0)
- amount recognised n nventorres - - - {21 6) - - {21 6) - 216)
Tax on cash flow hedges and net
nwvestrent hedges - - - {2) 2) - - (212) - {21 2)
Other comprehensive ncome - - - 1061 - 1583 2644 - 264 4
Total comprehensive {expense)ncome - - - 1061 - 6448 7509 48) 7461
Transactions with owners
Dwidends - - - - - {2807) ({2807) - (2807
Transactions with non-controllng
sharoholders - - - - - - - as 46
Shares issued onoxercise of employee
share options 39 369 - - - - 408 - 408
purchase of ownsharesheld by
employee trusts - - - - - (2a2) (a1 - (242
Release of share-based payments - - - - - [18)] an - Qan
Deferreddtax onshare schemes - - - - - 66 66 - 66
As at 28 March 20015 4120 3924 2,2026 643 (6,5422) 6,6705 31996 (D8) 31988

1 The Other reserve was onginalty createn s part of ne cagetal
the capeal reout ion by the Company (oang tha carryung value

Mar\s and Spencar plc at Jhe date of the transaction

we

The Retaned earnings reserva mcludes s curmiatnee £17 6m10ss (sl year £71mioss)in the currency feserve
Amounts reclassdied and reparted I oroit Rava beenrocondad ncest of sales(f4 1m lastyear £ 100 }ahd france costs (£55 6m Ly year

{£48 4mp

restruciunng that togi placen 2002 I represents the didfarence betweenthe rormunal vatue of the shares Aiued onor (o
of the ITvStITEnt in Marks and Spencer pleland the share captal, share preum and €20 tal redermplon reserve of
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

52 weohs enced

52 weaks enoed

78 March 2078 29 March 2014
Hotes im Em
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated fromoperations 26 1,3491 11755
Income tax paid [tAR)] (459)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,278 0 11296
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on property disposals 354 250
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment (521 8) (4401)
Purchase of intangiblc 2sscks (178 0) (2015)
ReductionXpurchase} of current financialassels 60 N7
Interest recewved 91 Ja
Net cash used in investing actrvities {649 1) (6149)
Cash flows from financing actrvities
tnterest paid {115 3) (1327)
Cash (outftowinflow from borrowings {165 7) 1675
(Repayrmentydrawdown of syndicated loan notes {10 2) 1541
Redemption of medium-termm notes - {4000}
Decrease in oblgations under finance leases 48) {73)
Payment, of liabitity to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (54 4) {503)
Equity dividends pard (2807) (2736)
Sharesissued onexercise of employee share options a0 8 aa2
Purchase of own shares by employee trust (24 2) -
Net cash used in financng activities {614 5} {4981}
Net cash inflow from activities 144 166
Effects of exchange rate changes {23) (16}
Opening net cash 1757 1607
Clesing net cash 2 1878 1757
| inciudos interest onthe parinerstp lat: ty tothe Marks A Spencer UX Penson Schome
52 wecks endad 5 wopks anced
18 March 2015 #9 March 2014
Notes &m i
Reconciliation of net cash flow to mavement in net debt
Opering net debt {2,463 6) {(26143)
Net cashinflow from activities 144 166
{Decrease)increasencurrent financial assets (6 0) 17
Decrease in debt financing 2351 1360
Exchange and other non-cash movernents {21) (36)
Movement in net debt 2404 1507
Closing net debt 27 {2,223 2) (2,461 6)
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MARKS AND SPENCER CROUP PLC
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The financial staternents have beenprepared in accordance

with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)and

IFRS Interpretations Commuttee {FRS IC)interpretations, as
adopled by the EuropeanUnion and with those parts of Lhe
Cormpanies Act 2006 applicable Lo comparues reporting under IFRS

Inadopung the gong concern basts for prepanng the financial
staternents the directors have consicered the business activities
as set out onpages 1 to 31 as well as the Group s principal nsks and
uncertanties 3s set out onpages 24 to 25 Based onthe Croups
cash flow forecasts and projections, the Board is satisfied that the
Croup willbe able to operate within the level of its Facilties for the
foresesable future For this reason the Croup conttnues to adopt
the going concern basis in prepanng its financial statements

The following IFRS, IFRS IC interpretabions and amendments are
affectve for the first ime i this imancial year

FRS 10 Consoldated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Jont
Arrangements and IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entitres and the amendments to1AS 27 (2011) Separate Financial
Staternants and LAS 28 (2011) Investments in Assocates and Joint
Ventures Thesehave not had a material wnpact onthe Group

There are no IFRS IFRSIC inter pretations or amendments that have
been issued bui are not yet effective that would be expectedto
have a materialimpact onthe Croup

The Marks and Spencer Scottush Lmied Partnership has taken
an exemptionunder paragraph 7 of the Partnership (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 for the requirement to prepare and deliver
financial staterments in accordance with the Companies Act

Asummary of the Company s and the Group s accounting policies
18 given below

Accounting convention

The hnancial stalements are drawn up on the tistoncal cost basis
of accounting, as modilied by inancial asset s and hnancal labililics
{inclucing dervative instrurnents) at fair value Lthrough profil
andloss

Basis of consclidation

The Group Nnancial statements incorporate the inancial
siatements of Marks and Spencer Group plc and altits subsidiaries
made uplothe year enddate Where necessary adustments are
madc tothe hnancial staterments of subsidarnes Lo bring the
accounting poliies used in kne with those used by the Group

Subsicharies

Subsidiary undertakings arc all entilies (including special purpose
enulies) over which the Group has Lhe pawer 1o govern the linancial
and operaling polcies generally accompanying a shareholding of
maorae Lhan one half of the votng nghts Subsidiary underlakings
acquired dunng the year are recorded using Lhe acguisition
methed of accounung and ther results are included {zom the

date of acquisition

The separable net assels, ncluding property plant and equipment
and ntangible assels, of the newly acquired subsidiary undertakings
are ncorporated Mo the consoldated financial statementsonthe
basis of the farr value as at the effective date of control

Intercompany Lransacuans, balances and unrealised gans on
Lransacuons between Group companics are ciminated

Revenug

Revenue compnises sales of goods Lo customers outside Lhe Croup
less an appropriale deduction far aclual and expectied returns,
discounts and loyally scheme vouchers and i5 slatednet of value
added Lax and other sales Laxes Revenue s recogrised when goods
are delvered and the sigaiflicant nsks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer

Supplier income

In ling wathindustry practice Lthe Group enters into agreements with
suppliers to share the costs and benefits of promotionalactty
and volume growth The Croup receives mcome fromits supplers
based onthe specific agreement s in place This supplier income
recewved s recogrsed as adeducluion from cost of sales based

on the entitlement Lhat has been earned up to the balance

shoot date for each relevant suppber agreement Marketing
contributions equipment hire and other non-judgemental, fixed
rale supplier charges are not ncluded in the Group s delinition of
supplier income

The types of supplier ncome rocogrised by Lhe Group and Lthe
recogniuion polices are

A Promotional cantnbutions Includes suppler contributions 1o
promotional giveaways and pre-agreed cantribulions to annual
spend and save acliviy

Income 15 recognised as a dedutton Lo cost of sates over the
relevant promotional penod Income s calculated and nvoiced
at the end of the promotional period based on actuat sales or
according 1o fixed contnbution arrangements Contribulions
carned but notinvoiced are accrued at the end of Lhe

relevant penicd

B Volume-based rebates Includes annual growilh inceniives,
seasonat contributions and coniributions to share economies of
scale resulting from rmoving product supply

Annual growthincentives are calcutated and invoiced at the endof
Lhe year once earned based onfixed percentage growthlargets
agreed (or each supplier at the beginning of the year They are
recogrised as areductionin cost of sales in the year 1o which they
relate Other rebates are agreed with the supplier and spread

over the relevart season/contract penod to which they relate
Contributions earned but not nvoiced are accrued at the erd of
the relevant period

Uncollected supplier ncomne at Lhe balance sheet datess ctassificd
within the financial staterments as follows

A Trade and ather payables The majonty of ncome due from
suppliers s netled aganst amounts owed Lo that supplier as
the Group has the right to offset Lhese balances As suchihe
oulstanding supplier Income within trade and other payables
at yoar endssimmatenal

B Trade and other recervables Supplier income that has been
earned but nolinvaiged at the batance sheet date 1s recognisedin
Trade and other recervables and primanly relates to volume based
rebates that runup to the period end

In order to prowide users of the accounts with greater understanding
wm this area, addionral balance sheet disclosure s providednnote 17
to the financial staterments

Diwvidends

Finaldividends are recorded i the financial statementsnthe
penodin which they are approved by the Company $ shareholders
Intenmdmndends are recorded in the pernod in which they are
approved and paid

Pensions
Funded pension plans are 1n place for the Group s UK employees
and sorne employees overseas

For defined benefit pension schemes, the difference betweenthe
far value of the assets and the present value of the defined benefit
cbligation s recognised as an asset or labilty in the statement

of financial poston The defined benefit cbugation s actuanally
calculated using the projected unit credit methed

The service cost of providing retwement benefits to employees
during the year together withthe cost of any benefits relating to
past service 1s charged to operating profit inthe year
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Pensions continued

The nel interest cost on the net retrement benefit assetfatility (s
calculated by applying the discount rate, measured at the beginnmg
of the year, to the net defined benef(t asset/liability andis included
2s a single net amount in finance income

Remeasurements being actuanal gains andlosses, together with
the cifference betweenactual nvestment returns andthe return
implied by the net interest cost, are recognised mmediately mthe
statement of comprehensive iIncome

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense as they fatidue

Intangible assets

A Goodwill Goodwilansing on consolidation represents the
excess of the consideration transferred and the amount of any
non-controlling nterest In the acquiree over the farr vatue of the
identifiable assets and babilties (including intangible assets) of the
acquired entity at the date of the acquisition Goodwallis recogrised
as an asset and assessed forimpairment annually or as triggenng
events occur Any impairment 1s recogrised immediately in the
ncome statement

B Brands Acquired brand values are held on the statement of
financll positioninitially at cost Definite Wfentangibles are
amortised ona straight-Une basis over their estirnated usefulives
indefinte ife intangibles are tested for imparment annually or as
triggenng events occur Any mparment In value s recogrsed
immediately nthe ncome statement

C Software intangibles Where computer software 1s not an
integral part of arelated term of computer hardware the software
1s Lreated as an intangible asset Capitalised software costs include
external direct cost s of goods and services as well asinternal
payroll related costs for employees who are directly associated
with the project

Capitalised software development costs are amortised ona
straight-Une basis over Lher expected economic Lives normally
beLtweenthree and ten years Computer software under
development s held al cost [0ss any recogrised impairment
loss Any imparrment invalue s recognisedimmedalely inthe
ncome statement

Property, plant and equipment

The Croup s policy 1s Lo state property plantand equipment al cost
less accurmulated deprecialion and any recognised impawment
loss Property 1s not revalued faraccounting purposes Assetsin
the course of constructionare held at cost less any recogrvsed
impanrmert loss Costincludes professional fees and, for qualfying
assets, borrowing costs

Depreciaton s provided towrite off the ¢ost of tangible non-
currenl assets (including investment properties) less estimated
residual values by equal annualinstalments as follows

= Freehold land - not depreciated

-» Freehotd and leasehotd buldings with a remamneng lease term
over 50years - depreciated to ther residual vatue over Lher
estimated remaiing economic tives

< Leasehotd buldngs with a remaining lease termof less than
S0 years - depreciated over Lthe remairing penod of the lease

= Fixlures fitlings and equiprnent - three Lo 25 years according
Lo the estimated Ufe of the asset

Residual values and useful economic Lives are reviewed annually
Depreciation s charged on all additions to, or disposals of,
depreciating assets n the yearof purchase or disposal

Any imparment invalue Is recogrised immediately nthe
income staternent

Leasing

Where assets are [inanced by teasing agreements and the risks and
rewards are substantially transferred Lo the Group (finance leases)
the assets are treated as If they had been purchased cutnight and
the corresponding Wabilty to the leasing company s included as
anoblgation under finance leases Depreciation on leased assels
1s chargedto Lheincome staternent on the sarme basis as owned
asseis unless thetermof the lease 1s shorter Leasing payments
are treated as consisling of capilal and interest elemnents and the
interest s charged tolhe ncome statermnent

Allother leases are operating leases and the costs inrespect of
operating leases are charged on astraight-ine basis over the
lease Llerm The value of any lease incentive recoved to take on
anoperating lease {for example, arent lroe peniod) i1s recogrised
as deferred income and s released over the Ufe of the lease

OUR BUSINESS

Leasehald oranayment<

Payments made toacquire leasehold land and bulldings are
ncluded in prepayrment s at cost and are amortised over the bfe
ol the lease

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cashequivalents inctudes short-term deposits with banks
and other financialinstitutions with anmiial matunty of three
rnonths or less and credit card payment s recesved within 48 hours

Inventories

Inventories are valued on a weighted average cost basis and carned
at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes all dirocl
expendilure and othér atlnbutable costs ncurred Inbrnging
nventories Lo therr present location and condition AlLinven.ores
are firnshed goods Certan purchases of nventornes rmay be subject
to cash flow hedges for foreign exchange risk The Group applesa
basis adjustment for those purchases in @ way Lhat the cost 15 mlially
eslablished by reference to the hedged exchange rate and not the
spotrate at the day of purchase

QUR PERFORMANCE

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised whenthe Croup has a present obligation
as aresult of apast event and it s probable that the Croupwill be
required 1o settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the
best ostimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at
the end of Lthe reporting pencd andarc discountiedto present value
where the effect 1s material

Share-bosed payments

The Croup 1ssues equity-setiled share-based payments to certam
employees A fair value for the equity-settted share awards s
measured at the date of grant The CGroup measures the far value
of each award using the Black-5choles model where appropriate

The fair value of each award 1s recognised as an expense aver the
vesting period on a straight-line basis, after allowing for an estimate
of the share awards that will eventually vest Thelevel of vesting s
rewiewed a1 each reporung period and the charge s adjusted to
reflect actualand estmatedlevels of vesting

Forelgn currencies

The results of ovarseas subsidianes are translated at the weighted
average of monthly exchange rates for revenue and profiis The
statements of financial position of overseas subsidianes are
translated at year end exchangerates The resulling exchange
differences are dealt with through reserves and reported inthe
consolidated statement of comprehenswve income

Jransactions denorminated i foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Foreign currency
monetary assets and Labilities held at the end of the reporting
pernod are translated at the closing batance sheet rate The resuling
exchange gainor loss I recognised within the income statement
except when daferredin other comprehensive income as qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualfying netinvestment hedges
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MARKS ANDSPEMCERCROUP PLC
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Taxation

Tax expense comprises current and delerred tax Taxis recogrused
ntheincome statement except to the extentitrelateslonems
recognsed tn other cornprehensive income or directly nequity
inwhich caseLhe relalodlax s also recogrisedin other
comprchensiveincome or directly in equity

Deferred tax s accounted for using a ternporary difference
approach and s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable

on temporary differences betweenthe carrying armount of

assets and babiities in the statement of financal pesibion and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit
Deferred taxis calculsted based onthe expected manner of
realssation or sectlement of the carrying armount of assets and
Liabilities applying taxrates andlaws enacted or substantively
enacied at the end of the reporung penod

Deferred tax liabilihies are generally recogrused for atitaxable
temporar y differences Deferred tax babiities are recognised
for taxable temporary differences ansing oninvestrnents in
subsidianes, associates and jJoint ventures, except wherethe
reversat of the temporary difference canbe controlledby the
Group anditis probable that the difference willnot reverse in
the foresecable future

Deferred tax Lablities are not recogmised ontemparary cifferences
that anise from goodwill which s not deductible tor tax purposes

Deferred tax assets are recogrised to the extent it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
ternporary differences can be utiised The carrying amount of
deferred tax assetsis reviewed at the end of eachreporting period
angreduced tothe extent that itis nolonger probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of

the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and babilities are not recogrused inrespect of
ternporary cifferences that anse onintialrecogrition of assels
and babiblios acquired other than in a busingss combination

Financial instruments

Financial assels and uabibties are recogrised in the Group s
staterment of financial posilion when the Group becomes aparty
to the contraciual provisions of the instrunment

A Trade and other receivables Trade recevables arerecorded
imtiatly at farr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
As such Lhs resulls in thar recognition st nominal value Loss any
allowance for any doubtful debts

B Other financial assets Other financial assets consst of
nvestmentsin debt and equity securities and shorl-term
mvestments and are classifiod as cither avallable-for-sale or far
valuc through profit or loss Available-for-satle inancial asselsare
imtally measured at farr value, ncluding ransacuon costs directly
attnibutable to the acquesiion of the financial asset Financal assels
held at [ar value through profit or loss aretnitially recogrused at fair
value and transaclion costs are expensed

Wwhere socurities are designated as lar value through profit or loss
gains and losses ansing from changes m farr value arenciuded I
profil or loss far the penod For available-for-sale investments
gains or tosses arising lrom changes in fair value are recognised

n comprehensive Income, untl the security s disposed of oris
determined to be impaired at which lme the cumutalive gan or
loss provacusly recegrisod in Comprehensive Ncome s included

in the profi or less for the penod Equity nvesiments that do not
have a quoted markel price in an active markel and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured by other means are heldal cost

C Classification of financial labiities and equity Financiat
babibties and equity Instruments are classified according to the
substance of Lhe contractual arrangements enteredinto Aneguily
instrument s any cantract that evidences aresiduglinterast mthe
assats of the Group after deducting all of its babiities

D Bank borrowings Inleresl bearing bank loans and overdraftsare
niuatly recorded at {air value, whsch eguals Lhe procceds recerved
net of directissue costs They are subsequently hetd at amortised
casl Finance charges, inctucing prermuums payable on settlement
or redemptionand direct issue COsts, are accounted forusingan
effeclive interest rate method andareadded tothe carrying
armount of thensirument to Lhe extent that Lhey are not settled
nlhepernod inwhich theyarise

E Loan notes Long-lerm loans are ntally measured al farr value
and are subsequently held at amortised cost untess the loanis
hedged by a dernvative financialinstrument in which ¢ase hedge
accounting treatment will apply

F Trade and other payables Trade and cther payables are recorded
initially at fair value and subseguently measured at amorlised €ost
Cenerally this resulis intherr recogmilionat their norminal value

G Equity instruments Equity instrument sissued by the Company
ar@recorded at the consideration recenved, net of direct issue casts

Derivatrve hnancial instruments and hedging activities

The Group primarity uses interest rate swaps and forward foreign
currency contracts Lo manage s exposures 1o flucluatonsn
interest rates and forergn exchange rates These instruments
areninaltly recagmised at fair value onthe trade date and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value at the end of the
reporting perod The rmethod of recognising the resulting gan
or loss 15 dependent onwhether the derivatsve 1s designated as
ahedging instrument and Lhe nature of the item being hedged

The Croup designates certain hedging denvatives as esther

-» Ahedge of a highly probable forecast transaction or change in
the cash flows of a recognised asset orlability (a cash flow hedge)

-» Ahedge of the exposure Lo change nthe farr value of a
recogruscdassetor lability (3 farr value hedge)

- Ahedge of the exposure on the translation of net investments in
foreign enuties (3 nel investrment hedge)

Al inception of ahedging relationship, the hedging instrurment and
the nedgeditem are documented and prospective effectiveness
testngs performed Dunng thelife of the hedging relationship,
effectiveness testing 1s performed to ensure the mstrurment
remamns aneffective hedge of the transaction Changesin the far
value of dervative financial nstruments that do not quabfy for
hedge accounting are recogrised inthe income staterment as

they arse

A Cash flow hedges Changes n the far value of dervative financial
instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future
cash flows are recogrusedinother comprehensive income and any
mneffective portion is recognised mmediately in the ncome
staternent IfFthe firm commitment or forecast transactionthat s
the subject of a cash flow hedge result s inthe recogrition of anon-
financial asset or Latility, then at the time the asset or lability 15
recognised the associated gains ar lasses on the denvative that had
previously been recognised in comprehensive ncorme are included
inthewmital measurernent of the asset or lability

For hedges that donot result in the recogrition of an asset or a
Liabilty amounts deferred in comprehensive ncome are recognised
in theincome statement n the same penod in which the hedged
tems affect profit or loss
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Dernvative financial instruments and hedging actvities
continued

B Fair value hedges The changes in the fair value of a derivative
instrument designated in a farir value hedge, or for non-denvatives
the foreign currency component of carrying value, arérecognisedin
profit orloss Tho hedged wem s adjusted for changes infaw value
attributable to the risk being hedged wilh the corresponding entry
in profit orloss

C Net investment hedges Changesinthe far value of derivative
or non-denvative financratinstruments that are designated and
effectve as hedges of net investments are recognisedin
comprehensive ncome in the hedging reserve and any neffective
portion s recognised immediatety i the income statement

Changes in the far value of derivative financilinstruments that
dnnot aualfy farheadae acrminhinn are recagmiced in thaincoma
statement astheyarnse

D Discontinuance of hedge accounting Hedge accounting s
discontinued when the hedging instrument experes oris sold,
rerminated or exercised, of no longer qualfies for hedge
accounting At that ime, any cumutative gan or lLoss onthe hedging
nstrument recagrused in comprehensive ncome s retainedin
equity until the forecast transaction occurs If ahedged transagton
15 o longer expected to occur the net cumulative gain or loss
recognised incomprehensive incorme s transferred o profit orloss
for the period

The CGroup 8oes not use denvatives tohedge income statement
translanion exposures

Embedded derivatives

Dervatives embeddedin other financiat instrurments or other host
conkracts are treated as separate denvatives when their nsks and
charactenistics are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the hast contracts are not carned at fan value, withunrealsed
gains or [osses reportedin the income statement Embedded
dervalives are carned inthe statement of Nnancial posilion at lar
valua from the inception of Lthe host contract

Changesinlar value are recogrised within the ncome statement
dunngthe penod in which they anse

Cntical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparauion of conscolidated linancial stalementsrequires

the Croup [0 make estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts Estimates and
wdgements are continually cvaluated and are based onhistornical
expenence and other faclors, ncluding expeclalions of future
evenits that are believed to be reasonable undoer the crcumslances
Actualresults may differ frorn these estimates The estimates and
assurnptions which have a significant nisk of causing amatenal
adjustment to the carrying ameount of assets and bablities are

A impatrment of goodunll and brands The Group s requiredto
Lest annually or as Lnggenng evenLs accur, whether the goodwsll

or brands have suffered any rmparrment The recoverable amount
isdetermmedbased on value nuse calculations Theuse of Lhis
method requires the estimation of future cash flows and the choice
of asulable discount rate in order Lo calculale the present value of
these cash flows Where there is a non-controlbng interest, goodwil
1s tested for the business as a whole This nvolves a notionalincrease
to goodwil toreflect the non-controlling shareholders’ mterest
Aciual outcomes could vary from those calculated See note 14

for further details

B Impairment of property, plant and equipment and computer
software Property plant and equipment and computer sofLware

are reviewed for imparment if events or changes marcumstances
inglicate that the carrying amount may not be recaverable Whena

raview forimpairment 1s conducted Lhe recoverable amount is
determined based onvalue in usecalcutations preparcd onthe
basis of managerment s assumpbions and estimates See notes 14
and 15 forfurther detads

C Pepreciation of praperty, plant and equipment and
amortisation of computer software Depreciation and
amorlsalions provided so as lownile down Lhe assets to thorr
residual values over thair estimated useful ives as sct out above
The selection of Lthese residual values and estimated lives requires
the exercise of management jJudgemont See noles 4 and 15 for
further details

D Post-retirement benefits The determination of the pension
cost and defined benelil colgation of the Group s defined benellit
pension schemes depends on the selection of certam assumptions
whichinclude the discount rate infllston rate, salary growth,
mortabty and exoected return on sch@rne assets Pafferancas
ansing frorn actual expenences or fulure changes inassumptions
wiltbe rellected in subsequent penods Secnote 11 for further
detaits of assumpuons and note 12 for cntical judgements
associated with the Marks & Spencer UX Pension Scheme interest

n the Marks and Spencer ScotushLimited Partnership

E Refunds, gift cards and loyalty schemes Accruals lor sales
returns, deferredincome inrelaton teloyalty scherme redermptions
and gift card and credil voucher redemptions are estimated onLhe
basis of histancal returns and redempuions These are recorded soas
to allocate them Lo the same period as that inwhich onginal revenue
isrecarded These balances are reviewed regularly and updated Lo
reflect management s latest best estimates however actualroturns
and redemptions could vary fromthose estimates

F Inventory valuation [nventories are staled at the lower of cost
and net realisable value, on g waighted average cost basiswhich
requires the estimation of the eventual sales price of goods Lo
custormers n the future

Non-undertlying items

The directors believe that the underlying profit and earnings

per sharg measures provide additionsl useful nformation for
shareholders on the underlying performance of the business
These measures are consistent with how underlying business
performance s measuredinternally The undertying prefit before
tax measure I1s not a recognised profit measure under IFRS and may
not be directly comparable with adjusted profit measures used by
other comparues The adjustments made to reported profit before
tax are to exclude the following

=3 Profits and losses on the disposal of properiies or impairments of
properiies where cammitment to close has been demenstrated

= One-of f pension credits ansing onchangesto the defined benefit
schemes rules and pracuices

=3 Interest relating to significant and one-off repayments from tax
hbgation claims

= Restructurng costs

- Significant and one-offimpairment charges and prowisions that
distort underlying trading

= Fair valye movement in iinancylinstruments

=» Costs relating to strategy changes that are not considered
normal operatng costs of the underlying business

- Adjustrmentinincome from HSBC in relation to M&S Bank duetoa
non-recurnng provision recogmsed by M&S Bank for the cost of
providing redress to customers in respect of possible mis-setling
of M&S Bank financial products

= Ex-gratia payment receved fromHSBC inretaton to themis-
selling of financial products
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

2 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

IFRS 8 requrres operating segments Lo be identified onthe basis of nternal reporung oncomponents of the Croup that are regularly
reviewed by Lhe chief operating decision maker 1o allocate resources tothe segments and Lo assess Lhaw performance

The chief operating decision maker has been identilicd as the @xecutive directors The executive dreciors review the Groupsinternal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resourcesacross each operating segment The operating segments are UKand
International which are reported ina manner ¢consistent with the internal reporung to the executive directors

The UK segment consists of the UK retail business and UK franchise operations The International segment consists of Marks & Spencer
owned businessesin the Republic of Ireland, Europe and Asia together with internationzl franchise operations

The executive directors assess the performance of the operating segments based ona measure of operating proft This measurement
basis excludes the effects of non-underlying tems from the operating segments Centralcosts are all classified as UK costs and presented i
within UK operating profit The executive directors also momitor revenue within the segments and gross profit within the UK segment '
Tongrease transparency, the Group has decided to include an addmionat voluntary disclosure analysing revenue within the reportable

segrents by subcategory and gross profit witkun the UK segment by subcategory

The following 1s ananalysis of the Group s revenue and results by reportable segment

2015 wia
pement Adu * B ¥ Manageren Agustment' Statutory
im im &m £m £m (1]
Concral Merchandise revenue 39874 10 3,988 4 40945 (20) 40925
Food rovenue 52347 - 52347 50632 ~ 50632
UK ravenue 92221 10 9,2231 91577 (20) 91557
Franchised N3 - 34113 4040 - 4040
Owned 7470 - 7470 7500 - 7500
internaticnalrevenue 1,088 3 - 1,088 3 11540 - 11540
Group revenue 10,3104 10 10,311 4 Wo3N7? {20} 103097
CoeneralMerchandise gross profit 2,0989 20749
Food gross profit 1,778 5 16467
UK gross profil 39174 {293 4) 35240 37216 (345 3) 33763
UK operatingcosls {3,207 4) 2776 (2,929 8) {31596) 3772 (2,7824)
ME&S5 Bank 602 {13 8) a6 4 572 (50 8) L]
UK operating profit 6702 {29 6) 6406 6192 {189) 6003
Imernational operating profit 923 (31 6) 607 1227 (28 9) 942
Group operating profit 7625 (61 2) 7012 7419 {474) 6945
Finance income 155 - 155 201 a9 250
Finance costs {11&8) - (116 8} (139 1) - (138 1)
Profit before tax 6612 {61 2) 6000 6229 (42 5) 504

1 Aghustmentstorevenue ielate o anadustment for ref undi rgcogruad S Cost of sales (or management aceounung ourposes (L1 Imcredt Last yoar (20mchargo)and an adustinent
Of BOENCY 1raNSe JONS (NEEENLETI GOS8 A T ManagemMent accounts (0 Im charge Last year £nvl) Management profil excludes Lhe adustrient s (ncome of chargesimadi (o reported
Drofit belors to «that are oNe-g* INnorure sgriticant and distort theCrouns underying performance(saa no'e 5) Management grosaproh® forthe UK segment ascludes certan
2500NsLs FesURING N AN ddjustment betwuen cos of 3ated and sellng nd adminatratnae expenses of L2893 4m(last yeor £3:453m)

Other segmental information

018 2013
UK internatonal Total UK Internahional Total
tm £m im £m Em im

Additions to property plant and equipment
and intangible assets (extluding goodwill) 544 4 334 5778 6886 651 7537
Oepreciation and amaornsation 4908 320 5228 4349 344 4693
Imparment andasset write-offs 360 353 N3 212 139 352
Totalassets 7,763 2 4329 B,1961 74114 4916 78030

Non-current assets 6,424 0 nn 67411 61576 3769 65,5345
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3 EXPENSE ANALYSIS
1015 2019
Total Tatat
om im
Revenue 10,311 4 10,3087
Cost of sales (6,325 9) {6 4390)
Gross profit 39855 38707
Selling and adrministrative expenses {3,304 8) (32243}
Qther operaling Incoma 218 955
Underlying operating profit 762 8 7419
Non-underlying temns (se¢ nole 5} (61 2) (47 Q)
Operating profit 701 3 6945
The selung and admunistrative expenses are further analysed below
013 2014
10taL Totat
m im
Employce costs' 1,3607 14109
Occupancy Costs 7090 6907
Repairs renewals and maintenance of properiy 104 9 1021
Deprecation amertisation and asset wrnita-offs 5501 4773
Ctlhor cosLs 5801 5428
Selling and administrative expenses 3,3048 3,2243
1 Trvreae anadditonal £45 5m of @mployee cOsLs racordec wihin Cosi of $alas wihen (he current ysar These COSLY 3t nChuded within note 1I0A
4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
The following tems have beenincluded in arrving at profit before Laxation
2015 7014
£m n
Net forgign exchange gains 27 [l
Cost of mveniones recogrused as an expense 5,746 2 5.8035%
Deprecalion of property, ptant, and equipment
-owned assels 1968 3725
—wunder finance leases 33 72
Amortisation of ntangible assets 1227 896
Loss/(profit) on property disposals 23 (822)
Operaung lease rentals payable
- property aes 3125
-fixtures fitLing and equipment 28 29
Included in administrative expenses i1s the auditor s remuneration, ncluding expenses for audit and non-audit services payablelothe
Company s auditor Delailte LLP and its assogiates (last year PricewalerhouseCoopers LLP) as follows
Nns 7014
m m
Annual audit of the Company and the consolbdated fimancial statements o7 06
Audit of subsihary companies 06 09
Audit-relategd assurance services 02 02
Total audit and audit-related assurance services fees 15 17
Tax compliance services o1 03
Tax adwsory services - Q4
Other services 04 04
Total non-audit fees 0S 1
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5 NON-UNDERLYING ITEMS

The adjustments madc to reported profit before tax are income and charges that are one-oft n nature, s,gnificant and distort the Groups
underlying performance These adjustments include

- The Group has an econamic interest in M&S Bank a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC, by way of a Relationship Agreement that enbitles
the Group Lo a 50% share of the profits of M&S Bank after appropnate deductions The Group does not share in any losses of M&S Bank and
1s not obliged to refund any fees receved fram MES Bank although [uture mcome may be impacted by significant one-off deductions

Since the year ended 31 December 2012 M&S Bank has recogrused anestirmated babiliLy for redress to customers inrespect of possible
rmis-sellng of financial products nits audited financial statements The Croup s feencome from MBS Bankhas beenreduced by the
deducuon of this estimated bability funder the Relationship Agreement)in both the current and prior year s The total charge to date for
the deductiorminthe Groups fee incomeis £139 2m The deductionin the pericdis £53 7m Ths has been treated as a non-underlying
adjustment to reported profit before tax, nbne with previous periods

On 26 Septermnber 2014 the Group reached agreement with M35 Bank and HSBC over anumber of issues in connection withthe
Relatianship Agreement (including the extent of historical mis-selling charges} Thisresulted in an ex-gratia payment of £400m by HSBC
whichwas recogrised as a non-underlying crecit inthe period (net of £0 Im legal fees) consistent withthe deduction to the Groups fee
income On the same bagis as previous perods, any future increase inthe Lability recognised by MAS Bank wilt result in a further reduction
inthe Group s fee ncome

- Restructuring costs relating to the Graup s strategy Lo transition taa one tier distnibution network and the closure costs of the legacy
logistics sites (current period cost of £10 2m) To date, £727m has been expensed in relauion to this programme Restructuring costs
have baenincurred in freland in previous penods following a thorough commercial review of the Iretand business In the current penod,
resolution has boen reached on a number of employee matters i Iretand resulting in the recognition of a net credit of £56m

3 1AS 39 {arr value movement of the embedded dernvative in alease ¢contract based upon the expected future RPiversus thelease contract
mwhich rent increases are capped at 2 5%, with a floor of 1 5%

3 Asmatt number of stores have been closed or are committed to close at year end resulting in a charge of £6 9mun the year fromtoss on
disposals (E2 3rm) and asset impairments (£4 6m) The profit on property disposalinthe prior year relates to the sale of a warehouse site
and mock shop iIn White City on 26 July 2013 to St James Croup Lid for a total consideration of £100m £25m received on cornpletion and
the remairing consideration to be deferred over three years

-3 International store review in the current yaar relates to the imparment of assets (£34 9m) and onerous lease provisions {£2 3m)In
underperforming storesin Western Europe Ireland and China The prior year chargerelates to the rmparment of assets (£13 6m) and
onrerous lease prawisions (£8 3rm)in underperforming International stores Inneon strategic locations in China andthe Czech Group

- Pension credit recognised inthe prior year as aresult of changes tathe Marks and Spencer Ireland defined beneht scheme rules (£175m}
whereby the discretions for post-retrement PENSION iNCraases were removed and prior year pensioncredit ansing from the cessation of
the practice of granting pension increases to transferred-inpensions for almembers inthe UK defined benefit scherme (£100m)

- Strategic programime costs relatng Lo the stirategy announcements made in Novemiber 2010, ncluding the cests associated with
the niLal Focus onthe UK plans These included assel wrile-offs and accelerated depreciation Thesg costs werenot considered normal
operating costs of the business We do not anlicipate incurring any further cost inrelation tothis programme

= Interesl income (and related foes incurred) in the prior year ontaxrepayment retating Lo the successful outcome of Luigation inrelation
1o Lhe Croups claim for UK tax rebef of tosses of s {lormer Europoan subsidanics

The adjustments made Lo reported profit before taxioarnve at underlying profi are

2018 2014

Noies im im
Net MA&S Bank charges incurred in relation Lo the insurance mus-selling provision 2 {13 8) (508)
Restructunng Costs 15 22 (46} (773)
1AS 35 farr value movement of embedded dernvative 21 13 (35)
{Lossy/proft on dispasal and impairment once cormmitment to closure a (69) 822
International siore review ' 15 22 (372) {219)
UKandIreland one-off pension credits n - 275
Strategic programme costs - 20
Feesincurred ontaxrepayment - (16)
Adjustment to operating profit (612) (a74)
tntarest INCome on tax repayment 5 - 49

Adjustment to profit before tax {612} (425)
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6 FINANCE INCOME/COSTS

013 2014

£m m

Bank and other interest recevabte 50 g4
Pension net inanceincome seencle 1) 105 n?
Underlying finance income 155 201
Interest ncome ontax repayment (see nole 7) - 49
Finance n¢ome 155 250
Interest on bank borrowings (33) (33 4
interest payable on syndicated bank faciity (6 4} 50 z
Interest payable on mediumn-Lerm notes {88 1) (1105} 5
Interest payable on finance leases (z0) 23 §
Unwand of discount on linancalinstruments (0 6) 2
Unwind of discount on provisions {0 3) -
Unwinchng of discount on partnership Lability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Schemne (see note 12} {16 1) {178)
Finance costs (N6 8} {1391)
Met finance costs o1 3) (1hal)
7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
A Taxatton charge

018 018

£m £m

Current tax g
UK corporation tax on profils for Lho yoar at 21% {last year 23%) z
- current year 1065 971 o
-adustments inrespecl of pnor years (7 5) {55 8) E
UK current tax 990 413 g
Overseas current taxauon
—current year 123 145
-adustments inrespect of onor years {30} (27)
Total current taxation 108 3 531
Deferred tax
- ongination and reversal of temperary differences 58 177
—adjustments mrespecl of pnior years 45 262
—-changesntaxrate (0 3) (276)
Total deferred tax (see note 23) 100 213
Total income tax expense 11813 744
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7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE CONTINUED

B8 Taxation recanciliation
The effeclive Lax rale was 19 7% (last year 12 B%)and s reconciled below

2018 2014
m £m
Profit before tax 6000 5804
Nononal Laxalion at the standard UK corporation taxrate of 21% (last year 23%) 1260 1335
Ceprecialion and other amount s inrelation to ficed assets that do not qualify for tax rebef 53 a3
Other ncome and expenses that are not Llaxable or allowable for tax purposes (99) (54}
Retranstation of deferred tax balances due tothe change in statutory UK tax rates {03) (225)
Overseas profits caxed at rates different to those of the UK (79) [n
Overseas tax losses where there s no rebef anticipated in the (oreseeable Muture a8 87
Adiustments Lo current and deferred tax charges i respect of prior penods 61) (& 4}
Adjustments Lo underlying profn
- International store review charges where no tax relief s avalable 77 a9
- property disposal gain covered by other losses arising in the year (3 Mo
-deferred taxrate change benefit 01 -
- overseas rate differences to1) -
Non-underlying adjustment to current and deferred tax charges inrespect of pnor penods - {26 0)
Total income tax expense 1183 744

After excluding non-underlying items the underlying effecuve Lax rale was 18 9% (last yoar 18 8%)

The non-underlying adjustment Lo the Lax charge in respect of prior periods arose fromthe successful outcome of luigation n relation Lo
the Group s claim for UK Lax relief of losses of its former European subsichanes (£18 5 and reloase of provisions lollowing settlement of
disputes withthe tax authonties (E75rm}

C Current tax reconcibation
The current lax reconciatien shows the main adjustments made to the Croup s accounling profils inorder Loarnve at its taxable profits
The reconciling items differ rrom those in note 7B as the effects of deferred tax timing differences are ignored below

o013 2014
{m m
Profit before taxation 6000 5804
nNolional Laxation at standard UK corporation tax rate of 21%(last year 23%) 1260 1335
Disallowable accounting depreciateon and other similar items 861 BS8
Deductible capital allowances (76 9) 81 2)
Allowable deductions for employee share schemes {102) @9)
Allowable deductions lor employee pension schemes (15 6) {139)
Overseas profits taxed at rates different to those of the LUK 57) {37
Overseas tax losses where there s normmediate relief 48 a7
Other ncome and expenses that are not taxable or allowable 19 {14}
Adjustments Lounderlying profit
- International store revicw charges where no tax reliefis available 77 49
- property disposal loss relievable in the Muture/(gain covered by other losses arsing inLhe year) 05 (130)
- UK propoerty andinvestrment deduction where no taxreliefis available 06 -
~embedded dervative {e3) [#]:]
- gverseas rate differences [@1) -
Current year current tax charge 118 8 16
Represented by
UK current year current tax 1065 971
Overseas current year current tax 123 145
1188 Wi
UK adjustrmentsinrespect of pnor years {75} (55 8)
QOversoas adjustments inrespect of prior years {30} (27)

Total current taxation (note 7A) 108 3 53%
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8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calcutation of earnings per ordinary share 15 based on earnings after Lax and the weighled average number of ardinary shares in issue
during the year

The underlying earmings per share figuies have also been calculated based on earnings before tems that are one-off nnature significant
and are not considered normal operating costs of the underlying business (sec note §) These have been calculated to atlow the
shareholders to gamn an understanding of the ungerlying Lrading performance of the Croup

For diluted earnings per share, the weighled average number of ordinary shares inissueis adjusted o assume conversion of all dilutive
potentiatordinary shares The Croup has four classes of dilutive potential ordinary shares beng those share options granted to employees
where the exercise pnce is less than the average market price of the Company s ordinary shares during the year, unvested shares

granted under the Deterred Share Bonus Plan unvested shares granted under the Restncted Share Planand unvested shares within

the Performance Share Plan that have met the relevant performance conditions at theend of the reporting perod a
Details of the underlying earmnings per share are st out below é
015 2012 -
£m £m 3
Dradet atirihitahla tn ancrty charshnlders nf the Camnany 486 5 5248
Add/(less) (net of Lax)
- Net M&S Bank charges incurred in relation ta the insurance mis-selling provision 109 391
-Restructunng costs 39 625
- 1AS 39 far value movement of embedded derrative (r0) 28
-Loss/(profit) on disposal and Imparrment ence commitment to closure 413 (763}
- Internalional store review 366 373
-UKandiretand one-off pensicn credits - (233)
- Feesincurred on tax repayment - (25)
- Slrategic programme COsLs - 16 u
- Non-underlying adjustment to tax chargeinrespect of prior penods - (26 Gy §
Underlying profit attnbutable to equity shareholders of the Company 541 2 5200 ]
£
[ 4
2015 204 g
Mitlion Mitbon
Wetghted average number of ordinary shares nissue 16356 16150
Potennally dlutve share opuons under Group s share eption schemes 13 141
Weighted average number of diluted ordinary shares 1,646 9 16291
203 2011
Pence Pee
Basic earnings per share 297 325
Oiluted earrungs per share 295 322
Underlying basic carrmings per share 331 322
Underlying diluted earnings per share 329 319
w
9 DIVIDENDS ¢
2018 am WIS 2014 §
par share pershare tm m
Dwidends on equity ordinary shares g
Paid final dwvidend 108p 108p 176 2 1736
Pad intonm dividend 64p 62p 1045 1000
172p 170p 2807 2736

The drectors have proposed a final dvidendin respect of the year ended 28 March 2015 of 11 6p per share amounting to @ dvidend of

£191 1 It will be paid on 10 July 2015 to shareholders on the Register of Members as at close of business on 29 May 2015 subject to approval
of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 7 Juty 2015 inlne with the requirements of IAS 10 Events after the reporting
period, this dividend has not been recogrised withinthese result's

Adividend reinvestrent plan (DRIP)is available to shareholders who would prefer to nvest therr dividends i the shares of the Company
The shares will go ex-dividend on 28 May 2015 For those shareholders electing to receve the DRIP the last date for receipt of anewelaection
1519 June 2015

The Graup has a progressive dividend policy with dividends covered broadly twice by earmings, as explar nedinthe Financalreview on
page 16
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10 EMPLOYEES

A Aggregate remuneration
The aggregate remunerationand associaled costs of Group employees were

2008 2014
totat Toral
&m £m
Wages and salares 1,224 3 11978
Social security costs ac9 859
Other penswoncosts B854 924
Share-based payrnents (see note 13) i} 203
Employee wellare and other personnel Costs 497 495
Capitaliged staffing costs (330) (357}
Total aggregate remuneration 1,406 2 14109
Delails of key management cormpensalion are gverinnaole 28
B Average moanthly number of employees
0% 014
UK stores
- managerment and supervisory calegonas 5,516 5533
- other 64,182 67678
UK head office
~ management and supervisory calegores 3,055 3176
-olher 866 724
UK operations
- management and supervisory categones 225 G2
- pther a3s 660
QOverseas 8,390 7950
Total average number of employees 83,069 85813

If the numMmber of hours worked was converted on the basis of anormal working week the equivalent average number of full-ume employees
woutd have been 59096 (last year 61 176)

C Directors’ emoluments
Emroluments of directors of the Company are summarnsed below

2015 016
£000 000D
Aggrogate cmoluments 7,567 6,395

The emolurnents include payments to directors whoretred frrom the Board in 2014715 of £362,000 (last year £430000)

11 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Croup provides pension arrangements for the benefit of its LUK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (adefined
penghit arrangement which was closed to new entrants with effect from 1 April 2002} and Your M&S Pension Saving Plan (a defined
conlbution arfangement whichhas been open Lo new member s with effect frorn 1 Aprlk 2003)

The defined contribution planis a pension planunder which the Group pays contributions to anindependently adrmenstered fund, such
contrbutions are based upon a {ixed percontage of employees pay The Group has no legalor conslructve abligations to pay further
contnbulions 10 the fund once the contribulions have been paid Members benelits are delermined by Lhe amount of contributions

paid by the Group and the member Logether with mvesiment returns earned onthe contridulions ansing from the performance of cach
indmdual s chosen investments and the type of penson the member chooses 1o buy at relrement As aresull, acluanal nsk (that benefits
will be lower than expected) and investment nisk (that assets invested n will not performunling with expeciations){all on the employce

The defined benelit arrangement operates on aNinal salary basis and at the year end had some 12 000 achive members (last year 13000)

54 000 deferred mernbers (last year 55 000) and 51,000 pensioners (last year 51 0Q0) At the year end the defined contribution arrangement
had some 38 000 active memboers (ast year 38 000) and some 6,000 deferred members (last year 5 000} The schemes governedby a
Trustoe board which 1s independent of the Croup

The Group also operates a small funded defined beneftt pensran scheme in the Republic of ireland This scheme closed to future accrual
from 31 Ociobar 2013 Retrement benefits also nclude a UK post-retrement healtheare scheme and unfundedrelrernent benelits
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11 RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINVED

Within the tolal Croup retirement benefit cost of £74 9mi(last year £53 5m), £33 7m {last year £270m) reiates to the UK defined benefit
scheme £364m(last year £39 2m)to Lhe UK defined contnbution scheme and £4 8m (last year £12 7m) to other retirement benefit schemes

The most recent actuanat valuation of the UK Defined Benefit Pension Scheme was carned out at 31 March 2012 and showed a dehcit of
£290m As zresult afunding plan of £112m cash contributions was agreed with the Trustees The Group contnibuted payments of £28m1o
the UK defincd benelt scheme in March 2014 and March 2015 in the current linanciat year and expects to contnbute an additional £28m
each year unut March 201/ The difference between the valuation and the funding plan s expected Lo bemet by beiter Lthan expecled
Investment returns on the scheme s assets Future contributions to meet the cost of accruing benefits to the UK scheme are made at
therate of 23 4% of pensionable sataries up ta the next full actuanal valuation

By funding its defined benefit pension schermes the Group 1s exposed to the aisk that the cost of meeting its obligations s higher than
anticipated This coutd ogcur for several reasons, for example

- Investment returns on the schemes assets may be lower thananticipated, especiallyf falls 11 asset values are not matched by sirnitar
falis nthe value of tha schemes Labiities

- The level of price inflation may be ligher than that assumed resulting Inhigher payments from the schemes

- Scherne members may live longer than assumed for example due tounanticpated advances nmedical nealthcare Members may
also exercise (or not exercise) options in away that leads toincreases in the schemes Llabilities, for example through early retwernent
or commutation of pension for cash

= Legislanive changes could alsolead to an increase inthe schemes Lablities

Inaddition the Group has an obugation to the UK defined benefit scheme wia the interest inthe Scottish Limuted Partnershep (refer to
note 12}, through which the Croup s exposed to additional risks 1n particular,under the legal terms of the Partnership a default by the
Croup on the rental payments to the Partnershup or a future change in legislation could tngger earlier or higher payments, or anincrease
nthe collateral to be prowvided by the Croup

A Pensions and other post-retirement Liabilities

s 2014
Em [ 5
Total markel value of assets 8,596 5 67294
Present value of scheme iabilities (8,135 8) (65287)
Net funded pensionplanasset 4607 2007
Unfunded relrement benelits on ©7)
Post-retirernent healthcare (1M Q) (110
Net retirement benefit asset 4490 1890
Analysedin the statement of financial position as
Retirement benefit assel 4607 2007
Retirement benelit deficit {117} M7y
4490 1880

The asset recognised for the UK Defined Benefit Scheme s based onthe assumption that Lthe full surplus will ultmately be avalable to the
Group as a luture refund of surplus

B Financiat assumptions

The financral assumptions (or the UK scheme and the most recent actuanal valuations of the other past retrement schemes have been
updated by independent qualified actuanes 1o take accouny of the requrement s of LAS 19 Employee Benelits inorder toassess the
babilities of the schemes and are as follows

2005 2011

* *

Rate of iIncrease in salaries. 10 10
Rate of increase m pensions in payment for service 19-30 22-33
Discount rate 310 445
Inflationrate I i4
Long-term healthcare cost increases 71 74

The inflation rate of 3 1% reflects the Retail Price Index (RPlrate Certain benefits have been calculated with reference to the Consumer Price
Index {CPI) as the inflationary measure and in these iInstances a rate of 2 1% (last year 2 4%)has been used
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11 RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED

C Demographic assumptions

Apart from post-retirernent mortality Lhe demograghic assumplions are intne with those adopted for the last formal actuanal valuation of
the schame performed as at 31 March 2012 The post-retiremnent mortality assumptions are based on an analysis of the pensicner mortality
lrends under Lthe schome for Lhe penod to March 2012 updated to allow for antiipated longeviky iImpravements over the subsequent

years The speofic mortabty rates used are based anthe VITA e tables adjusted to allow for Lhe expenence of scheme pensioners

The life expectancies underlying the valuation are as follows

2015 2014

Current pensioners (atage 65) - males 227 224
-fermales 244 241

Fulure pensioners (at age 65) -males 224 218
- femgales 251 246

Deforred pensioners {at age 65) -males 232 226
~femnales 260 254

D Sensitivity analysis
The table below summarises the esumated impact of changes in the principal actuaral assumptions on the pension scheme surplus

2015 2014

tm Em
{Decreasc)/incroase in scheme surplus caused by anmncreasc in the discount rate of 0 25% (last year 0 5%) (70 0) 500
Increasef{docreasa)in scherne surplus caused by an ncrease intheinflalion rate of 0 25% 300 (50 0)
Increase nschame surplus caused by a decrease in the average lfe expectancy of one year 2300 2300

The sensilivity analysis above 1s based on a change none assumplon while holding all others constant Thereforeinterdependencies
between Lhe assumplions have not been Lakeninto account withinthe analysis

E Analyss of assets

Themvestment strategy of the UK defined benefit pension scheme is driven byits liability prafie in particular its nflation-Unked pension
benehits Inaddition to its mterest ut the Scortish Lunited Pastnership (refer to note 12),the schemenvests in different types of bonds
(inciuging corporate bonds and gilts) and dervatve mstruments (including inflatron interest rate, cross-currency and total return swaps)n
order to align mavements inthe vatue of its assets with movements iInits liabilities anising from changes in market conditions Broadly the
scheme has hedging that covers 30% of Interest rate movernents and 85% of nflationmovements as measured on the Trustees funding
assumptions which use a discount rate dernved from git yields

The fair value of the plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category are as follows

7015 2014
&m Em

Debt investimonts
=government 41800 23190
- corporate bonds 1,211 40 12567
- asset backed secunities and structured debt 3639 2320
Scottish Limited Partnership interest (see note 12) 5313 5747
Equity nvestments - quoted 1,131 8 998§
Equity invesiments - unguoted 1780 nai
Properly zn 27186

Derivatives

-interest and inflation rate swap contracts {127 5) S13
-foreign exchange contracts and other derivatives 1909 1233
Hedge and reinsurance funds W36 3298
Cashand cash equivalents 3062 4441
Other {5 B} 127
8,596 5 67294

The fair values of the above equity and debt nvesiments arc determined based on publicly available market prices wherever available
Unguated investments hedge funds and remsurance funds are staled at farr value estimates provided by Lhe manager of the investanent
orfund Property includes both quoted and unquoted nvestments The markel value of the Scotush Limited Partnershypinterest is based
onthe expected cash Flows and benchmark asset-backed credit spreads Itis the poley of the Scheme to hedgeaproportion of interest rate
andinflaion nisk The Scheme reduces i s floreign currency exposure using forward foreign exchange contracts

Alyear end the UK scheme indirecily held 199,032 (last year 199,523} ordinary sharesin the Company throughitsinvestrment in UK Equity
Index Funds
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11 RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED

F Analysis of amounts charged aganst profits
Amounts recognised in comprehensive Income inrespect of retrement benefi plans are as foliows

1018 2014

£m Lm
Current service cost B2 4 887
Adrministration costs 20 30
Past service ¢costs - curtaitrment charge 10 10
UK andlreland one-off pension credis - (275)
Netinterestincome {10 5) (17
Total 749 535
Remeasurement an the net defined benelit surplus
-actual relurn on schome assets excluding amounts included in netinterest income 1,722 4 (3220)
- actuanal gain/{loss) - experience 317 (174
-actuanalloss - demographic assumplions (83 9) -
- actuanal {lossygain - financial assumptions (1,478 5) 2541
Components of defined benefit cost recogrised in other comprehensive income 193 7 {85 3)
Total 268 6 (318)
G Scheme assets
Changes in the fair value of the scheme assetsare as follows

2015 2014

&m m
Faur value of schermne assets at start of year 6,729 4 69300
Interest income based on discount rate 2910 2940
Actualreturn on scheme assets excluding amounts included m net nterest income’ 1,722 4 (3220)
Employer contnibutions 1430 921
Benelits paid (276 5) (2612}
Adrministration costs 20) (30
Exchange movement (12 8) {05)
Fair vaiue of scheme assets at end of year 8,596 5 56,7294
| Theactualrewurn on scherne asser swas 3 gan of £2 055 4m(last year loss of £279m)
H Pensions and other post-retirement babilities
Changes i the present value of retirement benefit obligations are as follows

014 14

im im
Present value of obligation at start of year 6,540 4 6,6940
Currenti service cost 824 887
Curtalment charge 10 10
One-oft UKand lreland pension cradit (note 5) - {275)
Interest cost 2825 2823
Benelits paid (276 5} (2612)
Actuaral (gan)loss - experence {(337) 174
Actuarialloss - dermographic assumplions 8319 -
Actuarial lossf{gan) - financial assumptions 14785 (2541)
Exchange movement {118) {02)
Present value of obligation at end of year 8,147 5 6,5404
Analysed as
Present value of pension scheme babiities 8,1358 65287
Unfunded pension plans o7 Q7
Post-relrerment healthcare no 1o
Present value of obligation at end of year B,1475 65404

The average duration of the defined benefit obbgation at 28 March 201515 18 years (last year 18 years)

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

TOVERNANCE

2
z
w
z
b ]
5
-«
=
w
)
x
o
2
=3
z
[




108
MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC
FINANCIAL $TATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

12 MARKS AND SPENCER SCOTTISH LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Marks and Spencer plc is a general partner and the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 1s a irrited partner of the Marks and Spencer
Scotlish Limited Partrershup (Lhe Partnership) As such, the Partnershupis consobidated into the results of the Group

The Partnershup holds £1 6bn (last year £1 6bn) of progerties which have been leased back to Marks and Spencer plc at market rales The
Croup retains conieol over these properties including the flexiblity Lo substitute alternative properties The lmited partnershiginterest
(held by the Marks & Spencer UK Penston Scherne) entitles the Pension Scheme to recetve an annual distnbution of £719m fromthe grolits
af the Partnership carned from rentalincome

The Partmership babilty to the Marks & Spencer UX penston scheme of £5129m (last year £568 7m) s valued at the net present value
of the future expected distributions from the Partnership

During the year to 28 March 2015 an nterest charge of £16 Im (last year £17 8m) was recognised in the income statement representing
the unwinding of the discount included in thss obligation

Under 1AS 19, the Partnership interest of the Penston Scheme in the Partnership isincluded within the UK pension scheme assets valued
at £531 3m{last year £574 7m) refer tonote 1NE

13 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

This year anet credit of £1 1 was recogrused for share-based payments (last year charge of £213m) The total balance cornprises a credi
of £15 0m (last year charge of £4 iIm)relating to Performance Share Plans attsel by a charge of £90m {tast year charge of £36m)relalingto
Lhe Save As You Earn Share Scherme The remairing £4 9m charge is spread over the other schemes Further details of the oplion and share
schernes Lhal the Group operales are prowvided in Lthe Remuneralion Report on pages 52to 76

A Save As You Earn scheme

Sharesave the Company s Save As You Earn scheme, was approved by shareholders at the 2007 AGM Under theterrms of the scheme

the Board may offer options to purchase orcinary shares inthe Company once ineach financial year to those employees who enter vio
Her Majesty s Revenue & Customs (HMRC) approved Save As You Earn{SAYE) savings contract The price at which options may be offered s
80% of Lhe average rnid-imarkel price for three Lonsecutive dealing days preceding the offer ¢ate The oplions may normally be exercised
duning the six-month penod after the completion of the SAYE contract

2018 7014
Waighted average Numberod  Wnghtedaverage

Number of oplicny SXRCCISR PrICE optiant W RIO5RPACE

Qutstanding al beginming of the year 34,423,922 M é6p 45,273,287 265 2p
Cranted 14,389,736 3169 0p 9992932 4050p
Exercised (14,602,805} 256 8p {16921571) 2377
Forfened (4,485,417) 3N S5p (3058,210) 3006p
Exprred (194,913} 302 8p (862 516) 4502p
Quistanding at end of yoar 29,530,523 3576p 34423922 3li6p
Exercisable at end of year 1,352,847 268 7p 1879073 2533p

For SAYE share 0plions oxercised dunng Lhe perod the weighted average sharc price at the date of exercise was 471 Bp {last year 448 1p}

The fair values of the oplions granted during the year have been calculated using the Black-Scholes medel assuming theinputs
shownbelow

015 204

J-year plan 3-yeof plan

Crant date Nov 14 Naov 13
Share price at grant date 460p E06p
Exercise price 369p 405p
Cpuonlfe inyears 3 years 3Iyears
Risk-freerate 09% 0B%
Expected volatitity 231 6% 242%
Expected dividend yreld 319% 1a%
Fair vatue of option 91p 105p

Volatility has been estimat ed by Laking the historical volatdity in he Company s share pnce over 2 three-year period

The resulting far value s expensed over the service pened of three years enthe assumption that 10% (last year 10%) of oplions will lapse

over the sorvice penad as employees leave the Croup
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13 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

Qutstanding options granted under the UK Employees SAYE scheme are as follows

Werghteaaverage rema ning

Number of opons Comwra tualide (years)

Opnions granted 2015 2014 201% 2014 Op onprce
January 2008 - 1,241 356 - 03 203p
January 2010 - 497 - - 292p
January 2011 - 791518 - 03 319
January 2012 1,33514 14 423919 03 13 258p
Janwuary 2013 7,499,742 8,353 334 13 23 N2p
January 2014 6,652,869 9613298 23 33 40Sp
January 2015 14,042,731 - 3] - 369p

29,530,523 34423922 24 20 358p

E r—'l:l l’l.llllldrll.!: Si aie :ldll.

The Performance Share Plan s the primary tong-termin¢entive plan for approximately 150of the most serior managers and was lirst
approved by shareholders at the 2005 AGM Under the Plan annual awards, based on a percentage of salary, may be offered The extent

Lo which an award vests s measured over a three-yoar pericd aganst a balanced scorecard of financiat measures which currently include
Earnings Per Share (EPS) Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) and Revenue The value of any dividends carned on the vested shares dusing
the three years wiltalso be pad on vesting Further details are set out in the Rernuneration Report on pages 66 1o 68 Awards under this
scherne have been made in each year since 2005

During the year, 7,338 609 shares (last year 7113 6§30)were awarded under the Plan The weightod average [arr value of the shares awarded
was 419 Ip(last year 4407p) As at 28 March 2015 18 BOS 388 shares {last year 21 170 536) wore auistanding under the scheme

As set out on page 66 of Lhis Annual Report Lhe Company s exsung Performance Share Plan expires i1 2015 The Company istherefore
seeking shareholder appravalin 2015 for a replacement Plan, the rules and operation of which are substantally the same as the current Plan
rurther details of the replacement Performanca Share Plan can pe found inthe Notice of Mceting 2015

C Deferred Share Bonus Plan*

The Deferrod Share Bonus Planwas ntroduced in 2005/06 as part of the Annual Bonus Scheme for approximately 550 of the most serier
managers As part of the scheme the managers are requwed to defer a proportion of any bonus pawd nlo shares which will be held for three
years There are no further performance conditicns on these shares other than continued employment, and the value of any dividends
garned dunng the deferred penod will also be patd on vesting

Duning the year, 20,882 shares (last year 1,658,133) have been awarded under the Planinrelation Lo the annual bonus The far valuc of the
shares awarded was 4370p (last year 4370p) As al 2BMarch 2015 2 487477 shares (last year 5,024,149) were oulstanding under the scheme

D Restricted Share Plan*

The Restricled Share Plan was eslablished in 2000 as part of Lhe reward strategy for retentionand recrulment of senior managaers who
are vital Lo the succoss of Lthe business The Plun operates for senior managers below executive director level Awards vest st the end

of the rostricted period (Lypically between ene and three years) subject to the particpant stillbeng in employment of the Cornpany on
Lhe relovant vesling date The value of any dividends carned dunng the restnicted peniod willalso be paid at the uime of vesting

Durng the yoar 1,001 076 shares (last year 798 196} bave been awarded under the Plan The weighied average fair value of the shares
awarded was 450 5p (last year 479 2p) As at 28 March 2015 963,139 shares {last year 2 271,826) were outstanding under Lhe scheme

E Republic of Ireland Save As You Earn scheme

Sharesave the Company s Save As You Earn scheme was introduced in 2009 to all employces inthe Republic of Irelandlor 2 1en-year penod,
after approval by sharcholders at the 2009 AGM The schermne s subject 10 Insh Revenue rutes which Limil the maximum emanthly saving

to €500 per month The Company chose in 2009 to set a monthly savings cap of €320 per month toalign the maximum savings amount
allowedwithinthe UK scheme When the savings contract s started, options are granted Lo acquire the number of shares thal the total
savings will buy when the contract matures ata discounted price set at the start of the scheme The price al which the oplions may be
offered s BO% of the average mid-market price for three consecutive days preceding the offer date Options cannol normally be oxercrsed
untila minimum of three years has elapsed

Dunng the year, 121 086 (last year 62,734) options were granted, at a farr volue of SC Bp(last year 105 1p} Asat 28 March 2015 288,162 oplions
(Last year 251 545) were outstanding under the scheme

F Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust

The Marks and Spencer Employce Benefil Trust {the Frusl) holds 3 912,020 (last year 2 535,343} shares witha book valug of £191m

{Last year £8 6rm)anda market value of £20 7m (last year £11 8m) These shares were acquired by the Trust i the market and are shown as
areductioninrelained earnings in the consclidated staterment of financial position Awards are grantedloemployees at the discrelion
of Marks and Spencer plc and the Trust agrees to satisfy the awards in accardance with the wishes of Marks and Spencer plc under seror
executive share schemes Dividends are waved on all of Lhese plans

Nilcost options For the purpeses of calcula ing the number of shanes swarded «he sharg price used 3 tha averagu of the md-narket pricefor the frve consecutve dealing oays
preceding the gran dote
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Lomputer
Computer software under
Googuall Brands software gevalopmant Total
£m £m £m fm Em
At 30 March 2013
Cost or valuation 1270 nz4 8134 1832 10360
Accumulated amortisation and impairrnent (34 4) (452) {261 4) - (3410}
Net book value G926 672 3520 1832 6850
Year ended 29 March 2014
Opening net beok value 926 672 3520 1832 6930
Addilians 33 - 1280 726 2039
Transfers - - 1374 (1374) -
Amartisationcharge - 53 (84 3) - (89 6)
Exchange aifference (07) - 02 - 09)
Closing net book value 952 519 5329 1nge 808 4
At 29 March 2014
Cosl or vatuation 1296 1124 8786 184 12380
Accumutated amortisation and rmpawment (34 4) {505) {3457) - (4306)
Net book value g5 2 619 5329 118 4 808 4
Year ended 28 March 2015
Opening nel book value 852 619 5329 184 sog 4
Addilions - o 794 985 1780
Transfors - - 1301 (1301) -
Disposals - - (14) - (4
Asset wnre-offs - - (2 4) {12} (36}
Amorlisation charge - (5 3) (174) - {1227}
Exchange difference 01 - {0 ) (02) {0 5)
Closing net book value 953 567 6208 854 8582
At 28 March 2015
Cost or valuation 1297 nz2s 1,0877 866 1,465
Accurnulated amaortisation andimpairment (34 4) {55 8) (466 9) {12) (558 3)
Net book vatue 9513 567 6208 854 858 2
Goodwilland indefinite lfe intangibles relate to the following business units
Suprema
Marks and Trademarks Marks and
Spancer Privats Spencer M&S Mode
Czach Republe Lirmatad {Hungary} Total indafinita Ufe
paruns as {India) KF1 goodmll inLangibte
m £m m £m im Im
Net book value at 29 March 2014 695 155 69 33 852 324
Exchange difference - (1) 02 - 01 -
Net book value at 28 March 2015 69 5 15 4 71 33 95 3 324

Imparment testing

Goodwill 1s not amortised bul tested annually for impairment wiLh the recoverable amount being deterrmined fromvalue nuse

calculations Goodwillhas been allocated for imparment testing purposes to groups of cash-generating units (COUs) which include
the combined retailand wholesale businesses for cach location

Brands include the per una brand cost of £800m (net book value £24 2m)and the M&S Mode brand cost of £32 4m The per unabrandisa
definite Lfe nlangible asset andis amor lised on a straight-tne basis over a penod of 15 years and 1s only assessed for mparrment where
such indicators ¢xist The MAS Mode brands have been attnibuted anindefirite Ufe as they give Lhe Group the future nght Lo use the M&S
brand across Europe This is consistent with the Croup s expansion plans n Europe and existing M&S brand recogniion fromats currert
presence Sirmitar to goodwill the M3S Mode brands are assessed forimpairment annuatly based cn Lhorr value inuse The M&S Mede brands
have beenallocated lor mparrment tesung across the European busingss

Thevalue In use calculalions use cash flows based endetailed finanoal budget s prepared by management cover:ng a three-year period
These budgets have regard to historical performance and knowledge of the current market, together with management s views onthe
future achuavable growth and the impact of committed imiatives The cash Aows which derive frorm the budget s include ongoing capital
expendhilure required Lo mainiam the store network Cash flows beyond this three-year period are extrapolated using a long-term

growthrate

The key assumptions in the value nuse caleuations are the long-lerm growthrale andLhe risk adjusted pre-taxdiscount rate Thetong-
term growthrate has been determined withreference Lo forecast GOP growthior theterntanes in which Lhese busingsses operate
Managernent believes Lhis 1s the most approprate ndicaler of long-term growth rates that 15 available The long-term growthrate used

15 purely for the impairment tesuing of goodwill and brands under 1A5 36 Imparment of Assels and does not reflect long-term planning
assumptions used by Lthe Group for nvestrnent proposals or for any olher assessments These growth rates do not exceed the long-term
average growlhrate for the Groups retall businesses The pre-tax discount rateis based on the Groups weighted average cost of capital,
taking inko account Lhe cost of capial and borrowings, 1o which specific market-related prernium adjustmenits are made
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED
Impairrment testing continued
The values attributed 1o the key assumplions are as follows
Long-termgrowthrate Pro-rax ciicountra @
018 014 018 w4
L » % *
peruna 20 20 86 ue
Marks and Spencer Czech Republicas 19 25 101 131
Supreme Trademarks Private Lirited (iIndid) 68 60 154 183
Marks and Spencer (Hungary) KFT 14 15 no 170 “
wi
The M&S Mode brands are tested based onLhe regions operating in the European business which are covered under the brand nights '§'
acquired The discount rates used to calculate value inuse range from 9 3% to 279% (Last year 13 1% Lo 289X) Cashflows beyond the 2
three-year penod have been extrapolated at long-termgrowthrates ranging from 10%10 40X (last year VO% 10 2 5%) S
Sensitivity analysis °
WL HIdHGGRITILNL BB UV s LHE aSSUIMPLUICNS 3re réaustic itis possiolg that anImparment would be identitied it any ot Lhe above key
assumptions were changed significantly A sensitivity analysis has been performed on each of these key assumplions with olher vanables
held constant Management have concluded that there are no reasanably possibte changes inany key assumptions that would cause the
carrying amount of gocdwillor brands to exceed the value nuse
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Fratures Assers inthe
Lanaang ftirngs and courseof
Dulargs equpant COMLIUCTION Total
im im £m m
At 320 March 2013
Cost 28171 61981 3124 93276 ;j
Accurnulaled depreciation and asset write-offs (305 5) (39884) - (42939) 3
Net book value 25116 22047 3124 50337 Q
Year ended 29 March 2014 &
Opening net book value 25116 22097 324 50337 §
Addilions 146 3627 1558 §531
Transfers a7 1691 (210 8) -
Disposals (152) (53) - (705)
Assetimparrments (118) (136) - {252)
Assel wrnite-offs 27) (13) ©0) (100)
Cepreciation charge (150) (3647) - (a797)
Exchange difference (3N (6 6) 02 15
Closing net book valus 25397 23500 2502 5,1399
At 29 March 2014
Cost 28N 7 66868 2562 98147
Accumulated depreciation impairments and asset write-offs [3320) (4336 8) {50) (46748)
Net book value 25397 23500 2502 5,359 )
Year ended 28 March 2015 §
Opening net book value 15397 2,3500 2502 51399 ‘§'
Additions 190 230 1678 3998
Transfers 145 2684 {282 9) -
Disposals (12 5) ©2) - 27
Asset imparments 133 {354) - {467)
Assetwrite-offs o) (66) {14 (190}
Cepreciation ¢charge {14 8) (3851) o2) (4001)
Exchange difference (16 3) {100) () 8) (281)
Closing net book value 25151 2,3941 217 5,031}
At 28 March 2015
Cost 28551 7,066 4 1313 10,054 8
Accumutated deprecianion, impaivments and asset write-offs {339 8) (4,672 3) (i16) {5,023 7}
Net book value 2,515 3 2,394 1217 5,0311

The nel book value above includes land and buildings of £42 7m (last year £43 Jm)andegquipment of £1 Im(last year E4 2mywhere the Group
1s alessee under afinance lease
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Additions to property plant and equipment during the year amounting to Enil {last year £nil) were financed by now finance leases
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16 QTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

2018 014

I Em

Non-current
Unlisted invesiments 30 30
Current
Short-terminvestments' ns 124
Unbisted investments - 53

16 177

1 Includes £1 2 (Last year £1 5m)of money Market depos:ts held by Marks and Spencer olo.n nescrow Jcount

Non-current unlisted nvestments are carned as available-for-sate assets Other financal assets are measured at far value with changas
in therr value taken to the income statement

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

ms 014
im im

Non-current
Other receivablos 568 828
Prepaymont s and accrued ncome 2265 2307
28313 3135

Current

Trade recewables 1286 1275
Less Provision forimparment of recewables {4 9) 07
Tradle recervables - net 1237 1268
Otherrocevables 533 539
Propayments and accrued income 144 B 1288
3218 3095

Trade and other receivables that were past due bul not inparred amountedto £1 4m {last year £6 am}and are mainly sterling denominated
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recevables approximales therr far value [ncluded in prepaymentsand
acerued nceme s £13 5mi(last year £9 3rn) of accrued supplierincome relaung te rebates which have been garned bul not yet nvoiced
Supolier ncome that has baen nvaiced bul not yet settled against future trade credilor batances s ncluded withintrade creditors The
amount 1s immatenal The impact anaventory s alsormmalerial as these rebates relate to food stock which has been sold through by

the year end

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cashandcash eguivatents are £2059m (last year £182 m) The carrying amount of these assets approximates thewr fair value

The effectivointerest rale on short-lerm bank deposits 15 0 48% (last year 0 41%) These deposits have an average matunty of 42 days
(last year exghl days)

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2018 2014
tm rm
Current

Trade and other payables’ 59676 9291
Sooial securily and other Laxes 577 584
Accruals and deferredincome’ 2 6171 7053
1,642 4 16928

Non-current
Other payahles 3197 3340

1 Thaprar year balances have been g presentead 10 COMECtly clasfy srceuals balances thal ware previously held ntrade and othes payables
2 DunngLhe e £72 Imwas reclasshiad rom aEcruals 210 Celemed ncome Lo prowvisons
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20 BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
s 2004
tm tm
Current
Bank ioans and overdraflts' 2789 455
Finance lease labibities ] 32
2794 4487
Non-current
Bank loans o 02
6 250% US$500m medium-term notes 2007° 3Nn9 3063
6 125% £400m madium-term notes 20197 488 4223
6 125% £ 300m medium-ierm noles 202V 3025 3021
4 75% £400m metium-term notes 20267 4202 3923
7125% US$300m mediurn-term notes 2037} 20413 1829
FINance Lease uaniines 481 490
1,745 9 16551
Total 2,025 3 21038

1 Bankioansand overdrafts nclude 8 £5 Gmilast year [50m)loanfrom the Heag s Ena Park Litmited [ont venture (se¢ not e 26)
2 Thesenoles areissutd under Marks and Spencer plcs £1on E 1 RChUT- LRI NOLE ORI amma and pll pay " Rredl annudily
1 Interest onthese bongs § payable semi annually

Finance leases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as shown in the table on the following page Ik s the Croup s policy totease
certain properties and equipment under finance leases The average lease term for equipment s six years (Last year five year sy and 124 years
(last year 125 years} for property Interest rates are fixed at the contract rate Allleases are ona fixed repayment basis and no arrangernents
have been entered nte for contingent payments The Group s oblgattons under hinance leases are secured by thelessors charges over the
leased assets

21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Treasury policy
The Group operales a contralised treasury funcuon 1o manage the Group s funding requirements and financial risks in bne with the Board
approved treasury policies and procedures, and ther delegated authorities

The Croups financialinstruments, other than derivalives cormpnse borrowings cash and bguid resources and vanous nems suchas trade
reccivables and Lrade payables that anse directly from ts operations The main purpaose of these lnancial nstrument sis te finance the
Groups operations

The Group treasury funcuon also enters into denvative transactions prngpally interest rate swaps, cross-currency swapsand (orward
currency contracls The purpose of these transactions s Lo manage thenterest rate and foreign currencynisks ansing fromthe Group s
operalions and Ninancing

It remains the Croup s policy not to hold or issue financial nstrurnents for teading purposes, except where financiat constraints
necessitate the need toliguidate any outstandingwvesiments The treasury function s managed as a cost centre and does not engage
In speculative trading

Financial risk management
The principal financalnsks faced by the Group are higuidity and funding interest rate, foreign currency and counterparly nsks The policies
and strategies for managing these risks are summansed on the following pages

{a) Liquiehty and funding risk
The nisk that the Croup could be unable 10 setlle or meet its cblUgatons &L a reasonable price as they fall due

= The Croup s funding strategy ensures a mix of funding sources offering sufficient headroorm, matunty and Flexibility and cost
effectiveness tomatch therequirements of the Group

- Marks and Spencer plois financed by a combinaton of retained profits, bank borrowings medwm-term notes and committed syndicated
bank facilities

- Operating subsidianes are financed by a combmation of retained profits bank borrowings and intercompany toans

At year end the Crouphad a committed syndicated bank revolving credit faciity of £1 325bn setlo rmaturcon 28 September 2018 Thus
facility contains only one financial covenant being the ratio of earnings before interesy, tax depregiation, amortisation, rents payable
and exceptionalinemns tosnierest plus rents payable The covenant s measured semi-annually The Croup also has a number of undrawn
uncommitted faciities avalable Lot At year end these amounied to £100m (Last year £80m) allof whichare due to be reviewed wathin
ayear Al the balance sheet date a stering eguvalent of £225m (last year £234m) was drawn under the committed facildies and Enit

(iost year £23m)was drawn under the uncommitted faclities

In addition to the existing borrowings, the Group has a euro medwm-termnnote programme of £3bn of which £1 1bn{last year £11bn)
was inissuance asat the balance sheet date
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

CONTINUED

Financial risk management continved

The contractual matunty of the Groups non-denvative financial babilities (excluding trade and other payables (see note 19))and derwatives

15 as follows
Pattnatship Total
Labltyto borcongs
Bank loans Mednme Finance ihsMarss and other
and  Symaicatnd term foase ASpencer hnancat Donvatve Derrvatve
overdra‘ts  bansfaciliy notes Lbabdies  UXPenswon Latulitea asgets’ bubilstres' Total
£m £m £m fm [ m im im {m
Timing of cash flows
Within one year (211 6) (2339) (935) (55) {719) (6164) 18493 (1,8796) (297)
Between ong and twe years 02) - (935) {29) {71 9) {168 5) 2074 (203 8) 36
Between lwoand five years - - {562 6} 6%9) (2156} {7851} iB34 (414 4) 310
More Lhan five years - - (17374} (1856} {2873y (2.2103) 4255 {4789) (53 4)
{2118) (2318) (24870) (2009} (6467) (3,7803) 28662 (29767} {1105)
Elfect of discounting and
foreign exchange - - BB 1 1487 780 11078
At 29 March 2014 (211 8) (2339) (16059) {522) (5687) (26725)
Timing of cash flows
Withinone yoar (540) (2249) 972) z25) {719) (4505) 2,2140 (2,0924) 216
Belween one and two years ©n - {97 2) (24) (719) (171 6) 2383 {2245) 138
Between two and five years - - (985 2) (72) (2156) (1,208 0) 4140 (390 0) 240
More than five years - - {1,3363) (1808%) (2156) (1,706 4) 459 6 (440 8) 188
{541) (2249) (2,4899) (1926) ({5750) (3,5365) 33259 (3,477} 178 2
Effect of discounting and
foreign exchange - - 7922 144 0 621 998 3
At 28 March 2015 {(541) (22a9) (1,6977) (48 6) (5129) (2,538 2)

1 Denvative assats ang genvalag LaLLIas 3mounts represent tha far value a1 2t Lhe balance shect date of tha foreign eachange forward contracts and he forecastod inLeqest paymaents
On L $wdD CONLIICLS LOgRINEr aith Iheinal #achange of notional at the end of the contracts Suchcash Nowsu eretransiatedinto stering using $pat rates §§ Of tha balance snaet date

forthe cross CUrrency INTorEst ra.e Swaps

The present value of linance lease labitties 1s as follows

2013 2014

im Em

Within one year {0 5) (32

Later Lthanone year and not later than five years (10) 12

Laterthanfive years {a71) {47 8)

Total (48 5) {52 2)
{b) Counterparty risk

Counterparty risk exists whete the Croup can suffer fimancial loss through default or non-performance by linancal nsttutions with

whomil transacls

Exposures are managed n accordance with the Group treasury policy which mits the vatue that canbe placed with each approved

counterparly Lo mnirmise the risk of 1oss The rmimmum long-term rating for all counterparties s long-term Standard & Poor s(A-)/Moody s
{A3) Credit ratings quoted on Lhe following page are i line with Standard 8 Poor s equivalent Inthe event of a downgrade by one raung
agency and not the other reference will be made to Fileh to determine the casting vote of the rating group In theabscence of a Fich rating
Lhelower rating will provail Lirmits are reviewead regularly by senior management The credit nskof these iinancialinstruments is esumated
as the farr value of the assets resulting from the contracts




15
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Financial risk management continued

{b) Counterparty risk continued

The table belowanalyses the Group s short-term investments and derrvative assets by credw exposure excluding bank balances, store cash
and cashintransit

Crodit rating of counterparty*

AAAM AAA AA AR A A A B8s ¢ Total

£m £m im Em tm Im £m tm £n

Short-term investments’ - - - 120 120 378 - - 618
Derivauve assets’ - - ~ 76 05 "7 55 66 39
At 29 March 2014 - - - 196 125 495 EX) 66 937
AMAM AAM Ak A As A A BSB. Total

im m m Lm im im m m im

Shart-raren inuaet mantg! - - - e 300 Ev4 - wnoe
Derivative assets® - - - N5 218 521 469 - 142 3
At 28 March 2015 - - - 250 617 1095 469 - 2431

I Ingcludes £ash on 0epOSE dACMongy Market Funds NeLd by Marky 3no Spencer Scottichimiteg Partnersrup Marks andSpencer plc and Marks 8 Spencat GeneralInsurance
2 Excluoes the embeddeo dervative withen ihe lease nost contrpct

3 Standard & Poor 1 equivalent rating shown as refarence Lo tne majantvcredit rating of the counterparty fram either Slandardd 4 Poer s Mooty sar Fiten wneraapplcacle

4 Exposureto aCountarpaity approved 35 an ¢xCesHon 1o Treasury polcy

The Croup has very low retall credit sk due 1o Lransactions being principally of a igh valume, low value and short maturily

The maximum exposure to credit nisk at the balance sheet date was as follows trade recovables £129m (tast year £128m) other recenvables
£110m (Last year £136m) cash and cash equivalents £206m (last year £182m)and denvatives £194m (last year £54rm)

{c} Forewgn currenty risk
Transacuignal foreign currency exposures anse from both the exporl of goeds from the UK 1o Overseas subsidianes and from the import
of matenals and goods direclly sourced frorm overseas suppliers

Croup treasury hedges these exposures principally using ferward foreign exchange contracts progressivety covenngup Lo 100% oul
10 18 months Where appropnate, hedge cover can be taken out for longer than 18 months, with Board approval The Groupis primanly
exposed toforeign exchange nskwirelation Lo sterling agamst movements in US dollar and euro

As at the balance sheet date the gross notional valuein sterling terms of forward foreignexchange sell or buy contracts amounted o
£1591m (last year £1,600m) wilh a weighted average matunty date of sevenmonths (last year sixmonths)

Cang and losses in equity on forward foreign exchange conlracts as at 28 March 2015 will be released Lo the ncome statement at vanous
dates over the following 16 months {last year 16 months) fromihe batance sheei date

The Group also holds a number of cross-currency swaps to re-designate its fixed rate USdollar debt Lo fixedrate stering debt These are
reported as cash flow hedges

The Group uses a combination of foreign currency debt and derivatives to hedge batance sheet Lranslauon exposures As at the balance
sheet gate €144m of currency delat (last year €162m of dernvatives)and HK$1 398m (last vear HK$698im) of dei vatives were nedging
overseasnel pssets

The Group alsa hedges fereign currency ntercompany loans where these exist Farward foreign exchange contracts inrelabionto the
hedging of the Group s foreign currency ntercompany loans are designated as held for tradimg with fair value movement s being recognised
nthe mcome statement Tha corresponding fair value movement of the intercormpany loan balance results n an overall Endirpact on the
ncome staternent As at the balance sheet date the gross nobonal value of intercompany loan hedges was £412m (last year £417m)
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(c) Foreign currency nsk continued

Afler Laking into account the hedging derivatives entered into by the Group the currency and nteresi rate exposure of the Group s financial
liabilues excluding short-term payables and the Liabiity to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (which has na currency orinterest rate
exposure)1s sel out below

2048 011

Fuced rate Floating rate Total Fixedta e Flaslng rate Torat
£m m im Em im im

Currency
Sterling 1,154 5682 1,883 86 12268 7086 19351
Euro 58 1056 ma 66 1393 1459
Other - 303 303 - 228 228
13212 7041 20253 12331 87207 2,038

The floaling rate sierling and curo Borrowings are inked Lo Interest rates related to LIBOR Theserates are for penods between ene and
six morths

As ai the balance sheel date and exctuding finance leases the fixed rate sterling borrowings are at an average rate of 5 3% (last year S 3%}
and the weighted average time for which Lhe rale s fixed s eight years (last year nine years)

{d) Interest rate risk
The Group s exposed tonterest rale risk inrelation 1o stering, US doltar ano curo vanable rate financial assets and latilities

The Group s policy Is Lo use derivalive contracls where necessary Lo mantan a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings to manage this sk
The structure and maturity of these dervatrves correspond to the underlying borrowngs and are accounted for as Farr value or cash flow
hedges as appropnate

At the balance sheet date fixed rate borrowings amounted to £1 321 2m (last year £1,233 1rm) representing the public bond issues and
finance leases armounting Lo 66% {last year 59%) of the Croups gross borrowings

Tne effective nterest rates at the balance sheet dale were as follows

ms 204
% %
Commilied and uncommittod borrowings 09 10
Medium-termnotes 53 53
Finance leases a1 a3
Berwative financial instruments
2018 014
Assety Laatibas Assats Lutult ey
tm m Em Im
Current
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cashflowhedges nasg 73 12 } (509)
-heldfor trading n o4 16 08)
=-net investment hedges - (01) - -
179 (77 137 {515)
Non-current
Cross-currency swaps ~-cashflowhedges 61 (199) - (623)
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cashilow hedges 73 on 03 (09)
Interast rate swaps - fair value hedge 388 - 179 {12 2}
Embedded dervatve [see note 5) 237 - 224 -
758 {20 0) 406 (75 4)

The Group holds a number of interest rate swaps to re-designate as stering fixed debt Lo floating debt These are reportedas far value
hedges The ineffective portionrecogrised inthe profit ortoss that anses from far value hedges amounts to £0 3m (last year £05m)as
theloss on the hedged item was £33 5m (last year £33 7m gain) and Lhe gam on Lthe hedging nstrument was £33 8m (last year £34 2mloss)
The Croup also holds a number of cross-currency swaps to re-designate its fixed rate US dollar debt Lo fixed rate sterting debt These are
reperied as cash fow hedges
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Sensitivity analysis

The table below tlustrates the estimated impact on the ncome siaterment and eduily as a resutt of market movements nforeign exchange
and Interest rates i relation to the Group s fmancil nstrument s The directors consider that a 2X +/-(Last year 2%) movementininterest
rates and a 20% +/- {last year 20%) weakering in sterbng against Lthe relevanl currency represents areasonable possible change Howover
Lhis anatysis is for iltustrative purposes only

The table excludes Ainancal mstruments that expose the Group Lo interest rate and foreign exchange nsk where such nsk s fully hedged
with another financial instrument Alse excluded are trade recevables and payables as these are either sterbng denomnated or the foreign
exchange riskis hedged

Interest rates the impact inthe ncome statement die to changes ininterest rates reflects the effect onthe Croups floating rate debt as
at the balance sheet date Theimpact in equity reflects the fair value movementinrelationto the Group's Cross-curtency Swaps

Foreign exchange theimpact from foresgn exchange movemnents reflects the change in the farr value of the Group s transactional foreign
exchange cash flow hedges and the net nvestrnent hedges at the balance sheet date The equity impact shawn for foreign exchange
sensitvty relates to denvative and nan-dervative financial nstruments nedging net wvestments This value is expectedto be fully offset
by the re-translation of the hedged foreign currency net assets leaving a net eguity mpact of zero

2% cecreasqn IWncedsen 0% weasewnQin  JONsirengthenng
NLerest raley N erastraies sterung westorhng
im £m £m Ln
At 29 March 2014
Impact onncome statement gain(loss) 42 (ien - -
Impact on other carnprehensive income (lossygan {179) 1 1249 {141 3)
At 28 March 2005
Impact onincome statement gairy(loss) 92 {12 5) - -
Impact on ather comprehensive Income (lossygain (152) 81 1698 {132)

Offsetting of financial assets and Liabilities

The following tables set out the financeal assetsand linancal liabilities which are subjactto offsetung, enforceahlec master netiing
arrangerments and similar agreements Amounts whichare set off against financial assets and Labilites inthe GCroups statement of
financial position are set out betow For rade and other receivables and trade and other payables,amounts not cffsctin the statement
of hnancial position but which could be offset under certam arcumstances are also sel out

Net financial  Related amoufits
Cross hinancal  aasets/(babiiies]  not wet oM inthe

Gross finarca!  (Labilitieslfassets  per statement of statement of

arreti{Labntitigs) st off hranaal pouton  financial position Net
Lm £m im im tm

At 28 March 2015
Trade and other recervables 170 (370} - - -
Dervatve financil assers 1700 - 1700 (2?7 1421
Cashandcash equivalents 450 {42 1) 29 ~ z9
2520 (791) 1729 227) 1452
Trade and other payables {295 0) 370 {258 0) - {2580Q)
Dernvative fimancial blabibitics (277) - 277 277 -
Bank loans and overdrafts {60 3) 421 {18 ) - {(182)
{383 0) 791 {303 9) 277 (276 2)

Ne hrardial  Relaregarounts
Crostfinancial  anseaAlaodites) not seLorfintne

Crossfimancial  {atulitesyassels  per stalemsniot staterment of

pstorsALathitias)y w oi hrancat posivon  financit powtion Met
Lm £m tm im wn

At 29 March 2014
Trade and other recevables 315 (242) 93 {93) -
Dervative financial asseis N9 - 319 319 -
Cash and cash eqguvalents 452 (350) 62 - 62
1106 {63 2) 474 (412) 62
Trade and other payables {2332} 242 (20909 93 (1997)
Denvatwve financial labilities {1269) - (1269) g @50
Sank loans and overdralts (4%1) 390 (61} - 61
(405 2} 632 {3420) 412 (3008)

The gross financial assets andliabilities set off i the batance sheet pnmarnly relate to cash poocling arrangements with banks Amounts
which do not meet the cnitera for offsetting onthe statement of financial positon but coutd be settled nelin certan circumstances
principally relate o derwvative transactions under ISDA (international Swaps and Dervatives Asscciation)agreements where eachparty
nas the option to settie amounts an a net basis nthe event of default of the other party
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Fair value hierarchy
The Croup uses the lollowing herarchy far determuring and disclosing the faw value of financial nstrument s by valuation techrique

3 Level | quoted (unadpusted) prices in active markets fonidentical assets and katilities

A Level 2 not traded in an acuive market but the far values are based on quoted market prces or alternative pricing sources with reasonable
levels of price transparency The Groups Level 2 financalinstrurments nclude nierest rate and foreign exchange denvatives Fair vatue s
calculated using discaunted cash flow melhadology, future cash flows are esumated based onlorward exchange rates and interest rales
{from obser vable market curvesyand contract rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of the vanous counterparties for
those withalong maturty

- Level 3 techriques which use inputs whuch have a significant effect on the recarded fair value tnat are not based on observable rnarket
data The far value of the embedded derivative 1s calculated using an option valuation model based onthe prisent vatue of a 35-year
lease with annuallease paymentsincreasing by Retad Price Index (RPI), capped and floored at 1 5% and 2 5% respectively and then
discounted back to the valuation date The valuationis sensitive to changes n RPI

At the end of the reporting penod the Croup held the following financial nstruments a5 fair vatue

1015 2014
Lovel | Level 2 Leval 3 Total Level) Lavel2 Leveld Total
im {m im &m Em fm tm [ (]
Assets measured at forr value
Financial assets at fair value Lhrough
profu, and loss
~trachng dervatives - a1 - ER] - 16 - 16
Derivatives used for hedaing - 1669 - 1669 - 303 - 03
Embedded dorvatives (sec note 5} - - 237 237 - - 224 224
Shori-termanvestments - ne - ne - 124 - 124
Liabilities measured at fair vatue
Frrancial labalities al fair value through
proft and loss
= trading derwatives - {04) - (0 4) - {06) - 06}
Dernvauvesused lorhedging - (27 3) - {27 3) - {126 3) - (126 3}

There were no translors baetween Level | and Level 2 fair value measurements and no transfers oul of Level 3 farvalue measurementsn
the current or prior reporting penad In addition to the above the Group has £30m (last year £30minunlisied equity secunties measured
atcost

The following table represents the changes in Level Jinstruments

05 2011

tm [

Opening balance 2214 259
Cains and losses recognised in the income statement 13 {35)
Closing balance 237 224

The gains recognised in the rcame statermnent relateto Lhe valualion of the embedded denvatve in alease contract The fair value
movement of the embedded derivative of £1 3m gain (Last year £3 5mloss)is ireated as adjusiment to reporled profil (see note 5)

Fair value of financial instruments

With Lhe exception of the Groups fixed rate bond debt and the Partnership Liability loLhe Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme there were
no materal differences between the carrying value of non-derivative financial assets and financial Labilties and ther Far values asat the
balance sheet date

The carrying value of the Group s fixed rate bond debt was £3,697 7m (last year £1 6059m) the fair value of this debt was £1883 6m (Last year
£1,780 3rm) The carrying value of the Partnershup Labdity to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension scherna s £512 9m (last year £568 ?m)and the
Fawr value of thus Liability1s £501 3m (ast year £5557m)

Capnal palicy
The Groups objectives when managing capitat are to safeguardits ability to continue asa going concern in order to provide optimalreturns
for shareholders and to mantain an efficient capstal structure to reduce the cost of capitat

Indoing 0 the Croup s strategy 1s tomaintain a capial structuré cormmensurate withan investrment grade credit rabing to operate withina
net dedt/EBITDA ratio of 2 0x-1 5x and to retamn appropnate levels of lguidity headroom to ensure financial stabiity and flexibility To achieve
this strategy the Group regularly monitors key cred t metncs such as the gearing ratio, cashilow tonet debt (see note 27)and fixed charge
cover Lo maintain this posibon Inaddiuon, the Group ensures a COMbNaton of appropr iate committed short-term lgquidity headroom

with a diverse and balanced tong-term detit matunty profile As at the balance sheet date the Croup s average debi maturity profile was
eight years (last year nine years) During the year the Group maintaned an investrnent grade crecht rating of Baa3 (stable) with Moody s and
BRB- (stable) with Standard & Poor s

Inorder to maintan or reatign the capial structure, the Croup may adjust the number of dividends paidtoshareholders, return capital to
shareholders issue new shares or sell assetstoreduce debt
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22 PROVISIONS
1018 2014
Property Restructunng Other Total Tc al
£m im £m £m £m
At start of year 251 463 48 762 352
Prowded i the year 152 137 48 337 718
Relgasedinthe year (316} {156) ©on (193) (43)
Utilised during the year {157} {15V) (20) (328) (256)
Exchange differences (06) (na) - (20) ©9)
Discount rate unwind 03 = - 03 -
Reclassification from trade and other payables 222 - - 222 -
At end of year 429 279 78 M3 762

Analysed as

Current 462 448
Mo Loy 321 314

Property provisions relate to anerous lease contractsand dilapidations primarily ansing as a result of Lhe closure of stares m Lthe UK

China and the Czech Group (see note 5) These provisions are expecled 1o be utiised over Lhe penodto the end of cach specilic lease

Reslructuring provisions relate Lo the estimated costs of several strategic programimes including the closure of lour storesinlreland nthe
prior year and the current restructure of the logistics network (see note 5) These provisions are expecled to beutiised within seven years

23 DEFERREDR TAX

Deferred taxis provided under the balance sheet Liability method usng a taxraie of 20% (last year 20%) for UK dirferences and local tax rates

for overseas differences

Themaovements in defetred tax assets and labilittes (after offsetting balances within the same unsdiction as permitted by JAS 12 income

Taxes}dunng the year are shown below
Deferred tax assets/{Labiitics)

Landang Copital Qther
bunldings  aliowsnces Penson  shoil term
termporary  nescassof  temporary  temiporary Totaly Overseit
differenres deprecation  dbferences difforonces  deterred o deferreotas Total
Em £m £m Lm &m &m Im
At 31 March 2013 (525) (906} (96 6) 65 (2332) (74) (2406)
Credited/(charged) to the ncome staterment 32 ©3) [(oF:)] {125) {194) )] (213)
Credited/(charged) 10 equityfother comprehensiveincome - - Ql 209 2t0 {1 7) 193
At 29 March 2014 {493) (99 9) {973) 149 (2316) {110} (242 8)
At 30 March 2014 (493) (99 9) (97 3) 149 (231 6) Moy {2426}
Credited/{charged) Lo the income staternent 23 (61) [#33) {43) 1049) o4 {160}
{Chargedycredited Lo equity/olher comprehensive ncome - - {55 2) {137 {68 9) 74 (615}
At 28 March 2015 (470) (1060) (154 8) 31) {310 9) {12) [3141)

Other short-ternm temporary differences relate mainly to employee share options and financislinstrument s

The deferred tax Lability on land and buldings temporary differences s reduced by the benefit of capitallosses with atax value of £48 am
(Last year £46 5m) Due Lo unceriainty over therr future use, nobenelit has been recognised in respect of unexpired trading losses carried
forward noverseas jurisdictions with a Lax value of £43 5m{last year £38 7m)

No deferred tax s recogmsed in respect of undistnbuted carnings of overseas subsidaries and joint veniures, unless amaterial Lability 1s
expected 10 anse on disinbution af these earmings under applcable tax legislation Nodeferredtax babiity has beenrecognised inrespoct
of undistrbuted earruings of £175m with 8 tax value of £4 am (last year £130mwith atax value of £3 3m) onthe basis the distribution canbe
contrelled by the Group and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse n the foreseeable future

24 ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

201% 204
Shares im Snares £m

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p each
Alstart of year 1,632,247,974 4081 1613888192 4035
Shares issued onexercise of shareoptions 15,566,772 39 18 359782 46
At end of year 1,647,814,746 4120 1632247974 4081

Issue of new shares
15,567,772 (last year 18 359 782} orcimary shares having anorminal vatue of £39m (Last year £4 6m) were aliotted duning Lthe year under the
terms of the Cornpany s schemes which are descrbed innote 13 The aggregate consideration recerved was £40 Brm {last year £450m)
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25 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A Capital commitments

1018 2014
m im

Commitments in respect of properties in the course of construction 1029 861
Commitrentsin respect of computer software under development 255 -
128 4 861

B Other material contracts

In the event of a matenal change inthe trading arrangement s with cortan warehouse operators Lhe Croup hasa commitrment to purchase
properly, plant and equipment, at values ranging from historical net book value to market value whichare currertly owned and operated by

the warchouse operaiors on the Groups behall

See note 12 for details onLhe parlnership arrangement with Lhe Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme

¢ Commitments under operating teases

The Group leases various stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements Theleascs have

varying terms escalauon clauses and rencwalnghts

1018 20ta
m frn
Total future rinimum rentals payable under non ¢anceltable operating leases are as follows
~VWALRIN One yaar 296 2969
—Later than ong year and not later than five years 1,0741 10341
- Later than five years and not later thanten years 10910 10201
- Later Lhanten years and not laler Lhan 15 years 5493 6720
= Later Lhan 15 years and not later Lhan 20 years a4ap 3583
- Later than 20 years and not kater than 25 years 2622 2363
—Later than 25 years 10743 10641
Total 4,671 3 468t 8
Ihe total non-cancellable future sublease paymentsto be recaived are £4) Zm (last year £449rm)
26 ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS CIVEN IN THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Cash flows from operating activities
2018 2014
m Lm
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 4817 5060
Income tax expense 11813 744
Finance costs 1168 1391
Finance income (15 5) (250)
Operating profit 7013 6945
Degreasofincrease) n inventones as57 (86 4)
Increase n recervables (130) (45 8)
Increase n payables 876 1077
Non-undertying operating cash inflows/foutflows} 286 (174)
Depreciation amor bisation and write-offs 5501 5047
Sharg-based payments ni) 213
Pension costs charged against operating profit 854 924
Cash contributions 1o pension schemes (143 D) (921)
Non-underlying non-cashitems {(537) (508)
Non-underlying operating profit tems 612 474
Cash generated from operations 1,3491 11755




AMNNUAL REPGRT AND RNANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED
27 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT
A Reconcibation of movement in net debt
Extnange
AL and o*mer At
30 March fnon cash 8 March
014 Cash'los movemens 018
tm £m om tm
Net cash
Bank loans, overdrafls and syndicated bank faciity (see note 20) (4457) 164 2 25 {279 0)
Less amounts treated as financing (sec below) 4393 (1759} {25) 2609
©4) (7 - (e "
Cashandcash equivalents (see note 18) 16821 261 {23) 2059 ‘E
Net cash per statement of cash flows 1757 144 (23 1878 E
Current financial assets (see note 16) 177 60) on 116 z
Debt financing °
Bank loans and averdrafis ireatad ag linanoing feaa sy o) [CECR] 1/59 25 {2609)
Medium-term notes (see note 20) {1609 8) - {20) {1,611 8)
Financeleasc liabilities (see nole 20) (522) a8 12) (48 6)
Partnership labidily 10 the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (see note 12) [5557) s44 — {501 3)
Debt financing (2,6570) 2351 (07) (2,422 6)
Net debt (2463 6) 2435 {31) {2,223 2)
B Reconciliation of net debt to statement of financial position
013 4
Em L w
Statement of financial position and related notes Z
Casnand cash equivalents{seenole 18) 2059 1823 g
Current financial assets (see note 16} ne 177 E
Bankloans and overdralts (sce note 20) {279 0) (4457} g
Medwm -termnotes - net of hedging dervatives (1,652 Q) {1 6450) e
Finance lease Labilities (see note 20} 483 6) (522)
Partrership batiity to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scherne (see notes 12 and 21) (512 9) (5687)
(2,275 0) (25158)
Interest payable included within related borrowing and the partnership Labitity (o the Marks & Spencer
UK Pension Schemne 518 522
Total net debt (2,223 2) {2,463 6)
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A Subsdiancs

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries whichare related parues havebeen elminated on consolidaton and are not
disclosedinths note Transactions belween the Company and its subsichanes are disclosed inthe Company s separate fmancial statements
B Hedge End joint venture

Aloan ol £50m was receved [rom the joint venture on 9 Cctaber 2002 115 repayable on five business days nolice and was rencwed on
I January 2015 Interest was charged on theloanat 2 0% until 31 Decernber 2009 and 0 5% thereafter

C Lima (Bradford) jomt venture

Aloan faciity was provided to the joint venture on 11 August 2008 At 28 March 2015 £24 0rn (Last year £24 Om)was drawn down on this
facAity Interest was charged on the loan at 2 7% above three-month LIBOR The Group has enteredinto rental agreement with the joint
venture and £4 9m (last year £4 6rm)of rental charges were Incurred There was no outstanding balance at 28 March 2015

D Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme

Details of other transactions and balances held with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme are set outin notes 11 and 12

E Key managemant compensation

s 2014

im im
Salares and short-termbenehts 75 73
Share-based payments 08 312
Total a3 105

Koy management comprises the Baard direciors only Further mformation about the remuneration of ndividual directors 1s provnded
in ihe Remuneration Report During the year, key management have purchased gooeds ai the Croups usual prices less 2 20% chscount
This discount 1s avalable to all staff employed dectly by the Group inthe UK

F Other related party transactions

Supplier Lransaclions occurred duning the year beiween the Group and a company controllod by Martha Lane Foxs partner Martha
s a non-executive director of the Group These transactions relaied to the receipt of services andemounted 1o E2 Smdunng Lhe year
(last year £1 Bm}wiih an outstanding Lrade payable of £02m at 28 March 2015 (last year E04m)
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Asat Asat
16 March 201% 29March 2084
Notes £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Investment s in subsidhary undertakings s 9,226 4 92174
Total assets 9,226 4 92174
Leabilitias
Current Labdrtes
Amounts owed to subsichary undertakings 2,429 5 24718
Total Labilities 2,4295 24718
Net assets 6,796 9 67456
Equity
Ordinary share capital a120 4081
Share orernum acrannt duia 3555
Capnalredemptionreserve 2,2026 22026
Merger reserve 1,3973 13973
Retained earmings 2,3926 23821
Total equity 6,796 9 67456

The financial statement s were approved by the Board
notes on pages 12dand 125

Mar¢ Bolland Chief Executive Officer
Helen Weir Chuef Finance Officer

aulhonscd forissue on 19 May 2015 The financialstatements alse comprise the
S/
.
(N~

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Oty Share Capt
share prammum  regemp an MerQer Retarved

capual BLCOUNE regArve reserve aArAINGS Toral

Em tm [ fm [ 3] im

At 31 March 201 4035 3151 22026 1,3973 2,3725 66910
Profi lor the year - - - - 2736 2736
Dwvidends - - - - (2738)  (2738)
Capilat contnbution for share-based payments - - - - 96 96
Shares issued on oxercise of employee share options 46 404 - - - 450
At 29 March 2014 Llel:]] 3655 22026 13973 2,3821 67456
At 30 March 2014 4081 3555 2,2026 11,3973 2,3821 67456
Profit for the year - - - - 2822 2822
Ciwdends - - - - (2807) (2807)
Capilalcontrnbution for share-based payments - - - - 80 90
Shares 1ssued on exercise of employee share options 39 369 - - - 408
At 28 March 2015 4120 3924 2,2026 1,3973 23926 67969

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

52 wecks tndug 52 werhs enged

20 March 29 March
2018 2014
im Em
Cash How from investing activities

Dmdends receved 282 2 2736
Net cash generated from investing activities 2822 2736

Cash flows from financing activities
Sharesissued on exercise of employee share options 408 450
Repayment of intercompany loan (42 3) (450)
Equity dmvidends paid {280 7) {2736)
Net cash used in financing activities {282 2) (2736)

Net cash inflow from activities - _

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning and end of year - -

QUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

C1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Company s accounting policies are the same as those set oulinnote | of the Group financial statements, except s noled below

Investments in subsidiarios are stated at cost less whereappropnate prowisions for impasment The Company grants share-based
payments Lo the employees of subsidiary companies Each period the far value of the employee services recewved by the subshiary
asa capital contribution from the Company is reflocted as anaddibion toinvestments n subsicharnes

Loans from other Group undertakings and all other payables areimtially recorded at far value, whichis generally the proceeds recerved
They are then subsequently carned at amorused cost The loans are non-interest bearng andrepayable on demand

The Company s financial risk 1s managed as part of the Croup s strategy and policies as disgussedin note 21 of the Croup firancial
staternents

lnaccordance with the exemption allowed by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has not presentedits own iNcome
starement or statement of comprehensive income

€2 EMPLOYEES

The Company had no employees dunng Lhe current or prior year Directors received emolumentsinrespest of thar services Lo the Companty
dunng the year of £960000 (last year £986 000) The Comparnty chd not aperate any pension schermes dunngthecurrent or preceding year

C3 AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

Authtor s remuneration in respect of the Company s annual audit has been borne by its subsidiary Marks and Spencer plc and has
been disclosed on 3 consolidated basis in the Company s consolidated financial statements as required by Sectian 494{4)(3) of the
Comparies Act 2006

C4 DIVIDENDS

2008 018 2018 04
per thare pet wnare Lm L

Dvidends on cquity ordinary shares
Paid linal dwidend 10 8p i08p 176 2 1736
Paid interim divmidend 6 4p 52p 1045 1000
172p 170p 2807 2736

Inaddiban the directors have propased a final dvidendin respect of the year ended 28 March 2015 of ¥ 6p per share amounting (o3
dividend of £191 1m [t will be pard on 10 July 2015 Lo shareholders whe are onlhe Register of Mermbers on 29 May 2015 In une withLhe
requirements of 145 10 Events after the Reporting Penod, this dividend has not been recognised wathinthese resulls

C5 INVESTMENTS
A Investments tn subsidiary undertakings

2018 2014

tm im

Beginning of the year 974 9,2078
Additianal investrnent in subsidiary undertalings relating to share-based payments 90 96
End of year 92264 92174

Shares in subsidiary underlakings represent the Company sinvestmentn Marks and Spencer plc The diroctors believe that the carrying
value of Lhe investments s suppor ted by ther underyngnet assets

8 Pnncipal subsidiary undertakings
The Cormpany s principal sunsidiary undartakings are sel out below Aschedule of mnterests inall underiakings is Niled wath the Annual Return |

Proporbon of votng rgh §

Cauntry of INCorpo: aon andshores hela by l
Snpapal scivey and operdlion Company Asubsicary

Marks and Spencer plc Relaling Urited Kingdom 100% - |
Marks and Spencer Intgrnational Holdings Lirmited Holding company United Kingdom - 100%
Marks and Spencer (Nederland) BV Holding company The Netherlands - 100%
Marks and Spencer Maninopoulos BV Holdng company The Netherlands - 100%
Marks and Spencer CzechRepublicas Retading CzechRepublic - 100%
Marks and Spencer (Ireland) Limited Reraling Republic of Ireland - 100%
Marks and Spencer (Asia PacificyLimited Retaling Hong Kong - 100%
Marks and Spencer Simply Foods Limited Retaling United Kingdom - 100%
Marks and Spencer Maninopoulos Greece SA Retaling Greece - BO%
M S CeneralinsuranceL P Financial services Cuerntey - 100%
peruna Group Lirnited Procurement UntedKingdom - 100%

Marks and Spencer Scottish Lrmited Partnership Propertyinvestment  United Kingdom -

| Marks and Spencer ples the genealoartner

The Company has Laken advantage of the oxempton under Secuion 410 of the Companies Act 2006 by providing information only
1 relation to subsichary underlakings whose results or financial posiion, in the opinion ofthedirectars, principally affected he
financral slaternents
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

C6 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Dunng the year the Cormpany has recewed dividends from Marks and Spencer pl¢ of £282 2m (last year £273 6m) and decreased s loan
from Marks and Spencer ple by £42 3m (Last year £45 Om) The outstanding balance was £2,429 3m (last year £2 471 8m)and 1s non-inLerest
bearing There were no other related party transactions

C? SUBSIDIARIES EXEMPT FROM AUDIT

The following UK subsichanies will Lake advantage of the audit exernption set oul within Section 479A of the Cormpanies Act 2006 far the year
ended 28 March 2015

Mame Pe'vrence
Marks & Spencer (Initial LP) Lirnited SC315365
Rubyy Properties (Hardwick) Limited 04716018
Ruby Propertwes (Long Eaton) Limited Q4716031
Ruby Propertes {Thorncuffe} Lirnited 04716110
Ruby Proporties (Tunbrdge) Limited 04716032
Ruby Properties (Curmbernauld} Lirmied Gw522758
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Brooklands Store} Limited 05502608
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Chester Store} Linmited 05502542
Marks and Spencer 2006 (Chester Satellite Store) Limited 05502519
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Fife Road Kingston Store) Limited 055025398
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Glasgow Sauchrehall Store) Limited 08502546
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Hedge End Store}Limited 05502538
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Kensington Store) Limited 05502478
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Kingstan-on-Thames Store) Limited 5502520
Marks and Spencer 2005 {Kingston-on-Thames Satelute Store} Lirited 05502523
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Parman House Kingston Store) Lirited 05502588
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Pudsey Storc) Limited 05502544
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Warnington Germini Store) Limited 05502502
Marks and Spencer Investments Q4903061
Simply Food (Property Investments) 05502542
Simpiy Food (Property Ventures) Limited 02239799
Busyexport Lirnited 04411320
Marks and Spencer (Property Holdings) Linited 02100781
Marks and Spencer (Property Ventures) Limited 05502513
per una Group Limited 05143488
Amelhyst Leasing (Properties) Lirited 04246934
Morpheus Europe Limited 08540784

The Company will guarantee the debts and Uabilities of the above UK subsidianes at the balance sheet date of £6 7minaccordance wilh
Seclicn 479C of the Companics Act 2006 The Company has assessed the probabitity of loss under Lhe guarantiees as remote
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GROUP FINANCIAL RECORD

015 014 013 2012 2011
51 weeks 7 weahs 62 whhs 52 weehs 52 wedhs
im £m im (m 3]
Income statement
Revenue'
UK 92231 915857 B9514 88682 87330
InLernational, 1,088 3 11540 10754 1,066 1 10073
10,2114 103097 100268 99343 59,7403
Qperating profit'
UK 6406 6003 6328 6580 6790
International 807 94 2 1202 88 5 1579
Total operating profit 7011 6945 7530 7465 8369
Net interest payable {1V 8) (125 8) {2129} {1141} @19)
Pension lnange income 05 1y 71 256 375
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 6000 5804 5472 6580 7806
Analysed between
Underlying profit before tax 6612 6229 6481 7059 7143
Adjustmenis Lo reported profil (61 2) {42 5) (1009) (479) 6513
Income Lax expense {118 3) {74 4) {102 ) (168 4) {1820)
Profit after taxation 46817 5060 4448 4896 5986
2018 2014 xMn 2012 200
52 wooky S2weLss 57 wherthg 52 woths 52 woans
Basic carrungs per share' Basic carmngs/Weighted average
ordinary shares inssue 297p 325p 83p 25p 388p
Underlying basic carnings pershare’  Underlysng basic earnings/Weighted
average ordinary shares nissue lp 322p 5p 349p 34 8p
Diwidend per share declaredin
respecl of the year 18 0p 170p 170p 170p 170p
Dividend cover Underlying earnings per share/
Dividend per share 18x 10x 19x 2ix 20x
Retailfixed charge cover Qperating prolil before deprecistion
and operating lease charges/
Fixed charges 3 6x 3 4x 35x 36x 40x%
Statement of financial position
Net assets (Em) 31588 27067 25195 27788 26774
Net debl’ (Em) 2,2232 24616 26143 18571 19009
Capnaloxpenditure (Erm) 526 6 700 8213 7375 4915
Stores and space
UK stores 852 798 766 731 703
UK seling space (milion sq {t) 168 166 164 160 156
International siores 480 455 a8 ag7 61
International setung space {mdlon sq ) 60 58 54 a7 42
Staffing (full-time equivalent)
UK 52,247 54578 51835 51938 43922
international 6,849 6,498 5683 5116 4751

1 B arkEIangG ]
2 Evchodes dcerued neerest




ANALYSIS OF SHARE REGISTER

ANMNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Qrdinary shares

As at 28 March 2015 the Company had 181,607 registered holders of ardinary shares Ther sharcholdings are analysed beolow It should be
noted that many of our privale nvesiors hold thewr shares through nominee cormpames, therefore the percentage of private holders s
much higher (we estimate approximately 30%)than thatindicated

Porcent age Number of Percentage

HNumoes of of total ordinary of wsued

Rangn of tharenolaing shareholders sharenolders shared share Capslut
1-500 94339 5195 18006086 109
501 - 1,000 35125 1934 26,306 780 160
1001 - 2000 26896 1481 18677377 215
200} -5600 17944 aB8 55,109 204 i34
5,001 - 10000 4,608 254 31828681 193
10,001 -~ 100,000 2143 118 49,307034 299
100001 - 1 000,000 ki:y) o2 137,360 658 814
'SCCEC lhghest 165 Q09 1,291218926 7816
Totat 181,607 10000 1647,814,746 10000
Parcemape Numoer of Parcentage

Nurnber of of tatat arcaary of issued

Category of shareholder sharehokiers sharoholgers shares shdre Caowal
Private 174558 9612 2589392325 1571
tinstitulionaland corporate 7049 188 1388875421 8429
Total 181 607 10000  1,647814746 10000

201516 financial calendar and key dates

28 May 2015

29 May 2015

07 Juty 2015

07 July 2015

10July 2015

04 November 2015°
12 Novernber 2015
13 Novernber 2015*
January 2016*

08 January 2016

Ex-dwidend date - Final dividend

Record dale 1o be eligible for Lhe final dwvidend

Results - Quarker 1 intenien Management Statement!
Annual Ceneral Meeting (11am)

Final dividend payment date for the year 1o 28 March 2015

Resulls - Half Year!

Ex-dividend dale - Interim dwidend

Record dal e to be eligible for the ntenm dividend
Results - Quarler 3 Interim Managerment Statement'
Interim dividend payment date

t Those whohave reges ered 1or elebrome COMMUNICaton or Mews slertsat markaandap comy pany wil receve notf aLon by emat when thg s avalsb'e

Pronitannat dates

MANAGING YOUR SHARES ONLINE

Shareholders can manage therr holdings
online by registenng with Shareview, the
internet based platform grovided by
Equirnt) Registration s a straight forward
process and allows shareholders 1o

= Signup {or electroric shareholder
communication

=Receve trading updates by email

Sviewall of ther shareholdings in
one place

~»Update ther records following a
change of address

-3 Have dividends paid into ther bank
account

SVolen advance of company general
meetings

MBS encourages shareholders to signup
for electronic communtcation as the
reduction in printing costs and paper
usage makes a valuable contnpution to our
Plan A comrmtments [t s also beneficial to
shareholders who can be notified by email
whenever we release trading updates to
the London Stock Exchange which arenot
mailed to sharcholders

To find qut more information about the
services offored by Shareview and Lo
register, please visit shareview co uk

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2015

This year s ACM will be held at Wembley
Stadium, Wemnbley London HA9 OWS on
TJuesday 7 July 2015 The meeting wall
startat 1lamand registration wili be cpen
from 9 30am

DIVIDENDS

Paidin January and July each year (subject
10 Board andsharcholder approval} Wo
encourage shareholders to have thewr
dmdends pad drectly into ther bank
account to ensure efficiont payment and
that cleared funds are receved onthe
payment dale Shareholders who receve
ther dwidend paymentsinthis wayreceive a
sngle, consolidaled tax voucher annually in
January covering both dvidend payments
made dunng theiax year We are able 1o
send separate tax vouchers if preferred

Shareholders canchange therr preferred
dmvidend payment method onling at
shareview ¢co uk or by contacung Eguiriti

QUR BUSINESS

QOUR PERFORMANCE
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

CONTINUED
CHANGING YOUR ADDRESS SHAREGIFT USEFUL CONTACTS
You should inform Equinitiof your new Il you have avery small sharenolding MaS Registered Office
address as soon 3s possible Lo avoid mMissing that s uneconomical Lo sell, you may Waterside House
mportant correspondence relating Lo your wanl toconsider conatng it to ShareGift 35 NorthWhar! Road,

shareholding If you hold 1500 shares or
lewer andreside in the UK, 1his canbe done
quickly over the telephone Holdings of
more than 1,500 shares will reguire a written
instruction quoting your full narme 11-digit
shareholder reference number (if known)
and both your previous and new addresses

DUPLICATE DOCUMENTS

Argund 10,000 shareholders have more
thanoneaccount cnthe shareregister and
receve duplicate documentation from us
asaresult If youfallinto Lhus group please
contact Equinilito Combine your accounts

CORPORATE WEBSITE

You can access the corporate website at
marksandspencer com/thecompany

The MA&S corporate website prowdes a wealth
of useful information for shareholders and
should be your first port of call for general
quenes relating to the Campany and your
shares Shareholders are also encouraged
to signup Lo receve news alerts by email
These mclude 2\l of the fimancial news
releases throughout the year that are

net sent to shareholders by post

The directors are responsible for the
mantenance and integrity of the hinancial
information an our website This information
has been prepared under Lherelevant
accounting standards andlegislation

NEW SHAREHOLDER LOYALTY SCHEME

2015 saw the launch of the Equinits Payment
Ptus Schemne,a new loyalty scheme for private
iwveslors dovelopedby Equinitimcollaboraion
with M&S The scheme enables M&S
shareholders Lo apporbonanything up toa
maximum of £900 of ther dwidend payment
1o purchase credik on an M&S Sharcholder
Card whichcanbe used o shopinour stores
andonbne Thisis sirnilar Lo an M&S gift card,
however the credit s offered Lo sharcholders
ata 10% discount So a sharehalder who
allocates the full (900 wouldreceve £1,000
crechit on iheir card Our private investors are
somie of our mast loyal cuslomers and we are
pleased Lo be able tontroduce Lrus famastic
new scheme Lthat dirgctly rowards ther level
of mvesiment inthe Company

The scherme s not currently avalable for
nvestors whose shares are heldinnominee
accounts Howover we will work valh both
Equiniti arnd nomince comparies to seek

a soluticn that will altow thase whose
shares are held mthis way to parucipate

in future years

Further nformation onthe scheme
and a detated FAQ can be found at
shareview co uk/info/paymentplus

(Registered chanty no 1052686),a charty
that speciabises in the denatien of small,
unwanted shareholdings Lo good causes
Find oui more by visiing sharegift org
or by calling - 44 (0}207 930 3737

CAPITAL CAINS TAX

Far Lhe purpose of Capital Gains Tax, the
price of an orcinary share on 31 March 1982
was 1535p, which when adjusted for Lhe

1 for | scripissue in 1984, gves a hgure of
76 75p Followtng the capial reorgarssation
n March 2002 HMRC has confirmed the
base cost for COT purposes was 372 35p
(81 43%)for an ordinary share and 68 75p
(18 75%) for a B share

AMERICAN DEPQSITARY RECEIPTS (ADRs)

The Company hasa Leve! | ADR
programme This enables US mvestors to
purchase Marks 8 Spencer Amercan
Depository Shares {ADS)in US dollars over
the counter The Company has chosento
have the ADRs quoted onthe QTC market s
highest ter International PremierQX

Forinformatign on OTCOX goto otegx com
For Deutsche Bank ermail

DB@&amstock com

ADRwebsite adrdb com

Tollfree callers withun the US

1 866 249 2593

For those caling cutside the US

<1 (718)921 8137

SHAREHOLDER QUERIES

The Company s share register s mantained
by our Registrar, Equinitt Shareholders with
queries relating to thexr shareholding should
contact Equiniti directly using one of the
methods Lsted Lo the aght For more
general quenes shareholders should
consult the Investors section of our
corporale website

SHAREHOLDER SECURITY

Anincreasing number of shareholders
have been contacbing us loyeport
unsoliciied and suspicious phone cails
recerved from pur porled brokers who
offer Lobuy thewr shares al a price farin
excess of Lher market value i s unlkely
that [irms authoriscd by the Financial
Conduct Authonty (FCAYwll contact you
with offars Lie this As such we believe
these calls are part of a scam commonty
referredloas a bailer room The callers
obtam your delals froam publicly avallable
sources of nformation includingthe
Company $ share register and canbe
extremely persistent and persuasive

London W2 INW

Tetephone +44(0)20 7935 4422
Registeredin England and Wates
(no 4256886)

Registrar

Equiniti Limited

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing,

west Sussex BN 6DA

United Kingdom

Telephone 0845 609 0810and outside the
UK «44 (Y 121 415707

Onune help shareview co uk (from here
youwillbe able o securely email Equinits
with your enquiry)

Group 5ecrotary and Head
of Corporate Governance
Armanda Mellor

Additionat docurnents

Annteractive ver sien of our 2014/15
Annual Reportis avalable enline at
marksandspencercomjannualreport2015

Additionally both the Annual Report
and Strategic Report are available

for download n pdf format at
marksandspencer corn/thecompany

Alternatively call0800 591 697

Students
Pleasc note students are advisedto
sourcenformaton from our website

GCeneral queries

Customer quenes 0845302 1234
Shareholder quenes Q845 609 0810
Alternatively, email us at
charman@marks-and-spencercom

Shareholders arccautioned lo be very
wary ofany unsolcited advice, offers ta
buy shares at adiscount soll your shares
at a prermiarn of requestls to complele
confientality agrecments wilth the
callers Remember, if it sounds too good
to be true, it probably is!

More detailed information and guidance
1$ available on ourcorporate websie
Anoverview of ¢urrent common scams
1s avallabte on the Action Fraud websile
actianfraud police uk
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